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VIL.

Vil

The Board, the Supervisory Committee and the Directors, Supervisors
and senior management of the Company guarantee that the content
of this annual report is true, accurate, and complete without any
false information, misleading statements or material omissions, and
severally and jointly accept legal responsibility for the above.

All Directors of the Company have attended the meetings of the
Board.

WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP has issued a standard
auditors’ report containing an unqualified opinion for the Company.

Mr. Li Junjie, the person in charge of the Company, Ms. Feng
Yongmei, the person in charge of accounting work and Mr. Yang Yue,
the person in charge of the accounting firm (accountant in charge),
have declared that they guarantee the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of the financial statements contained in this annual
report.

Resolutions of profit distribution or capitalisation of capital reserves
of the Company for the Reporting Period passed by the Board

During the Reporting Period, as audited by WUYIGE Certified Public
Accountants LLP, net profit attributable to shareholders of the listed
company was RMB7,477,000 and undistributed profit at the end of the
year was a loss of RMB709,876,600. As the Company recorded negative
undistributed profits at the end of the year, the Company proposed not
to distribute any profit and not to capitalize capital reserves for the year
of 2024. Such resolutions are required to be submitted at the AGM for
consideration and approval.

Declaration on risk from forward-looking statements

\/ Applicable [ Not applicable

Forward-looking statements such as future plans contained in this annual
report do not constitute substantial undertakings of the Company to
investors due to uncertainties. Investors are advised to be cautious about

investment risks.

Whether the controlling shareholders and other related parties have
misappropriated the Company’s funds for non-operational purpose

No

Whether any external guarantees are provided in violation of any
specified decision-making procedures

No

Whether more than half of the directors cannot guarantee the
truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the annual report
disclosed by the Company

No

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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X.

XI.

Important risk warnings

1.

Risk of intensified market competition

Although the overall gas storage and transportation market has
been showing a steady rising trend, competition in the industry has
intensified. The product market may change in the future, which
will bring some uncertain factors and influences to the Company’s
business development. Therefore, in the future, the Company
must focus on technological self-reliance, continue to improve its
independent innovation capability, make scientific deployments,
and make every effort to drive scientific and technological
innovation. Meanwhile, the Company will also enhance its market
and competition awareness, highlight the direction of professional
development, expand the product application areas, expand product
audience and enlarge its market share.

Risk of new business and new market development

Hydrogen energy and fuel cells are currently dominated by
commercial vehicles in China, are mainly used in the fields of
logistics, public transportation and large buses, and are still at the
stage of building up momentum. Due to national and local policies
and other sources of uncertainty, the Company has encountered
unexpected risks in the development of new businesses and new
markets. The Company will continue to drive the development of
hydrogen energy business and enhance core technology to improve
the core competitiveness of its products.

Risk of periodic fluctuations of the macroeconomy

At present, with the proactive support on intelligent manufacturing
industry from national policies, it is anticipated that in the short term,
there will be no change in the policy of encouraging the research
and development and application of industrial robots and promoting
the innovation and development of industrial robots and other
industries. The market demands in reforms of traditional industrial
technologies, factory automation, enterprise informatization
development and other aspects will continue to grow. However, if
fluctuations happen in the macroeconomic trend, resulting in the
restriction of the economic development of the PRC, the demand
of the downstream industries, which account for a relatively large
proportion of the Company'’s business, will be affected by the cycle,
which may in turn reduce the investment in new fixed assets, thus
bringing an unstable impact on the Company’s production and
operation. In order to cope with this risk, the Company will pay
timely attention to the macroeconomic situation, grasp the upstream
and downstream development dynamics, and control the risk factors
of industrial policies to the minimum in order to minimize the impact
on the Company.

Others

[J Applicable 4/ Not applicable
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Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

F—8 BE

Definitions

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms should have the

Definition

following meanings in this report:

Company, Listed Company or

JINGCHENG MAC
RAE - RRF
NI )

Beiren Holdings

1t ARz

Group
REE

means

means
{=r}
B

means
=
E}

Jingcheng Machinery Electric or means

Jingcheng Holding (controlling
shareholder and beneficial

controller)

SRR B S SURIE AR

(AR R - BRREEHIA)

Beiren Group

IEAEH

Tianhai Industry or Beijing
Tianhai
RBIEFIRKE

BYTQ
EFXRE

Jingcheng HK
RHEE

Tianjin Tianhai
REXS

@oard
HEE

Supervisory Committee
EEE

=

AGM
FEBERAE

Qirector(s)
oS
Supervisor(s)
2
Shareholder(s)
AR

Connected Person

B A BIEA L

Share(s) of the Company
NGIL <)

Reporting Period
s

SSE

EXFR

Stock Exchange
B3Py

ERFHEERDARAE

— . E=
EABED  RIEXESAE - THHARA
BITE%

Definition of frequently used terms
ERARRS

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited (it R R ER D BRAF)),
a joint stock company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the SSE .
ERFHREERNOERAE - —HRPEEMAZ RN AR AT - EE D R
IR EEPT BT

Beiren Printing Machinery Holdings Limited (the former name of the Company)

IEAEDRIEMAR D AR 27 (EERARE)

the Company and its subsidiaries
RRRREMBERA]
Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. Gt R =M EILRERETA

7l), a company established in the PRC and the controlling shareholder of the Company,
holding approximately 44.87% equity interest in the Company

IR FREEERERETAT - —HRPEKILZ AR BRARZIEREE - #
BN BIHLL.87 % 2 e

Beiren Group Corporation (1t A2 F]), a company incorporated in the PRC and a
subsidiary of Jingcheng Holding (the former controlling shareholder of the Company)
IEAEEQR  —ERFPREAMEKLZ AR - FIHEE 2 WEFRR (RANAR ZIE
A ARER)

Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. (At R XE L ZEHRA ), a subsidiary of the Company
IRKEIEBRAF (KRB ZFRAE)

Qingdao BYTQ United Digital Intelligence Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company
SEILFREHRBERER AR (RRFZFRR)

Jingcheng Holding (Hong Kong) Company Limited (R %R (F%E) AR A A, a

ggbsidiag of the Company
SR () BRAR (KRR ZFRA)

TiagJin Tianhai High Pressure Container Co., Ltd, an indirect subsidiary of the Company
RABRARKENEREBEREERETAT

the board of directors of the Company

RAREEE

the supervisory committee of the Company

ARAEER

the 2024 Annual General Meeting to be convened

1B 2024 F EREBFAE

the director(s) of the Company

RARES

the supervisor(s) of the Company

RARES

the holder(s) of Shares of the Company

NERMFFEA

has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BAR FHRARE T %A RE

Unless otherwise stated, share(s) of the Company, including A share(s) and H share(s)
RRRIR - BIEARKHAR - 56 FriERRSI

the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
2024F1 A1HE2024F12A31H

the Shanghai Stock Exchange

BB HZS

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERMERHPMARAR
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DEfI nitions (Continued)

CSR

TEEES

controlling shareholder(s)

PERARR
Listing Rules
FRA
PRC or China

e

PRC Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises

R ERHER

RMB
AR

HK$
BT

Hong Kong

/

United States or US
X

UsD
E

DOT
DOT

LNG
LNG

CNG
CNG

Station or filling station
Pl E=R

industrial gas cylinders
TESRM

Type Ill Cylinders
=30

Type IV Cylinders
sk i

Construction project
of intelligent digital control
production line for Type IV
C}(Iinders

PO YRS B B
A ERRERRIA B

Reorganisation
NRER

Acquisition

KR

means
5
B

means
=
=}

means

Section 1

B ER

— EBE®

Definition of frequently used terms
ERFAE

China Securities Regulatory Commission
PRESEEEREZES

has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmARAIM T %2 RE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on the SSE and the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange

AR BT R AR SR AR 5 L AR A

the People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual report, shall not
include Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China and Taiwan ) . L B
E%é%%ﬂ CIRMAFEREME - TRESS - FEARKMBIRPIFRIFTE
LW =l

PRC Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
B SRR

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

HEUEEEBARE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
& *&’E%% BT

the*HoE KonSpgciaI Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
REARFIMBEIE BRI THRR

the United States of America
s RE

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

XBEDEEERET

abbreviation of US Department of Transportation
B2z i@ EB(US Department of Transportation)f) 2 X455

abbreviation of liquefied natural gas
HAE R AR (liquefied natural gas% BB

abbreviation of compressed natural c);as .
4R R SRR (compressed natural gas) H) 5 X 455

a station where automobiles are filled with LNG or CNG
HERE R AR R A RA TE IO

collective name for cylinders that are filled with industrial gas
R TR RN imeE

aluminum liner and carbon fiber full-winding compound gas cylinder

R ETRAI A 2B EE A R

plastic tank full-winding compound gas cylinders, mainly used for vehicle fuel storage,
for filling natural gas or hydrogen o e
PHAEGE2REES TN TEMREMRBET - RERARIER

the construction project of intelligent digital control production line for Type IV Cylinders

AR s L BiR A ERERIAR

the issue of shares and payment of cash to specific targets in consideration of acquiring
certain equity interests in BYTQ and fund raisin

[LESHEIES ﬁﬂ%ﬁ&s‘zﬁﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁibﬁ?i%%ﬁ@ﬂ%’%ﬂﬁﬁi%%%é@ﬁ@ﬁﬁ

the proposed prior investment of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Industrial
Investment Co., Ltd. in Shanghai Sunwise Energy Systems Co., Ltd. and its obtaining the
control of Shanghai Sunwise Energy Systems Co., Ltd. y
%@g?ﬁﬂ%%e&%&ﬁﬁﬁ&@ﬂ FTATIRE EBRENER RSB R A B W ESHE S
S IH
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DEfI nitions (Continued)

Definition

— EBE®

Definition of frequently used terms
ERFAE

Listed company means Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

RN & RS A R A

Jingcheng Industrial Investment means Be[jin%Jingcheng Machinery Electric Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.* (b5 k¥ e 2

. BABMAA)

TIER i IR EERIRERRAT

Shanghai Sunwise means Shanghai Sunwise Energy Systems Co., Ltd.* (L/BFEHERZGERAR)

bigse & ERENERAGBIRAF

BYJC means Beijin Be% Machine Tool Co., Ltd.* Gt R —#/KAREEAR)

Jb—H# R & R —RKRBRET AT

Beiren Equipment means Beijing Beiren Printing Equipment Co., Ltd.* (4t L AENRIR BB R A 7))

b AR & ERIEAERIRE AR R

Jingcheng Haitong means Beijing Jingcheng Haitong Technology Culture Development Co., Ltd.* (3t UG @R

o sl it

e | RSB L ERBR AR

Asset Company means Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (Jt R E &

. %QEJZE{E\EQQET), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jin%cheng Machinery Electric

BERT i IR EEEERBRETAR (RHEE 2 BHEAR)

CsDC means China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited

PEAT = PRESFECREEERAA

Tianhai Hydrogen means Beijing Tianhai Hydrogen Energy Equipment Co., Ltd.* Ut R K/ RAEEEHFR AR

REaEE & IRKERERERRAF

Minghui Tianhai means Beijing Mjngﬁhui Tianhai Gas Storage and Transportation Equipment Sales Co., Ltd.* (3t
o RPEEXSREHEREHEARAT)

Ll ¥ I RBEREREBFERBHERRAF

Tianhai Cryogenic means Beijin \TianhailCr%ogenic Equipment Co., Ltd.* Qb R BERREER AR

REER = ERREBERREBRAF

Tianjin Tianhai means Tianjin Tianhai High Pressure Container Co., Ltd.* (KEXERBERRAREERA)

REKRG i REREGEBEAHZAREET AT

Shanghai Tianhai means Shanghai Tianhai Composite Cylinders Co., Ltd.* (/& X/EE A RMAR A F)

EBXE = HEREBEERMABRAR

Kuancheng Tianhai means Kuancheng Tianhai Pressure Container Co., Ltd.* (R KEEN T RERAF)

THKRE = BEWRERNABFBARAF]

Tianhai Hydrogen means Beijing Tianhai H%/drogen Energy Equipment Co., Ltd.* JE AR BREL KB ER R F)

REEEE i IRKEGRERBERAF

Jiangsu Tianhai means Jiangsu Tianhai Special Equipment Co., Ltd. * GLE# A SRR FEAR AT

LERRE ¥ Tar AR EEEER AR

Beijing Nengtong means Beijing Nengtong Lease Company* (1t R 4B E A 7))

REeE & LREBEEAR

Qingdao Eternal means %ir[zﬁgd\a%;temal Economic Information Consulting Co., Ltd.* (5 &3 4= B

NG

55N i SFENEALBRERERABRAR

B&WBC means Babcock & Wilcox Beijing Company Ltd.* (At R 240} 5e e Bl B B 52 BT B IR 2 7))

I FEE g EREmE R BB ER AR

Peitian Company means Beijing Peitian Technology Co., Ltd.* GERELREHTAR A F)

B KA E] & I RERKMAR A

Unless otherwise specified, all amounts stated in this report are denominated in Renminbi.

BIFRERA - AMETNMELRIIUAARKEHE -

*  For identification purposes only

6 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Section 2 Company Profile and
Key Financial Indicators
EZE RRAENNEIENBER

l. Information of the Company — AAEEER
Chinese name of the Company I FR IR ERRS BRA A
NG LD €T
Chinese abbreviation TR
NGIEL QT
English name of the Company BEIING JINGCHENG MACHINERY ELECTRIC COMPANY LIMITED
RNEIHINT T
English abbreviation JINGCHENG MAC
RAEIIN A TBAES
Company'’s legal representative Mr. Li Junjie
RNEHPEERRA TERFEE
[I. Contact Persons and Contact Methods s B AR R
Representative in charge of
Secretary to the Board securities affairs
Ezegns BHBEHAK
Name Luan Jie Chen Jian
G BN BR i
Contact address No. 2 Huo Xian Nan San Road, Huo Xian Town,  No. 2 Huo Xian Nan San Road, Huo Xian Town,
Tongzhou District, Beijing Tongzhou District, Beijing
Bt IE bR N (2 SR SR SR R = 57 255% JE RN R B SR S SR FE = 72557
Telephone 010-87707288 010-87707289
B 010-87707288 010-87707289
Facsimile 010-87707291 010-87707291
BE 010-87707291 010-87707291
E-mail jcgf@btic.com.cn jcgf@btic.com.cn
EF{E4E jcgf@btic.com.cn jcgf@btic.com.cn
lll. Basic Information = HERBEREBN
Registered address of the Company Room 901, No. 59 Mansion, Dongsanhuan Road Central,
Chaoyang District, Beijing
yNCIEsais:ikils LR EASE R =R BE 59571901 =
Historical changes in the Company’S registered address Registered office from 13 July 1993 to 6 January 2004 as: No. 44,

Guangqu Road South, Chaoyang District, Beijing, China
Registered office from 7 January 2004 to 31 October 2013: No.
6 Rongchang East Street, Beijing Economic and Technological
Development Area, Beijing, China
Changed to the Company’s current registered address on 1 November
2013

NAEFEMIE A E S B R ER 199347 B 13 £20045F1 A6 Bttt & - PEHL R TG RE
RIRFAAIA45%
20041 A7H %2013 10431 Htffibit & - A B R LR
Bt e B [ 48 & SR 65
20135 1M A1 A2 E RARR M

Office address of the Company No. 2 Huo Xian Nan San Road, Huo Xian Town, Tongzhou District,
Beijing

YNSIEEN il AR BN [ RS SRR B = A7 2557

Postal code of the office address of the Company 101109

RN EV PRI E TR AR 101109

Company’s website www.jingchenggf.com.cn

NSRS www.jingchenggf.com.cn

E-mail jcgf@btic.com.cn

EF{E4E jcgf@btic.com.cn
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I Scction 2 Company Profile and
Key Financial Indicators
NRAEN N EEHKIEE

= — s

5 —BH

M~ EERE R EE R

IV. Disclosure of Company Information and
Place for Inspection

Name of media and website for the disclosure of
the Company’s annual report
NEHBEFERENERE R RA

Website of the stock exchange for the disclosure of
the Company’s annual report

NEBBFERENE R AEUL

Place for inspection of the Company’s annual report

AAFERSHEDEH

Shanghai Securities News

(LEEHFH

www.sse.com.cn, www.hkexnews.hk

www.sse.com.cn, www.hkexnews.hk
Office of the Board of the Company
KARESEWRE

NYNGILES LY

Basic Information of the Company’s Shares

V. Basic Information of the Company’s Shares

DNEREGR
Securities Stock abbreviation

Type of shares Place of listing of the shares abbreviation Stock code before change

RESR REETR 5 IR =R BREAT BE AR REE
A shares the Shanghai Stock Exchange RIS 600860 TR
AR% LBRESFRBM 4 600860 e d)
H shares The Stock Exchange of JINGCHENG MAC 00187 JINGCHENG MAC

Hong Kong Limited

HA% EEMERHMBR AR R E R 00187 P E R

VI. Other Related Information 7~ Bt E R

WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP
NGB (BRTREE)

2206, 22/F, No.1 Zhichun Road, Haidian, Beijing
bR TSR IR A0 AR 15522 /2206

Name of the accounting firm engaged Name

by the Company (audit agency newly

appointed by the Company for its 2024 %%

financial statement audit and internal ~ Office address

control audit projects)

8

AEEBN SR ERAT(RAFIEE PRt
HIVE 2024 E I TS BT K Names of signing Han Xueyan, Wang Peng
NERE IR ETIE B BB RHAE) accountant BT TS
BEF GRS
Name of the domestic legal adviser Name Beijing Kang Da Law Firm
engaged by the Company IR RERRMEEAT
HESE IR VAR RE R E2
Office address 8th, 9th, and 11th floors of Emperor Group Center,
No.12 Jianwai Street Ding, Chaoyang District, Beijing
N bl IERTHABREIRG T 125 EE2EEFO8E 98 - 1E
Name of the overseas legal adviser Name Woo Kwan Lee & Lo
engaged by the Company E PRRAE R AT
AlEE BRI SN AR R Office address 26/F, Jardine House, Central, Hong Kong
/N R EEPRIGTIAE2612

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE



Section 2 Company Profile and N

VI. Other Related Information (continued)

Sponsor continuously performing its
supervisory function during the
Reporting Period

HREPARTHEBSRAENRERE

Financial adviser performing continuous
supervision duties during the Reporting

Period

BEPNETREEERENFRER

Other basic information of the Company

RAEEMEARER

Narﬂe
HiE
Office address

/N il

Names of sponsor
representatives as
signatories

BEFORBRRALSE

Period of continuously
performing its
supervisory function

FEBEN R

Name

ey

Office address

N2k

Names of signing
organizer of financial
advisor

B I TSR
FRALEE

Period of continuously
performing its
supervisory function

BEEHHERA

Key Financial Indicators
ETH ARBENNEENKER

- Hitb HEE R @

CSC Financial Co., Ltd.
PERIRESFRNBRAF
Block B, E, Kaiheng Center Building, Dongcheng District, Beijing

IERTRMESNEH OB - EEE
Li Xiaoyan, Lu Xingyu

FXE EETF
Until the raised funds are used up

ERESERTERIL

CSC Financial Co., Ltd.

RERIRE ARG BRA

Block B, E, Kaiheng Center Bullding, Dongcheng District, Beijing
A R R YA LB - B

He Chengda, Hou Shun

BAGE - &IB

From the date of completion of assets restructuring to 2024

BEEEMAEHRTE 2 AEE2024FE

Reception of shareholders’ enquiries: 10th and 20th of each month (or on the following
business day if it falls on a public holiday) (Closed on Saturdays and Sundays) 9:00 a.m.
to 11:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.

REEERFR - ®R10H 208 (R BIEL) (RRIEEH R - EHEKE)

49 :00-11:00

T4F2 1 00-4 1 00
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I Scction 2 Company Profile and
Key Financial Indicators
ETH RARBENTNEENKER

VIl. Major Accounting Figures and Financial +t A=FFXESEEMITKE

Indicators for the Past Three Years =
(i) Major accounting figures (—) TEEHEE
Unit: Yuan C urrency: RMB
By o BE - ARK
Changes over
the same
period of the
preceding
Major accounting figures 2024 2023 year (%) 2022
RELEF
EX:3-Fi ¢ 2024% 2035 RIERE %) 200E
Operating income BEHA 1,648,860,246.58  1,405,495,692.08 1732 1372,61,232.14
Net profit attributable to shareholders SRR EMARRRAOEFE
of listed company 7,477,047.53 -51,675,143.59 - 18,315,155.10
Net profit attributable to shareholders EE NN [ E B
of listed company after extraordinary items R BRI FHE -5,556,486.40 -64,871,738.55 - -4,847,157.02
Net cash flows generated from HEEPELNRENETE
operating activities -57,592,661.96 66,359,922.32 - 5223,758.74
Changes over
the same
period end of the
At the end At the end preceding At the end
of 2024 of 2023 year (%) of 2022
TR L
WUFER WBER EHRELE(%) 225K
Net assets attributable to shareholders FERLMARRRNTEE
of listed company 1,084,156,625.22  1,065,910,588.54 1.7 1,075,617,865.13
Total assets BEE 3,086,613,319.89  2,812,343,564.88 9.75  2,496,004,308.13

10 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Section 2 Company Profile and N
Key Financial Indicators
ETH ARBENNEENKER

VIl. Major Accounting Figures and Financial +t A=FFXESEEMITKE

Indicators for the Past Three Years (continued) = (#)
(i) Key financial indicators (Z) FEHRBER
Changes over
the same
period of the
preceding
Key financial indicators 2024 2023 year (%) 2022
R EE
TEHBER 20245 2W3E A %) 0025
Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) ERBRE (/%) 0.01 -0.10 - 0.04
Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) BRERYE(T/R) 0.01 -0.10 - 0.04
Basic earnings per share after extraordinary MpFHEEHERENER -0.01 0.12 - -0.01
items (RMB/share) iRl (/&)
Returns on net assets on weighted average METFEENEE (%) 0.70 -4.92 - 215
basis (%)
Return on net assets on weighted average basis ¥} 3EE % 1 B 4 rOT0HE -0.52 -6.18 -0.57
after extraordinary items (%) TEFEENEE (%)
Explanation on the major accounting data and financial indicators of WMEMRAABAN=ZFEEG BB
the Company at the end of the Reporting Period for the past three IRV R A
years
(] Applicable +/ Not applicable O @A T#EA
VIII. Accounting Data Differences Under Domestic /\~ BRI ST EB T HIEBEE
and Foreign Accounting Standards =
(i) Difference in net profit and net assets attributable (—) FRFRBER ST EREZSD
to shareholders of listed company in the financial SR E N BB RE P IER
statements disclosed simultaneously pursuant BNBEBRLTARRRNFEE
to the International Accounting Standards and EERFER
the PRC Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable O@e  TEs

2024 ANNUAL REPORT | 11
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Key Financial Indicators
D BEN N EBHGHEIEE

and Foreign Accounting Standards (continued)

(ii) Difference in net profit and net assets attributable
to shareholders of listed company in the financial
statements disclosed simultaneously pursuant to
the Foreign Accounting Standards and the PRC
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

(iii)

Description of differences between PRC and
foreign accounting standards:

[0 Applicable +/ Not applicable

Major Financial Data of 2024 By Quarter

AR

h

BANMNESTEATESTEIEBEE

£ @

(Z) AERBENS T ERERTE
SH LK BN BRE D ER
BEHNEBA LT ARRENEE
EEZRBR

DEm  TEm
(Z) ERNETEIZZNHA -

O@A EA
2024F N EE T BB EIE

Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB
By T BEARK

First quarter Second Third quarter Fourth quarter

(January to quarter (July to (October to

March) (April to June) September) December)

£-FE E-FE EZFE ENFE

(1354) (4-651) (19R84%) (10-12A4)

Operating income EELION 320,532,749.36 428,240,733 44 366,072,306.34 534,014,457 .44

Net profit attributable to shareholders of listed company ~ BER LA REHFFH -6,523,098.03 3,148,174.32 -12,691,762.38 23,543,733.62

Net profit attributable to shareholders of listed FERLMATRROMR -9,784,863.45 -3,445,175.76 -15,028,904.10 22,702,456.91
company, after extraordinary items FEEHBRENFR

Net cash flows generated from operating activities BEEPELNRENETE -53,158,582.98 -90,188,911.47 6,092,625.63 79,662,206.86

Description of differences between quarterly data and data in disclosed
regular reports

\/ Applicable [J Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Section 2 Company Profile and N
Key Financial Indicators

FZE QARBNNEZRBER

T FEEMEREE NS

X. Extraordinary Items and Amounts
ViER O TEA

\/ Applicable [J Not applicable

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By T BEARKE

Amount Note (where Amount Amount
Extraordinary items of 2024 applicable) of 2023 of 2022
FERMBHER 2024588 Wizt (niam) 2023555 WELE
Gain or loss on disposal of non-current assets, inclusive ~ 3EEENEAEREBE - AEDHIE 171,297.46 - 151,692.79 324,288.25
of impairment allowance write-off EEREEENHEDS
Government subsidies included in current profit or loss, ~ 3f AE EERNKTHE - EEAF 4,072,411.03 - 10,193,307.32 15,296,825.69
other than on-going government subsidies whichare ~ ERELEETNNE - FAEK
closely related to the Company's normal operation, BRAE  BREENEESE
meet the requirements of government policies and are ¥ ARl BRE A BEFZNITE
subject to certain limits or conditions BB
Gains and losses on fair value changes arising from RRAAERSEEHEBNANE - 608,700.53
financial assets and financial liabilities held by BREZN  FemiERae
non-financial entities and gains and losses arising from ~ BEEMSBABELNAALEE
the disposal of financial assets and financial liabilities, ~ EBNERRRESREENSH
except for effective hedging transactions that are AREENER
closely related to the Company's normal operation
Capital occupation fee received from non-financial STAB ARSI RAE YD -
entities included in current profit or loss EelbRE
Gain or loss on entrusted investments or asset under R AREHEREENES -
management
Gains and losses on external entrusted loans HNEAEHDENER -
Loss of assets due to force majeure events, such as ERaRARZ - ERARAER -
natural disasters EAMEHAERX
Reversal of the impairment provision for receivables EBEMAENRHEIGURREE 1,676,183.45 - 2,737,096.40 4,869,414.50
which is tested individually for impairment e
Gain from the excess of the fair value of the identifiable  MERSTAE - BEMERASD -
net assets of investee companies on acquisition of ENRENA D RDGRERES
the investment over the cost of investment in the ARRABNAHRFAELAR
Company's subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures  HZE AU
Net gains or losses of subsidiaries for the current period I — 124 FAEAHELN T AR -
from the beginning of the period to the date of NEEHAMERFER
combination arising from business combination under
common control
Gains and losses on exchange of non-monetary assets ~ JESHHEERIEER -
Gain or loss on debt restructuring B ERRR 11,007,756.35 - 115,344.66 3,806,900.04

One-time costs incurred by the enterprise due to the fact
that the relevant business activities has discontinued,
such as expenses for relocating employees

One-time effect of adjustment according to the
requirements of tax and accounting laws and
regulations on current profit or loss

One-time share-based payment expense recognized
for cancellation and modification of share incentive
schemes

For cash settled share-based payments, gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of employee
compensation payable after the date of exercise of
options

LERITBENTOTESETRE
H-REER - NEERIORH

BB G558  HRMERY
e Y

R - EEREA R 8- R
ROBOXNER

UL RERNRNT AT
Azt ERBTHMOLLEE
FYELNRR
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/\ Giil
ET8 ARENNEEEKER
. b7d = N2 o .
X. Extraordinary Items and Amounts (continued) T R EMIERIEE NERE @
Amount Note (where Amount Amount
Extraordinary items of 2024 applicable) of 2023 of 2022
FEEHERER 204548 Wiz (miEh) 03F2E 02585
Gain or loss arising from changes in fair value of RRARBEEENREHBNR -
investment properties under fair value model on BtEEAL BEFBELNE
subsequent measurement % \
Gain or loss incurred by transactions with obviously RGERBEXALNRHE M -
unfair transaction price )
Gain or loss on other contingencies which are not ENAIREEEBEBNAAEE -
related to the Company's normal operations Eiﬁ@?ﬁm
Entrusted fee income from entrusted operations REEMEHTERIA -
Other non-operating income and expenses apart from @J:LRIEU\‘E’]HT&“%WMU
the aforesaid items it -216,414.00 - 876,175.40 8,873,633.76
Other gain or loss items falling within the definition of ~ EtFAIHE R BETENERE
extraordinary items E -
Less: Effect of income tax i Pﬁ k% 83,617.05 - 163,120.60 234,165.76
Effect of minority interest (after tax) %i ) 3,504,083.31 - 713,901.01 10,383,284.89
Total At 13,033,533.93 - 13,196,594.96 23,162,312.12
For the non-recurring profit and loss items not listed in “Explanatory i‘f 7#—;(( Eﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ’l AEERERE

&R Iﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁuéﬁéﬁ’lﬁ H
STHE HSEBAN LR

Announcement No. 1 on Information Disclosure by Publlc Issuers — Non- \

recurring Profit or Loss Items” ((AREITEFH A RS ERBMHBEH QNS E?%%Fﬁ“‘%\lﬁ@

155 — FFE R 11825 )recognised by the Company as non-recurring profit Hﬁ<ﬁfiﬁ§§ﬁﬁ%‘<ﬂ’3 AE R REREENS
and loss items with significant amounts, as well as the non-recurring profit %1 L FMEER) EP HI BB IEACE M
and loss items listed in “Explanatory Announcement No. 1 on Information TEEIEE ATEAREEHIBREMNIER @ EHAR
Disclosure by Public Issuers — Non- recurring Profit or Loss Items” ({AFEE

TBRAFNAREERBRMRBEEASE 19— JELFHEBR)) defined by the
Company as recurring profit and loss items, the reasons shall be explained.

[J Applicable 4/ Not applicable O @A JEA

Xl. ltems Measured at Fair Value — RAAAEEFENER
[J Applicable / Not applicable O@Em OV~ NEs

XIl. Others T Hit
[ Applicable +/ Not applicable O @A JiEs

14 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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I.  Management Discussion and Analysis

The year 2024 was a pivotal year for the “14th Five-Year Plan”. The
Company was committed to the implementation of the “Five Initiatives”
and resolutely adapted itself to the new development dynamic. It was
dedicated to contributing to the development of Beijing as an international
science and technology innovation hub, while upholding the principle that
high-quality development should be guided by high-quality party-building.
[t made steady progress in market development, technological innovation,
reforms and adjustments, as well as quality and efficiency enhancement,
achieving its annual operational goals and key missions. By advancing
stable and sustainable high-quality development, it strove to contribute to
a flawless conclusion of the “14th Five-Year Plan”.

1. Enhancing its operational quality and efficiency

while intensifying its market development efforts
Gas storage and transportation segment:

The Company focused on the new needs of major customers and
increased its extended services and ancillary businesses to enhance
customer stickiness. It took full advantage of its overseas platforms
to improve its warehousing and logistics capacity, thus enhancing
its delivery speed for small and medium-sized customers. It made
significant progress in developing the compound gas cylinders
market, entering into cooperation with several important customers.
Adhering to the principles of cost reduction and differentiation, it
consolidated its domestic sales resources and expanded the scope of
direct sales of its cylinder products as well as their applications.

Intelligent manufacturing segment:

The Company achieved a strong breakthrough in the field of 3C
production equipment and improved its customization capabilities
for related production equipment. It also accelerated its research
on intelligent manufacturing and digital factories, which enhanced
its ability to secure orders. In the areas of ground conveyance
and assembly systems, stamping lines and suspension chains,
the Company continued to improve its product capabilities and
expanded into new applications and new fields.

2. Promoting technological innovation while

continuing to build a technological system

The Company continued to strengthen its technological innovation
and industry upgrades by making substantial R&D investments
throughout the year. Currently, within the Company’s system,
there are 6 enterprises recognized as “Specialized and Sophisticated
Enterprises Producing New and Unique Products” and 7 recognized
as High- and New-Technology Enterprises. The Company’s innovative
achievements earned it many awards, including the Second Prize of
Beijing Scientific and Technological Progress Awards and the Bronze
Prize of the 18th Beijing Invention and Innovation Competition.
Focusing on the core technology of hydrogen energy storage and
transportation equipment, the Company made breakthroughs in key
technologies in relation to Type IV cylinders. Keeping up with market
demand, the Company developed new products in various fields.
Meanwhile, the Company promoted intelligent manufacturing,
developed the 4A top-level structure, used coding systems to
standardize data and achieved remote monitoring of equipment as
well as partial networking and numerical control, with its production
line of compound gas cylinders leading the country in terms of
intelligent upgrading.

BYTQ, a subsidiary of the Company, significantly enhanced
the competitiveness of its products through its technological
breakthroughs and promotional efforts in the control system of
related products. The enhancement of its technical capabilities
reduced product costs, ensured the quality of products and bolstered
its profitability.

and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

3.

Strengthening management efforts while

continuing to enhance governance effectiveness
The Company benchmarked itself against exemplary enterprises,
paid close attention to internal management, sorted out the
standard costs of products, and formulated improvement strategies
covering operation, costs, market dynamics and policy support
to address existing deficiencies. It promoted cost reduction and
efficiency enhancement through various measures, including
product development, achieving cost reduction by leveraging
technology and optimizing procurement. It implemented a talent-
driven corporate development strategy focusing on recruiting young
talents, enhancing professional skills and completing innovative
apprenticeship programs. It initiated the 6S workplace management
by delineating responsibility areas, issuing work guidelines, and
fostering an atmosphere of full participation to improve the work
environment and enhance employees’ competencies.

Mitigating risks while continuing to bolster

operational security

The Company established a comprehensive risk management
framework, prepared information and organized training programs
to enhance legal compliance and risk mitigation awareness of all
the employees, thereby safeguarding the sustainable development
of core operations. At the same time, the Company improved its
platform systems to build a strong line of defense in its operation.
Focusing on audit supervision, it implemented various auditing
methods to enhance internal control and management standards. It
also examined the quality of accounting information of several of its
subsidiaries and provided management recommendations.

Situation of the industry in which the
Company operated during the Reporting
Period

(1

Gas Storage and Transportation Segment

The upstream of the gas storage and transportation equipment
industry is mainly steel, forgings, etc.. The midstream industry
is the gas storage and transportation equipment manufacturing
industry, and the downstream is the gas storage and transportation
equipment application industry, mainly used in chemical, medical,
food processing, aviation and aerospace and other fields. The market
demand for the gas storage and transportation equipment industry
maintained a relatively stable growth trend, and the market size was
maintained at a high level.

Cylinders segment:

The overall development trend of China’s industrial gas market was
stable and improving, and the total market volume of the cylinders
segment was relatively stable. However, the domestic economic
environment was challenging in 2024, with enterprises which were
end-users of gases facing difficulties in their operation. As a result,
the market demand for gas cylinders was lower than expected. It
is expected that in 2025, with the unrolling of supporting policies
and the advancement of industry upgrading, the segment will show
steady growth with higher demand for cylinders.

Compound gas cylinders segment:

The hydrogen energy industry chain was still in the stage of
being cultivated by policy support. According to data from China
Association of Automobile Manufacturers, in 2024, the production
and sales volume of fuel cell vehicles in China were 5,548 and 5,405
vehicles respectively, representing a year-on-year decrease of 10.4%
and 12.6% respectively. It is expected that in 2025, bolstered by the
vision of carbon neutrality, the demand for hydrogen will pick up
and the sales of hydrogen fuel cell vehicles will grow.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Situation of the industry in which the
Company operated during the Reporting
Period (Continued)

(1

(2)

Gas Storage and Transportation Segment (Continued)
Cryogenic storage and transportation segment:

In recent years, the overall market demand for cryogenic cylinders
has been affected by the reduction of bulk industrial gas
consumption caused by the drop in infrastructure investment.
Meanwhile, in the market for cylinders for vehicles, heavy-duty trucks
in China have focused on replacing their existing stocks in recent
years. It is expected that the market for industrial storage tanks and
vehicle-mounted LNG cylinders will remain stable in 2025.

Intelligent Manufacturing Segment

Automation equipment industry

In 2024, China’s automation equipment market continued to grow.
Industrial automation equipment remained the driving force, as it
was widely used in vehicles, electronics and other industries, helping
enterprises to improve efficiency and reduce costs. Equipment is
evolving towards greater intelligence and flexibility, while industrial
robots and other technical levels continue to improve.

The competitive landscape of the industry is becoming increasingly
concentrated, with leading companies commanding significant
market shares due to their technological and brand advantages, and
emerging enterprises rising in sub-segments through innovation and
customized services. Although the industry is exhibiting a robust
growth trajectory, it still faces challenges such as technological
upgrades and intensified market competition.

In the future, the industry is poised to advance towards greater
intelligence and sustainability. As a result, enterprises need to
perpetually innovate and enhance their core competitiveness to
adapt to market changes and seize opportunities for development.

Home appliances industry

In 2024, the retail sales of home appliances above the designated
size in China’s home appliance industry amounted to RMB1,030.7
billion, representing a year-on-year growth of 12.3%. Export
market performance was strong, with the export value of white
goods in the first 11 months increasing by 14.3% year on year to
USD117.46 billion and the export volume of televisions expected to
break through 100 million units again. Leading enterprises were also
accelerating their expansion into emerging overseas markets. The
impact of policy support was obvious, with the “old-for-new" trade-
in program driving four consecutive months of double-digit growth
from September to December. The effectiveness of these policies
drove the industry to accelerate the release of demand for upgrading
manufacturing equipment.

Currently, the home appliances industry is imposing greater demands
on its manufacturing equipment, particularly in terms of high-end
innovation, intelligent advancements, and green transformation,
such as the integration of artificial intelligence and robotic
technology, and sustainable manufacturing. The entry of internet
technology companies into these domains has created significant
competitive pressure on traditional equipment manufacturers.

and Analysis
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Businesses engaged by the Company during
the Reporting Period

(1

(2)

Business scope:
Licensed items of operation: general logistics; professional
contracting.

General scope of operation: development, design, sales, installation,
adjustment and trial, maintenance of cryogenic containers for
storage and transportation, compressors (piston compressor,
membrane compressor and nuclear-grade membrane compressor)
and accessories; machinery equipment and electrical equipment;
technical consultancy and technical services; import and export of
commodities, import and export of technology and acting as an
agency for import and export. Manufacturing of general equipment
(excluding special equipment); manufacturing of special equipment
(excluding manufacturing of licensed professional equipment);
research and development of machinery and equipment; sales
of machinery and equipment; manufacturing of intelligent basic
manufacturing equipment; research and development of intelligent
robotics; manufacturing of industrial robotics; sales of intelligent
robotics; sales of industrial robotics; installation and maintenance
of industrial robotics; manufacturing of servo control unit; sales of
artificial intelligent hardware; manufacturing of industrial automatic
control system devices; sales of industrial automatic control system
devices; sales of intelligent storage equipment; manufacturing
of ocean engineering equipment; sales of ocean engineering
equipment; manufacturing of oil drilling and production equipment;
sales of oil drilling and production equipment; installation services of
general machinery and equipment; information system integration
services; software development; sales of software; information
technology consultation services; technical services, technology
development, technology consulting, technology exchange,
technology transfer, technology promotion; industrial internet
information services; import and export of commodities; import
and export of technology; manufacturing of metallic products;
sales of metallic products. (Other than the items subject to approval
according to laws, operating activities shall be operated by itself
based on the business license and in accordance with laws) Permitted
items: electrical installation services. (For items subject to approval
in accordance with laws, operating activities can only be conducted
upon approval by relevant authorities, and the specific business items
are subject to the approval documents or licenses issued by relevant
authorities).

Main products:

1. Gas storage and transportation segment:
Main products include: liquefied natural gas (LNG) cylinders
for vehicles, compressed natural gas (CNG) cylinders for
vehicles, seamless steel gas cylinders, welded insulated
cylinders, carbon fiber full-winding compound gas cylinders,
ISO tank containers, cryogenic tanks, aluminum carbon fiber
full-winding compound gas cylinders for fuel cells, plastic
carbon fiber full-winding compound gas cylinders as well as
filling station equipment.

2. Intelligent manufacturing segment:
Main products include ground conveyance and assembly
system products, suspension chain air conveyance system
products, integrated robotic applications and stamping lines
products, nonstandard automation machine products, etc.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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IV. Analysis of core competencies during the

Reporting Period
\/ Applicable TJ Not applicable

() Gas storage and transportation segment
After years of development, the Company has the following
competitive advantages in terms of scale and brand, technology,
sales network, and human resources:

1. Scale and brand advantages

The Company is a group company consisting of seven
production bases for the manufacture of professional gas
storage and transportation equipment and a company located
in the United States. With over 20 years of operation and
development, the Company has established a corporate
image of fine technology foundation and product stability and
reliability in the industry; and the Tianhai brand has become
one of the well-known brands in the industry.

2. Technology advantages

After continuous technology research and development, the
Company has A1, A2, C2 and C3 level pressure vessel design
qualifications and A1, A2, B1, B2, B3, C2, C3, D1 and D2
level pressure vessel manufacturing qualifications currently.
It can produce over 800 types and specifications of seamless
steel gas cylinders, winding gas cylinders, accumulator shells,
asbestos-free acetylene cylinders, welded insulated cylinders,
carbon fiber full-winding compound gas cylinders (including
those for vehicles), plastic carbon fiber full winding compound
gas cylinders, cryogenic tanks and filling stations, etc.; the
Company’s products are widely applied in automotive,
chemical, fire-fighting, medical, petroleum, energy, urban
construction, food, metallurgy, machinery, electronics and
other industries.

Meanwhile, with an accurate grasp of the clean energy
market, the Company, through integrating different aspects
of technologies in respect of LNG cylinders for vehicles,
CNG cylinders, cryogenic tanks and natural gas vehicle
filling stations, is able to provide customers with LNG/CNG
system solutions. The Company is also capable of designing
and manufacturing cryogenic tanks and IMO tank container
products of different volume and pressure level in accordance
with China pressure vessel standards, EU ADM and 97/23/
ECPED and Australia/New Zealand AS1210 standards.
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IV. Analysis of core competencies during the M- #{&E
Reporting Period (continued)

(1 Gas storage and transportation segment (Continued) (—) REMBERRE @

20

Sales network advantages 3 ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%?@ﬁ

The Company has established a complete sales network NN T STERHERE - 7EE
equipped with over 30 distribution offices scattering II*JT?’E%_ +% Iﬁ“‘iﬁz%@ﬁ
across the country, achieving a full geographical coverage fﬁ%leliﬁlﬁigi EIW
nationwide, and is capable of offering components to largest- FREBOTHHEESR
scale automobile manufacturers of the national automobile BE RS TE R A R TS
industry in the supply chain of components for domestic WA S RMTEAT - ERINESL
mainstream automobile manufacturers. The Company has TIEHEEE  XES WE%
also set up eight overseas sales offices which are mainly B - HrpNd% - GERE - EDE -
located in the United States, Singapore, Korea, India, Australia ﬂiﬁi BX - EE® E?EZEIT
and other countries. Relevant products have been accepted by AR BN \KRERRTH
seven out of the world’s top eight influential gas companies. ‘t% % RTIBEERTS
To build a bridge between the basic unit and the market, E’Jf}@x ?;Em@?ﬁkiﬂﬁimﬂ'bﬁ
and to increase the vitality of the strategy execution unit and NMEEE RS - REIE NI E
results of operation, the Company carried out transformation T ‘TTE’*”?H& EET
and upgrade of the internal management and control so that BARREURHERE S B
each of its subsidiaries could establish a business model of WEENERRN - THEHRAE iﬁ%
unifying research, production, supply and sales, so as to fully EN RS E IS L EER
unleash the potential of the organization, make flexible and EHfERE - & ?:Eﬂﬁ‘“ ¥
quick responses to the changes in the market and effectively & o

enhance the results of operation.

Leveraging advanced technology, outstanding management, NEBERENREN  BRAE
reliable products and optimised aftersales services system, the BKF - AIEMEMEEMTES
Company is keeping its pace of becoming a global leading WEERBER BTN RE
manufacturing and service enterprise of energy gas storage HELENEERAERERBERE
devices. RRTE(REEIBH -

Human resources advantages 4- AjJ ERES

In order to provide a career development platform for its
management and employees to grow personally and with the
Company and share the fruits of development and to create
a good corporate culture, the Company has established an

TL_LTH.:. 35 i 5 ESK
PP AE 4 B RALEITHA - A
ERMETHMENER - 5%
*BEI?‘E{WIJ\EE FHE K

internal organizational system and operational mechanism, . /\ﬁé)ﬁﬁ}z%m%%%ﬁ)ﬁ?
performance appraisal mechanism and salary and welfare A gl %Eﬁ?ﬁ’]ﬁ¥be%‘?& '
system which meet the requirements for market competition. §5E$¥m A BA - BIE

It aims to retain talents with strong prospects, competitive
remuneration and loyalty. It has established a team of talents
with ability and integrity, core competencies and professional
quality in respect of research and development, sales,
management, operation and production.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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IV. Analysis of core competencies during the - 3R&EHABOHEE DD @

Reporting Period (continued)

4

through unified strategic planning. The Company has

an Intelllgent manufacturing segment (Z) BaeEmm
Technology advantages 1+ HiliEZ
The Company focuses on the industrial automation field and NAIRETHEEBES - R
deeply engages in the home appliances industry. With the KEBITE  UDBEEFEER ﬂi%ﬂwﬁi
enterprise informatization business module as the driving RAERS)IZ L J«/{E%Uﬂi S RER
core and customized intelligent manufacturing equipment as Lz%ﬁzt’j%ﬁ“ 1138 e
the base, the Company has the ability to provide industrial HE - 5?%%@ ' ﬂﬁi\%
automation, digitalization, networking and intelligent products EJE?E@iI% BEyt - #EF
and services to customers by connecting the equipment layer il'cﬂ wIb - SR EMERFMRBEH
with the control, operation and decision-making layers. BES ©
Sales advantages 2. HEEZ
The Company has established a stronger sales team which Qﬂ@ﬁ?@@ﬁﬁ@iﬁ%%
focuses on core customers and understands customers’ needs o /L\ g P REBBREFPSE
in depth. It has fully released the vitality of the team to quickly ZJi %%B&E BOE D - BESE
adjust the marketing model in response to market changes. %Tmi féﬂ: PIRF R L HR R o
With advanced technology, reliable quality and an excellent NRVBFESENEN - AIENE
sales management team, the Company has targeted the Efﬂ@ﬁﬂ'\]iﬁ%%ﬁ@% HE
home appliances business sub-market and steadily expanded BEGHES TS BAEART
its market share. iE' HINEE °
Human resources advantages 3- ANEREZ
The Company has set up an efficient and professional staff NAEETEREXEHAE
team, established a performance appraisal and salary and B - BT R RE AL AN H B 4E A
welfare system to fully mobilize employees’ innovative HlE  FOFBHEITH B FEIH
initiatives, and provided a platform for employees to grow BEM - RETIREEMERRA
together with the enterprise. The Company cultivates excellent RERRFS o E&m HE 8
talents with high professional quality in core positions such as - -BR E2EROMUEE
technology, production, sales, management and operation. BXZEiR ﬁﬁ’]fﬁ%/\ﬁ
Corporate system advantages 4. REFEEZ
The Company has established a modern enterprise BURRCEEEESE BB
management system covering the entire process of strategic BRS AR A - Bz E@%
planning, risk prevention and control as well as regulatory E2mE - ﬂ/ﬁiﬂq—i&ﬁ%% B
compliance, and developed a scientific decision-making FEEHITER  REEBSU
mechanism and a standardized execution system to ensure BRI RHEEE o
the efficient operation and sustainable development of its
business.
Strategic synergy advantages 5. Eﬁlﬂ%’rﬁl—]{éﬁ
Leveraging its strategic resource advantages, the Company NRMEGEBEEREY  mbE
has strengthened the vertical integration across the industry %fﬁifﬁt EESE) Eé\ A —
chain and achieved efficient synergies across areas such as @Zfﬂxiﬁ 2|JE R - £ E
technological R&D, production, and marketing channels B3 HRES 1&EDEI'J R

Iﬁ ° Bﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁb BB

enhanced horizontal business linkage by establishing cross- 2 - BEPIH RS - K=
enterprise and cross-departmental cooperation mechanisms BRREAHERER  BREES
to share R&D results and supply chain resources, thereby B T2 B am bR B e Bk ) U
reducing operating costs. This approach has created a brand BAEBPERERGER - 183

matrix effect, integrating customer resources and service
systems to enhance capabilities to deliver comprehensive
solutions. Through the development of ecosystems, the
Company has expanded into related areas such as smart
homes and industrial internet, striving to enhance the service
capabilities across the entire value chain of the industry and
strengthen its all-round competitiveness in resisting cyclical
risks.

?u?./:.\ﬁm?&b’ WHAED - BIBAE
REEER  EHREERE - TE
g GREEMELGR Bk
ﬂﬁ%%f‘ffﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁf% (g
MR EHETF I °
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V. Principal Operation during the Reporting F - SREHATELELEER

Period

During the Reporting Period, the Company realized operating income of WMEHN - AABREERANAREK16.49E
approximately RMB1.649 billion, representing an increase of approximately JC  FIEIERA17.32%  BBR EMARRE
17.32% as compared with the corresponding period of the previous HFFENRARKET747.708 7T -

year. Net profits attributable to shareholders of the listed company was
approximately RMB7.477 million.

(i) Analysis of principal business (—) EEERDH
1. Table of movement analysis on the related items in 1+ FERRREEREREBARNEZ
income statement and cash flow statement oMk

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By T B AEK

Corresponding

period of

Item Current year last year Change (%)
NE ; LERBY BELLHI (%)
Operating income =ESLUN 1,648,860,246.58  1,405,495,692.08 17.32
Operating cost EEKA 1,340,508,218.30  1,191,424,025.09 12.51
Selling expense HEER 44,335,591.91 45,065,193.02 -1.62
Administrative expense EREBR 127,786,552.09 120,477,225.32 6.07
Finance cost HBBA 11,723,605.52 13,558,224.97 -13.53
R&D expenses HEEH 69,021,375.00 66,447,976.37 3.87
Net cash flows generated from operating activities & EHEEMALREFE  -57,592,661.96 66,359,922.32 -
Net cash flows generated from investing activities & ZBIEARRSMEEE  -85,565,852.79  -157,070,258.23 -
Net cash flows generated from financing activities Z&FEELNRETEFE  120,738,636.11 256,190,368.87 -52.87
Taxes and surcharges B RN 11,288,726.80 7,911,881.71 42,68
Investment income RE W 17,014,252.86 11,998,754.61 41.80
Credit impairment loss ERRERX -11,361,408.14 -5,077,178.43 -123.77
Asset impairment loss BERERR -22,606,278.80 -32,396,390.18 30.22
Income from disposal of assets BERENS 171,297.46 123,479.33 3873
Non-operating revenue EELIVON 1,114,470.68 1,735,053.15 -35.77
Non-operating expenses EENTH 1,330,884.68 858,877.75 54.96
Details of the material changes in type of business, profit RERA B FEKER « FE# A ek
components or income sources of the Company in the current FlE R REEEE NS EH N EM
period ]3]
[J Applicable y/ Not applicable O @A  NER

2. Analysis of income and cost 2 U AFRAD T

+/ Applicable ] Not applicable VER O TEA

The Company continued to optimize its product structure. NAITHEILERERE  KNRE
During the Reporting Period, operating income increased BRI AL FERERE N4 A
by approximately RMB243.36 million and operating costs R®24,336870 » EFENAL L
increased by approximately RMB149.08 million as compared FRIEEMOARE14,9088
to the corresponding period of the previous year. JC °

22 | Beijing lingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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V. Principal Operation during the Reporting F - BEHARETELE TR @
Period (continued)
(i) Analysis of principal business (Continued)

(—) EEEKD T @

2. Analysis of income and cost (Continued) 2. AR DT ()
(1)  Principal business by industry, by product, by (1). FEEBSTHE > 7ER-
region and by sales model THIE - FHEEIER

Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB
Bl T B ARE

Principal business by industry

TERBATRER
Increase/ Increase/
decrease in decreasein  Increase/decrease in
Operating Gross profit operatingincome ~ operating cost gross profit margin
income  Operating cost margin (%) over last year (%) over last year (%) over last year (%)
EELION XA TS
By Industry pixit 0N T ZRR(%)  WEEEE()  HEEEE() f L8 (%)
In which: Gas storage and Hh: REREER 127730994420 1,117,317434.21 1253 16.74 1048 Increased by 4.95
transportation products percentage points
I EERE
Automatic manufacturing equipment BB EERFERGEEN 266,466,14026  183,364,371.14 3119 18.54 2402 Decreased by 3.04
system integration percentage points
A3UEESS
Others i 63,735,395.76 16,400,439.96 7421 0.00 0.00 0.00
Tota it 1,607,551,48022  1,317,082,245.31 18.07 16.26 12.04 Increased by 3.09
percentage points
EMEEHE
Principal business by product
TEXBIERER
Increase/ Increase/
decrease in decreasein  Increase/decrease in
Operating Gross profit operatingincome ~ operating cost gross profit margin
income  Operating cost margin (%) overlastye;rqgl%) over last year (%) over last year (%)
Ay :
By product PER EEWA EERA ERE(%)  WEEERE()  HLEEE®%) $ LR (%)
Domestic il 96558541079 741,340,230.03 BN 10.82 357 5.40
Overseas B 641,966,06943  575,742,015.28 1032 2553 2560 0.0
Total it 1,607,551,480.22  1,317,082,245.31 18.07 16.26 1204 3.00

Description of principal business by industry, by
product, by region and by sales model

Domestic market: By the effective integration of its
marketing resources and the continuous optimization
of its product mix, the Company recorded a 10.82%
year-on-year increase in revenue during the Reporting
Period.

International market: Focusing intensely on the
needs of its core customers, the Company enhanced
customer stickiness through extended services, thereby
cementing its market position and recording a 25.53%
year-on-year increase in revenue during the Reporting
Period.

FEEBHTE  HES -
PibE - P EEERERL
et

MRS | BREARHE
B SEECELN B
L E TN
10.82% -

BEmS  REREZLE
PHX - BB RB RS
BRI - BRISETISM
iz - EHRNBARLE R
25.53% °
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V. Principal Operation during the Reporting
Period (continued)

()

Analysis of principal business (Continued)

- mERANE

R AL NEC (g
ERKEEN @)

(—) EEEKD T @

2. Analysis of income and cost (Continued) 2~ WARIRA DT ()
(2)  Analysis of production and sales volume 2). EHERRIIE
+/ Applicable  [J Not applicable ViER O A
Increase/ Increase/
decrease in decrease in Increase/
production  sales volume decrease in
Production Inventory  volume over  over lastyear  inventory volume
Principal product Unit volume  Sales volume volume last year g’/ﬁz ) g@ over last year (%)
B B 78
TEER Bfy EER HER EFE  LEEE(%)  LFEE(%) EEEHE (%)
Conventional cylinder industry Unit 1,023,340 1,305,112 186,977 1 12 1
ERINES g
Compound gas cylinders and system Unit 136,547 128,011 11,828 4 30 207
integration industry
BRAMRZGENESR g
Cryogenic storage and transportation industry  Unit 1113 10,456 1,634 26 35 7
ﬁﬁ%@é% &
Description of production and sales volume EHEE A
In 2024, the Company made every effort to enhance 2024 F N R B NIRFHEE
the quality and efficiency of its operation and continued G FEINATEFRAN
to intensify its market expansion efforts. Focusing on E B85 BEX
the “main battlefield” and major clients, the Company BP - SETRBRFRE -
devised differentiated market strategies for different HF T ZEATISHER - B
competitive environments and achieved positive results. BT BB - SRR R -
The sales volumes in the cylinder segment, compound AR N RS ERIRE -
gas cylinders and system integration segment, and KBRERREHESRLY
cryogenic storage and transportation segment all B  EhESRANL
recorded year-on-year growth. In particular, the RAERNIRRESAEE
significant increase in the compound gas cylinders RERZ - WAREHE &
and system integration segment was mainly due to FERTISHENER K2
the accelerated development and marketing of new FERRIERATERH
products such as Type lll and Type IV Cylinders, while FAHPDI-T6ZE & LA K H A (K
the significant increase in the cryogenic storage and RRHE I REAHE o
transportation segment was mainly due to substantial
increases in the sales of HPDI-T6 products and exported
cryogenic cylinders.
(3) Performance of major purchase contracts and 3). EAFESR>  EXAHES
major sales contracts ARy EITIER

[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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(—) EEEKD T @

2. Analysis of income and cost (Continued) 2 WAFIRRA ST (&)
(4)  Cost analysis (4). HEDHE
Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By o BE - ARK
By product
AERER
Proportion
Proportion over total
over total cost for the
cost for corresponding - Change in
thecurrent  Corresponding  periodof ~ amount
Component Current period periodof ~last year over
of cost period (%) [ast year (%) lastyear(%)  Description
x8e8
¥ 568 grf
bt TS GEAx  RE4S
By product AER RARAAR KBS MA()  LEREEE  nble)  RB(W  EREH
(as storage and transportation procucts  FERBER Materials
ftH TISNE B9 65739738 600 841
Labour cost
A% 9,606,840.70 864 9471899989 937 199
Manufacturing cost
g 307,995,201.75 051 25918327079 25562 1883
Total
& 1730743620 10000 101130188454 10000 1048
Automatic manufacturing BRIl sk Materidls
equipment sstem ntegration it it 158,131,487.26 820 1208363012 8308 87
Labour cost
PNE 782996403 4 961283342 650 1855
Manufacturing cost
e 17402,91985 949 15393363 104 1303
Total
aif 183364,371.14 10000 147.845516.77 10000 240
Others it Lease cost
EEAR 1640043996 10000 16400439% 10000 000
Total
A 164004399 10000 164004399 10000 0.00

(5)

(6)

Other information on cost analysis

During the Reporting Period, the Company further
reduced the procurement costs of raw materials and
auxiliary materials through the development of new
suppliers, centralized procurement and negotiations,
thus effectively controlling any excessive rise in
procurement costs.

Change in scope of consolidation due to change
in shareholding of major subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period

[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

Significant changes or adjustment in businesses,
products or services of the Company during the
Reporting Period

[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

DT R IE T H S

WEMN - RELRBRIEN
H5 -~ SPERE - SFAH
U SRRERM K
M SRAERAS - B RUESI T
REBRCABIR L0k o

(5). HEHTEFRAKREZE
L& HEERE
O @A  TEm

(6). REHERAFET - ERa
RBREEABILAHRE

B
O @A  ™Ems
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V. Principal Operation during the Reporting # - ¥R
Period (Continued)

26

(i) Analysis of principal business (Continued) (=) FEEBRI @
2. Analysis of income and cost (Continued) 2 H&Aiﬂlﬁkﬂﬁﬂ 76‘?(?.5)
(7) Information on major customers and major (7). ETEHEFFRFTEHRER
suppliers -2
A.  Sales to major customers of the Company A REIEEHEEFE
D
Vi
\/ Applicable 1 Not applicable ViER O TEA
Sales to five largest customers amounted to MABEFPHERE
RMB381,228,600, representing 23.14% of total AR#38,122.868
annual sales, of which sales to related parties T HFREHER
were RMBO, representing 0% of total annual %023.14%  Efal
sales. ﬁ% EPHEREPHE
ﬁiﬁ%%ﬁ/\ﬁiﬁo
T EFERIEEER
0% °
Sales from the largest customer amounted to B KXNEPFFIGHE
approximately RMB97,092,801.85, representing EBEHARE
approximately 5.89% of total annual sales. 97,092,801.857T -
EEEHERED
5.89% °
During the Reporting Period, the proportion of WERHAREERP
sales to a single customer exceeds 50% of the VIS LL R B A R
total amount, there are new customers among #)50% - HISHEF
the top 5 customers or there is heavy reliance on RIFTERTISE P sk
few customers BEXKBRDEBEP
Ol =PI
[ Applicable +/ Not applicable O@EA T#EA
B.  Major suppliers of the Company B. DAL EHERIER
\ Applicable [ Not applicable VER OTEA
Procurement from the five largest suppliers Al A& e BB
amounted to RMB364,166,000, representing B AR36,416.60
29.85% of total annual procurement cost, of B hFEERE
which procurement from related parties were #%629.85%  H
RMB 130,494,400, representing 10.70% of total Al T 4 i 7 PR e
annual procurement cost. B % 07 SRR A

Procurement from the largest supplier amounted
to approximately RMB130,494,402.90,
representing approximately 10.70% of total

>—
-
K
G
)
P
LO
NG
~
383

T A R
10.70% ©

B A#ERR
BEOARTE
130,494,402.907C -

annual procurement cost. MEERBABTED
10.70% °

During the Reporting Period, the proportion of e i e B A e

procurement from a single supplier exceeds 50% PR L pI R A e

of the total amount, there are new suppliers #HI50% ~ RIS A

among the top 5 suppliers or there is heavy FER R AR LR

reliance on few suppliers EH SRR ERFERN D
HHERE B

[ Applicable +/ Not applicable O@EA TEA

Other information: E bR

Nil E:

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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V. Principal Operation during the Reporting F - BEHARETELE TR @
Period (continued)

(i) Analysis of principal business (Continued) (—) EEEBD 7@
3.  Expenses 3- EH

\ Applicable  [J Not applicable VER OTER
Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By o B ARK
Corresponding
period of
Current year last year Change (%)
Item BE A FERBE BENLLBI (%)
Selling expense HEEA 44,335,591.91  45,065,193.02 -1.62
Administrative expense BEIRER 127,786,552.09  120,477,225.32 6.07
Research and development expenses  ff% & F3 69,021,375.00 66,447,976.37 3.87
Financial cost 5 E M 11,723,605.52  13,558,224.97 -13.53
4 WERA
4. Research and development expenditure 3 3
(1) Breakdown of research and development (). HERAERE
expenditure 5 3
\ Applicable  [J Not applicable VR OTaR
Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By o BE - ARK
Research and development expenditure AEAE AR A 69,021,375.00
recorded in expenses during the period
Research and development expenditure RERE AR IRA
capitalized during the period
Total research and development expenditure HEIE A ST 69,021,375.00
Percentage of total research and development e ABRE S E WAL (%) 4.19
expenditure over operating income (%)
Percentage of research and development WA BRI L E (%)
expenditure capitalised (%)
(2) Research and development staff (2). HRASELF
\ Applicable [0 Not applicable ViER O NEs
Number of research and development staff of the Company A AlHT#% A BHEHE 205
Number of research and development staff over total number #1% A B #2152 FEAZBELLEI (%) 14.9%
of staff of the Company (%)
Educational structure of research and development staff i3 A E2F LS
Category of educational structure BRERER Number of staff
under the educational
structure
BEEBAR
PhD student HTHRAE 0
Postgraduate BIHRAE 29
Undergraduate A 124
Specialties Exs 38
Senior high school graduates and below P RAT 14
Age structure of research and development staff WEABFRER
Age structure category FRRERER Number of staff
under the
age structure
FlEBAR
Under 30 (exclusive) 3058 A T (P& 3057) 79
30 (inclusive) to 40 (exclusive) 30-405% (2305% * T2405%) 69
40 (inclusive) to 50 (exclusive) 40-505% (2405% * T&50%%) 48
50 (inclusive) to 60 (exclusive) 50-607% (& 505% * T &605%) 7
60 and above 6055 &ALk 2
(3) Description (3). 1EXFHH
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable O@A V ~EA
(4)  Reasons for the significant changes in the composition (4). HEASEABLEEAEE
of the research and development staff and the W@Eﬁﬁ?‘ﬂ FEE 940
=

impact on the future development of the Company
[J Applicable y/ Not applicable

E
O@Em v TER
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F=f BEEENWESN

V. Principal Operation during the Reporting # - BREHATELEE R @
Period (continued)

(i) Analysis of principal business (Continued) (—) EEEBRD 7@
5.  Cash flows 5 BER
\/ Applicable 1 Not applicable ViER O TEA

Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB
Bl T BEARE

Corresponding

period of
Current year last year Change (%)
Item ERRE| ERE L FERERBH BB (%)
Cash inflows from operating KEBHREMA 1,238,839,920.84 1,240,538,087.35 -0.14
activities
Cash outflows from operating KeEBRe R 1,296,432,582.80 1,174,178,165.03 10.41
activities
Net cash flows generated from  #¢&)EEZE 4+ 1) -57,592,661.96  66,359,922.32 -
operating activities RemE T
Cash inflows from investing FEFHRERMA 17,206,572.00 3,175,195.39 44191
activities
Cash outflows from investing BEEHR SR 102,772,424.79  160,245,453.62 -35.87
activities
Net cash flows generated from & & ZHELR -85,565,852.79  -157,070,258.23 -
investing activities WenEFa
Cash inflows from financing EEEHEERA 295,000,000.00  419,582,000.00 -29.69
activities
Cash outflows from financing EBFTHRLARH 174,261,363.89  163,391,631.13 6.65
activities
Net cash flows generated from EEEHELERN 120,738,636.11  256,190,368.87 -52.87
financing activities REMEFH
Description: AR
1. Net cash flows from operating activities decreased by 1. KEEHRSFERLLHMD
approximately RMB123,952,600 year on year, which KAR®12,395268 T
was mainly due to an increase in cash paid for goods ITE2RARANEER.
and services during the current period as compared BERBBEXNNRER
with the previous period:; HEHNFTER
2. Net cash flows from investing activities increased by 2. RERHELNHAIRE
approximately RMB71,504,400 year on year, which FERLEMOARS
was mainly due to an increase in net cash derived from 7,150.448 7T © BRI
the disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets and other EBERETEE « BVEEM
long-term assets during the current period and a year- H A ERE R H 2%
on-year decrease in cash paid for the purchase of fixed BB - A R AR R E
assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets BE  BAEMEMES
during the current period; §§S€ﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬁ$ﬁkbﬁ9\ﬁﬁ
3. Net cash flows from financing activities decreased by 3 BEEHELMASAE
approximately RMB135,451,700 year on year, which FERLBDOARS
was mainly due to the special funds and employee 13,545 17870 BE L
share incentive payments received during the previous | IR E G A RIKEIE
period. TRRAE B ENRFTER -
(i) Description of material change in profit due to (D) EEEERBHRBERZEN
non-principal business w5 8 N
[ Applicable  +/ Not applicable O @A T~EA

28 | Beijing Jlingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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E=E EEEFWEIN

V. Principal Operation during the Reporting # - HEHATELE BN @

Period (continued)

(iii) Analysis of assets and liabilities (2) BE - ABERIW
\/ Applicable [ Not applicable ViER O TER
1.  Assets and liabilities 1+ EBEREGMRR

Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB
By T BEARK

Balance at Balance at
the end the end Change in
Balance at  of the current Balance at of the previous  amount over
theendofthe  period over the end of the period over total  the previous
Name of item current period total assets (%) previous period assets (%) period (%)  Description
FHARELE LEEREE  AHEREE
BEEN HEEN )3
BEAE AHHRE ghle)  LEERH HhIce)  HBEA() EREE
Notes receivable 14,048,892.34 046 3,590,000.00 0.13 291.33  Mainly due to an increase in undue acceptance bills
YRR TERAIER S ERENAH
Accounts receivable 499,865,493.32 16.19 385,061,945.72 13.69 2981 Mainly due to longer credit periods given to customers, which led to an
IS increase in receivables
TERAEFESEN - R EN
Receivable financing 17,738.416.42 057 32,346,63947 115 -45.16 Mainly due to a decrease in undue acceptance bills
ElGRRE TRRATIBNA T ER RS HH
Contractual assets 17,727,131.20 057 - 0.00 N/A Mainly due to the reclassification of undue retention receivables
aRAE AER  IRRAIENERSENENR
Other current assets 66,859,038.79 217 9,687,325.81 034 59017 Mainly due to an increase in value-added tax retained by subsidiaries
HprgaE IERTRFLALERBELNAR
Construction in progress 280,234,944.36 9.08  74,093,65027 263 27822 Mainly due to the increased investment in production lines by
fEIR subsidiaries
TERTETRAMAEESRANH
Other non-current assets 18,299,049.58 059 8839397147 314 -7930  Mainly due to a decrease in prepayments for equipment by subsidiaries
EttERaEE during the current period
IERAETETARENRERE M
Short-term borrowings 230,000,000.00 7.45140,000,000.00 498 64.29  Mainly due to an increase in bank borrowings by subsidiaries during the
HHER current period
TERAHTRTARRTENENTR
Notes payable 116,344,018.02 377 85,759,357.39 3.0 3566 Mainly due to an increase in bank acceptances issued by subsidiaries
ENZE B AN NS e e Sy
Contractual liabilities 65,835,225.59 213 47451,03827 1.69 3874 Mainly due to an increase in advances from customers during the
ERER current period
TERFHBUGUREMAH
Other current liabilities 14,537,663.61 047 9,200,236.26 033 5801 Mainly due to an increase in notes receivable of subsidiaries that did
EthRHaE not meet the conditions for derecognition and an increase in the
reclassification of value-added tax in contractual liabilities during the
current period
PRI TEF AR AR RN RUZEENNRAR
BETOEEREM RIS
Long-term borrowings 133,350,000.00 432 70,000,000.00 249 90.50  Mainly due to an increase in long-term borrowings by subsiciaries for
REER project development during the current period
TR TETAARER BRENR SRR
Estimated liabilities 7,986,099.32 026 4989,719.00 0.18 60.05  Mainly due to the accrual of quality quarantee deposits by subsidiaries
Biak during the current period
IERAETRTAAHRESRELNY
Deferred incomes 13,453,008.53 044 7998474.74 028 68.19  Mainly due to the receipt of special research and development funds by
it subsidiaries during the current period
FERAHTET ARG AREE BT
Other comprehensive income ~~ 4,172,992.51 0.14 3,094,393.89 0.11 3486 Mainly due to the effect of exchange differences on foreign currency
Etgele Statements
IERNERANEEETENY
Special reserves 1,20,044.23 0.04 381,371.62 0.01 22043 Mainly due to an increase in the accrual of production safety expenses
BV by subsidiaries
FERTBT AT RRLEEBENFY
Other information E bR
Nil i
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E=f BEEEWEIN

V. Principal Operation during the Reporting # - HEHAE

Period (continued)

(iii) Analysis of assets and liabilities (Continued) I
2. Overseas assets 2
\/ Applicable [ Not applicable

(1)  Size of assets
Including: overseas assets of RMB83,861,680.17,
accounting for 2.72% of the total assets.

(2) Details of the higher proportion of overseas assets

[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

REKNED (g
ERKEEN @)

(Z) BE - BaBBERD T @

BIHNEERR
ViER O TEm

(1)

2

BEHE

Ef BIEEARKE
83,861,680.177C * {H42&
BB A2.72% ©

&;ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁtﬁ@%ﬂiﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ
8
O @A  ™Em

3.  Major restricted assets at the end of the Reporting 3 BEREPRTELEEZRER
Period
\/ Applicable [ Not applicable ViEmR O TEmA
Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB
By T BEARK
End of the year
Item Book balance Book value  Type of restriction Condition of restriction
EH REERE FEEE SRER ZRER
Fixed assets 160,638,154.58 96,058,176.93  Pledged property buildings Security for borrowings and bank
ElEEE FERENER acceptance
fERAMBRITAGLEA
Financing receivables 2,800,000.00 2,800,000.00  Pledged notes receivable Pledge
JEYGERE [0S el il
Monetary funds 69,544,018.02 69,544,018.02  Margin Deposits for bank acceptance bills
SHES RED RITALERRES
1,639,488.83 1,639,488.83  Margin Letter of credit quarantee deposit
RED ERERES
1,232,613.74 1,232,613.74  Litigation freeze Litigation freeze
R BIENGE
To’gal 235,854,275.17 171,274,297.52 - -
CH
Beginning of the year
Item Book balance Book value  Type of restriction Condition of restriction
HH RESRR REEE SRER ZRER
Fixed assets 139,823,125.79 78,551,161.30  Pledged property buildings Mortgage
EFEE FEERENER RS
Financing receivables 4,928,000.00 4,928,000.00  Pledged notes receivable Pledge
JEMFERE e el B
Monetary funds 65,688,058.02 65,688,058.02  Margin Deposits for bank acceptance bills
ERED RES RTENERRES
7,228,638.76 7,228,638.76  Margin Letter of credit guarantee deposit
RES ERERES
500.69 500.69  Margin Bond for letter of guarantee
RES RERED
Total 217,668,323.26 156,396,358.77 - -
A
(=)

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE



Section 3 Management Discussion il
and Analysis
F=EH BEETWESMN

V. Principal Operation during the Reporting # - HEHATELE BN @
Period (continued)

(iii) Analysis of assets and liabilities (Continued) (Z) BE - aBEBERD T @

4.  Other descriptions 4 HihFH#A
[ Applicable 4/ Not applicable O@EA TEA

(iv) Analysis of industry operation (M) TELEMESE DM
+ Applicable [J Not applicable \/ BA O TEA
The principal business of the Company is gas storage and NSIES %Wﬁﬁﬁ”faﬁ@%ﬁ%i.&%
transportation equipment manufacturing and intelligent equipment RERRMBRIE - 1TE M ﬁﬁﬂ’]ﬁ\ EBRA
manufacturing. For specific industry-related information, please refer EERE T [EEE N RES T EHR
to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this Ao

annual report.

(v) Analysis of investments () BEMRR DT
General analysis of external equity investments HIOMREREER DT
[ Applicable ~ +/ Not applicable O @A T~EA
1.  Material equity investments 1 EBEAHRERE
\/ Applicable 1 Not applicable ViER O TEA

Unit: 0°000 Yuan Ci urrency: RMB
By g KEARE

Whether Whether
the target is consolidated Impact on
principally in the Financial Progress profit or
engaged in the finandial ~ statement Partner  Investment asatthe Expected lossfor ~ Whether Disclosure  Disclosure
Principal investment  Investment  Invested Shareholding statements items (if (if period  halance gain  the current involvedin date index
Investee business business ~ method amount  percentage  of the Group applicable) Sources of funds ~ applicable) (if any) s&heeggte (fany)  period litigation (if any) (ifany)
£
HRE BiRA #ENA a5 REBR BERR EME A8 BERE  REE
hatR IERR  GERERR REML REGE GRMA RAMR  (WER) EOWR (WER) (0B WERER (0R) BERE RME M) (1)
Beijng Tianhai ~~ Gas storage.and  Yes Capita 20,000 100% Yes Budget funds for No 20241230 The website of the
Industry Co,, Ltd. transportation Increase state-owned capital SSE (www sse.
equipment operation for 2022 com.cn) and the
HKEXnews website
of the Stock
Exchange (www.
hkexnews hk)
IRRELE  REEERR R £ 000 0% & ANFEEEEE 5 WAy LR
B emgss (nmse.com.
ol KB
A58 o
kernews k)
Befjng Tianhai ~~ Gas storage.and  Yes Capita 34000 100% Yes RMB200 millon from No 20241230 The website of the
Hydrogen Energy  transportation Increase budget funds for SSE (www se.
Equipment equipment state-owned capital com.cn) and the
(o, ltd. operation for 2022 HKEXnews website
+RMB140 million from of the Stock
capital resenve Exchange (www.
hkexnews hk)
tRRED  REEERR R 2 oo 00 R NNFEEEEE ) WAy LR
4 EBELARE (1 se.com.
BRA 0T al R
+BRERS BRI (o
ARE14000E T hieinews )
Total / / / 54000 / I / [ / I l / [ l
At / / I 54000 / I I / / I / I / /
2.  Material non-equity investments 2 BEAWERERSE
[J Applicable y/ Not applicable O@EA  ~EE
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F=EH EEENWEIN

V. Principal Operation during the Reporting

Period (continued)
(v) Analysis of investments (Continued)
General analysis of external equity investments (Continued)
3. Financial assets measured at fair value
[ Applicable +/ Not applicable

Securities investment
[J Applicable y/ Not applicable

Description of securities investment
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

Private fund investment
[J Applicable y/ Not applicable

Derivatives investment
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

4, Specific progress of major asset reorganisation and
integration during the Reporting Period
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

(vi) Material disposal of assets and equity interest
[0 Applicable +/ Not applicable

(vii) Analysis of major subsidiaries and associates
+/ Applicable [ Not applicable

IREHIRAFELEER @

() BEMR DT @
W HNR IR S 1 B 5 AT (1)
3 LAABEGENSRMEE
O@EA T#EA

EHREBR
O@A ~ER
FEHEEIERAHA
O®EA TEf
LEESKEBR
O@A ~ER
PTERIEEBR
O®EA TEf
4. BEMRNEAEEEHEREWEA

BERER
O®EA TEf

(R) EXREENREHE
O@A EA

(£) EEERSRORIN
VER O TEm

Company name Business nature Principal products or services Registered capital Total assets Net assets Net profit
195 i et e i bt fiz £
Beijing Tianai Industry Co,, Ltd. Production ~ Production and sale of gas cylinders, accumulator shells, RMB RMB RMB RMB
pressure vessels and auxliary equipment, etc. 748759761190 2,386,555,265.17  663,945,208.64 2183349028

FRREIEERAR EE 5E HERH ENR ENRER NEE NEE NEE NEE
RERES TURTSIT61198T 238655526517 6639452086470 -21,833.490.870

Jingcheng Holding (Hong Kong) Company Limited ~ Tradingand ~ Import and export trade, investment holding and HK$1,000 RMB RMB RMB
investment consultancy services, ec. 9,048 661.43 3,093684.68 98,698.17

RHER AR ERAR g5RE  EE0E5 REBRAEERRS 100027 ARE ARE ARE

Qingdao BYTQ United Digital Intelligence Co,, Ltd. ~ Production ~ Robots and automation equipment etc.

BB REERENARLT i3 BEARRSIEES

(viii) Structured entities under the control of the

Company
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

32 | Beijing Jlingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
T REREERGBERAR

924866143 3293684687 98698171

RMB21,418,633 RIB RIB RuB

47082385152 333.458,147.13 4579419199

AR 141863387 ARE ARE ARE

MEBBIT BABMIBT 4579419196%
(N) DEEHNERLEERER

O @A  TEs
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VI. Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the
Company

(i) Industry structure and trends
+ Applicable [ Not applicable

N
7/
s
S ol
P

\
/

(=) TERBBZ
ViR O TEms

1.

Gas storage and transportation segment

Cylinders industry: With the heightened risks of tax increases
in the United States and the European Union’s anti-
dumping investigations on cylinders exported from China,
the uncertainties and pressures in the international market
have further increased. Conversely, driven by policy stimuli
and advancements in industrial upgrading, the demand for
industrial cylinders in the domestic market will continue
to recover. Demand for cylinders for specialty gases is
expected to keep soaring as high-tech sectors such as the
semiconductor and chip industries are thriving. However,
the domestic market remains mostly a zero-sum game, with
increasingly fierce competition. The fire extinguisher market
is becoming further differentiated. The demand from fire
safety in buildings is expected to maintain 2024 levels, while

1>

REBHERSR

A 5 ¢ e E X BN AL Y
BRTT A N Bk B S B 9 8 3 0 S 4R
HHEE - BTSN REE M
BhE—-2mel: BRTmi5E
BOE R TR @A g - T
EMTIEHLBRERE - T
EFER LA SRBRITER
RER FREREBGLEEHE
R EEATSEIERGFER
CBFRUEAR - BT S
E—F o BFHDEGRE
2024 5K - BB BEE FE
WTHEZRFTE WD EER
REFER - WHHERGE—F

B

the demand from fire safety in new railway infrastructures T8 - MBI TS TEEHRIFIE
will further decline, as the number of urban rail construction IR °

projects in China decreases year by year with the gradual
improvement of the country’s urban rails. On the other hand,
the marine fire safety market is expected to record steady
growth.

Compound gas cylinders industry: As the four-year
demonstration period (from August 2021 to August 2025)
regarding the use of hydrogen energy in five city clusters in
China is drawing to an end, the government may expedite
the implementation of demonstration projects regarding
the adoption of hydrogen fuel cell vehicles. It is estimated
that there remain 8,400 target vehicles from within these
clusters and an additional 1,300 vehicles from outside these
clusters, bringing the total to 9,700 vehicles. Furthermore,
as the “low-altitude economy” has increasingly featured in
government work reports, the hydrogen energy business will
see new opportunities in the drone sector. The rapid decline
in the costs of compound gas cylinders has made it possible to
transport high value-added gases such as electronic gases in
bundles. In the international market, there will also be certain
market opportunities in the storage and transportation of
helium, hydrogen and natural gas.

Cryogenic storage and transportation industry: The overall
market demand for industrial cryogenic gas cylinders is
expected to remain steady in 2025. As the Russia-Ukraine
conflict and natural gas supply gradually stabilize, the sales
of HPDI products are expected to maintain the high levels
observed in 2024.

EERMEX  SEEXAARM
TR 8 B A DU F AR E R T
(20218 A-2025F8 A ) B/
AJRENNIR 3B R &L I8 B R b - 7B
TR ARE BT R (T 15 B £ 8,400
o REEIINEEEE B AT 1,300

+ B5M9,7008 o FE - BEETE
EROE | EBUR TR R SR E T
T YN TPkl TS S LD
T B o 1A RIAAK AR E
THRAETASSWMNERZERN
EREHEE T RN - BIBET
BHREELSR SRMAARD
@E%ﬁm%ﬁﬁfimﬁ%%

=

ERFEEEYE  TEEBM2025
FMIGERERGRITTIE- B
EZMETHmRAAAREEETSE
7E ' HPDIE M E #4345 2024 F
K= KF o
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VI. Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the

Compa Ny (Continued)

(i) Industry structure and trends (Continued)
2. Intelligent manufacturing segment

In 2024, under the auspices of national support policies,
China’s industrial robot industry continued to develop
healthily, with the output of industrial robots increasing by
14.2% year on year. Although the annual sales of industrial
robots fell slightly year on year, they continue to exhibit a
promising trend across various sectors. After years of industry
consolidation and technology accumulation, China’s industrial
robot industry is advancing towards international competition
and domestic substitution, with significant growth in the
export volume as well as the market share of domestically
produced products in 2024.

As the trend of active investment and financing in China’s
industrial robot industry continues, the market is set to
enter a pivotal phase in 2025, which will be characterized
by technological integration, market expansion and a
diversification of competitive dynamics. The development
potential of domestic industrial robots appears immensely
promising, with an expected increase in market share and
accelerated progress towards domestic substitution.

(ii) Development strategies of the Company
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

1. Gas Storage and Transportation Segment
Positioning: A global leading enterprise in the manufacturing
and services of gas storage and transportation equipment.

Strategy: Continuously strengthening the leading position and
market position of industrial gas cylinder and fire-fighting gas
cylinders to enhance its profitability; focusing and optimizing
the product structure of natural gas business, maintaining an
appropriate scale, innovating the operating model to enhance
its competitive edge; increasing its expansion into the
hydrogen energy market and its efforts in technology transfer,
accelerating the industrialisation and batching process of Type
IV Cylinders to seize the opportunity to develop the hydrogen
energy industry.

2. Intelligent Manufacturing Segment
Positioning: An industry leading comprehensive intelligent
manufacturing solutions provider.

Strategy: Focusing on the industrial automation equipment
manufacturing field and deeply engaging in the home
appliances industry, industrial automation, robotics
integration applications, production and manufacturing as
well as integrated applications of intelligent manufacturing
equipment and other products, providing comprehensive
solutions for enterprises in intelligent manufacturing,
maintaining the competitive advantages of existing products
and actively expanding new markets.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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VI.

Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the

Compa Ny (Continued)

(iii) Operating plan
+ Applicable [ Not applicable

The year 2025 marks the concluding year of the “14th Five-Year
Plan” and is also a pivotal year for its implementation. Guided by its
"14th Five-Year Plan” strategy, the Company will wholeheartedly
embrace the new development philosophy, with a view to
contributing to the development of Beijing as an international science
and technology innovation hub, implementing the “Five Initiatives”
and adapting itself to the new development dynamic. It will drive
development through innovation, carry out reforms to create new
momentum and comprehensively enhance its management. It will
accelerate the robust development of the hydrogen energy industry
while continuously deepening its commitment to stringent party
governance. It will be devoted to realizing its goals set for 2025,
making every effort to promote its high-quality development and
achieve new results.

(iv) Potential risks
+/ Applicable [J Not applicable

1. Risk of deterioration of the international situation
Uncertainties in international trade and market demand have
increased, and the risks of overseas trade have intensified.

Firstly, the risk of global economic recession will rise, inflation
is expected to continue, geopolitical conflicts will escalate and
threaten the recovery of global trade, and the export market as
a whole will face greater downward pressure.

Secondly, the competition between China and the United
States will escalate, with more tariff hurdles and trade
frictions. Meanwhile, with the increasing competition in the
European market, there will be greater uncertainty in export
market revenues.

Thirdly, the ongoing tensions resulting from the Russia-
Ukraine conflict has led to significant changes in the energy
structure of Europe, with the energy structure changing from
natural gas to electrification in the long term. There will be
major changes in the LNG market, resulting in a reduction in
demand for LNG storage and transportation equipment.

2. Risk of intensified market competition

Although the overall gas storage and transportation market
has been showing a steady rising trend, competition in the
industry has intensified. The product market may change
in the future, which will bring some uncertain factors and
influences to the Company’s business development. Therefore,
in the future, the Company must focus on technological self-
reliance, continue to improve its independent innovation
capability, make scientific deployments, and make every effort
to drive scientific and technological innovation. The Company
will also enhance its market and competition awareness,
highlight the direction of professional development, and
consolidate, expand and enlarge its market share.

and Analysis
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and Analysis

BB WD AT

Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the

Company (Continued)
(iv) Potential risks (Continued)

3.

Risk of new business and new market development
Hydrogen energy and fuel cells are currently dominated by
commercial vehicles in China, are mainly used in the fields of
logistics, public transportation and large buses, and are still
at the stage of building up momentum. Due to national and
local policies and other sources of uncertainty, the Company
has encountered unexpected risks in the development of new
businesses and new markets. The Company will continue
to drive the development of hydrogen energy business and
enhance core technology to improve the core competitiveness
of its products.

(v) Others

\ Applicable

1.

[J Not applicable

Analysis of operating results

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s total profit
increased by approximately RMB93,110,000 year on year. The
operating profit increased by approximately RMB94,202,600
year on year and the net non-operating expenses decreased
by approximately RMB1,092,600 year on year. The operating
income increased by approximately RMB243,364,600 year
on year and the operating cost increased by approximately
RMB 149,084,200 year on year.

During the Reporting Period, taxes and surcharges increased
by approximately RMB3,376,800 or 42.68% year on year,
which was mainly due to an increase in current tax payable.

During the Reporting Period, investment income increased by
approximately RMB5,015,500 or 41.80% year on year, which
was mainly due to an increase in gain on debt restructuring.

During the Reporting Period, credit impairment loss increased
by approximately RMB6,284,200 year on year, which was
mainly due to an increase in receivables, which led to an
increase in bad debt provisions.

During the Reporting Period, asset impairment loss decreased
by approximately RMB9,790,100 year on year, which was
mainly due to a decrease in the difference between the
net realizable value of inventories and selling prices during
the year, which resulted in a corresponding decrease in the
provision for inventory write-downs.

During the Reporting Period, income from the disposal of
assets increased by approximately RMB47,800 year on year,
which was mainly due to an increase in income from the
disposal of assets.

During the Reporting Period, non-operating income decreased
by approximately RMB620,600, which was mainly due to the
receipt of compensation by subsidiaries in the previous period.

During the Reporting Period, non-operating expenses
increased by approximately RMB472,000, which was mainly
due to the payment of compensation by subsidiaries and an
increase in loss on the damage or retirement of fixed assets.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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VI.

Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the

Compa Ny (Continued)

(v) Others (Continued)

Analysis of assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Total assets and total liabilities increased at the end of the
Reporting Period, as compared with that of the beginning
of the year. Total assets amounted to approximately
RMB3,086,613,300, representing an increase of
approximately RMB274,269,800 or 9.75% as compared
with the beginning of the year. Total liabilities amounted to
approximately RMB1,674,456,100, representing an increase
of approximately RMB240,519,300 or 16.77% as compared
with the beginning of the year. Total shareholders’ equity
amounted to approximately RMB1,412,157,200, representing
an increase of approximately RMB33,750,500 or 2.45% as
compared with the beginning of the year.

3. Analysis of financial position

By implementing prudent financial policies, the Company
established a strict risk control system for investment,
financing and cash management to maintain a sound capital
structure and solid financing channels. The Company kept
its loan scale under strict control so that it could satisfy the
capital needs for its operating activities while minimizing its
financing cost and preventing financial risks by fully utilizing
financial instruments, with a view to achieving sustainable
growth and maximizing shareholder value.

\l,

and Analysis
E=F BEEEWESNT
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BN AR27,426.988 T -
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¥167,445.618 7T  LLEYIEM
WA RHE24,051.938 7T - 1
T16.77% - REREZRLELHOA
R#141,215.728 7T » LLEH)IE
IARK3,375.0587C  #EiNT
2.45% o
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PN
Liquidity and capital structure THEMFELRGEHE

2024 2023
20244 20234
(1) Debt ratio (1) BEEAGE=E 54.25% 50.99%
(2) Quick ratio (2) #®B)LLE 119.29% 127.30%
(3) Current ratio (3) TELLZE 152.85% 164.76%
(4) Gearing ratio 4) BEXBEX 118.57% 104.03%

4, Bank loans 4- ﬁﬁ{‘*

The Company prudently implemented its annual capital
budget plan in accordance with changes in the market
environment and the requirements of customers to strictly
control its bank loan scale. The Company fully utilized financial
instruments to reduce its financing cost and prevent financial
risks to improve the profit of the Company and shareholders
while satisfying the capital needs for the operating activities
of the Company. At the end of the Reporting Period, the
Company’s short-term loans increased by RMB90,000,000 or
64.29%, as compared with the beginning of the period, and
its long-term loans increased by RMB63,350,000 or 90.50% as
compared with the beginning of the period.

Al wuﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁ,ﬁﬁ”ﬁli‘i%
§ WRIEMSIRBESE(ENEP
TRk BRARIESIRITE RRE -
ERRARIKEEHESH KW
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F=H BEETNWESN
VI. Discussion and Analysis of the Company 7~ QAR ATRKE BN H

Concerning the Future Development of the B2 25 AT @)

Company (Continued)
(v) Others (Continued)

38

Foreign exchange risk management 5 SHNERBEE
The Company is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk A ) AR INE B B E
relating to US dollars and euro. The Group's main operation T BT ER BRARENTE
is settled by RMB, except for the Company’s subsidiaries, FRAFERKE KEEMNA
Beijing Tianhai, BTIC America Corporation and Jingcheng A RPIER(EB)BR AT
Holding (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd., which use US dollars and euro ET - BUTHEITIREMEEN
for procurement and sale. Accordingly, it may be exposed to ZK%IEI‘JEIT[@EE%%%E@JM/\
foreign exchange risk arising from changes in exchange rates REFHELHE - ALl sbmER>E
between US dollars, euro and RMB. The Company actively T EITEEE/\E’%[T%@J%IE
adopted measures to reduce foreign exchange risk. #) 9|\ IE I—L B - DR EREREE
B - 1&%%@ % o
Principal sources of funds and their use B2 FERFHEH
1. Cash flows from operating activities 1. AEEFTEHeTE
Cash inflows from operating activities of the Company #Eiﬁﬁ AR RN E A
during the Reporting Period were mainly derived fﬁfﬁiﬁkixﬂ(ﬁﬁ’\%%ﬁ
from the income from product sales. Cash outflows mEBBA - ReEREEE
were mainly used in expenses related to production RREEKEEEE RN
and operating activities. During the Reporting Period, o s B RN E A Y
cash inflows from operating activities amounted to BemAAREE123,883.99
RMB1,238,839,900, while cash outflows amounted s RHReREARE
to RMB1,296,432,600. Net cash flows during the 129,643.26& 70 * REHA
Reporting Period from operating activities amounted to EEEHELNREREF
a loss of RMB57,592,700. HABBARKES,750278
e
2. Cash flows from investing activities 2. REZHHzLE

During the Reporting Period, cash inflows from
investing activities of the Company amounted to
RMB17,206,600, which mainly came from the disposal
of fixed assets during the period, while cash outflows
from investing activities amounted to RMB102,772,400,
which were mainly used in expenses for the purchase

WS ARIREEBELER
fﬁimu)\ﬁ:/\&ﬁg'ljzo.GG
B FERFAHEER
EEEWEHRIE: £E
EEBTHARE AR
10,277.2487T * FEZARN

and construction of fixed assets. Net cash flows BRETEEZES XL -

from investing activities during the Reporting Period #ﬁiﬁﬂ&ﬁiﬁﬁéiﬂ’\]fﬁ

amounted to a loss of RMB85,565,900. EREFERABEBRARYK
8,556.598 7T, ©

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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VI.

Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the

Compa Ny (Continued)

(v) Others (Continued)
5. Foreign exchange risk management (Continued)

Principal sources of funds and their use (Continued)

3. Cash flows from financing activities
Cash inflows from financing activities during the
Reporting Period amounted to RMB295,000,000,
which were mainly derived from bank borrowings. Cash
outflows from financing activities during the Reporting
Period amounted to RMB174,261,400, which were
mainly due to the repayment of loans, interest expenses
and the payment of operating lease rentals. Net cash
flows from financing activities during the Reporting
Period amounted to RMB120,738,600.

In 2024, net cash flows from operating activities
decreased by approximately RMB123,952,600 year on
year, which was mainly due to an increase in cash paid
for the purchase of goods and services as compared
with the previous period. Net cash flows from investing
activities increased by approximately RMB71,504,400
year on year, which were mainly due to an increase
in net cash derived from the disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets during
the current period and a year-on-year decrease in cash
paid for the purchase and construction of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets during the
current period. Net cash flows from financing activities
decreased by approximately RMB135,451,700 year on
year, which was mainly due to the special funds and
employee share incentive payments received during the
previous period.

Capital structure

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s capital structure
consisted of shareholders’ equity and liabilities. Shareholders’
equity amounted to RMB1,412,157,200, including
minority interest of RMB328,000,600, and total liabilities
amounted to RMB1,674,456,100. Total assets amounted
to RMB3,086,613,300. As at the end of the period, the
Company'’s gearing ratio was 54.25%.

Capital structure by liquidity

Total current liabilities RMB961,752,700
mEBEEET AEH96,175.27& 7T
Total shareholders’ equity RMB1,412,157,200
RS AERHE141,215.728 7T
Oof WhICh l\/Imorlty mterest RMB328,000,600
Hep: DERR ARH32,800.068 7T

Contingent liabilities
As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Company did not
have any discloseable significant contingent liabilities.

. Section 3 Management Discussion I

and Analysis
E=F BEEEWESNT
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T BAREAEAETRS4.25% °
BREBME T ELEE
Percentage of assets 31.16%
EEELE 31.16%
Percentage of assets 45.75%
HEELS 45.75%
Percentage of assets 10.63%
HEELLE 10.63%
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E=f BEEEWEIN
VI.

Company (Continued)
(v) Others (Continued)

Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the

5. Foreign exchange risk management (Continued)

Details of the Group’s charge on assets

VII. Description of and explanations for disclosure
not in compliance with standards due to
inapplicable standards or special reasons

Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB

SN P R (A)
FEEEECHIE

Bl T BEARE

End of the year
Item Book balance Book value  Type of restriction Condition of restriction
EH IREEE FEEE IRER FRER
Fixed assets 160,638,154.58 96,058,176.93  Pledged property buildings Security for borrowings and bank
EEEE FRERENER acceptance
EFARITALER
Financing receivables 2,800,000.00 2,800,000.00  Pledged notes receivable Pledge
JEMERE RSB EH B
Monetary funds 69,544,018.02 69,544,018.02  Margin Deposits for bank acceptance bills
EhEe RES RITEALERRES
1,639,488.83 1,639,488.83  Margin Letter of credit guarantee deposit
RES ERERES
1,232,613.74 1,232,613.74  Litigation freeze Litigation freeze
AR SRR
Total 235,854,275.17  171,274,29752 - -
EH
Beginning of the year
L)
Item Book balance Book value  Type of restriction Condition of restriction
EH IREIEAE EEEE SRER FRER
Fixed assets 139,823,125.79 78,551,161.30  Pledged property buildings Mortgage
BT &E BERENER RS
Financing receivables 4,928,000.00 4,928,000.00  Pledged notes receivable Pledge
JEMGERE RIS Eif
Monetary funds 65,688,058.02 65,688,058.02  Margin Deposits for bank acceptance bills
EHEe RET RITERERRES
7,228,638.76 7,228,638.76  Margin Letter of credit guarantee deposit
RET ERERED
500.69 500.69  Margin Bond for letter of guarantee
RET RERES
Igtil 21766832326 156,396358.77 - -
=]

including state or business secrets

[J Applicable y/ Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Review

The year 2024 marked the 75th anniversary of the founding of the People’s
Republic of China, and the 10th anniversary of General Secretary Xi
Jinping's important speech regarding the development of Beijing. It was
also a pivotal year for the Company to achieve its strategic goals and tasks
under the “14th Five-Year Plan”. Led by the Beijing Municipal Communist
Party Committee, Beijing Municipal People’s Government and Beijing
Municipal State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
as well as Jingcheng Machinery Electric, guided by the Board and with
the joint efforts of the management, the Company carried out decisions
and plans with resolution, actively implemented the “Five Initiatives”, and
quickly adapted itself to the new development dynamic. With the “14th
Five-Year Plan” strategic planning in mind, the Company regarded the
call for transformation and innovation as an opportunity and made steady
progress in market development, technological innovation, reforms and
adjustments, as well as quality and efficiency enhancement.

During the Reporting Period, the Company focused on the following tasks:

1. Stabilizing its main business and promoting its
growth

(1) Gas storage and transportation segment:

In 2024, the Company focused on the new needs of key
customers in the international market and increased related
extended services, with a view to enhancing customer
stickiness and maintaining its market share. Meanwhile, the
Company took full advantage of its overseas platforms to
improve its warehousing and logistics capacity. In addition,
the Company achieved notable results in new business
development with its research and development (“R&D") of
more cost-effective lightweight high-pressure cylinders.

In the domestic market, the Company drove conventional
cylinder products towards the mid- to high-end market
and expanded their applications with the support of new
businesses and technologies, thereby further achieving
differentiation and quality enhancement. In the compound
gas cylinders and system integration industry, the Company
leveraged its strengths to enter into cooperation with several
automobile manufacturers and operators.

(2) Intelligent manufacturing segment:

BYTQ, a subsidiary of the Company, made steady progress
in 2024 with growth in both revenue and profit. It made
a remarkable breakthrough in the field of 3C production
equipment, with rapid development in related businesses. It
also accelerated its research on the intelligent manufacturing
of hydrogen cylinders and on digital factories, which enhanced
its ability to secure orders. Meanwhile, it strengthened its
budget management and improved the efficiency of its capital
utilization by preparing capital plans.
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Review (Continued)

2.

Dedicating itself to the promotion of

technological innovation

Beijing Tianhai, a subsidiary of the Company, continued to improve
the development of its two-level R&D system, increase its investment
in technological innovation, create original technology sources
and deepen its R&D on core technology. On this basis, it actively
developed new products in a market-oriented manner to meet
the needs of different fields and applications. At the same time,
it strengthened its 4A top-level architectural design regarding its
business, data, applications and technology and gradually established
an ERP-based architectural system of services and a digital
empowerment platform to promote the intelligent upgrade of its
production line of compound gas cylinders.

BYTQ, a subsidiary of the Company, attaches great importance to
the R&D and breakthrough of new technologies. Its independently
developed and promoted relevant control system project has
filled a gap in the field of full automation of automatic press for
refrigerators in China. In the suspension chain segment, the R&D and
application of new technologies and devices have improved the load
capacity of the company’s products and expanded their applications.
The enhancement of its technical capability has reduced product
costs and guaranteed product quality, thus improving its profitability.

Strengthening the management of regulatory

compliance and internal control

With regard to its compliance and internal control management, the
Company stepped up its implementation of rules and regulations to
enhance the legality and standardization of its internal management.
The Company also ensured the security and soundness of its
operation through special initiatives in relation to internal control and
compliance. BYTQ, a subsidiary of the Company, further improved
its development of systems and sorted out its business processes
including procurement contract approval and payment approval.
In addition, the Company strictly managed its internal control and
audit work. The Company detected and rectified potential issues in
a timely manner through regular audits and risk assessments, thus
safeguarding its steady development.

Enhancing financial control

The Company improved its financial performance by the
implementation of cost reduction strategies in technology,
procurement and manufacturing. The Company intensified its
control of financing costs. Through a series of effective strategies
(including precise timing of financing, in-depth optimization of its
financing structure as well as the judicious combination of short-
and long-term financing instruments), the Company provided the
financial security and support necessary for its steady development.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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ll. Outlook —RE
1. Seizing new opportunities in the market and 1 BHTSEHEE  RMARR
improving the profitability of the Company Fll g
(1)  Gas storage and transportation segment: (1) SKBRRFERR:

In the composite gas cylinder industry, the Company will
make full use of its first-mover advantage with IV Cylinders
in the hydrogen energy market, leveraging the synergy
of Type Il Cylinders and Type IV Cylinders to broaden the
prospect of their market applications and secure orders. The
Company will also actively pursue business development
among major customers to ensure a robust order volume.
In the non-hydrogen market, the Company must maintain
its confidence, dedicate itself to the promotion of related
products, continually optimize its after-sales network and
provide reliable technical support. In the international market,
the Company will accelerate the customer development and
market expansion of compound gas cylinders.

With regard to the cylinder industry, the Company must
closely monitor policy shifts, conduct research on and
make adjustments to its operational strategies in a timely
manner with a view to steadily enhancing its sales volume.
Domestically, in the mid- to high-end market, the Company
must leverage its quality and brand advantages to achieve
competitive differentiation, thereby cementing and expanding
its share of this customer segment. In the mid- to low-
end market, the Company needs to swiftly implement cost
reduction strategies to enhance the competitiveness of its
products. In the electronic specialty gas market, the Company
will gain an advantage over its competitors through its high-
end product offerings.

In the cryogenic storage and transportation industry, the
Company will continue to intensify its efforts in the industrial
cryogenic cylinder market, enrich its product mix and enhance
its direct sales capabilities to increase its market share. The
Company will also continue to tap into new medical gas
markets and expand the applications of cryogenic cylinders.

Intelligent manufacturing segment:

The Company will seek to secure orders from the home
appliances industry and make every effort to implement
projects and pass relevant acceptance inspections. The
Company’s product mix in the home appliances industry
will remain stable. Through its independently developed
specialized machines, the Company will improve its technical
level and supply chain management capabilities and reduce
product costs. The Company will also continue to upgrade
its final assembly line, including optimizing equipment
and improving the structure of its inspection line. It will
optimize the scheduling in the production of friction bars
and suspension chains, reduce operating noise and improve
production stability, so as to create high-quality products that
satisfy customers.

The Company will enhance and deepen its development of
systems, broaden the scope of management, and carry out
daily management through the adaptation of information
technology to improve efficiency and standardization and
ensure that management practices are traceable, sustainable
and replicable. It will also recruit more talents, enhance
internal talent development and conduct regular employee
training, with a view to improving the overall quality of its
team.
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Outlook (Continued)

2.

Creating new momentum for transformation

through innovation

The Company will focus on the field of hydrogen energy storage
and transportation equipment, continually optimize its system
for technological innovation, enhance its R&D capabilities and
promote collaborative efforts among industry, academia, and
research institutions. The Company aims to increase the demand for
original technologies among enterprises, augment their supply at
the source, optimize resource allocation and enhance the transfer
and application of original technologies. It also aims to foster tech
talents, an innovative team and a creative corporate culture while
refining its incentive mechanisms, so as to kindle creativity and
create an inspiring working environment.

Strengthening corporate governance and

enhancing management

The Company will establish a sound corporate governance
mechanism to ensure its efficient operation under a framework
of regulatory compliance. By deepening the reform of its internal
management systems and improving its standardized management of
processes, the Company and its subsidiaries will establish a scientific,
sensible and standardized operation and management system.
The Company and its subsidiaries will promote the specialization,
professionalization and standardization of the management tasks of
various functions and provide solid protection for the healthy and
orderly development of the two core segments of gas storage and
transportation products and automatic manufacturing equipment.

Strengthening risk prevention and control to

ensure regulatory compliance

The Company will deepen its internal control and compliance
management and promote an in-depth integration of internal control
and business activities. It will regularly review the effectiveness of its
internal control processes and identify and rectify potential risk points
in a timely manner, thus ensuring the continuous improvement
and optimization of its internal control system. In addition, the
Company will further enhance the transparency and effectiveness
of its internal control management through the introduction of
advanced mechanisms for auditing and overseeing internal control.
It will also intensify the development of a compliance management
system to enhance the risk prevention and control capabilities of
its subsidiaries. Moreover, it will strictly adhere to the regulatory
requirements for companies and state-owned assets and complete
internal control audits and special inspections, while strengthening
its production safety management to ensure the safe and stable
operation of its production and operation.

Laying a new foundation for operation and

erecting new shields against risks

The Company will continue to examine the quality of its accounting
information, promote the integration of business development
and financial management as well as the development of financial
information systems, and enhance its financial analysis framework.
It will also improve the management and control of its accounts
receivable and inventory, strengthen the scheduling of its operation,
and enhance the quality and efficiency of its operation. The
Company will solidly promote the development of state-owned
enterprises under the rule of law, reinforce its risk management,
and continue to streamline its systems and processes, centralize their
audit and bolster their implementation. It will also strengthen the
development of compliance and internal control in key areas and
promote the further in-depth integration of risk management and
business development.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Section 4 Chairman’s Statement I
FE EEREHRS

[I. Outlook (continued) — E‘:EE(%E)

6. Implementing measures to invigorate the 6 ZHEEHBRLEREED
Company
To kindle the enthusiasm and creativity of employees, the Company BIRMHBMEETNRBEGIEEREEE S - A
will continue to advance the reform of its differentiated incentive AR A R IR - 1
mechanism, establishing an incentive system that integrates 2R REBESHEBER &5
short-term, mid-term, and long-term strategies. In particular, by 7RI E i 8 B e PR VAR R R ET B S A
implementing innovative measures such as restricted share incentive MBS BETEAMNGEARRER
schemes, the Company aims to closely align employees’ personal BEZHTE - £RHESH A FEEBEN
interests with the Company’s long-term development, driving the TR - FEIBFEEZENBE

achievement of strategic goals with its employees to usher in a new
era of proactive entrepreneurship.
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Information on Corporate Governance
\ Applicable  CINot applicable

During the Reporting Period, the general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and managers of the Company have well defined
power and responsibilities, which allows them to maintain checks and
balances and coordinate with each other. The Board of the Company and
its strategy committee, audit committee, remuneration and monitoring
committee and nomination committee and the Supervisory Committee
carried out their work according to their responsibilities. The information
of the Company was disclosed on a true, accurate, complete and timely
basis. The actual situation of the Company’s governance complied with the
“Company Law of the PRC" and the requirements of CSRC.

The Group continues to improve its corporate governance practices,
emphasizing the attainment and maintenance of a quality Board, sound
risk management and internal controls, and high transparency and
accountability to the Shareholders. The Board and the management are
committed to the principles of good corporate governance consistent
with prudent management and enhancement of shareholder value. As
described in this report, the Company applied the principles to its corporate
governance structure and practices and complied with the code provisions
of the “Corporate Governance Code” under Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

During the Reporting Period, the major aspects of corporate governance
are as follows:

1. Shareholders and general meetings

The Company was able to treat all Shareholders equally with due
respect and to safeguard their interests. In particular, minority
Shareholders were entitled to their status and to fully exercise their
rights with their legal interests being protected. The Company
ensured that Shareholders were entitled to their right of access
to information and right to participate in decision-making in
respect of material events of the Company as required by laws
and administrative rules and regulations. In accordance with the
relevant requirements set out in the “Rules of Procedure for the
General Meeting”, it could be ensured that general meetings were
convened and held in a legal, regulated and orderly manner and, in
respect of voting for connected transactions, the relevant persons
were arranged to abstain from voting pursuant to the relevant
requirements in such manner that connected transactions are open,
equal and fair.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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I. Information on Corporate Governance
(Continued)

2.

Directors and the Board

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board of the Company
comprised 9 Directors (due to changes in the Board’'s composition
at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board of the Company
currently comprises 9 duly appointed Directors, with 2 candidates
for directorship to be duly appointed, pending approval at the
shareholders’ general meeting, as detailed in the disclosures made
in part IV of this section), including 4 independent non-executive
Directors, 4 non-executive Directors and 1 executive Director. The
Board sets up the strategy committee, the audit committee, the
remuneration and monitoring committee and the nomination
committee. During the Reporting Period, all Directors were able to
strictly perform their duties of good faith and due diligence. The
Board exercised its power and authority in strict compliance with
the requirements of the laws and regulations and the “Articles of
Association” to ensure the regulated operation of the Company.
Resolutions put forward at the Board meetings were sufficiently
discussed and resolved in a scientific, prompt and cautious manner.
Directors of the Company were selected and appointed in strict
compliance with the required procedures set out in the “Articles of
Association”. According to the requirements of the “Standard of
Corporate Governance for PRC Listed Companies”, the Company
gave full play to the functions of the special committees of the
Board and the four independent non-executive Directors pursuant to
the relevant requirements of the “Rules of Procedure for the Board
of Directors”, “Implementation Rules for the Special Committees
of the Board of Directors” and “Working System for Independent
Directors”.

Supervisors and the Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee of the Company comprises three
Supervisors, of whom one is the Supervisor for staff representative.
The Supervisory Committee appointed one secretary for the
Supervisory Committee. The Supervisory Committee of the Company
is committed to being accountable to all Shareholders. Taking
financial control as the core, the Supervisory Committee supervised
the Directors, general managers and senior management officers of
the Company to protect the safety of the assets of the Company,
reduce financial risks and safeguard the legal interests of the
Company and the Shareholders. The Supervisory Committee has the
capacity to carry out extensive communication with Shareholders,
staff and other stakeholders so as to ensure the launch of the
supervisory work. “The Rules of Procedure for the Supervisory
Committee” formulated by the Company facilitated the exercise
of power of all Supervisors. The Supervisory Committee convened
regular meetings and extraordinary meetings in strict compliance
with the rules and procedures.

Stakeholders

The Company can fully respect and protect the legal interests of
stakeholders so as to achieve a coordinated balance among the
interests of various parties including Shareholders, staff and the
community for purposes of jointly facilitating the continuous and
healthy development of the Company.
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Information on Corporate Governance

(Continued)

5. Information disclosure and investor relations

The secretary to the Board was designated by the Company to
be responsible for handling information disclosure, and receiving
shareholders’ visits and enquiries. The Company disclosed the
relevant information in a true, accurate, complete and timely manner
in accordance with the Listing Rules of the Shanghai Stock Exchange
and the Stock Exchange to practicably ensure that investors will be
able to obtain the relevant information equally.

Whether there are significant differences between corporate governance
and the laws, administrative regulations and the provisions of the CSRC on
the governance of the listed company; please indicate the reasons if there
are significant differences

[ Applicable v Not applicable

Specific measures for ensuring the
independence of the assets, personnel,
finances, institutions and business of the
Company, and the solutions, work progress
and consequential work plans taken in
response to the affected independence of the
Company, that are taken by the controlling
shareholders and actual controllers of the
Company

[ Applicable ™ v Not applicable

Whether the controlling shareholders, actual controllers and other units
under their control are engaged in the same or similar business as the
Company, and the impact of horizontal competition or major changes in
horizontal competition on the Company, the measures taken, the solution
progress and the consequential solution plan

[J Applicable v Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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. Varax Parax =
. "V ERE QTRE
lll. Introduction to the General Meetings = - BRERRSHEREN
Index for details on
websites designated for  Date of disclosure
Meeting Date of holding publishing resolutions of the resolutions  Meeting resolution
ERER ERAH FETBNERAUNERZD ABHRNRERN e3R8
First Extraordinary General 2024.6.24 The website of the SSE 2024.06.24 The resolution in relation to the prior investment in Shanghai Sunwise by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Meeting of 2024 (www.sse.com.cn) and controlling shareholder was considered and passed
the HKEXnews website
of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk)
WUEE-R 2024.6.24 FRER R www.sse.com.cn) 2024.06.24 EERBENERRR LA TRARTRE LERENER
EERRAS RERFTRE S8
(www.hkexnews.hk)
2023 Annual General — 2024.6.27 The website of the SSE 2024.6.27 1. The full text and the summary of annual report for A shares and annual report for H shares of the Company for
Meeting (www.sse.com.cn) and 2023 was considered and passed
the HKEXnews website 2. The 2023 work report of the board of directors of the Company was considered and passed
of the Stock Exchange 3. The 2023 work report of the Supervisory Committee of the Company was considered and passed
(www.hkexnews.hk) 4. The 2023 audited financial reports of the Company were considered and passed
5. The internal control audit report in the 2023 annual financial report of the Company was considered and passed
6. The 2023 work report of the independent non-executive Directors of the Company was considered and passed
7. The appointment of WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP as the auditor for the Company's 2024 financial
report and internal control audit report of the financial report was considered and passed
8. The resolution of the Company not to distribute any profit for the year of 2023 was considered and passed
9. The resolution in relation to grant of general mandate to the board of directors to issue H shares by the
Company was considered and passed
10. The resolution in relation to the proposed amendments to the " Articles of Association” was considered and
passed
11. The resolution in relation to the proposed amendments to the “Rules of Procedure of the General Meeting of
Shareholders” was considered and passed
12. The resolution in relation to the remuneration of and the entering into of the written contract with the
independent non-executive Director of the eleventh session of the board of directors of the Company was
considered and passed
13. The resolution in relation to the change of independent non-executive Directors of the eleventh session of the
board of directors of the Company was considered and passed
NBEFRRRAE 2024627 R www.sse.com.cn) 20246.27 ERBRATNBEARFEREEAREE HRERRE

RE FTHE 5180 CERRBLENBEEEFS TR
(www.hkexnews.hk) CERRBLTNBFEESS T (R

Shareholders of preferred shares with recovered

B BRATNBE RS MRS R
EERBLANBEEBUNTE AT \
‘%ﬁ%i@%@ﬁ%fik1§@% BB (HAEBAY) AR A0MFEHBREEH RSN B OB BEY
8- B BBLRBFENETHEANNER
9 EEBBLAENR PESERITHR-RERBER
10 EERBRFE (AR NER
1 ERBRET (RRAGAERAD AR
12 BERRE T -REFEBANE SRR EACRNER
13 FEBEMAALRE - EEFREIHNEENIR

RREMENEERRRFREGHR

1
2
3
4 BRBALTBEEARHNIBRS
5
6
7

. . . £ =
voting rights request to convene an extraordinary FRRAS
general meeting . .

0 Applicable v Not applicable O@A N FEA
BRERAZ1ERHRA

Descriptions on general meetings
[ Applicable v Not applicable

O@A N FEA
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
Officers

(i) Change in shareholding and remuneration of
current and resigned Directors, Supervisors and
senior management officers during the Reporting

Period
\ Applicable 1 Not applicable

B

mEE EENSREEARY
o
(—) RERBEHNAREIES E=
NEREEAEBRREBH R HMN

BR

ViR O Em

Ty
Total
remuneration
hefore tax
received Whether
from the receiving
Number of Company  compensation
sharesheld ~ Numberof Change in the during ~ from related
atthe  sharesheld  number of the Reporting  parties of the
Date of Dateof  beginning  attheend shares held in Reason Period  Company or
Name Position Gender Age appointment expiry of office  oftheyear  of the year theyear ~ forchange  (RMB0'000) not
BEHnit
LEEAH
EERRH BAEMAE RALLAE
% BB #H R EHERANE  EHALRE  FOSRE  EARRE  BNRBE GHRBRR  (ARMERD) BAEREM
Li Junjie Chairman Mae 47 2023-04-28 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 0 Yes
B 2R 3 47 2023-04-28 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 0 B
Non-executive Director 2023-06-16 2026-06-16
FHTER 20030616 2026:06-16
Zhang Jikeng  Executive Director Male 50 2017-06-26 2026-06-16 150,000 150,000 0 - 74.58 No
FEE BT 3 50 2017-06-26 2026-06-16 150,000 150,000 0 - 74.58 &
General manager
P 2023-04-28 2026-06-16
Zhou Yongjun - Non-executive Director Male 58 2023-06-16 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 0 Yes
& FiTER 8 58 2023-06-16 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 0 I
Man Huiyong  Non-executive Director Male 47 2022-02-24 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 0 Yes
neE FHIEE g 0 00004 2026:06-16 0 0 0 - 0 3
Li Chunzhi ~ Non-executive Director Female 48 2016-06-26 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 0 Yes
FER FER QN 20160626 2026:06-16 0 0 0 - 0 3
Chen Junping  Independent non-executive Director  Female 60 2024-06-27 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 0 No
Ris¥ BUTES LG ) 20040627 202640616 0 0 0 - 0 A
Zhao Xuguang Independent non-executive Director  Male 46 2020-06-09 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 8 No
llib BUFHTES R 20000609 2026:06-16 0 0 0 - 8 A
LiuJingtai ~ Independent non-executive Director  Male 61 2020-06-09 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 8 No
H5% BuES 5 61 2020-06-09 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 8 &
Luan Dalong  Independent non-executive Director - Male 61 2020-06-09 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 8 No
N BUES 3 61 2020-06-09 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 8 &
Tian Donggiang Chairman of Supenvisory Committee Male 59 2020-09-21 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 0 Yes
B EFeiR 3 59 20200921 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 0 &
LizZhe Supervisor Male 59 2017-06-26 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 62.08 No
X S 3 59 2017-06-26 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 62.08 B
Wen Jinhua ~ Supervisor female 46 2020-06-09 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 3121 No
&7 S ' 4 2020-06-09 2026-06-16 0 0 0 - 3121 &
Feng Yongmei  Chief accountant female 46 2021-10-28 2026-06-16 100,000 100,000 0 - 6747 No
il el I 4 2021-10-28 2026-06-16 100,000 100,000 0 - 67.47 &
ShiFengwen  Chief engineer Male 54 2015-10-23 2026-06-16 100,000 100,000 0 - 62.08 No
REX faTiEg 3 54 2015-10-23 2026-06-16 100,000 100,000 0 - 62.08 &
Li Xianzhe ~ General counsel Male 39 2022-01-19 2026-06-16 100,000 100,000 0 - 57.16 No
%3 EEEER 3 39 20220119 2026-06-16 100,000 100,000 0 - 57.16 &
Luan Jie Secretary to the Board Male 44 2016-11-08 2026-06-16 100,000 100,000 0 - 62.19 No
3 B2ElE 5 4 2016-11-08 2026-06-16 100,000 100,000 0 - 62.19 &
Wu Yanzhang - Non-executive Director (resigned) ~ Male 61 2019-09-09 2024-12-30 0 0 0 - 0 Yes
SRR FTER (E0) E I 0190909 20241230 0 0 0 - 0 |3
Chenglei  Non-executive Director (resigned) ~ Male 44 2023-06-16 2024-12-30 0 0 0 - 0 Yes
RS FTER () Eu 030616 20241230 0 0 0 - 0 I3

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Officers (continued)

(i) Change in shareholding and remuneration of
current and resigned Directors, Supervisors and
senior management officers during the Reporting
Period (Continued)

Total
remuneration
hefore tax
received Whether
from the receiving
Number of Company  compensation
sharesheld ~ Numberof Change in the during ~ from related
atthe  sharesheld  number of the Reporting parties of the
Date of Dateof ~ beginning  attheend shares held in Reason Period  Company or
Name Position Gender Age  appointment expiry of office  oftheyear  of the year theyear  forchange  (RMB0'000) not
BEBwE
ATEEN
Rk RERHEE RAELAE
i3 BB #A ER GERREY  EERLAE  FURKE  ERGRE  EHODE SHPBRR (ARMERD) BHEDEM
Xiong Jianhui  Independent non-executive Director  Male 48 2020-06-09 2024-06-27 0 0 - 8 No
(resigned)
fEER %ﬁ%ﬁﬂf TER(E) g 48 2020-06-09 2024-06-27 0 0 - 8 &
Total
At / / / / / 550,000 550,000 / 45483 /

Note: T

(1) Executive Directors (except the Chairman of the Board) do not receive () WTEFRESRINTENESH
directors’ emoluments, but have the right to receive remuneration ® - BEERREBESEEARFKMER
according to their respective positions in the Company and its RIFTERTS BRESZSIN) EEEM -
subsidiaries (except the position of Directors). Chairman and non- EERRFPITEETELQRERH
executive Directors do not receive emoluments and Supervisors do not B - BEEAEMEFNSE - BAEERE
receive supervisors’ emoluments in the Company, but have the right EEEAQ R RHER BT ERS (R
to receive remuneration according to their respective positions in the BEERRASON) EERE M o
Company and its subsidiaries (except the position of Supervisors).

(2)  Resigned Directors Mr. Wu Yanzhang and Mr. Cheng Lei did not (2 EBEEEREELLE  RELERWE
receive any remuneration from the Company during the Reporting BRI NE R B REGHT N o
Period.

(3)  Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, no Directors, () BREMPEEEIN - MEHARIRE
Supervisors and senior management of the Company held any interests £ EE SREEASREREAR
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of RIRR - HERNRG R EFH B R = JK
the Company. B

(4)  The remuneration of Ms. Chen Junping, an independent non- (4) BUERITEEREI F 2 1+2024—
executive Director, for the year 2024-2025 will be paid one year after 2025 EF B R EE R B EE
she formally assumes office in the Company. Accordingly, at the end B— B - Filt - RAREHR -
of the Reporting Period, Ms. Chen Junping received total pre-tax BT L A RIS BB AT RN 48 58
remuneration of $0 from the Company. R0TT ©

(5 On 28 December 2023, Mr. Zhang Jiheng, a Director of the Company, (5)  RIERFI2023F R G 1R E B

was granted 150,000 restricted shares, and Ms. Feng Yongmei, Mr. Shi
Fengwen, Mr. Li Xianzhe, each a senior management officer, and Mr.
Luan Jie, secretary to the Board, were each granted 100,000 restricted
shares, pursuant to the Company’s 2023 Restricted Share Incentive
Scheme.

|- P2023F12 A28 REIEERE
1858 A4 T 150,000 % bR I AR Z -
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management - E% - EEMNSREEAEW

Officers (Continued) B )

(i) Change in shareholding and remuneration of (—) BERBRTHARTIES - BES
current and resigned Directors, Supervisors and MEREEABFRESE K HRM
senior management officers during the Reporting 15 (@)

Period (Continued)

Name Main work experiences
e FETIERIE
Li Junjie Chinese, male, aged 47, is a bachelor’s degree holder in Economics and EMBA. Mr. Li was an accountant

of finance department, salesman of marketing department, deputy secretary and secretary of the
Committee of Communist Youth League, deputy manager of human resources department, secretary to
the board, deputy general manager, deputy party secretary and general manager in Beijing Tianhai Industry
Co., Ltd. He was an executive director of the seventh session, eighth session, ninth session and tenth
session of the Board of the Company since 16 December 2013, and was appointed as the general manager
of the Company from 26 June 2014 to 11 December 2015, and from 25 April 2017 to 28 April 2023.
He is currently the deputy general manager of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd., the
chairman of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. and the non-executive director and chairman of the eleventh
session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.

FERN PEIRIES - 5 47px KBS T  THEEBELT  TREQEIRKNETIEARARGBIE S - ™
LEMEKE  BERREL  BZEL  ANERBEIHNE =FenE  BIAKLE  EZRRIER 4K
2013 F2A16HREARAFELEEZGNTES  F/\EEZQNTESF FNEEFSNTE
= FHEEEFRITEE 2014664260 F2015F 12 5118 201764 A25AE2023F4 A28 F
NEBLIE - BAELRRBHEZRARETARERLE bR XKETEARARESK - R
BERNBRAFTE T+ —EEFSIINTES EFK-

Zhang Jiheng Chinese, male, aged 50. Mr. Zhang is the holder of a bachelor's degree in engineering and a senior
engineer. Mr. Zhang served as a technician and the head of the first production division, deputy minister
of the production department, assistant of general manager, minister of the supply department and
deputy general manager of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., the general manager of Langfang Tianhai
High Pressure Container Co., Ltd.* (BBE5 K8 =B A AR A 7)), the general manager of Beijing Minghui
Tianhai Gas Storage Equipment Sales Co., Ltd.* (It REFIE R G REEFEEHREHEBR A A]) and the
executive director, general manager of the tenth session of the Board of the Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Company Limited. He is currently the Party secretary, vice chairman and general manager of Beijing
Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. He is an executive director and the general manager of the eleventh session of
the board of directors of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

SR fE PEIEIE - 50 50k 0 REAR T2+ SR TR - REEASELERKNEIEBRAREE KR
B8 - Bk - £EPIHR - BEERE - HESHE - BIAKE - BB XE2BARER D AEL
B LR NEREBHEREHEERATALE R RHBRERNERATFE TEESGRITE
FRKE BALLRKEBIEBRATEZER  BIESRK - K8 IR HEERNBRATE
TEEFENTEF A58 -

Zhou Yongjun Chinese, male, Han ethnicity, aged 58. He obtained an EMBA from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business. Mr. Zhou served as the head of strategy and operation management department of Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd., the secretary of the party branch and general manager
of Beijing Jingcheng Electric Co., Ltd.* (At R R E R B PRAF]), the head of strategy and operation
department (safety and environmental protection department), and the vice chairman of the labor union of
Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. Currently, he is head of technology and information
department of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. and a non-executive director of the
eleventh session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.

[EKE RIS - 55 2R 0 585% - RILFIZEEMBA o [F% A B R m I E AR A IR & £ A 78RS 6
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management - E% - EEMNSREEAEWN

Officers (Continued) B )

(i) Change in shareholding and remuneration of (—) BERBRTHARTIES - BES
current and resigned Directors, Supervisors and MEREEABFRESE K HRM
senior management officers during the Reporting 155 (@)

Period (Continued)

Name Main work experiences
G TETIERIE
Man Huiyong Chinese, male, Han ethnicity,aged 47, has a bachelor’s degree in management and is an accountant.

Mr. Man once served as the director of the financial management center of the finance department, the
deputy director of the comprehensive budget management office of the planning department, the deputy
director of the asset financial management department, the director of the asset financial management
department, the deputy chief accountant, the chief accountant and the director of Beijing BEIZHONG
Steam Turbine Generator Co., Ltd.* (b RIbEAHEMEAGRE L2 E)), and the director of the audit
centre of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. (At R FUM A EIER B R E T A R]). He is
currently director of the Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited* (1t = R E D B R A
@), the director of Beijing Huade Hydraulic Industry Group Co., Ltd.* At REERBETEEFERETL
a)), director of Japan Jingcheng Industry Co., Ltd.* (R T 2K & 1), chief financial officer and director
of Beijing Peitian Technology Co., Ltd.* (dt RECRELMB R A F]), supervisor of AVIC Maite Powder
Metallurgy Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (#5768 (Jb ) AR A 7)), supervisor of Beijing
Hongda Rixin Motor Co., Ltd.* (At R=E B HEEER A F]).

HEIRIES - 55 RNk - 4758 BEEET G5 c MAEAELEI R ERERERETRRMBKE
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Li Chunzhi Chinese, female, aged 48. She is the holder of a MBA degree and a middle-grade economist. Ms. Li served
as the manager of translation and project of Beijing Mechanical Industry Automation Research Institute,
product manager of of product service department of Beijing Century Yinghua Information Technology
Co., Ltd.* (b Rttt 42 B EE AR 2 F]) and investment management manager and vice department
head of the strategic and investment department of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co.,
Ltd.. She is the vice department head of the investment asset and management department of Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd., vice general manager of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. * JE R R B EEIEEBR A7), and the non-executive director
of the tenth session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited. She is currently
the supervisor of Beijing Jingcheng Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd., and a non-executive director of the
eleventh session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.

FERK FHEIBISE - £ - 485% - TEIEIREL - FARKER - Tt QEI RN T ¥ B LA EE « 1A
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Chen Junping Chinese nationality, female, aged 60, holds a doctorate in accounting from the China Academy of Fiscal
Sciences. Ms. Chen was formerly the director of the Financial Management Teaching and Research Room
of the Finance Department of the Central Finance Management Cadre College, an associate professor and
a master’s degree tutor of the Finance Department of the Central University of Finance and Economics, and
an associate professor and a master’s degree tutor of the School of Accounting of the Central University
of Finance and Economics. Currently, she is a professor and a master’'s degree tutor at the School of
Accounting of Central University of Finance and Economics, and an independent non-executive Director of
the eleventh session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.
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Officers (Continued) B )

(i) Change in shareholding and remuneration of (—) BERBRTHARTIES - BES
current and resigned Directors, Supervisors and MEREEABFRESE K HRM
senior management officers during the Reporting 155 (@)

Period (Continued)

Name Main work experiences
G TETIRRIE
Zhao Xuguang Chinese, male, aged 46. He obtained a doctoral degree in law from Renmin University of China. Mr. Zhao

was an associate professor, an assistant to the dean of the School of Humanities and Social Sciences, the
person in charge of undergraduate and master programs of law in North China Electric Power University,
and the independent non-executive director of the tenth session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Company Limited. He is currently the deputy dean, professor, and tutor of master
programs of the School of Humanities and Social Sciences in North China Electric Power University; he is
also a director of the Legal Writing Association of China Law Society, the executive vice president of the
Beijing Legal Negotiation Society, and an independent non-executive director of the eleventh session of the
Board of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.

B HEIEEE - 55 d6p% 0 PRIARKENESE L - BAESEFEILE N ARPRIHE - AXEL SR 28T
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Liu Jingtai Chinese, male, aged 61. He obtained a doctoral degree in engineering from Nankai University. Mr. Liu was
an associate professor of Nankai University, the deputy director of the Institute of Robotics and Information
Automation of Nankai University, external director of Tianjin Zhonghuan Electronic Information (Group)
Co., Ltd. and the independent non-executive director of the tenth session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Company Limited. He is currently a professor and tutor of doctoral programs of the
School of Artificial Intelligence of Nankai University, director of the Institute of Robotics and Information
Automation of Nankai University, and an independent non-executive director of the eleventh session of the
Board of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.
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Luan Dalong Chinese, male, aged 61. He obtained a doctoral degree in management science and engineering from
Northwestern Polytechnical University. Mr. Luan Dalong was a researcher at the Academy of Military
Science and the independent non-executive director of the tenth session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Company Limited. He is currently an independent director of Aerospace Hi-Tech Holding
Group Co., Ltd., Hunan Valin Cable Co., Ltd.,* (HEZEZRENRH FIRAF]), Beijing Tianma Intelligent
Control Technology Co., Ltd.* (At R RIFEZERFRMH AR AF]), and an independent non-executive
director of the eleventh session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.
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Tian Donggiang Chinese, male, aged 59. He is a professor level senior engineer. Mr. Tian graduated from the School
of Energy and Power Engineering of Xi‘an Jiaotong University, majoring in thermal turbines, and from
the Business School of Renmin University of China, majoring in EMBA. Mr. Tian is an expert entitled
to special government allowance from the State Council. Mr. Tian was the chief engineer and deputy
general manager of Beijing BEIZHONG Steam Turbine Generator Co., Ltd., and the general manager, party
secretary, director and chairman of the board of Beijing Jingcheng New Energy Co., Ltd., and a supervisor
and the chairman of the tenth session of the supervisory committee of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric
Company Limited. He is currently a despatched supervisor of the board and supervisory office of Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. and the supervisor and chairman of the eleventh session of
Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management - E% - EEMNSREEAEWN

Officers (Continued) B )

(i) Change in shareholding and remuneration of (—) BERBRTHARTIES - BES
current and resigned Directors, Supervisors and MEREEABFRESE K HRM
senior management officers during the Reporting 155 (@)

Period (Continued)

Name Main work experiences
G TETIERIE
Li Zhe Chinese, male, aged 59. He is an engineer with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr. Li had served

as the technician, monitor, director, deputy director of the production department, director, assistant to
general manager and deputy general manager of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., the general manager
and chairman of the board of Beijing Minghui Tianhai Gas Storage and Transportation Equipment Sales
Co., Ltd., deputy party secretary and secretary of the discipline inspection commission of Beijing Tianhai
Industry Co., Ltd., supervisor of Shanghai Tianhai High Pressure Containers Co., Ltd., and supervisor
of Langfang Tianhai High Pressure Containers Co., Ltd., and a supervisor of the tenth session of the
supervisory committee of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited. He is currently the deputy
party secretary and chairman of labour union of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., and a supervisor of the
eleventh session of the supervisory committee of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.
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Wen Jinhua Chinese, female, aged 46. She has a bachelor’s degree in engineering and is a political engineer. Ms. Wen
served as the deputy division head of the technology department, secretary to the general branch of the
Communist Youth League and head of personnel of Beijing Modern Jingcheng Construction Machinery
Co., Ltd*. GEFIBA R TN B R A 7)), the head of integrated management department and
secretary to the board of directors of Beijing Jingcheng Nagano Construction Machinery Company Limited*
Jt R FH R T2 B R A 7)), the listing management director of the securities department of Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd., the deputy head of the human resources department of
Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. and a supervisor of the tenth session of supervisory committee of Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited. She currently serves as a member of female employees
committee of the labor union of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd., and director of
the work department of the Party group, the vice chairman of the labor union, director of the female
employees committee, secretary to the Party group and the Party branch of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co.,
Ltd., supervisor of Qingdao BYTQ United Digital Intelligence Co., Ltd., and a supervisor of the eleventh
session of supervisory committee of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.
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Feng Yongmei Chinese, female, aged 46, holds a master’s degree in accounting and is a certified public accountant,
senior accountant and lecturer. Ms. Feng served as an accountant at Suzhou Wuzhong District Housing
Construction and Development Corporation* (& /N1 = & EE#E % FE 42 F]), a teacher at Nanjing
Audit University* (F 25T E%), an auditor at Reanda Certified Public Accountants, a financial controller
at CIFCO Group Co., Ltd.* (REIEEEABBR A F)), a financial manager at Beijing Machinery & Electricity
Institute Machine Tool Co., Ltd.* (b RI&EFL#KE R A7), the head of finance department and chief
accountant at Beiren Group Corporation (3t A% E QA F]). She currently serves as the chief financial
officer at Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., the chief accountant (financial controller) of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Company Limited and a director and the chief accountant of Jingcheng Holding (Hong
Kong) Co., Ltd..
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Period (Continued)

Name Main work experiences
e TETERIE
Shi Fengwen Chinese, male, aged 54, is a chief engineer with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr. Shi was an assistant

engineer, engineer, vice department head and department head of the technical department, deputy chief
engineer, vice director of the technology and quality department, manager representative, assistant to
general manager, director of the technical department, director of the technology and quality department
at Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd.. Currently, he is the chief engineer and director of new product
development department of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., and chief engineer of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Company Limited.
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Li Xianzhe Chinese, male, aged 39, has a bachelor’'s degree in management from China University of Geosciences
(Beijing), and a master’s degree in civil and commercial law from Beijing University of Chemical Technology,
a holder of legal professional qualification, enterprise legal consultant practice qualification and securities
practice qualification. Mr. Li used to be the legal specialist and the deputy director of the audit legal sector
of the Printing Machine Business Department of Beiren Group Corporation (3t AS£E A F]), the clerk,
deputy chief clerk of Beijing Miyun Commission for Discipline Inspection, and the deputy director of the
Case Supervision and Administration Office. He is now the general counsel of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co.,
Ltd. and Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.
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Luan Jie Chinese, male, aged 44, has a bachelor’s degree in law. Mr. Luan was an officer in the legal department
of Beijing Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd.* (At RE#EE D ER 2 F]), a lawyer in Beijing Jingdu Law Firm,
deputy manager in legal and securities department, officer and secretary to the board of directors of Beijing
Jingkelong Co., Ltd.* At R REREE =SB R AR AT, chief legal officer of Golden Harvest (Beijing)
Cinema Management Consultancy Co., Ltd.. He has been the secretary to the Board of the Company since
18 November 2016. Currently, he is the secretary to the Board of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric
Company Limited.
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
Officers (continued)

()

Change in shareholding and remuneration of
current and resigned Directors, Supervisors and
senior management officers during the Reporting

Period (Continued)
Other information
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

1. On 28 May 2024, the Board received a written resignation
report from Mr. Xiong Jianhui, an independent non-executive
Director. Due to personal work reasons, in particular in order
to dedicate more time to his other career commitments, Mr.
Xiong Jianhui tendered his resignation from the position
of an independent non-executive Director of the eleventh
session of the Board of the Company, the chairman of the
audit committee and a member of the remuneration and
monitoring committee of the Board. Mr. Xiong Jianhui would
not take up any positions in the Company after his resignation
became effective.

Since the number of independent non-executive Directors
of the Company would be less than one third of the
members of the Board after the resignation of Mr. Xiong
Jianhui, in accordance with the “Administrative Measures
for Independent Directors of Listed Companies”, the “Rules
Governing the Listing of Stocks on the SSE” and other
laws and regulations and the provisions of the “Articles of
Association”, the resignation would take effect upon the
election of a new independent non-executive Director in a
general meeting of the Company to fill his vacancy. Prior to
the effect of the resignation, Mr. Xiong Jianhui continued to
perform the relevant duties of an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the audit committee and a member
of the remuneration and monitoring committee of the Board.

In order to safeqguard the normal operation of the Board
of the Company, according to the “Company Law of the
PRC"”, the “Administrative Measures for Independent
Directors of Listed Companies” and the relevant provisions
of the “Articles of Association”, the Company convened
the sixth extraordinary meeting of the eleventh session of
the Board on 28 May 2024, at which the “Resolution in
relation to the Change of Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Eleventh Session of the Board of the Company”
was considered and approved. Upon nomination by the
nomination committee of the Board, the Board agreed to
nominate Ms. Chen Junping as a candidate for independent
non-executive Director of the eleventh session of the Board of
the Company. The proposed term of office would commence
from the date of consideration and approval at the 2023
annual general meeting to the 2025 annual general meeting.
Subject to the consideration and approval by the Shareholders
of the appointment of Ms. Chen Junping as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company at the 2023 annual
general meeting, the Company intended to enter into a
service contract with Ms. Chen Junping and Ms. Chen
Junping would be entitled to receive an annual emolument of
RMB80,000, which was determined based on the director’s
remuneration standard of the Company, with reference to
the annual assessment indicators. A resolution was prepared
by the remuneration and monitoring committee of the Board
accordingly. Having been considered and approved by the
Board, the resolution was submitted for approval at the
general meeting. (Enquiry index: www.sse.com.cn Company
announcement: Lin 2024-015)
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Officers (continued)

(i) Change in shareholding and remuneration of
current and resigned Directors, Supervisors and
senior management officers during the Reporting

Period (Continued)

2. On 27 June 2024, the Company convened the 2023 annual
general meeting, at which the “Resolution in relation to
the Change of Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Eleventh Session of the Board of Directors of the Company”
was considered and approved, with Ms. Chen Junping elected
as an independent non-executive Director of the eleventh
session of the Board. Upon the election of Ms. Chen Junping,
the resignation of Mr. Xiong Jianhui became effective. (Enquiry
index: www.sse.com.cn Company announcement: Lin 2024-
024)

On 28 June 2024, the Company convened the eighth
extraordinary meeting of the eleventh session of the Board,
at which the “Resolution in relation to the Change of
the Relevant Members of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration and Monitoring Committee of the Eleventh
Session of the Board of Directors” was considered and
approved. As approved unanimously by all attending
Directors, Ms. Chen Junping was appointed as a member
of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration
and monitoring committee of the eleventh session of the
Board, with a term commencing from 28 June 2024 until
the conclusion of the 2025 annual general meeting. (Enquiry
index: www.sse.com.cn Company announcement: Lin 2024-
025)

3. On 30 December 2024, the Board received resignation reports
from Mr. Wu Yanzhang and Mr. Cheng Lei, each a non-
executive Director. Mr. Wu Yanzhang applied for resignation
as a non-executive Director of the eleventh session of the
Board and a member of the strategy committee of the
Board as he had reached retirement age and completed the
retirement formalities. Mr. Wu Yanzhang would not take up
any positions in the Company after his resignation became
effective. Mr. Cheng Lei applied for resignation as a non-
executive Director of the eleventh session of the Board due
to work arrangements. Mr. Cheng Lei would not take up
any positions in the Company after his resignation became
effective.

In order to safeguard the regulatory compliance of the
Board of the Company, according to the “Company Law of
the PRC”, the “Administrative Measures for Independent
Directors of Listed Companies” and the relevant provisions
of the “Articles of Association”, the Company convened
the tenth extraordinary meeting of the eleventh session of
the Board on 30 December 2024, at which the “Resolution
in relation to the Change of Non-Executive Directors of the
Eleventh Session of the Board of Directors” was considered
and approved. The resignation of Mr. Wu Yanzhang and that
of Mr. Cheng Lei were accepted by the Board, both effective
from 30 December 2024. Upon nomination by the eleventh
session of the nomination committee of the Board of the
Company, the Board agreed to nominate Mr. Wang Kai to
replace Mr. Wu Yanzhang and Mr. Zhao Xihua to replace
Mr. Cheng Lei as candidates for non-executive Directors of
the eleventh session of the Board. The resolution will be
submitted for approval at a general meeting. The proposed
term of office will commence from the date of approval at the
general meeting to the 2025 annual general meeting. (Enquiry
index: www.sse.com.cn Company announcement: Lin 2024-
049)

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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QL Section 5 Corporate Governance IR

IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Officers (continued)

(ii) Positions of current and resigned Directors,
Supervisors and senior management officers

during the Reporting Period

IEDAG )

SERER

NEDRIE

M= - EENSREEAEN

(D) RERBEDABRTIES  BEF
NEREEASNERBER

1.  Positions in Shareholder Entities 1+ ERRENEBER
\ Applicable I Not applicable ViR OTER
Date of Date of expiry
Name Name of shareholder entity Position(s) held at shareholder entities appointment of office
ERARHE RREMER ERREMEENEY 3 f ek ERLILES
Li Junjie Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding  Deputy general manager February 2023 -
Co., Ltd.
o ERRHEEERAREEAT Bl 202352A
Zhou Yongjun Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding  Head of the technology and information June 2021 -
Co,, Ltd. department
FAXE IRRREERREREAAR HREEFHR 2021468
Tian Donggiang Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding ~ Assigned supervisor of the strategic planning ~ April 2020 -
Co,, Ltd. department (office of directors and supervisors)
i R EERAREALT BRREBEEEHLT)NRES 2020541
Wu Yanzhang (resigned)  Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding ~ Head of the investment and development May 2015 December 2024
Co,, Ltd. department
REE(ET) ERRKEEREREEAT REBRNHR 2015%5A 20245127
Cheng Lei (resigned) Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding ~ Head of the organization (human resources) July 2022 December 2024
Co., Ltd. department
ik (BEfE) ERRHEEERAREEAT ERBANERD) BR 202257A 20245128
Description of Positions in  Not applicable
Shareholder Entities TER
ERR ER BB R
2. Position(s) in Other Entities 2. EHMBVEBRBER
\ Applicable [ Not applicable ViER OTER
Position(s) held Date of Date of expiry
Name Name(s) of other entities at other entities appointment of office
ERASHA HfpE AR EHMENEENES EHeRAE ERLILEE
Zhou Yongjun Beijing Beiyi Machine Tool Co., Ltd. Director February 2023 -
[EXE R RERAREELA B2 202352
Beijing Jingcheng Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. Director April 2021 -
ERFHETRAAREERR B2 2021545
Beijing Mechanical and Electrical Institute Co., Ltd. Chairman July 2023
FRTHERRRARRALA EZR 2023%7A
Man Huiyong Beijing Huade Hydraulic Industry Group Co., Director May 2022 -
Ltd.
meE IRERREI X S BERAEAR g% 2022%5R
Japan Jingcheng Industry Co., Ltd. Director October 2021 -
RATENRA g1 % 2021610
Beijing Peitian Technology Co., Ltd. Chief financial officer, Director June 2023 -
EREXREERAT BBRE 5% 2023564
AVIC Maite Powder Metallurgy Technology ~ Supervisor December 2021 -
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.
MRESDANR U R) BRAF g% 202151248
Beijing Hongda Rixin Motor Co., Ltd. Supervisor December 2021 -
HREEEHERERAR g% 20215128
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I Scction 5 Corporate Governance
FhE RQENRE fﬁ.

IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management - E% - EEMNSREEAEWN

Officers (continued) IEDAC)

(i) Positions of current and resigned Directors, (o) RERBEHRBTES - E=S
Supervisors and senior management officers MEREEASNERBER @)
during the Reporting Period (Continued)

2. Position(s) in Other Entities (Continued) 2y EHMENEBRER (@)
Position(s) held Date of Date of expiry
Name Name(s) of other entities at other entities appointment of office
ERABHS EftEuER EHMENEENES EHBHAE ERALRH
Li Chunzhi Beijing Jingcheng Dechuang Fund Chairman of supervisory committee August 2018 -
Management Co., Ltd.
TEN R ERRSERER AR EZEIR 2018584
Beijing Huateng Jingyan Technology Co., Ltd. Director November 2022 -
HRERRIREARAT g% 20225117
Beijing Zhitong Precision Transmission Director March 2022 -
Technology Co., Ltd
IRERREEBNREREELR % 2022535
Beijing Jingcheng Zhitong Robot Technology Supervisory March 2023 -
Co., Ltd.
ERRAEBEEARRERAR E% 2023534
Beijing Peitian Technology Co., Ltd. Director April 2023 -
HRERRMERAE g% 203548
Beijing Humanoid Innovation Center Co., Ltd.Deputy general manager June 2017 -
ERATBE AR OERAR Bliagn 2017564
Chen Junping School of Accounting of Central University of Professor and master's degree tutor April 2013 -
Finance and Economics
BT PREMEREEEH S YR BTEEH 2013545
Zhao Xuguang North China Electric Power University Member and deputy dean of Party September 2018 -

Committee of the School of Humanities
and Social Sciences

)iy ENENRE AXEHENEEREZZE Bk 2018594
Liu Jingtai School of Artificial Intelligence of Nankai ~ Director October 2007 -

University and the Institute of Robotics
and Information Automation of Nankai

University
Elie @?X%AI@S&%KM%&AE@%EE@ﬂtﬁﬁ% =S 2007410
Luan Dalong Aerospace Hi-Tech Holding Group Co., Ltd.  Independent director April 2017 -
ENS RAREEREERHERAA Bugs 2017%4A
DHC Software Co Ltd. Independent director March 2016 -
REQMHRHAT BUE% 2016538
Hunan Valin Co., Ltd. Independent director September 2019 -
BEEZRNERAT Bugs 2019%9A
Suzhou Ruikea Connection System Co., Ltd. Independent director March 2017 -
FMRmEERZARARAT BuES 2017434
Xiong Jianhui (resigned) ~ WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP Convener April 2013 -
R L KEEHISHA (FHLEAY) aBA 2013544
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® v ¢
" o aray =]
R\ e BRE AFRE
IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management - E%E - EENSHEEAEY

Officers (continued) 1B @)

(i) Positions of current and resigned Directors, (Z) BERBRTHARTES - BES
Supervisors and senior management officers MEREEASNERBER @)
during the Reporting Period (Continued)

2. Position(s) in Other Entities (Continued) 2y EHMENEBRER (@)
Position(s) held Date of Date of expiry
Name Name(s) of other entities at other entities appointment of office
ERABHS HftE AR ERMENRENES EHBHAE ERALRH
Wu Yanzhang (resigned) ~ Beijing Hitachi Energy High Voltage Switchgear  Director April 2016 Retired
Co,, Ltd.
REE(ED) ERBREEREREERAR B3 2016545 REE
Beijing ABB High Voltage Switch Gear Co., Ltd.  Director May 2019
ERABBREARAR g% 2019554
Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. Director February 2023
FEREIERRAA g% 203528
Beiren Intelligent Equipment Technology Co., Ltd.  Director May 2022
EABREER AR AR g% 2022658
Beijing Beikai Electric Co., Ltd. Director November 2021
ERERERRNER AT g% 20215117
Beijing Jingcheng Zhitong Robot Technology Co.,  Supervisor February 2021
Ltd.
ERREEREEANRERAR ot 201528
Japan Jingcheng Industry Co., Ltd. Director May 2019
RUIERAEH E% 2019558
AVIC Maite Additive Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Director December 2021
PREBREN B QLR BRAT % 20215124
Beijing Peitian Technology Co., Ltd. Chairman of supervisory committee April 2023
ERRRRMER LA EEEIR 2023548
Cheng Lei (resigned) Beijing Jingcheng International Financial Leasing  Director May 2022 December 2024
Co,, Ltd.
ik (BHE) ERRAERREREARAA g% 2022%5R 20245121
Beijing Jingcheng Zhidi Co., Ltd. Chairman October 2024 -
ERRAERERA B2k 2024510
Beijing Jianji Real Estate Co., Ltd. Chairman November 2024 -
HRRERHEARAA B2k 0245117

Description of Positions Not applicable
in Other Entities
EEMECARER  TER
Hate
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FHE NENAE

IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Officers (continued)

(iii) Remunerations of Directors, Supervisors and

senior management officers
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

Decision making process of remuneration of Directors,
Supervisors and senior management

Bf EE SREEABRMOARER

Whether the Director recused himself/herself from the
discussion of his/her own remuneration at Board
meetin

9
EXGEESRAATHEERFZTER

The specific circumstances under which the
Remuneration and Monitoring Committee or
independent Director’s specialized meeting has
issued recommendations on matters regarding the
remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and senior
management;

FHEERLEE SR BV EEEMSRENES &

- EREBEAERMEEERERNEEER

Basis for determination of remuneration of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management

B EF - SREBRAERIRETEKE

Actual payment for the remuneration of Directors,
Supervisors and senior management officers

B EENSMERAERNNERZNER

Total actual remuneration of all Directors, Supervisors

and senior management officers at the end of the
Reporting Period

WEMREBER  EENSREEABERESH
HmM AT

| Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

M-E5 - ESASREEAEN
18 (#)
(Z) B 22 - 5REEASEH
&R
ViER OTER

Resolution on the remuneration of Directors and senior management
officers is prepared by the remuneration and monitoring committee
of the Board. The remuneration of senior management officers is to
be considered and approved by the Board while the remuneration
of Directors and Supervisors are to be considered and approved
by the Board and the Supervisory Committee, respectively, and
reported to the general meeting for consideration and approval.

NAEF SRERBASRMHEFSHFMEERZESHRTES
EoSAEEABNGRMEERERAIE  EFNORMBES
SESBBMFEREANSIE  EFENBHAEFIEZRBW
AR ARG -

Yes

=
R

The Remuneration and Monitoring Committee or independent
Directors had expressed their affirmative opinion.

FMEEZEE SR BUERHRRTRAENER

The remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and senior management
officers is determined in accordance with the remuneration
standard of Directors, Supervisors and senior management officers
formulated by the Company, as well as the annual assessment
indicators.

BRBRARGIEHES BFERENEBASHEREE HEFES
ZEE WTEE  BERSREEAERH -

Please refer to the above table headed “Change in shareholding and
remuneration of current and resigned Directors, Supervisors and
senior management officers during the Reporting Period

REMTRERBEPABRTIES  EFNSREBEASRFKRES R
WEIER (R)] -

RMB4.5483 million

AR#E454 838 7T
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management - E%E - EENSHEEAEY

Officers (continued) 155 (@)
(iv) Changes of Directors, Supervisors and senior (O) XAES - ES - SREEAE
management BEER
\ Applicable [ Not applicable ViER OTER
Name Position Changes Reason
HE EENRB BEER 2HRE
Wu Yanzhang Non-executive Director Resignation Retirement
REE FEMITES BiE(E RIR
Cheng Lei Non-executive Director Resignation Adjustment of work
arrangements
PR FEMITES B TEEH
Xiong Jianhui Independent non-executive  Resignation Personal work reasons
Director
RRSEIE BUIEITES BE(E AATIERE
Chen Junping Independent non-executive  Election Appointment
Director
BR¥5F BIYFNTES EA (53
(v) Description of penalties imposed by securities () F=ESRAESHIBEEIING
regulatory bodies in the past three years SR a4 B
] Applicable v Not applicable i@l N TEm
(vi) Others (R) Hi
] Applicable v Not applicable i@l N TEm
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SHE AEaE

V. Relevant information of the Meetings of F - REPFABHNESSHEBEE

Board held during the Reporting Period o
Session Date of Convening Meeting Resolution
EEER BHEAH RS

Third Meeting of the Eleventh 28 March 2024 1. The "Full Text and Abstract of the 2023 Annual Report and the H Shares Results Announcement of the Company”
Session of the Board were considered and approved;

The "2023 Annual Work Report of the Board of the Company” was considered and approved;

The "2023 Audited Financial Report of the Company” was considered and approved;

The "2023 Internal Control Assessment Report of the Company” was considered and approved;

The "2023 Audit Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting of the Company” was considered and

approved,

The "2023 Social Responsibility Report of the Company” was considered and approved;

The “Resolution on the “Corporate Governance Report” (Draft) of the Company Required to be Disclosed for

H Shares and Authorisation to the Secretary to the Board to be Responsible for Subsequent Review of and

Amendment to the “Corporate Governance Report”"” was considered and approved;

8. The "Resolution on the 2023 “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” (Draft) of the Company, and
Authorisation to the Secretary to the Board to be Responsible for Subsequent Review of and Amendment to the
2023 "Environmental, Social and Governance Report”" was considered and approved;

9. The "Resolution on the Work Report of the General Manager” was considered and approved;

10. The "Report of the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company for the Year of 2023" was considered and
approved,

11. The “Resolution on the Performance of the Audit Committee of the Board for the Year of 2023" was considered
and approved;

12. The "Resolution in relation to the Payment for the Audit Fee of the Financial Reports for the Year of 2023 to
ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)” was considered and approved;

13. The "Resolution in relation to the Payment for the Audit Fee for the Year of 2023 to Da Hua Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership)” was considered and approved;

14. The "Resolution in relation to the Report of the Audit Committee on the Performance of Supervisory Duties
by in relation to ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), Da Hua Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership)” was considered and approved;

15. The “Resolution in relation to the Report on the Assessment of the Company on the Duties Performance by
Resolution in relation to ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), Da Hua Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)” was considered and approved;

16. The "2024 Audit Plan of the Company" was considered and approved;

17. The "2024 Assessment Plan of the Company's Internal Control” was considered and approved;

18. The "Resolution in relation to the 2023 Internal Audit Report on the Deposit and Use of Raised Funds of the
Company” was considered and approved;

19. The "Resolution in relation to the Special Report on the Deposit and Use of Raised Funds of the Company in 2023"
was considered and approved;

20. The "Proposal of the Company Not to Distribute Profit for the Year of 2023" was considered and approved;

1 FERB(RFR0BEEERE %Y&%E HREEDNE)

2. BERB(ATROBEEESETIFRS)

3. BRBB(LTR03FELEHNIBRE)

4 BRBB(AF023FENEDEHTERS) :

5

6

7

U W

~ o

ET-EEZLE-NEH  2024F3A28H

< BEBB(QA0FEENERE ALBEHIERE)

- BEAR(RANBFELEELRE)

. %éﬁﬂ 7Hﬁmiﬁﬁa@<¢%a/u ES(ER) TREEFESNE AR EERBR<CETARS>0E

8" %uﬁﬁiﬁ< 7E27023fﬁ><%i’*\i§i,%&%£>‘éi&% >(ER)  URHESSHEZ A EREERBER023F4E R

E/u > B

9 %D&Lﬂ@@ﬁ&iﬂw&im £%)

10 BFEB(LFABFEB LN TESLRRE)

M BERB(EECEHEREQLIBEERRENNZR)

12 BZ@B (BRI MEHAEB (BHERAY)20235E Eﬁii&iﬁﬁﬁﬁm %)

13- BEBB (NI NAZSHMSHN BHRERAE)2023FE %ﬁgﬁsﬁ

14 BZBB(BRENR S HEXTNGHMSHN (BHLEAY) KES ﬁm%f%ﬁﬁ(mkaLS% TEE
BEERARENER)

15@2%321@;@% NAHEKPANGHAELN(EREEBAY)  AECHAEEM (BREBLY) BRERTHH
SRS

16 B AB(RRAN0AFESTE)

17 BHRB(DA0UEENSIZHERE)

18 ZZ@B(ENAR0BEEEEESHFNEFREANTIBRENSER) -

19 FHAB(ENDA023FELEEETHEFABINTERENZR)

20 FBB(RRR0BEETETFIEIENER)
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ERHE QEDAE

V. Relevant information of the Board of F WREHABHENESSHBIE
Directors held during the Reporting Period AC )

(Continued)

Session

BEER

Date of Convening Meetlng Resolution

BHAH

&
=

Fourth Meeting of the Eleventh 29 April 2024
Session of the Board

ET-EEFLENNEE

Sixth Extraordinary Meeting
of the Eleventh Session of

the Board

FHHEF

e~
g4

&

=

FIREGES

202454 /1298
28 May 2024

2024%F5A28H

30"

. The "Resolution on Provision for Impairment of the Company for the Year of 2023" was considered and approved;
. The "2024 Financing Guarantee Plan of the Company” was considered and approved;
. The "Resolution in relation to the Completion of the Annual Performance Guarantee by Qingdao BYTQ United

Digital Intelligence Co., Ltd. for 2023" was considered and approved;
The “Resolution in relation to the Change of the Company’s Accounting Policy” was considered and approved;

. The "2024 Business Plan of the Company” was considered and approved;

The "2024 Research and Development Plan of the Company” was considered and approved;

. The "Remuneration and Performance Assessment Results of the Senior Management Members of the Company for

the Year of 2023" were considered and approved;

The “"Resolution in relation to the “Performance Assessment Contract for Senior Management Members” of the
Company for the Year of 2024, and the Authorisation to the Chairman of the Board to Enter into Contracts with
the Senior Management Members” was considered and approved;

. The "Resolution to be Submitted to the 2023 Annual General Meeting for Approving the Authorisation to the Board

to Issue New H Shares Not Exceeding 20% of the Total Issued H Shares” was considered and approved;
The “Resolution in Relation to the Taking Out of the Company in the Liability Insurance of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management Members for the Year of 2024" was considered and approved.

C BERB(RARBEENEHNEEENER)

C BERB(RTN0UEEREERHE)

. %éeﬂ@ﬁ%%ibﬁii;ﬂéﬁ%% RAF02FEEERATHNER)
- BZRBERDAIEHIER
= FEEGION 72024%2%«
- EBRARB(RRAN0AFEWETE)

- BERB(LABFERLEEASHHEE
CBEAB(RIOUE<EREEABBWENEESL
: %%ﬁﬂ%;ﬁmzozﬁr BRBFASIHAERESSSEMRBEETHRR A LR EN20% T THIF RN

W?E’]u?ﬁz?ﬁ> ;

2aE)

HEGLD) -
> SRR ERAERERARSENAANAE)

u?)z?R ! IH 1uxuﬁ%}EX2023¢rHX§ﬁ¢j§/\>
38 (B LA RIR0MEEEEERSREEABECRRNEE) -

The "2024 First Quarterly Report of the Company” was considered and approved.

EZRB(ARR0UFE—TERE) -

1.
2.

3.

U W —

(o))

The “Resolution in relation to the Amendments to the Articles of Association” was considered and approved;

The “Resolution in relation to the Amendments to the Relevant Systems of the Company” was considered and
approved,

The “Resolution in relation to the Change of Independent Non-executive Director of the Eleventh Session of the
Board of the Company” was considered and approved;

The “Resolution in relation to the Remuneration of and the Entering into of the Written Contract with the
Independent Non-executive Director of the Eleventh Session of the Board of the Company” was considered and
approved;

The “Resolution in relation to the Selection and Appointment of Auditor for the Financial Statements Audit and the
Internal Control Audit for 2024" was considered and approved, and shall be submitted to the 2023 annual general
meeting of the Company for the authorisation of the Board to enter into a letter of appointment and determine its
remuneration;

The “Resolution in relation to the Prior Investment in Shanghai Sunwise by a Wholly-owned Subsidiary of the
Controlling Shareholder” was considered and approved;

The “Resolution in relation to the Convening Time of the 2023 Annual General Meeting of the Company” was
considered and approved.

- BRBR(ENE uT< AERSHER)

- EZEBENETAREEEN %>>

. %éﬁiﬁ@ﬁﬁ@ﬁ AET-EESLREUFNTEENEER)

© EZEB(RAE— F§$A§%¢3F$ﬂﬁ§$#ﬁw&.ﬁi EAHE’J %)

© BZRBBRNEE04FENBERRE LAPEHBHBERRENSD)  UREFEREALHRES

SREEHEZRERINRAEAMENER

- B RA(BRERRREETRRATRE DERENZR)

7 EZBB(ARROBEFERRASARERNZR) -
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I Scction 5 Corporate Governance
SHE AEaE

V. Relevant information of the Board of T HEHANEZHENZEESEEE
Directors held during the Reporting Period I ()
(Continued)

Session Date of Convening Meeting Resolution

SEER AR HH eERE

Seventh Extraordinary Meeting 31 May 2024 The "Resolution on the Convening Time of the Company's First Extraordinary General Meeting of 2024" was considered
of the Eleventh Session of the and approved.
Board

FT-EEFEELRER  204F5A31H FREB(ARRATUEE - NERRRAEERRENER) -
&t
3

Eighth Extraordinary Meeting of 28 June 2024 1. The "Resolution in relation to the Change of the Relevant Members of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
the Eleventh Session of the and Monitoring Committee of the Eleventh Session of the Board of Directors” was considered and approved;
Board 2. The "Resolution in Relation to Connected Transactions Related to the Acquisition of Precision Numerical Control

Machine Tools of BYJC by Tianhai Industry” was considered and approved.
%i;@%%@%/\mﬁﬁ% 20246 F28H 1 ERRR(EREAE+ —EEFeRI RS LFMEERR S QRN ENER)

= 2 BRRBBANREIERELBRENTEERAEIRR R INER) «
Fifth Meeting of the Eleventh 16 August 2024 1. The resolution in relation to the “Full Text and Abstract of the 2024 A Shares Interim Report and the H Shares
Session of the Board Results Announcement of the Company” was considered and approved;
2. The “Resolution on the Provision for Impairment of the Company in the First Half of 2024" was considered and
approved,

3. The "Resolution in relation to the Special Report on the Deposit and Use of Raised Funds in the First Half of 2024"
was considered and approved;

4. The "Resolution in relation to the Internal Audit Report on the Deposit and Use of Raised Funds of the Company in
the First Half of 2024" was considered and approved;

5. The “Resolution in relation to the Application made to Tianjin Branch of Construction Bank for Bank Acceptance
Notes and a Secured Working Capital Loan by Tianjin Tianhai, a subsidiary of the Company” was considered and
approved;

6. The "Resolution in relation to the Application made to Tianjin Branch of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank for
Bank Acceptance Notes and a Secured Working Capital Loan by Tianjin Tianhai, a subsidiary of the Company” was
considered and approved,

7. The “Resolution in relation to the Related Party Transactions between the Subsidiaries of the Company and the
Subsidiaries of the Controlling Shareholder of the Company” was considered and approved;

8. The "Resolution in relation to the Entering into of the Product Sale and Purchase Framework Agreement and
Related Party Transactions between Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Sunwise New Energy System
Co., Ltd." was considered and approved.

© BRRB(BRRFR0UFAREFRENRAER  HREELRE) -

- BRRBE(RRR024FPHEHEREEENER)

- BEBB(ERN0UFEFEES AL FHARRBANTERENER) |

ERBB(ARRIOUFFFEREESTNERAERNBEARENZE)

BFARB(ERAR T ERZNENERFAMBRRTRENTRERTALERRRDEERNER) -

%;%ﬁ%@(%ﬁﬁ@ﬂ?%@ﬂ%ﬁ%L‘H&#?‘iiﬁfﬂiﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬁ%}i’ﬁﬁ$?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ7¥%%%&?ﬁ§ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%’ﬂé§

=) ;

- BaRBERNARFRRERAERERIE L RN H0ER)

8" %iﬁi@@(%ﬁﬁ@ib?%I%ﬁﬁiﬂﬁ?éﬁib%%%ﬁﬁ%iﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁiﬂET%%ETED%E%ME%E%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ?&%E’JE%
=)o

Sixth Meeting of the Eleventh 30 October 2024 1. The "2024 Third Quarterly Report of the Company” was considered and approved;

Session of the Board 2. The “Resolution in relation to the Proposed Amendments to the ‘Articles of Association'” was considered and
approved,
3. The “Resolution in relation to the 2024 Action Plan of ‘Improving Quality, Increasing Efficiency and Enhancing
Returns' of the Company” was considered and approved.

ET-EEZQERNEF 2024587168

oYUl B W —

~

FT-EEFEEONEE  204F10A308 1 FRBB(RFAROUFE=FERE)
2 FARB(ANEZEI<RAEENER)
3. FRAB(ERAR0245EREENERRITHAIENZE)
Ninth Extraordinary Meeting 6 December 2024 1. The “Resolution in relation to the Related Systems of the Company” was considered and approved,
of the Eleventh Session of 2. The "Resolution in relation to the Entering into of the Product Sale and Purchase Framework Agreement and
the Board Related Party Transactions between Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Sunwise Energy System Co.,

Ltd."” was considered and approved.

FT-EEZEFNNEE  2024%F12768 1 EBZRR(BRNETLAEENENZR)
&% 2 EBRBB(ERN L RREIEERARE ERENERAAERAABITEREHERAREHER ING

) e
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ERHE QEDAE

V. Relevant information of the Board of T HEHANEZHENZEESEEE
i

Directors held during the Reporting Period

(Continued)

Session Date of Convening Mee

EEER ARAM

@
=8

(&)

ting Resolution

Tenth Extraordinary Meeting of 30 December 2024

the Eleventh Session of the
Board

E+—EEFLETRRE  2024F12A30H
o2t

&
EE

VI. Performance of Duties by Directors

1.

3
4‘
5.

The "Resolution in relation to Early Termination of the Connected Transaction Agreements related to Property
Leasing and Property Services in the Yichuang Park” was considered and approved;

The “Resolution in relation to an Increase in Registered Capital from Capital Reserve of Beijing Tianhai Hydrogen
Energy Equipment Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company” was
considered and approved,

The “Resolution in relation to an Increase in the Capital of Beijing Tianhai Hydrogen Energy Equipment Co., Ltd.
with the Budget Funds for State-owned Capital Operation by the Company” was considered and approved,

The “Resolution in relation to the Change of Non-executive Directors of the Eleventh Session of the Board of
Directors” was considered and approved,

The “Resolution in relation to the Remuneration of Non-executive Directors of the Eleventh Session of the Board of
Directors of the Company and the Entering into of a Written Contract” was considered and approved.

- EZRBENRARETAEREERS RYERBNBHR I HENZE)
. %g%i%?@@ﬁﬁé@ﬁl%@ﬂiﬁ%I%ﬁﬁiﬂﬁ?'l‘%’&ﬂiﬁ%ﬁﬁ%é%ﬁﬁl‘ﬂ’&ﬂiﬁl’@%@ﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁﬂ@%
W

%%iﬁiﬁ@ﬁﬁé@ﬁluﬁé$%§%fﬁ§§i§éﬁitﬁ%ﬁﬁ%é%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%% ;
EARB(ANEAE T EESSHITESNER) -
FRRB(RAE T EEFEHOESHN I LERARNER) -

N EEERTHRERR

(i) Attendance of Directors at the Board meetings (—) EEZMEEENRRAEHIE
and the general meetings m
Attendance
at general
meetings
Attendance at Board meetings SMKR
SMEZEHR RERR
Absence Number of
Required Number of  Attendance by from two attendance
Independent attendance  attendanceat communication Attendance Number of consecutive at general
ornot during the year in person equipment by proxy absence  meetings or not meetings
AEESN HERA REEERR BERR
Name of Director(s) i3] RABUES  EIERM  MALERY SMRE ERHEAY RERE  ARESNEE REWRE
Li Junje £ No 9 9 8 0 0 No 2
& &
Zhang Jiheng FiEE No 9 9 8 0 0 No 2
& &
Zhou Yongjun BxE No 9 9 8 0 0 No 2
& &
Man Huiyong e No 9 9 8 0 0 No 2
& &
Li Chunzhi 5 No 9 9 8 0 0 No 2
& &
Chen Junping BT Yes 5 5 5 0 0 No 0
& &
Zhao Xuguang s Yes 9 9 8 0 0 No 2
] b
= =]
Liu Jingtai e Yes 9 9 8 0 0 No 1
& &
Luzn Dalong FoN Yes 9 9 8 0 0 No 2
] T
E =]
Xiong Jianhui (resigned) FRE (BT) Yes 4 4 3 0 0 No 2
] b
E =]
WuYanzhang (resigned) ~ RAEE () No 9 9 8 0 0 No 2
iy T~
=} =}
Cheng Lei (resigned) iz (BH) No 9 9 8 0 0 No 2
Py T~
A
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EheEs RRVAE
VI. Performance of Duties by Directors (continued)

(i) Attendance of Directors at the Board meetings

and the general meetings (Continued)

Description of absence from two consecutive Board meetings
in person

[0 Applicable v Not applicable

Number of Board meetings during the year
FREBRESFSEZ R

Of which: number of meetings convened on-site

Hep : BIS@EZRH

Number of meetings convened by communication equipment
EEIDA WA k=Y -

Number of meetings both on-site and by communication equipment
RSB EREZRE

(ii) Objection of Directors to the Relevant Matters of

the Compan

[J Applicable v Not applicable

Others
1 Applicable v Not applicable

(iii)

e

EERETRER @

(— )E%&bﬂ%%éiﬂﬂﬁikéﬂﬁﬁ
W (48
Eﬂﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ&ﬁi$§%$%ﬁ%

DA N TEm

9
1
8
0
(D) EEYATNEHSARL RS
B3R
O@EA N FEA
(=) Eftp

O@EA N ~EA

VIl. Special Committees under the Board of + - EEETREMAEZEESHENR
Directors
\ Applicable  CINot applicable ViR OTER
(i) Members of Special Committees under the Board (—) EEETREMZEEHRERR
of Directors
Category of Special Committee Name of Members
EMZEEEEH MEHA
Audit Committee Chen Junping, Zhao Xuguang, Man Huiyong
HEiTLREE BRIGF - BB - W E
Nomination Committee Zhao Xuguang, Luan Dalong, Zhang Jiheng
RELZE® HHIEY - BOKEE - RAEE
Remuneration and Monitoring Committee Liu Jlngtal Chen Junping, Li Junjie
FHEEREES 255 RIGF - FER
Strategy Committee L| Junjie, Zhang J|heng Zhou Yongjun, Liu Jingtai
HREZEE FEAR - REE - BKE - BIRFE
(ii) During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee () HEHANETZEESEEH12E
convened 12 meetings E
Important Other
opinionsand  performance
Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties
BEZER HibET
BHAH RS ik RERR
9 January 2024 1. The audit work in the pre-audit stage of the internal control audit for 2023 was considered Considered and -
2. The audit work in the pre-audit stage of the financial report for 2023 was considered approved
202451798 1 EENRFEARERERRES IERR il
2 BRBFEIBREREERESTFER
14 March 2024 1. The Resolution on the Amendments to the “Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors” was Considered and -
considered approved
2. The Resolution on the Performance of the Audit Committee of the Board for the Year of 2023 was considered
2024537148 1. EEENGI(EFEEHRRETHRAR) MR S

2. BEENESERIRRABERERENNER
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VIl. Special Committees under the Board of +t EEXETREMZESEN @
Directors (continued)

(i) During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee () BREHABTHZESEHI2RE
convened 12 meetings (Continued) = ()

Important Other
opinionsand  performance

Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties
BEER HibET
BHEH BHERE GilfE] BERR
28 March 2024 1. The Full Text and Abstract of the 2023 Annual Report and the H Shares Results Announcement of the Company were Considered and -
considered approved

2. The 2023 Audited Financial Report of the Company was considered

3. The 2023 Internal Control Assessment Report of the Company was considered

4. The 2023 Audit Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting of the Company was considered

5. The 2023 Social Responsibility Report of the Company was considered

6. The Resolution on the "Corporate Governance Report” (Draft) of the Company Required to be Disclosed for H Shares and

Authorisation to the Secretary to the Board to be Responsible for Subsequent Review of and Amendment to the “Corporate
Governance Report” was considered
7. The Resolution on the 2023 “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” (Draft) of the Company, and Authorisation to the
Secretary to the Board to be Responsible for Subsequent Review of and Amendment to the 2023 “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” was considered
8. The Resolution on the Performance of the Audit Committee of the Board for the Year of 2023 was considered
9. The Resolution in relation to the Payment for the Audit Fee of the Financial Reports for the Year of 2023 to ShineWing Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) was considered
10. The Resolution in relation to the Payment for the Audit Fee for the Year of 2023 to Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special
General Partnership) was considered
11, The Resolution in relation to the Report of the Audit Committee on the Performance of Supervisory Duties by in relation to
ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) was considered
12. The Resolution in relation to the Report on the Assessment of the Company on the Duties Performance by Resolution in relation
to ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) was considered
13, The 2024 Audit Plan of the Company was considered
14.  The 2024 Assessment Plan of the Company's Internal Control was considered
15. The Resolution in relation to the 2023 Internal Audit Report on the Deposit and Use of Raised Funds of the Company was
considered
2024534288 1 BEAAOBEFERSEXRAR HREAR e
2 EELATOBERAEHNYBRE
3+ BEATNBFEABELEERS
4. BELANBFERBREABENES RS
5 ERATNBEERE 1£$&¢
6. ERATHREREO(CETRRE) (BE)  UREEZENESALEEY % (PEEREE)NER
7 %ui E03E (g iﬂ‘&%ﬁiﬁi (BR) URKEEFENELERARNERBF(HE REREAREN

Ebh}

Bk
>N}

8" %ﬁé?“ﬁ EEANEEEBERNER

9. ERINEKPASHNEBA (FRL ALY WBEEEHERNGE

100 BEXAAZCHAEEN (BHRLERAE) WRFEEIBANER

1 ﬁ;ﬁ@gﬁ%?%ﬁéaﬁw SKPMEHRERA(FRLBAY)  AZSHRERA(FRLBAY BIEEREER
IS RER

2+ BEBRDAHEATMEHMERA (WRERSR) - AREHDEHH (KATRLR) RRERIEASHAR

3 BELAUEEETENGER

4 %émzozm AEEHTER SR

5. EBEENABEEEEE AL HEFABRIANSEIRENEER
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VIl. Special Committees under the Board of +t EEXETREMZESEN @
Directors (continued)

(i) During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee () BREHABTHZESEHI2RE
convened 12 meetings (Continued) = ()

Important Other
opinionsand  performance

Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties
BERER AfbEeT
BHAH EERA il RERBR

16. The Resolution in relation to the Special Report on the Deposit and Use of Raised Funds of the Company in 2023 was considered

17. The Proposal of the Company Not to Distribute Profit for the Year of 2023 was considered

18. The Resolution on Provision for Impairment of the Company for the Year of 2023 was considered

19, The 2024 Financing Guarantee Plan of the Company was considered

20. The Resolution in relation to the Completion of the Annual Performance Guarantee by Qingdao BYTQ United Digital Intelligence
Co., Ltd. for 2023 was considered

21. The Resolution in relation to the Change of the Company's Accounting Policy was considered

22. The 2024 Business Plan of the Company was considered

23. The 2024 Research and Development Plan of the Company was considered

24. The Resolution to be Submitted to the 2023 Annual General Meeting for Approving the Authorisation to the Board to Issue New
H Shares Not Exceeding 20% of the Total Issued H Shares was considered

16 ERRRAR0BFEEEELFHERAEANZERENZE

17+ EFRANBEETEHEARGER

18" f“?zozaﬁ&‘ﬁhmﬁﬁ %E@m

20 %mﬁwa %im% a%zﬂsﬁéﬂaé ONTVIVEESER S e R £3

21 u% n“‘ﬂlﬁ """ Siiﬁ’]é%

2 BRLAA0UEEES

ER %é F20245F ﬁﬂé’é?r%\l

2 BERRATBFERRBFASH EREESEENBEC ETHIBAEEM0% BITHRATRMER

29 April 2024 The 2024 First Quarterly Report of the Company was considered Considered and -
approved
202454 A29H EERN R0 UEE-FERENER ksl
14 May 2024 The Resolution in relation to the Selection and Appointment of Auditor for the Financial Statements Audit and the Internal Control -~ Considered and -
Audit for 2024 was considered approved
2024555148 EEENERUFEIBRRES RADEHES AR B RENZR BB
28 May 2024 The Resolution in relation to the Prior Investment in Shanghai Sunwise by a Wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Controlling Shareholder ~ Considered and -
was considered approved
2024%5828H ERUNERRRZEFARANTRE LERENER ksl
28 June 2024 The Resolution in relation to the Change of the Relevant Members of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration and Monitoring ~ Considered and -
Committee of the Eleventh Session of the Board of Directors was considered approved
2024565284 BRI EAET - EEReEH R O RFHEENZ A CHANENER BB
16 August 2024 1. The resolution in relation to the Full Text and Abstract of the 2024 A Shares Interim Report and the H Shares Results Considered and -
Announcement of the Company was considered approved

2. The Resolution on the Provision for Impairment of the Company in the First Half of 2024 was considered

3. The Resolution in relation to the Special Report on the Deposit and Use of Raised Funds in the First Half of 2024 was considered

4. The Resolution in relation to the Internal Audit Report on the Deposit and Use of Raised Funds of the Company in the First Half
of 2024 was considered

5. The Resolution in relation to the Related Party Transactions between the Subsidiaries of the Company and the Subsidiaries of
the Controlling Shareholder of the Company was considered

6. The Resolution in relation to the Entering into of the Product Sale and Purchase Framework Agreement and Related Party

Transactions between Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Sunwise New Energy System Co., Ltd. was considered

ERANDE0UFARTFRENRAE  HREAL SRR k=il

EAR04F T H R AR ENAR

BRI R AR ERNER AR UEFFEREE S THARABRNEERENER

BRI R 0L FREES AL FHARRERANEH IS H2E

e LR BN NS NG o £

BRI RRE IR BRARA LERENRRZARARAFIERBHER A REBB HNZR

20248 716A

oUW —
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VIl. Special Committees under the Board of t ZEEETREMZESBE N @
Directors (continued)
(i) During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee () BREHABTHZESEHI2RE
convened 12 meetings (Continued) = ()

Important Other
opinionsand  performance

Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties
BEZER EftEeT
EHEH EERA ik BERR
26 September 2024 1. The audit work plan for the 2024 financial report was considered Considered and -
2. The audit work plan for the 2024 internal control audit report was considered approved
3. The examination report in relation to the use of raised funds in the first half of 2024 was considered
2024594268 1 ERNUFENBREET TR G
2 BRIAFEHBRENBEHET I
3 WAFHHFREASRASEIRERE
30 October 2024 The Resolution in relation to the 2024 Third Quarterly Report of the Company was considered Considered and -
The Resolution in relation to the 2024 Action Plan of “Improving Quality, Increasing Efficiency and Enhancing Returns” of the approved
Company was considered
20245105308 EEINATQUAFE=ZERS)NER G
EEEN0UFE[REINERR THHRNER
6 December 2024 The Resolution in relation to the Entering into of the Product Sale and Purchase Framework Agreement and Related Party Transactions Considered and -
between Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. and Shangha\ SunW|se New Energy System Co., Ltd. was conswdered approved
2024512 A6A RN RREIRARA jﬁﬁi@%i*ﬁﬁu RAREIERES %‘\ﬂ“ﬁﬁ ERHMER 2R
30 December 2024 The Resolution in relation to Early Termination of the Connected Transaction Agreements related to Property Leasing and Property Considered and -
Services in the Yichuang Park was considered approved
2024% 125308 EEENRAR M ER R RAE RN ERBORE S IRENEE EoEh
(iii) During the Reporting Period, the Nomination (2) BREHARBZESEMIRE
Committee held 3 meetings =

Important Other
opinionsand  performance

Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties
BEER Rfbm1T
BHEH EERA ngs BERER
28 March 2024 1. The work of the Committee in 2023 was considered Considered and -
2. The current structure of the Board was considered approved
3. The independence of the independent non-executive Directors was considered
4. The procedure for nomination of Directors and their terms of office were considered
5. The diversity policy was considered
2024F3F28H 1 BE0BFEEST(EER EE sl
2 BAESCRARE
3 BEIVBUETESNELMN
4 BIREEBER AT
5 BESTLIHA
28 May 2024 1. The Resolution on the Amendments to the “Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee of the Board of Directors” was  Considered and -
considered approved
2. The Resolution in relation to the Change of Independent Non-executive Director of the Eleventh Session of the Board of the
Company was considered
2024%5H28H 1 EEERETEREREZEQERANNER BiRe
2 BEERERARET-EEFSHNOEENER
30 December 2024 The Resolution in relation to the Change of Non-executive Directors of the Eleventh Session of the Board of the Company was Considered -
considered and approved
20245125308 ZERRTALTET-EERGINTESNER FaEh
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VIl. Special Committees under the Board of +t EZEZETREMZEEER @
Directors (continued)

(iv) During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration

() FERRTHREZZEEEM

and Monitoring Committee held 4 meetings 4RER
Important Other
opinions and  performance
Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties
BEZER EfbmiT
BHEH EERR ngs BERER
7 February 2024 The Results of Remuneration and Performance Assessment for the Senior Management of the Company for the Year of 2023 were  Considered and -
conswdered approved
202452778 EANRBFRRER A SFHERNENARNER BaRR
28 March 2024 1. The Resolution in relation to the Basic Annual Salary and Position Coefficient of the Senior Management of the Companywas ~ Considered and -
considered approved
2. The 2024 Performance Assessment Contract for the Senior Management of the Company was considered
2024535288 1 ERRARAEEASEAFENRLAANER FAe
2 % BRANUNFEREBABENZRREAR
28 May 2024 The Resolution on the Amendments to the “Terms of Reference of the Remuneration and Monitoring Committee” was considered ~ Considered and -
approved
2024555288 EEENEA(FHEZRZZ e TR HEE il
28 June 2024 The Resolution in relation to the Change of the Relevant Members of the Remuneration and Monitoring Committee of the Eleventh  Considered and -
Session of the Board of Directors was considered approved
2024567287 FEBNEAET-EESCHMAZNZ RSN ANER BoEB
(v) During the Reporting Period, the Strategy () fEHABKEESEHEINE
Committee held 3 meetings =
Important Other
opinionsand  performance
Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties
BEER Rfbm1T
BHEH EERA ngs BERER
28 May 2024 The Resolution in relation to the Prior Investment in Shanghai Sunwise by a Wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Controlling Shareholder ~ Considered and -
was considered approved
2024557288 EEMNERRRRAFRRLTRE LERENER el
28 June 2024 The Resolution in relation to the Participation in the Establishment of Shaanxi Haichuang Shengshi Hydrogen Energy Technology Co.,  Considered and -
Ltd. (tentative name) by Beijing Tianhai Hydrogen Energy Equipment Co., Ltd., a Wholly-owned Subsidiary of Beijing Tianhai Industry ~ approved
Co., Ltd. was considered
202456A28R EEENRREIEERARZETARMNRRNITHEBERL ISR UNE SRR TERBERLF (TR NEE  £508
30 December 2024 1. The Resolution in relation to an Increase in Registered Capital from Capital Reserve of Beijing Tianhai Hydrogen Energy Considered and -
Equipment Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company was considered approved
2. The Resolution in relation to an Increase in the Capital of Beijing Tianhai Hydrogen Energy Equipment Co., Ltd. with the Budget
Funds for State-owned Capital Operation by the Company was considered
20245128308 1 BBERREFARLRREIEARAN RRESARBERARNEANERETARNER ksl

(vi) Details of objections
1 Applicable v Not applicable
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VIIl.Supervisory Committee’s description on risks

identified in the Company
[ Applicable v Not applicable

The Supervisory Committee has no objection to the supervision matters
during the Reporting Period.

Details of staff of the Parent Company and
major subsidiaries at the end of the Reporting

Period
(i) Details of staff

AN

IR

QL Section 5 Corporate Governance IR

ERHE QEDAE

ESSRAVAFEARNGH
i
Oi@f ¥ E

EFRYREOANEEFARES -

BREARSLABAMNEEF QT
WEIER

(—) EIHER

Number of existing employees of the parent company 24
BRRERE THHME

Number of existing employees of major subsidiaries 1,356
ITEFRAFEREINHE

Total number of existing employees 1,380
FRETIHHMEAF

Number of retired staff for whom the parent company and major subsidiaries incurred expenses 355

BRARFEFRRAFAEEBNBR N TAH

Type of professions

B
Professions Number of persons
BEXERER EEBHAH
Production staff FEANE 763
Sales staff HEAE 87
Technical staff BiTAE 205
Financial staff MBAB 30
Administrative staff THAEB 235
Supporting staff ZERBAR 33
Off-duty staff TEMAB 27
Total A&t 1,380
Educational Background
BERE
Education level Number of persons
HEREER #gE(N)
University graduates or above REAR I £ 406
Associate degree & 214
Secondary technical graduates Tii; 243
Senior high school graduates and below SEENVEN 517
Total &5t 1,380

2024 ANNUAL REPORT | 73

2024 FERE



I Scction 5 Corporate Governance

74

FHE NENAE

IX. Details of staff of the Parent Company and
major subsidiaries at the end of the Reporting

Period (Continued)

(i) Remuneration Policies
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

The Company implemented a diversified salaries system based on the
performance of positions as the main remuneration system. On the
basis of performance-based salary standards of positions, the salary
level of each position is determined by job evaluation with reference
to labour market for confirming the relative value of the post, so
as to ensure the internal and external fairness of salaries level. On
this basis, a multi-layer and multi-category diversified remuneration
policy is to be implemented subject to different personnel and nature
of work such as the implementation of broadband compensation
and technological innovation incentives for technical staff; the sales
commission approach for marketing staff; piecework wage system
for production workers and annual salary system for the senior
management.

(iii) Training Plan
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

According to the “2024 Annual Training Program”, a total of
45,806 training hours involving 8,979 persons were completed,
with the number of training hours per employee reaching 33.2
hours. According to the annual training plan of the Company, the
Company organized and completed, among others, “Management
Improvement Training for Middle-level and Above Managers”,
“Training Class for Newly Appointed Middle-level Executives from
Directly Affiliated Enterprises”, “Training for Technicians on Design
Efficiency Enhancement and Standardized Management based on
the Model Library”, “Training on Finite Element Analysis Software”,
“Skills Improvement Training for Sales Staff”, “IATF16949 Standard
and Internal Auditor Training”, “Skills Improvement Training for
Skilled Positions”, and “Training on Programming and Debugging
for Siemens System Maintenance”.

(iv) Labour outsourcing
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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X. Profit Distribution Plan or Plan to Convert + - FESERXEARANESEHIETE

Reserves into Share Capital =

(i) Formulation, implementation or adjustment of (=) BEDABRMWFHE ~ BT
cash dividend policy EiER
[J Applicable v Not applicable OEA N TEA

(i) Special description of cash dividend policy (Z) BEpABRWEIEH A
[ Applicable v Not applicable OEA N TEA

(iii) If the Company records profits and the parent (2) HEBREINEZF AT AHRKRR
company records a positive undistributed profit SPEFERE  BRREEREF
during the Reporting Period but there is no BOMARBRN > AREERF
resolution for distribution of cash dividend, the HIREREUARARD BAENA
Company shall disclose the reasons and the usage BHMEAGE
of the undistributed profits and the usage plan in
detail
[ Applicable v Not applicable @A N TEA

(iv) Details of profit distribution and transfer of (M) RBEHRBOERERQTES
reserve to share capital during the Reporting EIERAER
Period
[ Applicable v Not applicable @A N TEA

(v) Cash dividends in the past three accounting years () B E=EEtEERE4ER
[ Applicable v Not applicable OEm N TEA

-

Xl. Share incentive scheme, employee share - QAEREHBTE - ETEHER

scheme or other incentive measures of the FEREME THEERNE
Company for employees and their impacts mEHEE
(i) Incentives disclosed in extraordinary (—) EEEBEECEREAGEHE
announcements without progress or change in BEREEHRBERIBN
the follow-up implementation
\ Applicable [ Not applicable ViER OTER
Description Inspection index
E-Sisp R BHRES|
The Company has received the Certificate of Change in www.sse.com.cn Company announcement: Lin 2023-064

Registration of Securities issued by the China Securities

Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited on 28 December

2023. According to the Certificate of Change in Registration of

Securities, the Company has completed the registration of Initial

Grant of Restricted Shares under the 2023 Restricted Share

Incentive Scheme.

ARIBWEFEESRECLEEGRETAFN2023F12H28 www.sse.com.cn’ARIA% « [52023-064
HHEAWGEBSFEBEECEN) - REB(EFEE SLER) -

;/A;ET E?}?EEJZT2023¢EE%‘J'IEH§%E&JEJJ§+§UBE%‘J'IEH&%‘%E)M%%

HRIE-
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XI.

NEPRIE

Share incentive scheme, employee share
scheme or other incentive measures for
employees and their impacts (continued)

(i)

Incentives not disclosed in extraordinary
announcements or with progress in the follow-up
implementation

Share incentive
1 Applicable v Not applicable

Other description
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

The lapse of reserved entitlements under the 2023 Restricted Share
Incentive Scheme:

According to the provisions of the "2023 Restricted Share Incentive
Scheme of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited”
(the “Incentive Scheme”), the reserved restricted shares under the
Incentive Scheme were 1,350,000 shares. According to the relevant
provisions of the "Management Measures for Equity Incentives
of Listed Companies” and the Incentive Scheme, the participants
under the reserved grant will be determined within 12 months after
the Incentive Scheme has been considered and approved at the
general meeting, A shares class meeting and H shares class meeting
of the Company. If the participants are not specified for more than
12 months, the reserved entitlements will lapse. As disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 14 November 2024, as
there were 1,350,000 restricted shares reserved under the Incentive
Scheme for which no participants have been specified for more than
12 months since the consideration and approval of the Incentive
Scheme at the first extraordinary general meeting of 2023, the first
A shares class meeting of 2023 and the first H shares class meeting
of 2023 (13 November 2023) of the Company, and the reserved
entitlements have lapsed. (For the details, please see Company
announcement: Lin 2024-041)

Employee share scheme
1 Applicable v Not applicable

Other incentive measures
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

B

T— REREREETE c ETHER
SFEIREME THBEIERNE
mREHEE E)

D) BEAEREEIEREERN

HEER

R BN
O@A N T~EA

HhsieA :
ViER OTER

20234 FBRBIIER = MR T BT B A R
B AR

RIE LR B A R A R2023
FRR AR BE R B A TR CX
Bhat &) )RR E - CHERT21) TER R
HIMEZEA135.008 0 - BIE(ETA
BB B IR R M G B ET B B
HRIRTE  BEETHESMEBERA
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IR RASHZR B BRI12EANE
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Xl. Share incentive scheme, employee share - ARREHBTE - ETEHR

scheme or other incentive measures for RIS EME TREERNS
employees and their impacts (continued) R HEE )
(iii) Equity incentives granted to Directors and senior (2) B3 - sREBAEBRETHAK
management officers during the Reporting Period RTFHRERBER
\ Applicable [ Not applicable ViR OTER
Ey
Number of Number of
Restricted Shares ~ Number of new Restricted
held asat Restricted Shares Shares held Market value
the beginning  granted during Grant price asattheend  as at the end of
of the Reporting  the Reporting of Restricted of the Reporting  the Reporting
Name Position Period Period Shares(RMB)  Shares unlocked Shares locked Period Period (RMB)
BEOOEE  BEEFRT  RAMBEN BEHREE BEHR
i B RAMRZHE RHLREHE B¥ER(T) EEHERS FEERG  BHEREHE mE(7)
Zhang Jiheng  Executive Director, 150,000 0 733 0 150,000 150,000 10.08

general manager

FiglE ES  BEE

Feng Yongmei - Chief accountant 100,000 0 133 0 100,000 100,000 10.08
Kig fei
ShiFengwen  Chief engineer 100,000 0 733 0 100,000 100,000 10.08
REX BIREG
LiXianzhe ~ General counsel 100,000 0 733 0 100,000 100,000 10.08
FHE BreEmn
Luan Jie Secretary to the Board 100,000 0 133 0 100,000 100,000 10.08
£ £
Tota\ / 550,000 0 / 0 550,000 550,000 /
At

(iv) Establishment and implementation of appraisal (M) HEBRAHSHREBAENEF
and incentive mechanism for senior management HHl > URHBMEINEY - B
officers during the Reporting Period et
\ Applicable [ Not applicable ViER O
During the Reporting Period, the Board and the senior management WREPHAN  ARESSESRERA
officers of the Company entered into and executed the “Performance ,5 ﬁ%ﬂ (RREBANBEMEZEES
Assessment Contract for Senior Management Officers”. The Board EERSEHHLETER  BFY
assesses the performance of the senior management officers every Mﬁi%ﬁ? EgREaMEEAS (L
year. After evaluating and approving the completion in accordance %é\ [A) SR 1B /Ruﬂém—ﬂé wE=Y
with the “Performance Assessment Contract for Senior Management FHE o

Officers”, the remuneration and monitoring committee reports to
the Board for approval.
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EHET QFeE
XIll. Construction and implementation of internal

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

control system during the Reporting Period
\ Applicable "TJ Not applicable

For the details, please refer to the “Internal Control Report” disclosed on
the same day.

Description of material defects of internal control

during the Reporting Period
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Management and control of subsidiaries

during the Reporting Period
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

The Company has implemented internal control system in strict accordance
with the requirements of relevant laws and regulations and has conducted
management control over its subsidiaries in accordance with the unified
standards of listed companies, and the overall operation of its subsidiaries
is generally in line with the operation and development plans of listed
companies. During the Reporting Period, the Company’s management
control over its subsidiaries was adequate and effective, and there were no
material omissions.

Description of Internal Control Audit Report

\ Applicable  [J Not applicable

For the details, please refer to the “Internal Control Audit Report” disclosed
on the same day.

Whether to disclose the Internal Control Audit Report: Yes

Type of Internal Control Audit Report opinion: standard unqualified opinion

Rectification of problems in self-inspection
of special actions for governance of Listed

Company
There were no instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations in
2024.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Others
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

2024 Corporate Governance Report

The Directors of the Company believe that corporate governance is crucial
to the success of the Company. Therefore, the Company has adapted
various measures to assure the upholding of high standard corporate
governance.

The documents related to corporate governance of the Company
include the “Articles of Association”, “Rules of Procedure of the General
Meeting”, “Rules of Procedure for the Board of Directors”, “Rules of
Procedure for the Supervisory Committee”, “Implementation Rules of
the Special Committees of the Board of Directors”, “Code of Practice of
General Managers” and “Code of Practice of the Secretary to the Board
of Directors” etc.. To achieve the highest level of corporate governance,
the Board of the Company has set up four special committees, namely, the
strategy committee, the audit committee, the remuneration and monitoring
committee and the nomination committee.

Attendance of Directors at the Board meetings and the general meetings
during the Reporting Period:

Attendance of Directors at the Board meetings and the general
meetings

Section 5 Corporate Governance

e HA

FRET QERIE
VER OTERE
mm¢§ﬁ¥ =58
ADRESBHER ﬁﬁﬁ$@72ﬁm#%

BE HAR TE%@T\H%M HERER R
RELEER -

ARFBBELADAEN XM EE(ARER) -
(BERAEFHERAD  (EFSHFRA)
(E=gaERA) (BEE2EXREeEH
A~ (AR TEMALD - (BERGMET(E
BAD S - NFERIBEBERERRE - KD

AEEERITOEZEMZESHHE : B
%% : aJri/\ 2 FMEERZEERIR

YD
100 18 >
]]]E>

Zl/éa&ﬁiiﬁﬁl?\?é%ﬁmé%’*ﬂﬂxiﬁ’*ﬁ’] i

EEZSNESENRRASHER

Attendance at

Attendance at Board meetings general meetings

SNEZERR SNMERAEER
Absence
from two

Required Attendance by consecutive Number of

Independent attendance Attendance  communication Attendance Number of meetings  general meetings

ornot  during the year in person equipment by proxy absence ornot attended

RERSN HER AR REEERN HERF

Name of Director(s) g3 REBIES 2608 RAtERR BHNRE  ERHERE HEXE  ARESNER KERRE

Li Junjie A No 9 9 8 0 0 No 2
g £

Thang Jheng REE No 9 9 8 0 0 No 1
B £

Zhou Yongjun BXE No 9 9 8 0 0 No 2
g g

Man Huiyong #e3 No 9 9 8 0 0 No 1
B g

Li Chunzhi 55K No 9 9 8 0 0 No 2
& g

Chen Junping BT Yes 5 5 5 0 0 No 0
& g

Thao Xuguang illih Yes 9 9 8 0 0 No 1
8 x
&’ A

Liv gt e Yes 9 9 8 0 0 No 2
R’ g

Luan Dalong SRE Yes 9 9 8 0 0 No 1
& &

Xiong Jianhui (resigned) EERED Yes 4 4 3 0 0 No 2
=] VN
S =]

Wy Yanzhang (rsigned) REEER No 9 9 8 0 0 No 1
iy =~
=] =}

Cheng Lei (resgned) KE#D) No 9 9 8 0 0 No 1
T =~
=] =}
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XVl. Others (Continued) 'I'/\_\ N Hﬁﬂ
2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued) 2024£|5J_\_.|J:¥ B E @)
Number of Board meetings during the year 9
FREAREEFSERRK
Of which: number of meetings convened on-site 1
Heh : RIS ERRH
Number of meetings convened by communication equipment 8
kDAl el ka1
Number of meetings both on-site and by communication equipment 0
RS EaRAT R AREH B
Performance of duties by the audit committee under the Board: §$§T§QH’9§E‘I‘§§§EMT§>R
The authority and power of the audit committee was formulated & +§E\ﬁﬂ’lﬁr&%$ﬁ%\ﬁ€ﬂ§§% SR AE
in accordance with the advice provided in “A Guide for Effective B (EZEE @B REIEES) PAAREH
Audit Committees” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public k  CEMRAD HERCT <</J§_¥ E7asF A MA
Accountants, the “Corporate Governance Code” of Appendix C1 to the R EEESRME R EHREDEIE L)
Listing Rules and the “Code of Corporate Governance for Listed Companies mElETEy o
in China” issued by the CSRC.
1. The main duties and authorities of the audit committee include: 1 BIRESTFEREBRE:

(1) to make proposals regarding the appointment or replacement (1) IREMEESE MBS

of the external auditor;

—
N
~

(2)  to monitor the internal audit system of the Company and its

EBARMAMESHIERAE
i

implementation; i
(3)  to coordinate with the internal and external audits; B) BEWIPEEIESET ZEK
B

(4)  to review the Company’s financial information and its (4 BERLRNYHEELEKE
disclosure;

(5)  to review major financing plans submitted to the Board for 5 BERIHEFETEANEAHR
consideration; BAR:

(6) to review the Company’s annual budget, final accounts (6) %E?%§§$§$§§E@@E¢f§
and major adjustment plans submitted to the Board for & - /?%Ekgﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁ% -
consideration as well as major off-budget items; ZEBEARNBHINEIE

(7)  to review the internal control system of the Company, (7) BERANERZESIGE - AN
organise internal control check, assess internal control defects ZRE - AR RIERIE I B
and oversee rectification; Bie

(8)  to review major connected transactions; and (8) HIEABAMRZSHEITER

(9)  other matters as authorized by the Board. 9) EEERTHEMET -

80 | Beijing Jlingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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XVI. Others (Continued) +/_\ N ,E\:ﬁ'i_j, (&)
2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued) 2024 EEERRE (
Performance of duties by the audit committee under the Board: EEETRNENZEES H‘E‘EE}R (%
(Continued)
2. The audit committee comprises two independent non-executive 2- AREEEEINLEGHR2EWIIFNIT
Directors and one non-executive Director. HE IBIFWTEREK -
During the Reporting Period, the audit committee convened BEHAENEEEBEHI12REF
12 meetings
Date of Important opinions Other performance
convening Meeting content and suggestions of duties
EFRBEH kS EEERNES HitETHRERR
9 January 2024 1. The audit work in the pre-audit stage of the internal Considered and -
control audit for 2023 was considered approved
2. The audit work in the pre-audit stage of the financial
report for 2023 was considered
20241 H9B 1 FE2023FENEETEERRET TIEER FHEB
© ESR0FENBREREBREATERR
14 March 2024 1. The Resolution on the Amendments to the “Terms Considered and -
of Reference of the Audit Committee of the Board of approved
Directors” was considered
2. The Resolution on the Performance of the Audit
Committee of the Board for the Year of 2023 was
considered
2024537148 1. BERENMEIKESRSRHZE S TEAR)OER FHEB

2. FRBRESEEITEE2023FEEREBERANEER
28 March 2024 1. The Full Text and Abstract of the 2023 Annual Report Considered and -

and the H Shares Results Announcement of the approved
Company were considered

2. The 2023 Audited Financial Report of the Company
was considered

3. The 2023 Internal Control Assessment Report of the
Company was considered

4. The 2023 Audit Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting of the Company was considered

5. The 2023 Social Responsibility Report of the Company
was considered

6. The Resolution on the “Corporate Governance Report”
(Draft) of the Company Required to be Disclosed for
H Shares and Authorisation to the Secretary to the
Board to be Responsible for Subsequent Review of and
Amendment to the “Corporate Governance Report”
was considered

7. The Resolution on the 2023 “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” (Draft) of the Company,
and Authorisation to the Secretary to the Board to be
Responsible for Subsequent Review of and Amendment
to the 2023 "Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” was considered

20249F3A28H 1+ FEHARROIFFEREEXLIME - HREE QS Fea 3G

2 BEARROFELEANYERE

3. FBEHEARRO2IFEAIEEFHERS

4 FFNAE2023FEHEHRERIIE IR RS

5+ BHARROBEEHEEIHRE

6 FWEAAHES ﬁs§m<ﬁ¥%53$&¢>(§¥> RIZ5
REFEUEREL ?E%T%‘%Eﬁ((ﬁ%am#ﬁ%%@m

7 FHEARROFMHE BEREAHRE) (ER) 1

BEREEFENER A REFRER2023F(LE - ]
RBREARE)ESR
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XVl. Others (Continued)

2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Performance of duties by the audit committee under the Board:

(Continued)
2. (Continued)

v P

A Hittom

2

During the Reporting Period, the audit committee convened
12 meetings (Continued)

Date of
convening

ARAH

10.

1.

12.

13.
14.
15.

16.

10

1"

12~

Meeting content
FEAR

The Resolution on the Performance of the Audit
Committee of the Board for the Year of 2023 was
considered

The Resolution in relation to the Payment for the Audit
Fee of the Financial Reports for the Year of 2023

to ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special
General Partnership) was considered

The Resolution in relation to the Payment for the
Audit Fee for the Year of 2023 to Da Hua Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) was
considered

The Resolution in relation to the Report of the Audit
Committee on the Performance of Supervisory Duties
by in relation to ShineWing Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership), Da Hua Certified

Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) was
considered

The Resolution in relation to the Report on the
Assessment of the Company on the Duties Performance
by Resolution in relation to ShineWing Certified

Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), Da
Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) was considered

The 2024 Audit Plan of the Company was considered
The 2024 Assessment Plan of the Company’s Internal
Control was considered

The Resolution in relation to the 2023 Internal Audit
Report on the Deposit and Use of Raised Funds of the
Company was considered

The Resolution in relation to the Special Report on the
Deposit and Use of Raised Funds of the Company in
2023 was considered
BREFOFTEEG023FERBIBERMNES
ek HMEKP MG AN E AT (IR B & %) 2023
FEFTEANRR

Fa NREGTAFHT R EBRA ) 2023FE
FETBEANESRE
ERWNEF TN ZE QYW E KT MRS
(BHRLMER)  AEGHMEBAERERAR)E
TEEMEBANRENRESR

BHRAR AR E KPP MG EHE (FRE RS
) - REGFMEHHM FREBAR) BRI ATE
BENER

BEHR N RRQ24AFEETENRES

FEA R F2024F [ A EDEHIRTE T 5
BRANAFROBFFEEREESFWEAFRERLAN
HEAMENER
%E%%ﬁﬁégﬁTZOZSEFQ%%ﬁ@ﬁE&ZE@@ﬁH'I%Eiﬂﬁ’ﬂiii
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XVl. Others (Continued) +/\_\‘ ﬁ'i_j, (#8)
2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued) 2024 ELEER iﬁ
Performance of duties by the audit committee under the Board: EEETRWENZER H‘E‘EE}R (%
(Continued)
2. (Continued) 2. &

During the Reporting Period, the audit committee convened
12 meetings (Continued)

HEHNFTNZEEE L1208 ()

Date of Important opinions Other performance
convening Meeting content and suggestions of duties
BB = 1ok EEERNESR HitETHERR
17.  The Proposal of the Company Not to Distribute Profit
for the Year of 2023 was considered
18.  The Resolution on Provision for Impairment of the
Company for the Year of 2023 was considered
19.  The 2024 Financing Guarantee Plan of the Company
was considered
20.  The Resolution in relation to the Completion of the
Annual Performance Guarantee by Qingdao BYTQ
United Digital Intelligence Co., Ltd. for 2023 was
considered
21.  The Resolution in relation to the Change of the
Company’s Accounting Policy was considered
22.  The 2024 Business Plan of the Company was
considered
23.  The 2024 Research and Development Plan of the
Company was considered
24.  The Resolution to be Submitted to the 2023 Annual
General Meeting for Approving the Authorisation to
the Board to Issue New H Shares Not Exceeding 20%
of the Total Issued H Shares was considered
17~ BZRRR023FFNETHES e TER
18 FEAT2023F EAEREREENZRE
19 FARF2024F FREERTBIMHER
20 FEEREEILF RSB ERARAR2023FE%
BAGETRERR
21> %u%‘;u+ﬁykk££imn&m
22 BHRF2024F FEE A E
23 BEHDRRO2AFEHEE
24 ~ %m}a*“Tzozsir‘ﬁxﬁﬂikﬂmﬁﬁ%%%@
%:It B THRIR AN B B A)20% BT THRRFTAR A
B
29 April 2024 The 2024 First Quarterly Report of the Company was Considered and -
considered approved
202443298  HHEENAF2024FE —FERENZER FHEB
14 May 2024 The Resolution in relatlon to the Selection and Appointment Considered and -
of Auditor for the Financial Statements Audit and the Internal approved
Control Audit for 2024 was considered
202453148 FRENER2024FEMBRERFALASESEHEAE Emmik
ST ER
28 May 2024 The Resolution in relation to the Prior Investment in Shanghai Considered and -
Sunwise by a Wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Controlling approved
Shareholder was considered
2024557280 FERBENERRRE2EFARRTIRE DERENZRE FEREA
28 June 2024 The Resolution in relation to the Change of the Relevant Considered and -
Members of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration and approved
Monitoring Committee of the Eleventh Session of the Board
of Directors was considered
20246 A28 BRENERE T EEFSENTLZESRFTMEERE Bkl

SHAKENZASR
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XVl. Others (Continued)

2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Performance of duties by the audit committee under the Board:

(Continued)

2.

(Continued)

IS

2

During the Reporting Period, the audit committee convened
12 meetings (Continued)

Date of
convening

AR AHY

16 August 2024

20248 A 16H

26 September

2024

20249 9H26H

30 October 2024

20249 10H30H

6 December 2024

202412 A6H

30 December
2024

2024512 A30H

Meeting content

BEAR

1. The resolution in relation to the Full Text and Abstract
of the 2024 A Shares Interim Report and the H Shares
Results Announcement of the Company was considered

2. The Resolution on the Provision for Impairment of the
Company in the First Half of 2024 was considered
3. The Resolution in relation to the Special Report on the

Deposit and Use of Raised Funds in the First Half of
2024 was considered

4. The Resolution in relation to the Internal Audit Report
on the Deposit and Use of Raised Funds of the
Company in the First Half of 2024 was considered

5. The Resolution in relation to the Related Party
Transactions between the Subsidiaries of the Company
and the Subsidiaries of the Controlling Shareholder of
the Company was considered

6. The Resolution in relation to the Entering into of the
Product Sale and Purchase Framework Agreement and
Related Party Transactions between Beijing Tianhai
Industry Co., Ltd. and Shanghai Sunwise New Energy
System Co., Ltd. was considered

1~ %mﬁﬂ FI2024FARREFHE I RBEE - HIRELE

NER

2 %%%%wm¢¢%ﬁkﬂﬁﬁﬁm%%

3. BREARNLRFUBRERMARA Tmui#iﬁ%
SESIFMEAGEABEANEERENH

4~ BEERNR 72024¢¥¢F%¢§imﬁzéﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ
RNEBER ﬁ&im

5. %E%Eﬁﬁé?m“f Tgﬁi AR AR SR BN A IR
BRI PR

6 FREANIERAKREIERRARIE FsERERE
AR ARIRFERBIFERS FZERBE X SNER
1. The audit work plan for the 2024 financial report was
considered
2. The audit work plan for the 2024 internal control audit
report was considered
3. The examination report in relation to the use of raised
funds in the first half of 2024 was considered
7 %%mmi@%%ﬁ%%ﬁiﬁﬁ%
20 FE2024FEHBRENEEIE TIEsTE
3 mmﬁt¥¢%ﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁlﬂM€ﬁi
The Resolution in relation to the 2024 Third Quarterly Report
of the Company was considered
The Resolution in relation to the 2024 Action Plan of
Improvmg Quality, Increasing Efficiency and Enhancing
Returns” of the Company was considered
BN AR Q024F £ —FEME) MER
ERN2024F EHRE M ERRITH T RNZER
The Resolution in relation to the Entering into of the Product
Sale and Purchase Framework Agreement and Related Party
Transactions between Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd.
and Shanghai Sunwise New Energy System Co., Ltd. was
considered o
%mf%’\ib‘? REBITEGRARE ERFEFRIRESRER
ARIFERBHERARERH R HINEE
The Resolution in relation to Early Termination of the
Connected Transaction Agreements related to Property
Leasing and Property Services in the Yichuang Park was
considered
H&F%A?mﬁuﬁﬁﬁellli/%ﬁfﬂf&%%ﬁ&i%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ#“

Uuﬂz u?)zﬂ(
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Considered and -
approved

nm«

FHEB

Considered and -
approved
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BBk
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Others (Continued)

2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Performance of duties by the audit committee under the Board:
(Continued)

The list of members of the audit committee and their attendance at the
meetings are as follows:

Section 5 Corporate Governance

ERHE QEDAE

+/\ N Hﬁﬂ (%)

2024 FEEERRE @)
ESeTROSHESSERER - @

B ZBERBRERGHRLFEER

Name Description Required attendance in 2024 Actual attendance

e A 2024 EHEERRE BERHESBERE

Chen Junping (independent Chairman of the committee 6 6
non-executive Director)

BYIFNTESHRG T ZEETF

Zhao Xuguang (independent Member of the committee 12 12
non-executive Director)

BYFRTEFHEEN ZE®%E8

Man Huiyong (non-executive Member of the committee 12 12
Director)

FRITERREE LZE®%E8

Xiong Jianhui (independent non- Chairman of the committee 6 6
executive Director, resigned)

BYFFNTERREE (BHD) ZERT

Performance of duties by the nomination committee under the
Board:

1. The main duties and authorities of the nomination committee:

(1) to make recommendations to the Board regarding the size
and composition of the Board based on the operations, asset
size and shareholding structure of the Company;

(2)  to conduct research on the selection criteria and procedures
for directors and managers, and make recommendations to
the Board;

(3)  to search extensively for qualified candidates for directors and
managers;

(4)  to screen and make recommendations on the candidates for
directors and managers;

(5)  to screen and make recommendations on the candidates for
other senior management who shall be referred to the Board
for appointment;

(6)  to define the job description of directors and managers as
well as their career development path;

(7)  to develop and implement succession and cultivation plans for
directors, supervisors and senior management; and

(8)  other matters as authorized by the Board.
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XVl. Others (Continued)

2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Performance of duties by the nomination committee under the

Board: (Continued)

2. The nomination committee comprises two independent non- 2

Y ok

A Hittom

executive Directors and one executive Director

During the Reporting Period, the nomination committee

convened 3 meetings

Date of
convening

AR AHY

28 March 2024

20243 H28H

28 May 2024

202455 H28H

30 December
2024

2024512 A30H

WN =

»

U WN—=WU

N —

Meeting content
EBRE

The work of the Committee in 2023 was considered
The current structure of the Board was considered
The independence of the independent non-executive
Directors was considered

The procedure for nomination of Directors and their
terms of office were considered

The diversity policy was considered
FE2023F R TEBR

ERESTEIE

BB IFITE S
ERIRBESEF - ABRE

BHRZTOBER

The Resolution on the Amendments to the “Terms of
Reference of the Nomination Committee of the Board
of Directors” was considered

The Resolution in relation to the Change of
Independent Non-executive Director of the Eleventh
Session of the Board of the Company was considered
ERENMEI EE R REEZESEHARINRESR
BERENERAAET —BEESBEIIFNTESY

ol
EES

The Resolution in relation to the Change of Non-executive
Directors of the Eleventh Session of the Board of the Company
was considered

BRUNERARE T —EEFGINTEFTNER

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Important opinions Other performance
and suggestions

ERERNESR

of duties

Hit@THERR

Considered and -
approved

Considered and -
approved

FHRmA

Considered and -
approved
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XVl. Others (Continued) +/\‘ Hﬁﬂ (#8)
2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued) 2024 FEEERBE
Performance of duties by the nomination committee under the EEETRNREZEES H‘E‘EE}R (%
Board: (Continued)
The list of members of the nomination committee and their attendance at REZEERELXERGZELEBR

the meetings are as follows:

Name Description Required attendance in 2024 Actual attendance
e Bk 2024 FEHEERRH BEREEERRH™
Zhao Xuguang (independent non-  Chairman of the committee 3 3
executive Director)
B EITE R ZEEFR
Luan Dalong (independent non- Member of the committee 3 3
executive Director)
B IEBITE SR REE Z88%8
Zhang Jiheng (executive Director, Member of the committee 3 3
general manager)
HITES  EIERER Z88%8
Performance of duties by the remuneration and monitoring EEETRNTHEZRZSSERER :
committee under the Board: o
1. The main duties and authorities of the remuneration and monitoring 1 FNEZEZZEFBHERER
committee:
(1) to formulate remuneration plans or schemes with reference (1 REESE- EIREABEREH
to the main scope, duties and significance of the positions of flﬁ’]izz%ﬁl Hﬁkﬁ BRIE
directors and senior management as well as the remuneration R LA 4 B £ 36 AR B R (7 &9 7
levels for relevant positions of other relevant enterprises; KEHIEHMETEIS TR
(2)  remuneration plans or schemes mainly include but not limited 2 FMHBXTEERREETR
to the performance evaluation standards, procedures and the RIEVMHERE - BFRERF
major evaluation system, major incentive and punishment BRE BEPNBINEEFR
schemes and systems etc.; MHEE
(3)  to examine the fulfillment of duties by the Company’s (3) BERREZCGEBILES)
Directors (non-independent Directors) and senior management f?&ﬁﬁ/\% E’JETTH‘&E 15 /RIBT
and conduct an annual performance appraisal for them; HEETFEERET
(4)  to oversee the implementation of the Company’s (4) BEURTFHHIERITERE
remuneration system; and TEE
(5)  other matters as authorized by the Board. (5) EERENEMER -
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XVl. Others (Continued) -I'/_\‘ ﬁ'i_j,
2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued) 20245|5F'u-_¥ AR E (@)
Performance of duties by the remuneration and monitoring EZETRNFHEEXZEEEBER
Committee under the Board: (Continued) (%)
2. The remuneration and monitoring committee of the Company 2 ARFMMEZEZRZEGHR2EWIFHIT
comprises two independent non-executive Directors and one HE IBRIFWTESEK -
executive Director.
During the Reporting Period, the remuneration and BEHAFTHEEREEEEHINES
monitoring committee convened 4 meetings
Date of Important opinions Other performance
convening Meeting content and suggestions of duties
#AEHH EERAR EEZRNES HttETHERBR
7 February 2024  The Results of Remuneration and Performance Assessment for ~ Considered and -
the Senior Management of the Company for the Year of 2023 approved
were considered
202452878 F|EARROIFEMERASFHMEABENERERNER FHEB
28 March 2024 1. The Resolution in relation to the Basic Annual Salary Considered and -
and Position Coefficient of the Senior Management of approved
the Company was considered
2. The 2024 Performance Assessment Contract for the
Senlor Management of the Company was considered
2024935288 1 FBREAFASMREBAEEARFH ﬁml%%mmﬁ FHEB
2 %*ﬂﬂmmﬁmﬁ BABBREREES
28 May 2024 The Resolution on the Amendments to the “Terms of Considered and -
Reference of the Remuneration and Monitoring Committee” approved
was considered
20245 H28H F|ERBNERI (FMEZZEZESERMAD NER FEREA
28 June 2024 The Resolution in relation to the Change of the Relevant Considered and -
Members of the Remuneration and Monitoring Committee of approved
the Eleventh Session of the Board of Directors was considered
2024F6A28H %%F%@E%ﬁ%ﬂ-—@ EEeHNRERE S SHEAKEN FEEA
S

88 | Beijing Jlingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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XVl. Others (Continued) +/\_\‘ Hﬁﬂ (#8)
2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued) 2024 ELEER (#8)
Performance of duties by the remuneration and monitoring E%‘%T?&E’Jﬁwﬂiﬂ%*yiég BER
Committee under the Board: (Continued) (%5) \
The list of members of the remuneration and monitoring committee and FMEEZEEENELERERLFEE)

their attendance at the meetings are as follows:

Name Description Required attendance in 2024 Actual attendance
H"E Bk 2024 FEHEERRH BEREEERRH™
Liu Jingtai (independent Chairman of the committee 4 4
non-executive Director)
BUNTEFLRSR ZEgFF
Chen Junping (independent Member of the committee 1 1
non-executive Director)
B IEMITE BRI T Z88%8
Li Junjie (independent non- Member of the committee 4 4
executive Director, Chairman)
FMITES EFRFENR Z88%8
Xiong Jianhui (independent Member of the committee 3 3
non-executive Director,
resigned)
5%43'3%17%% 218 (BE) Z88%8
Performance of duties by the strategy committee under the Board: E?‘%TE&WJE’W@;E Eﬁ‘éﬁ’%}ﬂ
The main duties of the strategy committee are to formulate the strategic BREZEGNETZMERHIFADFAEIKER
rules of the Company, to supervise the implementation of strategies and to Al - E5yE )LcEHXEI']ﬁHT M&ﬂﬁnﬂ@‘$/& ﬂﬁi
timely adjust the strategies and the governance structure of the Company. BE A EAZERE o
1. The main duties and authorities of the strategy committee: 1 BREZEENTIEZBEER:

(1)  to organise, research and formulate the Company's (1) MHEEARBELARIEREE H
development strategies and mid-term and long-term plans, REFIRE - HAREREEK &
evaluate the Company's development strategies and mid-term REPRBETAML - WREEE
and long-term plans, and make relevant recommendations to RH2EEE
the Board;

(2)  to conduct research and make recommendations on projects (2) H(RRER)REAKE=TH
that must be approved by the Board as required by the HEHBEBREHIMERE - NS
“Articles of Association”, such as major external investments B BEARER - BEAREM - &X
and financing, mergers and acquisitions and reorganisations, KireEs B MERMEEE
infrastructure, key technical transformations and BT IR K2
breakthroughs, strategic product research and development
projects;

(3)  to conduct research on mergers, demergers, increase or 3) #H T’\H DY IBFE - R
decrease in capital, dissolution and liquidation and other key BUBHE + A &Eﬁﬂ? YN NAER
matters that may affect development of the Company, and E’\Jéiilﬁiﬁfﬂﬁﬁ Iﬁé%
make recommendations to the Board; BRRHSZ&EH

(4)  to conduct research and advise on other key matters (4) HHMFZEARERMEANEE
that may affect development of the Company and make i&ﬁﬁﬂﬁilkﬂjﬁi o ;
recommendations;

(5)  toinspect the implementation of the items above; and (5) HUEEENEHRETHRS

(6)  other matters as authorized by the Board. (6) EFEREMEMET -
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XVl. Others (Continued)

T

2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Performance of duties by the strategy committee under the Board:

(Continued)

2. The strategy committee comprises two executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and one independent non-executive Director.

During the Reporting Period, the strategy committee
convened 3 meetings

y L
ﬁ“ﬂﬂ
e
HAth @)

2024 FEEERRE @)

ESeTROBMESSERER - @

2 AREECHKRESESm2LIFRITE
%\21 ENTESNI BN TES

HREHNEMZESEEHINES

Date of Important opinions Other performance
convening Meeting content and suggestions of duties
#AEHH EERAR EEZRNES HttETHERBR
28 May 2024 The Resolution in relation to the Prior Investment in Shanghai Considered and -
Sunwise by a Wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Controlling approved
Shareholder was considered
2024554280 HHREANERRREEFRRIEITRE DERENZER FEREB
28 June 2024 The Resolution in relation to the Participation in the Considered and -
Establishment of Shaanxi Haichuang Shengshi Hydrogen approved
Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (tentative name) by Beijing
Tianhai Hydrogen Energy Equipment Co., Ltd., a Wholly-
owned Subsidiary of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. was
considered
2024F6A288 FEEENIERKETIEARAREZETFARERKGEERE FEREA
BARAF2RER IR ERIE T SRR AR AT (BE
B HEER
30 December 1. The Resolution in relation to an Increase in Registered Considered and -
2024 Capital from Capital Reserve of Beijing Tianhai approved
Hydrogen Energy Equipment Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company was considered
2. The Resolution in relation to an Increase in the Capital
of Beijing Tianhai Hydrogen Energy Equipment Co.,
Ltd. with the Budget Funds for State-owned Capital
Operation by the Company was considered
20245124308 1 FREBARRAFAFRAILRKNEILEERAFTILRKXE FERBB
TRERBAR AR EANTEEETME AN RS
2. FSERRRINEBEAKEREESEEILRKE
TRERBARAFTNZER
The list of members of the strategy committee and their attendance at the EEEZEeXELERERLEBR

meetings are as follows:

Name Description Required attendance in 2024 Actual attendance

e B 20245 EHFEHRRE BERHESERY

Li Junjie (Chairman) Chairman of the committee 3 3

EERFTENRN ZEEXRF

Liu Jingtai (independent Member of the committee 3 3
non-executive Director)

BYFRTERLRR ZE8%8

Zhang Jiheng (executive Director) Member of the committee 3 3

HITERRAEE ZE8%8

Zhou Yongjun (non-executive Member of the committee 3 3
Director)

FHMITERREKE ZEg%E8

Wu Yanzhang (non-executive Member of the committee 3 3

Director, resigned)

FERITEERIE (BEE)
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2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

As at the date of this report, the Company is not aware of any change in
the information of Director, Supervisor or chief executive required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, the Company was in compliance with the
code provisions stipulated in Part 2 of the “Corporate Governance Code” as
set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, the Company adopted the “Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” as set out in Appendix
C3 to the Listing Rules.

For the purposes of preparation for this report, the Company has
enquired of all the Directors specifically and all of them have confirmed
with the Company that they completely complied with the “Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” during the
Reporting Period. The Company has received the statement regarding
the confirmation of independence submitted by the four independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and the Board considers that the said four independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

The Company will convene a special meeting of the independent Directors
before each Board meeting (if necessary) to discuss the connected
transactions of the Company and other matters deemed important, and
to summarize the relevant independent opinions for discussion at the
Board meeting. The independent non-executive Directors regularly visit
the Company to participate in work on site, monitor the compliance
and legality of the Company’s daily operation and make relevant
recommendations. In addition, the Company collects the opinions of the
investing public through channels such as telephone Q&A sessions, online
exchanges and results presentation meetings and provides feedback to the
Board.

The Board conducted an annual review of the implementation and
effectiveness of the above mechanism and considered that it was
sufficiently effective in ensuring that the Board was provided with
independent views and opinions during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the newly appointed Director Ms. Chen
Junping obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing
Rules on 6 May 2024, and confirmed that she understood her obligations as
a Director of the Company.

ERHE QEDAE

A Hittom

2024 FEREERRE @
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XVI. Others (Continued) 'I'/_\‘ :,E\:ﬁi:’/ (&)
2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued) 2024 FEEER|E @)
Directors and Composition of the Board EERESEHEK
The Board consists of nine Directors, including one executive Director, four ARBEFEHNEBESEN - ERRTES
non-executive Directors, and four independent non-executive Directors —& - FHITEENE  BUFRITEEN
and the independent non-executive Directors account for more than one G BAURTESABGETEAEN =S
third of the total members of the Board. The members of the Board are as 2L -EEEKEMT
follows:

Executive Director

HITES

Zhang Jiheng Director and general manager
SRS FE L8
Non-executive Directors

FHITES

Li Junjie Chairman
FEN BER
Zhou Yongjun Director
AXE BE
Man Huiyong Director
meR BE

Li Chunzhi Director
FEX BE
Independent non-executive Directors

BAFHITES

Chen Junping Director
FR¥5 £F
Zhao Xuguang Director
IR HE

Liu Jingtai Director
Ell=ed B%
Luan Dalong Director
E YN EE

92 | Beijing Jlingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)
Description:

The executive Director and non-executive Directors of the Company have
rich experience in production, operation and management and they all are
able to make reasonable decisions in respect of the matters proposed by
the Board. Among the four independent non-executive Directors, one is a
person with rich experience in intelligent manufacturing industry; one is a
PRC qualified lawyer with accomplishments in law; one is a PRC certified
public accountant with many years of experience in respect of corporate
management advisory and accounting practice; and one is an industry
researcher with extensive experience in the integration of industry and
finance. Such independent non-executive Directors have full capability of
assessing internal control and reviewing financial report. The composition
of the Board was in full compliance with the requirements of the relevant
domestic and overseas laws and regulations and regulatory documents.

During the Reporting Period, to the best of the knowledge of the Board,
there existed no relationship between and among the members of the Board
(including the chairman and the general manager) with respect to finance,
business, family or other relevant relationship required to be disclosed.

The Company is in strict compliance with the relevant restrictions on
securities transactions by directors imposed by the PRC and Hong Kong
regulatory authorities and is always adhering to the principle of being in
strict compliance with the rules.

1. Chairman and General Manager
The chairman and the general manager of the Company are assumed
by different persons, and their respective duties are clearly divided.

The chairman is the legal representative of the Company and is
elected by more than half of all Directors of the Board. The chairman
is responsible for corporate planning and strategic decision-makings
and chairing the Board, and ensuring that the Board will review all
the matters concerned in an appropriate manner for facilitating the
effective operation of the Board.

The chairman is entitled to preside over the general meetings, to
convene and chair the Board meetings, to examine and check the
implementation of the resolutions of the Board, and to sign the
securities issued by the Company and other important documents.
Upon authorisation by the Board, the chairman can also convene the
general meetings and provide guidance to the Company’s important
business activities during the adjournment of the Board meetings.

The general manager is appointed by the Board and is accountable
to the Board. The general manager leads the management to take
charge of daily production, operation and management of the
Company, and organization and implementation of all resolutions of
the Board. As required by the Board or the Supervisory Committee,
the general manager will report to the Board or the Supervisory
Committee, on a regular basis, regarding the execution and
performance of major contracts, and the utilisation of funds, as well
as the profit and loss.

The chairman, as the core of strategic decision-making, is responsible
for convening the Board to consider the Company’s major issues,
including periodic reports, strategic planning, annual budgets and
investment plans. The chairman is also responsible for overseeing
the implementation of the Board's resolutions, appraising the
performance of senior management officers, safeguarding the
interests of the Shareholders and other governance functions.
Externally, the chairman signs legal documents and liaises with other
parties on behalf of the Company.
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2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

1.

Chairman and General Manager (Continued)

The general manager, as the centre of operational execution,
translates the Board'’s strategies into specific operational plans
and promotes their implementation, coordinates the collaboration
between departments, formulates internal systems and manages
the middle management team. The general manager is also directly
responsible for market development, business negotiations and the
achievement of day-to-day operational targets, and reports operating
results to the Board on a regular basis to ensure the competitiveness
of the Company and the ultimate realization of its financial goals.

Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors

Except for Ms. Chen Junping, an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, each of the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors of the Company has a term of
office of three years (the same as the other Directors), commencing
from 16 June 2023 to the conclusion of 2025 annual general
meeting. Ms. Chen Junping, an independent non-executive Director
of the Company, has a term of office of two years, commencing
from 27 June 2024 to the conclusion of the 2025 annual general
meeting.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Authority and Powers of the Board
(1) to convene the general meetings and report its work to the
general meetings;

(2)  toimplement the resolutions passed at the general meetings;

(3)  to decide on the Company’s business plans and investment
schemes;

(4)  to formulate the Company’s annual financial budget plan and
final account plan;

(5)  to formulate the Company's profit distribution plan and loss
recovery plan;

(6) to formulate proposals for increase or reduction of the
registered capital and the issue of corporate debentures of the
Company;

(7)  to draw up proposals for important acquisition, purchase of
the Company’s share, or merger, demerger, dissolution and
change in the form of the Company;

(8)  to decide within the authorization of the general meeting on
external investment, purchase and sale of assets or mortgage
of assets, external guarantee, entrusted wealth management,
connected transaction and other matters;

(9)  to determine the establishment of the Company’s internal
management structure;

(10) to appoint or dismiss the Company’s manager and secretary
to the Board, to appoint or dismiss, as nominated by the
manager, deputy managers and financial controller of the
Company, and to determine their remuneration;

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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XVl. Others (Continued) +/\_\‘ ﬁ'i_j, (#8)
2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued) 2024 FEEEARE @
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued) EERESEHERE)
3. Authority and Powers of the Board (Continued) 3. EFSREHE
(11)  to formulate basic management policy for the Company; (1) HIERRERNERGIE
(12) to formulate amendment proposal to the Articles of (12) HIFTARERBERAR
Association;
(13)  to manage the Company's information disclosure; (13) BEATHEEHESIE
(14) to determine the Company’s interim dividend distribution (14) SREIRTE AR HARFIR 7 %
plan;
(15) to propose to the general meeting to appoint or change an (15) MBREAFRBEFIERLEAD
accountancy firm of the Company; AR ETRN AT ¢
(16) to listen to the work report by the manager of the Company (16) BEMARLENIEERITRE
and inspect their work; IBH)TAE
(17) to exercise other powers conferred by laws, administrative (17) R’ - TTBUER - MAREHA
regulations, departmental rules or the Articles of Association; BIRR TR A M IEAE
and
(18) to exercise any other powers conferred by the general (18) MEAGE THE MR -
meetings.
4.  Remunerations of Directors and Senior Management Officers 4 EBREREEANEHTHREFZESF
and Assessment of the Board %
(1) Service contracts of Directors and Supervisors (1) EFHEFRBEEL

The Directors and Supervisors have entered into written EEREFHRANAGZERE

contracts with the Company wherein the main contents are as 2 EEZHEWOT :

follows:

(i)  Except for the contract for Ms. Chen Junping, an () BREBIFERNTEZTHRHTL
independent non-executive Director, each contract THN BT EEEEES
for the Directors of the eleventh session of the Board ME+—EHEZEEEE
and the Supervisors of the eleventh session of the MEKIM2023F6 16
Supervisory Committee commenced on 16 June 2023 15 - B2025FRERBF K
and will end upon the conclusion of the 2025 annual gk BETFLZLHEL
general meeting. The contract for Ms. Chen Junping F2024F6 A27HF®G - &
commenced on 27 June 2024 and will end upon the 2025FIRFFF ARG ©

conclusion of the 2025 annual general meeting.

(i) An annual salary system is in place for senior (if) %%/\E\Eﬁfﬁ%%l ° N A
management. The annual salary of senior management =% A EMFF B %ZMQ
of the Company comprises three parts, being basic A Mﬁl?\ﬂ%ﬁ%a B
salary, performance pay and special contribution )\Ejﬁfﬁ AR o HAp - BR
income. Of which, the basic annual salary is determined F % BN a Eﬁi%’f?i
by the remuneration and monitoring committee at i@*ﬁ?ﬁﬁ% KT
the beginning of each year with reference to factors A EFgE ﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁ@ﬂi@%ﬁ
such as the industry remuneration level, the results of #I?Elﬁi?ﬂﬁﬁm
operation of the Company for the previous year and B AR SR A 4:}1 ﬁ%ﬁ”
total remuneration. The distribution coefficients are ABETE < 8% - KRR D
determined based on position evaluation. Typically, the FeRE R - BlRKIE - B
distribution coefficient of general manager is 1, and BATA - BT - 8%
the distribution coefficients of deputy general manager, AR EFeWEREM
financial controller, chief engineer, general counsel, SREEABNSRAE A
secretary to the Board and other senior management 0.6-0.9 °

officers range from 0.6 to 0.9.
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2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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2024 FEEEARE @

Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued) EERESEHENE)
4.  Remunerations of Directors and Senior Management Officers 4 EBREREEANEHTHREFZESF

and Assessment of the Board (Continued) #% (&)

(1) Service contracts of Directors and Supervisors (Continued) (1) EFBHEBRESL(E)
The basic salary is paid on a monthly basis, while the amount B AR AT T8N - &
of performance pay shall be determined in accordance with xﬁ( TR A T AREEE ¢ %}Mﬁl
the following formula: performance pay = basic salary x A=ERRA X EBREE XD
performance coefficient x distribution coefficient, and the L VG CT @NE@%V?
performance coefficient shall be assessed by the remuneration BERBEFELRLEERET
and monitoring committee based on the annual performance EZiz - wEFE %mLiﬂ =8
of the Company’s business and reported to the Board for AERRABMEMMEERE
consideration and approval. Special contribution income HERMSESERERAH - B
may be granted to senior management officers who have KElE - WEMGBBEERR - A
made significant contribution to the implementation of the RIERBA - (TEERFRIZRY
strategies of the Company or have received awards from BT ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁ/\,@\%ﬁﬁl%ﬁ
the government or industry associations for significant BRUBA « HERERMBABAF
innovation in management, technological innovation and EEgHMEEZES @%V
strong investment income. Special contribution income shall % WMEEFEHEB HHE
be reviewed by the remuneration and monitoring committee EalTEBARBISET - EX
of the Board before submission to the Board for consideration E&;Fiﬂﬁ%%?& UNCIEEEVE -
and approval and shall not exceed RMB0.15 million. Chairman c BB EME SR BE
of the Board and non-executive Directors do not receive %*ETE?%EE$ EIAG=TNG
remuneration in the Company. Supervisors are not entitled FrE %5 (BR 85 F RS 5N ) B EHr
to receive Supervisors’ remuneration, but are entitled to Bl - B IEENITE G A R
receive remuneration according to their respective positions HFEERE ARESET
in the Company and its subsidiaries (other than supervisors'
positions). Independent non-executive Directors will be
entitled to receive an annual remuneration of RMB80,000.

(2)  Assessment and Incentive Mechanism for Senior Management (2) BEREEAEHNZTRYUEET

Officers

During the Reporting Period, the Board of the Company
entered into the “Performance Assessment Contract for
Senior Management” with the senior management officers.
The remuneration and monitoring committee of the Board
would report to the Board for examination and approval after
assessing the completion of the “Performance Contracts” by
the senior management officers.

5. Duties of the management

HREHAN  ARFEFSESH
%I@A%%EN%%&%@/\%%@
%"f?%ﬁ BR) EEEHHMEE
BEEAERESREEAR (LA
/\IT>>7EEZ\§/R.:HEH AR - RE
EgEL -

5 EEENBE

Pursuant to the authority and power conferred by the Articles of RAATREBERBEAAZEM T A
Association, the management of the Company undertakes the major #EERTUTEE - A5E8ER
duties as follows: to be responsible for organizing and implementing RRBFELETEMRE TR : #a]
the Company’s annual operating plan and investment plan; to ARTFAEEERBRE AR BTN
propose the establishment of internal management institution for NAIMEREIRGE  BELEERER
the Company; to propose the basic management mechanism for the JEREEgBAEIME AN EIEA
Company; to appoint or dismiss such management members whose 8 HlI5]~ ET%K%%E%%E °

appointment and dismissal are not subject to the Board; to formulate
the basic regulations for the Company and other matters.
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2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

6.

Remunerations of auditors

Upon the completion of audit work for the year of 2023, ShineWing
Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), the
financial report auditor of the Company, and Da Hua Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership), the internal
control auditor of the Company, had provided audit services for
the Company for more than 10 years and 7 years, respectively,
which exceeded the maximum term for a company to engage an
accounting firm consecutively as stipulated in the “Administrative
Measures for the Selection and Engagement of Accounting Firms by
State-Owned Enterprises and Listed Companies” by the Ministry of
Finance of the People’s Republic of China, the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council and
the CSRC. Therefore, the Company had to change its accounting
firm for the year of 2024.

In order to maintain the independence, objectiveness and fairness
of the audit work of the Company while taking into account
the business development needs of the Company, the Company
engaged WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP as its auditor for
the year of 2024 after the completion of a public tender process.
On 28 May 2024, the Board convened the sixth extraordinary
meeting of the eleventh session of the Board, where the “Resolution
in relation to the Selection and Appointment of Auditor for the
Financial Statements Audit and Internal Control Audit for 2024" was
considered and approved. The resolution was subject to the approval
of the 2023 annual general meeting of the Company and would be
effective from the date of approval at the annual general meeting.

On 27 June 2024, the Company held its 2023 annual general
meeting, where the Shareholders considered and approved the
appointment of WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP as the
auditor for the Company’s 2024 financial report and internal control
audit report of the financial report, and authorised the Board to sign
an appointment agreement with it and determine its remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants
LLP audited the accompanying financial report prepared in
accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises and the Company'’s internal control report.

During the Reporting Period, none of the remuneration of the
auditors was for the provision of non-audit services to the Company.

The audit fee payable to WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants
LLP for the Reporting Period amounted to RMB1.36 million, which
included fees for services provided by the financial auditor to the
Company in respect of the financial audit, the internal control audit
and related audit work.

During the Reporting Period, the Directors assumed the
responsibilities of preparing the financial report and the internal
control report. For the audit opinions on the financial report and
the internal control report issued by WUYIGE Certified Public
Accountants LLP, please refer to “Financial Report” as set out in
section 12 and “Internal Control Audit Report” as set out in section
13 of this annual report.
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2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

7.

10.

Internal control

Details on the internal control of the Company implemented by
the Board are set out in the section headed “Internal Control Audit
Report” as set out in section 13 of this annual report.

Delegation of authority by the Board

During the Reporting Period, any implementation of delegation
of authority by the Board to the operation management level
shall be subject to the approval of the Board. Such delegation
also requires the operation management level to regularly report
the implementation results regarding such matters under such
delegation. The Board has not delegated any authority with
respect to managerial or administrative functions to its committees
thereunder.

Corporate governance functions

During the Reporting Period, the Board performed its duties
regarding corporate governance: (1) to develop and review the
Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (2)
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (3) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on the compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (4) to develop, review and
examine the staff manual applicable to employees and Directors;
and (5) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. Details on the
implementation of the foregoing matters are set out in the section
headed “Internal Control Audit Report” as set out in section 13 of
this annual report.

Secretary to the Board
(1) The secretary to the Board is a senior management officer of
the Company.

(2)  The secretary to the Board is appointed by the Board of the
Company and reports duty to the chairman.

(3)  The main duties of the secretary to the Board include: to assist
the Directors with their handling of the day-to-day business
of the Board; to continuously provide the Directors with,
remind the Directors of, and ensure that the Directors are
aware of, the domestic and foreign regulators’ regulations,
policies and requirements in respect of the operation of the
Company; to assist the Directors and managers in proper
compliance with domestic and foreign laws, regulations,
the “Articles of Association” and other relevant rules in
exercising their power and performing their functions; to be
responsible for organizing and preparing the documents of
the Board and of the general meetings; to duly keep meeting
minutes; to ensure that decisions made at meetings are made
in accordance with statutory procedure and to keep track of
the implementation of the resolutions of the Board; to be
responsible for arranging and coordinating the disclosure of
information, coordinating the relationship with investors and
enhancing the transparency of the Company; to participate
in arranging for capital market financing; to handle the
relationship with intermediary organisations, regulators and
the media, and to promote good public relations.

(4)  The secretary to the Board has confirmed that he attended
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the Reporting Period.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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XVl. Others (Continued)

2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

11.

Participation in trainings by Directors, Supervisors and senior
management officers

Each newly appointed Director is provided with a comprehensive,
formal and tailor-made induction at the time of his appointment.
Thereafter, the Directors will be provided with updated information
as required by the Listing Rules, the law and other regulatory
requirements and the latest developments of the Group’s business,
and will be encouraged to participate in the Continuous Professional
Development training, in order to develop their knowledge and skills,
so as to ensure that they can continue to contribute to the Board in
a fully equipped and fit manner.

In order to develop and update the knowledge and skills of the
Directors, Supervisors and senior management to better serve

11>

EE EBEERBREEANBZINEIE
BRAZANESHEZIRESS
M EX RS REmMENEARM - &
% BF EENSHEEABFER
ETRA SRR REMEER T ERDY
BHERBAEEEBNRAER I
TUSB2ESEELRR - LBERR
SHMB LR MREESEAGS
E%@&ﬂé%%%%%?ﬁ%$@ﬁ
HEf o

RERENEE EENSHEEASR
ORI DS 83 Ol S PN

the Company, the Directors, Supervisors and senior management % MEHARES  HEERaMER
of the Company participated in the trainings in relation to the AB2ITCEWRAD - (REVRE) -
“Listing Rules”, “Corporate Governance”, “Corporate Internal CRRIMNERIZESD) - KFERERS) -
Control”, “Prevention of Insider Dealing”, “Information Disclosure”, (EEERE)  (EFHEDFHBEAEY

“Responsibilities of the Directors” during the Reporting Period, and
completed the training requirements of the regulatory authorities.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors participated
in the Continuous Professional Development training. All Directors
have also provided the Company with their training records during
the Reporting Period. A summary of their training records is set out
below:

Type of Continuous
Professional
Development training

FEEXRRER

Executive Director

BTES

@ik T

N

(=]

o

|- SERK T R E AR IE R E SR

REZE2024F12831HIEFERN  &F
BLEBETELER - TEEZNE M
AR FRBEENAR S BZEZEFIN
48k o WEMFICEMENT

Content of Continuous Professional Development training

FEEXBRRAR

Zhang Jiheng Comprehensive in-depth 1.

training

Participating in special seminars on “Corporate
Governance” and focusing on the optimization of

the decision-making mechanism of the Board and the
synergetic strategy of the senior management.

2. In-depth study of amendments to the “Listing Rules” and
discussing compliance risk response plans based on the
Company'’s actual cases.

3. Receiving intensive training on “Responsibilities of the

Directors” and focusing on Directors' obligations and legal
liabilities.
- BHE(REPRIE) BIAML - EHEBDEFEREEGEEL
BB [ 1 R SR A -
2 AESB(ETRADEIER - e AR ERRMIHTE
BERELEHE -
3. §§<§$§E>€§{b%%ﬂ| BREEERBEBEEIESME

SRAEE
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Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

11.  Participation in trainings by Directors, Supervisors and senior 11> EE -BEEREREENSZMEINE
management officers (Continued)

Non-executive Director

FHITES

Type of Continuous
Professional

A Hittom
2024 FEEEARE @
ESRESSAR (@)

AC:Y)

Development training Content of Continuous Professional Development training

HREXRRER

FREXRBRAR

Li Junjie

FEN

Wu Yanzhang (resigned on
30 December 2024)

RFE (FA2024412 A30H EHL)

Zhou Yongjun

JEXE

Cheng Lei (resigned on
30 December 2024)

& (2024412 A30 B BHE)

Strategic compliance
training

Strategic compliance
training

Strategic compliance
training

Strategic compliance
training

100 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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1. Annual update of the “Listing Rules”: focusing on
key amendments such as those relating to approval
of connected transactions and continuing disclosure
obligations to ensure that decision-making is in line with
regulatory requirements.

2. Mechanism for the “Prevention of Insider Trading”:
strengthening the awareness of confidentiality in relation
to sensitive information, learning to establish a firewall
mechanism and avoiding the legal risks of insider trading.

3. "“Corporate Governance” study: understanding the value
of the independent Director system and learning how to
ensure the efficient operation of the special committees of
the Board.

4. Trends of “Industry Regulation”: tracking the impact of
policy changes on operations and formulating compliance
strategies in a forward-looking manner.

1 (EMRADFEEH - BEMABZHEL - FHEREER
LR MIRRRFAEEEEK -

2 ABEABZE) EE - REBREEREEHR  BBEY
D3 MG - SRE AR SERER o

3. (RAVRE)HE - BRMBEVESHEEE  2REFEH
FIZEaaRuEEN X -

4 (FTEEE)EEE  RMBRECHEBNTE - JIEGR
B -

1. Annual update of the “Listing Rules”: new regulations on
connected transactions and information disclosure.

2. Mechanism for the “Prevention of Insider Trading”:
strengthening awareness of information barriers for the
protection of sensitive information.

3. “Corporate Governance” study: the role of independent
Directors and how Board committees operate.

1 (EMHRBDFE R : Bl 5 HEBRENMA

2 (BAERZ)#E - 8RS SRRk RA o

3 (RFRVRE)ERE - BUEFERNE S SEFES -

1. Annual update of the “Listing Rules”: new regulations on
connected transactions and information disclosure.

2. Mechanism for the “Prevention of Insider Trading”:
strengthening awareness of information barriers for the
protection of sensitive information.

3. "“Corporate Governance” study: the role of independent
Directors and how Board committees operate.

1 (ETARBD FEEH - B S EE SRR -

2 B AERS) i - BURE BRREE R o

3 KRFPRIE)HRE - BUESEANE S 9B IFEE -

1. Annual update of the “Listing Rules”: new regulations on
connected transactions and information disclosure.

2. Mechanism for the “Prevention of Insider Trading”:
strengthening awareness of information barriers for the
protection of sensitive information.

3. “Corporate Governance” study: the role of independent
Directors and how Board committees operate.

1 (EMHRBDFE R : Bl 5 HEBRENM

2 (BAERF) I - 8RS SFREfR LR

3 (RFRVRE)HRE - BUEFERNE S QEFES -
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Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

11.  Participation in trainings by Directors, Supervisors and senior 11> EE -BEEREREENSZMEINE
management officers (Continued)

Non-executive Director

Type of Continuous

Professional

ERHE QEDAE

+/\_\ N 'ﬂij, (%)

mmEEmﬁéﬁﬁ%@>
ESRESSAR (@)

AC:Y)

Development training Content of Continuous Professional Development training

FHITES BEEXBRRESR FEEXBRERR
Man Huiyong Strategic compliance 1. Annual update of the “Listing Rules”: new regulations on
training connected transactions and information disclosure.

2. Mechanism for the “Prevention of Insider Trading”:
strengthening awareness of information barriers for the
protection of sensitive information.

3. Trends of “Industry Regulation”: the impact of policy
changes on the operations of an enterprise.

MEE B A RANET 1 (EMREBD FEEH Fﬂﬂﬁﬁx%éﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ o

2~ (PEARIS) #Fl - SUK(E SIRRERRLR AN ©

3. (TERE)BE  RESLEEEENTE -

Li Chunzhi Strategic compliance 1. Annual update of the “Listing Rules”: new regulations on
training connected transactions and information disclosure.

2. Mechanism for the “Prevention of Insider Trading”:
strengthening awareness of information barriers for the
protection of sensitive information.

3. Trends of “Industry Regulation”: the impact of policy
changes on the operations of an enterprise.

FEK BIBR & AR AE 1 (EMHRBIDFEEF Eﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁ?%ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ&?@%ﬁﬁ o

Independent non-executive
Director

BYFHTES

Xiong Jianhui (resigned on
27 June 2024)

REFEHE (2202446 427 HEHT)

Chen Junping (appointed on
27 June 2024)

BRI (74202456 A27 HIEZR(T)

Training for the
enhancement of

supervision
B R(L AR

Training for the
enhancement of

supervision
BRI AL

2. <<|9‘5%’|§|7<J% 2 5) Hibl USSR B ‘?ﬁ{K* *ﬂlo
3. GTEEE) B RESLHOREENT

1. In-depth training on “Responsibilities of the Directors”:
focusing on the area of financial supervision, mastering
the key points of the audit committee's performance, and
strengthening risk warning capabilities.

2. Evaluation of the effectiveness of “Internal Control”:
learning the evaluation methodology, identifying the
deficiencies in control and making recommendations for
rectification.

3. Regulatory trends of “Prevention of Insider Trading”:
analyzing regulatory cases and enhancing independent
supervision awareness and questioning capabilities.

1 CERRERERE  BEMBEREE - ZREAEES
SEBEL - RCERBERES o

2~ (REREES) BRI EHE - BB EHER AW - BT HIERE
Wi KB EE -

3 AMBARRZS)BEEBY - SMEERM - RABUEE
B EE RS -

1. Regulatory trends of “Prevention of Insider Trading”:
analyzing regulatory cases and enhancing independent
supervision awareness and questioning capabilities.

2. Improving the quality of “Information Disclosure”: studying
typical regulatory letters to optimize the authenticity and
completeness of disclosures.

3. “Compliance Audit” practices: mastering the design of
internal audit processes and enhancing the effectiveness of
compliance inspection.

1 (FrEAER %W“Q B OMEERD - BB LEE

B EE RS -

2. <<f:, %ﬁg§>%¥kﬂ MR E R HRBI D] - BCHER
NAEEMHETEE -

3 (ARBIHEH - BREANMEIRIRET  IBASRBRE
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11.  Participation in trainings by Directors, Supervisors and senior 11 EE BEREREZASZMIZIE
management officers (Continued) B (&)
Type of Continuous
Independent non-executive Professional
Director Development training Content of Continuous Professional Development training
BYFHTES BEEXBRRESR FEEXBRERR
Zhao Xuguang Training for the 1. In-depth training on“Responsibilities of the Directors”:
enhancement of focusing on the area of financial supervision, mastering
supervision the key points of the audit committee's performance, and

strengthening risk warning capabilities.

2. Evaluation of the effectiveness of “Internal Control”:
learning the evaluation methodology, identifying the
deficiencies in control and making recommendations for
rectification.

3. Regulatory trends of “Prevention of Insider Trading”:
analyzing regulatory cases and enhancing independent
supervision awareness and questioning capabilities.

4. Improving the quality of “Information Disclosure”: studying
typical regulatory letters to optimize the authenticity and
completeness of disclosures.

5. “"Compliance Audit” practices: mastering the design of
internal audit processes and enhancing the effectiveness of
compliance inspection.

B B R(L ARSI 1 CEERERERE  BEMBEREE - ZREEAEE
SEBEL - RCERBERES o

2~ (ARSI B RERHE - BEFETER - BRIEHIERE
AR B R o
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Liu Jingtai Training for the 1. In-depth training on “Responsibilities of the Directors”:
enhancement of focusing on the area of financial supervision, mastering
supervision the key points of the audit committee's performance, and

strengthening risk warning capabilities.

2. Evaluation of the effectiveness of “Internal Control”:
learning the evaluation methodology, identifying the
deficiencies in control and making recommendations for
rectification.

3. Regulatory trends of “Prevention of Insider Trading”:
analyzing regulatory cases and enhancing independent
supervision awareness and questioning capabilities.

4. Improving the quality of “Information Disclosure”: studying
typical regulatory letters to optimize the authenticity and
completeness of disclosures.

5. "Compliance Audit” practices: mastering the design of
internal audit processes and enhancing the effectiveness of
compliance inspection.
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Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued) EERESSHRK (B
11.  Participation in trainings by Directors, Supervisors and senior 11 EF -EEREREZEANSZMEIE
management officers (Continued) T (&)

Type of Continuous

Independent non-executive Professional

Director Development training Content of Continuous Professional Development training
BYFHTES BEEXBRRESR FEEXBRERR
Luan Dalong Training for the 1. In-depth training on “Responsibilities of the Directors”:
enhancement of focusing on the area of financial supervision, mastering
supervision the key points of the audit committee's performance, and
strengthening risk warning capabilities.

2. Evaluation of the effectiveness of “Internal Control”:
learning the evaluation methodology, identifying the
deficiencies in control and making recommendations for
rectification.

3. Regulatory trends of “Prevention of Insider Trading”:
analyzing regulatory cases and enhancing independent
supervision awareness and questioning capabilities.

4. Improving the quality of “Information Disclosure”: studying
typical regulatory letters to optimize the authenticity and
completeness of disclosures.

5. “"Compliance Audit” practices: mastering the design of
internal audit processes and enhancing the effectiveness of
compliance inspection.
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G

12.  Statement regarding Responsibility for financial statements 12 EFERHBHEEZETEY
by the Board

AERAEERRRBERARESHR

This statement is intended to provide the Shareholders with a clear

13.

distinction between the respective responsibilities of the Directors
and the auditors in connection with service reports which should
be read in conjunction with the statement regarding responsibility
by auditors contained in the auditors’ report set out in the financial
statements.

The Board is of the opinion that as the Company’s resources are
sufficient for its operation in the foreseeable future, the financial
statements have been prepared based on the going concern
principle, and that in preparation of such financial statements,
applicable accounting policies were adopted, completely
implemented, supported by reasonable and prudent judgment
and estimates, and that the preparation of the statements is in
compliance with all accounting standards the Board considers
applicable.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the accounts record
prepared by the Company reasonably and accurately reflects the
Company'’s financial position, and that the financial statements are
in compliance with the requirements under relevant accounting
standards in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Company maintained sufficient public float during the
Reporting Period.

13>
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Shareholders’ Right

14.

(1)

To convene an extraordinary general meeting

Where Shareholders request to convene an extraordinary
general meeting or class meeting, the following procedures
shall be followed:

(i) Two or more Shareholders who collectively hold more
than 10% (10% inclusive) of the voting shares at
the proposed meeting may propose to the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting by signing one or several written requests
with same content in same format and may define the
meeting agenda. The Board shall convene such meeting
as soon as possible upon receipt of the aforesaid
written request(s). The aforesaid number of shares held
shall be calculated as of the date when the written
request(s) was put forward by the Shareholders.

(ii) In the event that the Board fails to give a notice of
convening such meeting within thirty days upon receipt
of the aforesaid written request(s), the Shareholders
who put forward the request(s) may convene such
meeting of their own accord within four months upon
receipt of the request by the Board, and the procedures
for convening such meeting shall be the same as those
for convening a general meeting by the Board where
possible.

The expenses reasonably incurred by Shareholders in
convening and holding such a meeting because of the Board's
failure to hold such meeting at the aforesaid request shall be
borne out by the Company and shall be deducted from any
payment due by the Company to the defaulting Directors.

Where the Shareholders decide to convene a general meeting
of their own accord, it/they shall give a written notice to the
Board and shall simultaneously file the case with the local
office of the CSRC and the stock exchange in the locality
where the Company operates for record.

Prior to the announcement of the resolution of the general
meeting, the shareholding of the convening Shareholders
shall be not less than 10%. When the convening Shareholders
deliver a notice of general meeting and make the
announcement of the resolution of the general meeting, the
convening Shareholders shall submit the relevant evidencing
materials to the local office of the CSRC and the stock
exchange in the locality where the Company operates.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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14.

2)

3)

The content of such resolution to be submitted to the general
meeting

The resolutions shall fall within the scope of authority and
power of the general meeting, have definite topics and
specific resolutions, and comply with the relevant provisions
of the laws, administrative regulations and the Company’s
Articles of Association.

Shareholders that independently or collectively hold 3% or
more of the shares in the Company may make a temporary
resolution and submit it to the convener(s) in written form
ten days prior to the convening of the general meeting. The
convener(s) shall deliver a supplementary notice of the general
meeting to announce the content of the temporary resolution
within two days upon receipt of the resolution.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, after delivering
a notice of general meeting, the convener(s) may not make
any amendments to the resolutions included in the notice or
add any new resolutions. Where the election of Directors or
Supervisors is proposed to be discussed at a general meeting,
the detailed information about the candidates for Directors or
Supervisors shall be sufficiently disclosed in the notice of the
general meeting, which shall at least include the following:

(i) Personal information regarding educational
background, working experience and concurrent
positions;

(i)  Whether he/she has any connected relationship
with the Company or its controlling shareholders or
beneficial controllers;

(i) The number of shares held in the Company to be

disclosed; and

(iv)  Whether he/she has been punished by the CSRC and

other relevant authorities and penalised by the stock

exchange.

A single resolution shall be made for each candidate for a
Director or a Supervisor, except for Directors or Supervisors
elected by way of cumulative voting system.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquires to the secretary to
the Board at the registered address of the Company for the
attention of the Board. The contact details are set out in the
“Company Profile” section of the annual report. Questions
about the procedures for convening or putting forward
resolutions at an annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting may also be put forward to the secretary to
the Board in the same manner.
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Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

15.  During the Reporting Period, there were material changes in

the documents of constitutional nature of the Company
(1)  Due to a change in the Campany’s registered capital and

in accordance with the “Trial Administrative Measures
for Overseas Securities Offering and Listing by Domestic
Companies” newly implemented and the “Rules for
Independent Directors of Listed Companies” newly amended
by the CSRC, the “Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (August 2023 Revision)”
and “Guidelines No. 1 of the Shanghai Stock Exchange on
the Self-Regulation Rules for Listed Companies — Regulated
Operation (August 2023 Revision)” newly amended by the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, and the “Proposals to Expand
the Paperless Listing Regime and Other Rule Amendments”
issued by the Stock Exchange, the Company passed a special
resolution at the Company’s annual general meeting on
27 June 2024 to amend the "Articles of Association” of
the Company. For the details of these amendments to the
“Articles of Association” of the Company, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 28 May 2024, and its
circular dated 28 May 2024.

(2)  In accordance with the “Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China” implemented on 1 July 2024 and taking
into account the actual circumstances of the Company, the
Company made amendments to the “Articles of Association”
of the Company. The revised “Articles of Association” still
need to be submitted to a general meeting of the Company
for consideration. For the details of these amendments to
the “Articles of Association” of the Company, please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 30 October 2024,
and its circular dated 3 April 2025 containing, among others,
the details of the proposed amendments to the "Articles
of Association" for the proposed convening of the general
meeting to consider the relevant resolution.

16.  Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board, through the assistance of the audit committee, has
conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
The Board is satisfied that such systems are effective and appropriate
actions have been taken.

The process used by the Company to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks is summarized as follows:

(1) Risk identification: identify risks that may pose a potential
impact on the Group's business and operations through the
audit committee, the management and the internal control
department;

(2)  Risk evaluation: evaluate the identified risks based on the
likelihood of the occurrence and impact level of the risk;

(3)  Response to risk: according to the evaluation results on
the magnitude of the risk, risk management strategies are
determined by the internal control department, and through
appropriate mechanisms of the Company to ensure the
effective implementation of internal control procedures to
prevent and reduce the risks.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued) EERESEHERE
16.  Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) 16. [EBREERASBESE ()

The main features of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems are the focus on establishment of a sound internal

AEERRER LA R AT R
HEEEAERVRMNHNTERE - Ak

control environment, continuous improvement in risks evaluation, Tl EEDED) - EEEER - ARRK
activities control, information and communication, and continuous HESE ETETIRA M S - HMEFER
enhancement and improvement of internal supervision so as A ERERNRS  RHREFBERE

to enhance the Company’s operating efficiency and ensure the
reliability of financial reporting and effective compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, in order to avoid any financial losses
as a result of fraud.

The Board of the Company is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
However, the internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The internal control department of the Group reviews the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
by reviewing the annual internal control audit plan approved by
the audit committee, it identifies internal control defects through
periodic audits and special audits. With the recommendation in the
audit proposal and its status of implementation, the department
keeps track of and resolves serious internal control defects.
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In relation to the handling and dissemination of inside information BIE LR R RES RS GO (BAE
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures PIES71E) R REMATEEME -
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has AEEERDNBEEREAEENEEE
adopted measures including raising awareness of confidentiality of HREES  EHREEANESFXE
inside information in the Group, issuing notices regarding “black- ’Eﬁﬁﬂn RGBRFHIHBANEERE - R
out” period and restrictions on dealings to Directors and employees BEHRBBEMAREHEE

on a regular basis to ensure compliance when handling and

disclosing inside information.

According to the relevant laws and regulations, combined with the NARBAEBEEERLES QB RE

internal control system and evaluation methods of the Company, in
respect of the routine supervision and special supervision over the
internal control, we have evaluated the effectiveness and adequacy
of the internal control of the Company from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2024.
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17.

Dividend Policy

The basic principles of the profit distribution policy of the Company:
The Company shall take full account of return to investors and
distribute dividend to its shareholders each year in the prescribed
proportion of the distributable profit realized in the year concerned
(from the consolidated financial statements). The profit distribution
policy of the Company maintains continuity and stability, and takes
into account the long-term interest of the Company, the entire
interest of all its shareholders and the sustainable development
of the Company. The Company shall give priority to dividend
distribution in cash.

The manner of profit distribution: The Company may distribute
dividends in cash, in shares, in a combination of both cash and
shares. Subject to conditions, the Company may propose interim
profit distribution.

Specific conditions and proportions of cash dividend of the
Company:

Upon satisfying all below conditions regarding cash dividend, the
dividend distributed by the Company in cash each year shall be no
less than 5% of the distributable profits (as stated in the consolidated
financial statements) realized in the year. The accumulated dividend
distributed by the Company in cash in the past three years shall be
no less than 30% of the average annual distributable profits (from
the consolidated financial statements) realized in the past three
years:

(1) if the distributable net profits realized by the Company in the
year concerned (i.e. net profit of the Company net of loss
recovery and allocation of its profits to the statutory reserve)
are positive with adequate liquidity, the Company may
distribute dividend in cash provided that it shall not undermine
the subsequent ongoing operation of the Company;

(2)  if the accumulated distributable profits of the parent company
are positive;

(3)  auditors had issued an audit report with standard unqualified
opinion for the financial statements of the Company for that
year;

(4)  no special circumstances have occurred to the Company
(excluding financing projects);

The aforementioned “special circumstances” refer to material
investment plans or significant cash expenditures (excluding
financing projects) with accumulated expenditure made by
the Company within the following 12 months amounting
to or exceeding 25% of the latest audited net assets of the
Company; “material investment plans” or “significant capital
expenditures” include external investment, external repayment
of debts or material asset acquisitions.

(5)  there is no situation in which the principal and interest of the
bond cannot be repaid on time or the principal and interest of
the matured bond cannot be repaid on time.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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17.  Dividends Policy (Continued) 17. S ()
Specific conditions for distributing dividends in shares by the T?EE&HXWHXiﬁ B BB 51T
Company
Where the Company’s business is sound, and the Company’s share NAELEEARG B 2m1f:|rfé
price valuation is within a reasonable range, under the condition that J%EA/\IS'@%EI A - TLMETF Ea e
the minimum cash dividend ratio and the reasonableness of the size f‘E//leji/R ERFBHRERS ‘?Il:tfﬁ‘l 5Fl]
of the Company's share capital could be ensured, dividends in shares NEIRAHRESEOART - HARE
can be used for profit distribution according to the status of the Hxﬂﬁ‘ti&ﬂﬂﬂ S AC
provident fund and cash flow.

18.  Nomination Policy 18. 1EEHE

According to the nomination policy of the Company (the
“Nomination Policy”), the nomination committee shall consider
the following criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorship:

Character and integrity; qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant

BED AR EGE ([RAEE]) -
by Pl b
BT -

miS A BIE - BEEAQRER
MR BRI EXER - 5t - A

to the Company’s business and corporate strategy; willingness to B (FREZGNE - EEERA
devote adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board; RHARRERITEE

Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted for
achieving diversity on the Board; requirement for the Board to have
independent Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules applicable
to the Company and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules; other views that are appropriate to the
Company'’s business or as suggested by the Board.

The procedure of nomination by the nomination committee is
summarised as follows:

o The nomination committee reviews the structure, size and

BEEeZTtMEURAREREEES
TLTEREEER A EN BT ER
EEeRBERRNARRN LTRAR
UBUEER - ARBE LHRARTIE
MFESIAERBIREARDWRBIBIULE
= EARARRERRESTSREN
HAibEE -

REZERRENEFHMANT

. REZEGEHARNEEGNR

composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) 1 - R R (BIEEE - AN
of the Board periodically and make recommendation on &#m%ﬁ) W ptsE %AE’JEHEW
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the E?Iﬂjﬁim PRSI/
Company's corporate strategy; ﬁ%’ﬁﬁﬁk ;

. When it is necessary to fill a casual vacancy or appoint an . R ZEBGRERE EEN
additional Director, the nomination committee identifies or BERK REZEEREBEALY
selects candidates as recommended to the committee, with AR - FEH ﬁﬁ?l\*ﬂé%i$
without assistance from external agencies or the Company, NEBEIRIERT « EAISER

pursuant to the criteria set out above;

o If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
nomination committee shall rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference check of

EHBLAZEENREA

each candidate (where applicable); & (anE
B
. The nomination committee makes recommendation to the . REZBSNESTREESR -

Board including the terms and conditions of the appointment;

The Board considers and decides on the appointment based upon
the recommendation of the nomination committee; The procedure
of re-appointment of Director at the general meeting is summarised
as follows:

BRI AR

EEeREREEZEENEREFZLR
EfEem %EI&%?:AL@FE@{%%%%
Frfaian T
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2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

18.

19.

Nomination Policy (Continued)

In accordance with the Company’s “Articles of Association”, every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and shall be eligible for re-election at the general
meetings; the nomination committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring Director.
The nomination committee shall also review the expertise and
professional qualifications of the retiring Director, who offered
himself/herself for re-appointment at the general meetings, to
determine whether such Director continues to meet the criteria as set
out above; based on the review made by nomination committee, the
Board shall make recommendations to Shareholders on candidates
standing for re-appointment at the general meeting of the Company,
and provide the biographical information of the retiring Director in
accordance with the Listing Rules to enable Shareholders to make
an informed decision on the reappointment of such candidates at
annual general meetings of the Company. The Board will from time
to time review the nomination policy and monitor its implementation
to ensure its continued effectiveness and compliance with regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice.

Board Diversity Policy

In order to improve the efficiency of the Board and corporate
governance, the Company recognises the diversification at the Board
level as an important element in maintaining competitive advantage.
The diversity of the Board of the Company is beneficial to enhancing
the performance of the Company. According to the Board Diversity
Policy of the Company (the “Diversity Policy”), the selection of
candidates for the Board will be based on a range of diversity areas,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, race, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
appointments to the Board shall follow the principle of meritocracy,
taking into account objectively the benefits of diversity of members
of the Board when considering the candidates.

The Board conducts an annual review of the Diversity Policy. The
Board will consider setting measurable objectives when implementing
the Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to
ensure its appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. Current Board members have varied
educational backgrounds and expertise, diverse perspectives and
competencies in areas which are relevant and valuable to the Group,
including accounting, economics, strategic planning, business
development and management. As of the end of the Reporting
Period, the ratio of male employees to female employees (including
senior management officers) was approximately 6:1. The Company
will continue to support measures that promote employee diversity
and increase the number of potential gender-diverse Director
successors in recruitment and selection in the future.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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2024 Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

20.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

With a view to safeguarding the fundamental interests of the
Shareholders, the Company has formulated its shareholders'
communication policy and established a multi-dimensional
communication mechanism. Through channels such as annual
general meetings, electronic interactive platforms, results
presentation meetings, “SSE e Interview”, Company mailbox and
written feedback, the Company ensures that the Shareholders
can fully express their views on matters relating to the Company's
strategy, governance and operation. In the implementation of the
policy, a systematic process for the collection of opinions has been
adopted. Through regular communication with the Shareholders,
convening special meetings for the management, optimizing
the mechanism for tracking the implementation of supervisory
suggestions, the Company has formed a closed-loop management
system based on “collection—analysis—improvement—feedback”,
thus ensuring that the Company receives and takes into account the
Shareholders’ opinions and implements the relevant opinions and
suggestions in a timely manner.

During the year, the Company conducted a comprehensive
assessment of the effectiveness of its policy. Taking into account
feedback from the Shareholders, management reports and
professional opinions, the Company focused on the efficiency of
information dissemination, the quality of response to requests
and the effectiveness of governance enhancement. After careful
examination, the Company concluded that the current framework
worked well in enhancing transparency in decision-making and
promoting Shareholders’ trust and was in line with international
governance standards and regulatory requirements. The Company
will continue to optimize the framework based on Shareholders'
expectations and regulatory guidance to ensure that the effectiveness
of the communication mechanism can stand the test of practice.

During the Reporting Period, no Shareholder raised any objection
to the communication policy. Accordingly, the Board is satisfied
with the implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s
communication with the Shareholders during the Reporting Period.
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EfE

. Environmental Information

Whether relevant mechanisms of environmental protection are established
RAEEIRFEREEES

Funds for environmental protection invested during the Reporting Period (unit: R\MB’0,000)

HERARNRARRE 2 (B

CAREET

(i) Description on the environment protection of the
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under
key sewage emission entities announced by the

environment protectlon authorities
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable

1. Information on emission of pollutants

\/ Applicable

1.

[J Not Applicable

Information of wastewater emission

Tianjin Tianhai High Pressure Container Co., Ltd. has
2 comprehensive wastewater discharge ports, the
wastewater is discharged into the urban sewage pipe
network after sedimentation and discharged after
being treated by the sewage treatment plant in the
Tianjin Port Free Trade Zone. Pollution factors include
PH value, suspended solids, chemical oxygen demand,
petroleum, biochemical oxygen demand, ammonia
nitrogen.

In 2024, the wastewater underwent sampling
and monitoring by Tianjin Guona Product Testing
Technology Service Co., Ltd. (first half of the year) and
Tianjin Hongyuan Testing Technology Co., Ltd. (second
half of the year), and the results were in compliance
with Tianjin Province “Overall Sewage Emission
Standard” DB12/356-2018 (Level 3), and all reached
the emission standard.

Table 1-1 Statistical table of emission
concentration of water pollutants

+it

— REEEER

(=

Emission

concentration
monitoring data
(annual average)

Yes
=
263.36

) BRIREREIFIDMEOER B
FEUNRAARETEFRATN
BRRERHA

ViER O TEm

1 H5ER
ViR O Es

1~

KB IER
RKEXKG=BABEREL
P2ELE A REXRBER D - BE
$mﬁéﬁkﬁmﬁma
R EBRT E /H 7j<
J‘éiﬁlﬁ&if@fﬁ{é@l\ﬁt

20245  BEKAE RIEBIN
EmBREIMmREERA
A (E¥F) « KEMRRR
BRI A BE/&ET%H?% %081
(FEF)  HBRHEAFEKX
5$m<<5%7}<2$9%3tﬁﬁz$%—‘$>>
DB12/356-2018(=#%) + &
FEEBE

R1-1KEFRYFERRES
HES

Unit: mg/L
F BRI

i

HHBRE
EREE
(F¥ME)
Pollutants Standard limit 2024 Emission pattern  Emission flow
SRY BERE 2024F  BERURE BB Em
Regular poIIutants PH value 6~9 7.4  Stable and Sewage treatment
NS ) PHE continuous plant in the Tianjin
chemical oxygen 500 73 disposal Port Free Trade
demand TS BN Zone
2TaE REBRBIEITK
ammonia nitrogen 45 5.2 BRI R
R
suspended solids 400 27.5
B
total nitrogen 70 10.2
BA
total phosphorous 8 0.61
Fit
Characteristic pollutants petroleum 15 0.46
BEUSRY AHiR

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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I.  Environmental Information (continued)
(i) Description on the environment protection of the
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under
key sewage emission entities announced by the

environment protection authorities (Continued)
Information on emission of pollutants (Continued)

1.

1.

Information of wastewater emission (Continued)
Table 1-2 Statistics of total emission volume of
water pollutants

Vaxa RS, a

5= 7NBP

RIBHESET

— REEEFIL®

(—) BRREREBPHAMPVERH
FEMNNATRREETEFATMN
RIREREREA @)

1 HEREE @

1

BEKBERLIE R ()
R1-2KGRNPFRBESR

a
a

Unit: ton
&
2024
20244

Pollutants Data source Production volume  Disposal volume
SRY BIERR EEE HE
Total disposal volume of wastewater Statistical method 118650 118650
REK B E REUE
Regular pollutants chemical oxygen demand Third-party testing 8.66 8.66
BRI d=-Fot =8 Lt

ammonia nitrogen Third-party testing 0.618 0.618

2R Lt

suspended solids Third-party testing 3.26 3.26

BIZY) Lt

total nitrogen Third-party testing 1.21 1.21

B Lt

total phosphorous Third-party testing 0.073 0.073

“amk Lt
Characteristic pollutants petroleum Third-party testing 0.054 0.054
(SE - Vapisek Lt

2. Information of exhaust gas emission 2 EESHMIER

Tianjin Tianhai High Pressure Container Co., Ltd. has 9
exhaust gas ports in total, of which there are 2 spray
paint exhaust gas ports, 1 manual touch-up exhaust
gas port, 2 heat treatment furnace exhaust gas ports,
2 spinning machines exhaust gas ports, 1 spraying
solidification exhaust gas port and 1 wrapped-up
solidification exhaust gas port. Exhaust gas pollution
factors are smoke and dust, blackness of flue gas, sulfur
dioxide, nitrogen oxides, benzene, toluene, xylene and
VOCS. The total discharge volume of sulfur dioxide,
nitrogen oxides and particulates are 0.747 tons, 11.223
tons and 0.659 tons, respectively.

In 2024, the exhaust gas underwent sampling
and monitoring by Tianjin Guona Product Testing
Technology Service Co., Ltd. and Tianjin Hongyuan
Testing Technology Co., Ltd., and the results were in
compliance with “Emission Standard of Air Pollutants
for Industrial Kilns and Furnaces” (DB12/556-2015)
and “Volatile Organic Compound Emission Control
Standards for Industrial Enterprises” (DB12/524-2020),
and all reached the emission standard.

RERBRBERZARET
Nal AR A E -
HAPBEZREREEO2ME - F
THRARBERBERO1E - 2
BRIBNERE R B O 218 - B
EEHAEE R BERR O 218 - EH
BELBERBEMO1E B4
BELERBEM D18 - BER
BHSAAETFEEE - &

REE - —&/(tF - A&k
R CBE . CHRX.
VOCS - Z&1bhi - Aat

YR TER A TE MEE AR 2
D R1A0.747 ~ 11.2230870
0.6590f °

202 4¢ BERIE R B
ERBASMREERA
Al - %/iﬁ?ﬁfﬁﬁiﬁwz’ﬁﬁ
BRABEE®RE - &R
HRFE(IEBZERNRTE
VI BERUZ %) (DB12/556—
2015)%u<<1¥ﬁ¥}$§§
M A Y BE RO AR )
(DB12/524—2020) &k -
EEEZHEM -
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I.  Environmental Information (continued)

(i) Description on the environment protection of the
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under
key sewage emission entities announced by the
environment protection authorities (Continued)

1.  Information on emission of pollutants (Continued) 1+ HS5ER @
2. Information of exhaust gas emission (Continued) 2 ERHHIEX (E)
Table 2-1 Statistical table of emission R2-1RRSRYERNRE
concentration monitoring of air pollutants Bt &
Annual
average
of emission
concentration
Maximum monitoring
allowable data Maximum
emission (mg/m?) allowable
concentration 2024 emission rate Actual
(mg/m3)  HERUREESH (kg/h)  emission rate
BEA BEBFYHE && 5 (kg/h)
Pollutants BERE (mg/m?3) HmER BRERGEER
SR (mg/m?) 20244 (kg/h) (kg/h)
Natural gas combustion
exhaust gas port
RARNREEERBER O
Regular pollutants sulfur dioxide 50 2.3 Nil 0.006
ESEE L) ¥ (1) i3
nitrogen oxides 150 8.76 Nil 0.026
AAltm &
particulates 20 0.85 Nil 0.125
Table 2-2 Statistical table of emission R22ARR ISR EAERE
concentration monitoring of air pollutants itk
Annual
average
of emission Annual
concentration average
Maximum monitoring of emission
allowable data Maximum concentration
emission (mg/m?) allowable monitoring
concentration 2024 emission rate data
(mg/m3)  BERUREER (kg/h) (kg/h)
BEA BHEBFYHE EEAFF  HEECERESR
Pollutants HRUERE (mg/m3) BHEE EBFYHE
B (mg/m?) 20244 (kg/h) (kg/h)
Spray paint exhaust gas port
ER TE R RPN A
Characteristic pollutants benzene 1 0.0086 0.2 0.0002
FEUSRD EiS
sum of toluene and xylene 20 0.43 0.6 0.008
REM-PEAE
volatile organic compounds 50 5.36 1.5 0.132
1B Y
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l.  Environmental Information (continued) — REEEBER@

(i) Description on the environment protection of the (=) EEAI&iR{%Dx nBF'EJ’Z\\ﬁ?E’JE%EEF
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under FEUNARREFEFATN
key sewage emission entities announced by the RIS A @)
environment protection authorities (Continued)

1.  Information on emission of pollutants (Continued) 1+ H5EE @
2. Information of exhaust gas emission (Continued) 2 BERAHMIER (E)
Table 2-3 Statistical table of total emission volume R2ZRRSRYHEHEE
of air pollutants Gat &
Unit: tons/year
B W FE
Emission volume of natural gas combustion 164,919,031m* 2024
KRR G RER I E 16491.90318 37 /5K 20244
Emission volume of spray paint and winding exhaust gas 269,007,265m?
E% - BETERERIINE 26900.72658 7 77 3
Pollutants Data source Emission volume (tons)
VEES) HIEAR HepE (Wg)
Regulargollutants sulfur dioxide Third- arty testing 0.421
BIRISRY) =R IR Zitigfl
nitrogen oxides Thlrdgarty testing 1.623
E=Rle7) Lt
particulates Third- party testing 0.18
FERLY) Eanvil
benzene Third- arty testing 0.003
P Zatie
sum of toluene and xylene Third- Earty testing 0.123
REFM—REREE Eanil
VOCS Third- arty testing 1.242
VOCS Zatol
3. Emission control on hazardous waste 3 f‘ BERE Y HE I )
Hazardous waste generated by the Company during NREEEREFEENR
the production process shall be transferred to Tianjin [SMJE?% Hz FRAE X B
Binhai Hejia Veolia Environmental Services Co., Ltd., a 'ﬁﬁgﬂ'ﬂi QR R E B
qualified hazardous waste disposal unit for disposal in TR A R
accordance with the regulations. LR BRBERRREITE
E o
Table 3 Statistical table of the generation and RIRKWBVEEREER
disposal of hazardous waste REE R

Unit: tons/year
Bf W F

Generation
volume per year
Form (disposal
Waste Major harmful (solld liquid, gas) Source of volume) 2024 Disposal
No. cate ory{ substance(s) R %eneration FE4XE(EEBESE) method
TR IBAERS (B KR 3 2024 REFR
1 HWO08 Qil Liquid Dis%osablgrafter use 0.34  Third-party disposal
o R & % Lt &
2 HW12 Water base paint, Liquid, solid Disposable after paint 11.21
paint residue, usage
powder N
IRKPERR - ' IEREAEEE
BB AR
3 HW13 Resin Solid Wrapping wire 5.58
Bl BEEAR
4 HW49 Waste activated  Solid Disposable after use 2.987
carbon, waste
filter wool, waste
glass fiber, waste
paint drums
REEMR - R E fE R REZE
/Fff% REREE
- BEORARME
Total 20.117
= u+
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l.  Environmental Information (continued) — REEEBER@

(i) Description on the environment protection of the (—) BRARERESMPAGHERH
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under BENNARREEREFARMN
key sewage emission entities announced by the BARE R &)
environment protection authorities (Continued)

1. Information on emission of pollutants (Continued) 1 HS5EEME
4. Emission control on general industrial solid waste 4> —RTHEEEEYHRIES
General industrial solid wastes generated during the EEREPEENEE -
production process, such as tube head and scrap iron, BE—WRITEEREY - f
shall be acquired by Tianjin Qingjianggiang Maoyi KEFIHRESAER AT
Company. i o
Table 4 Emission and disposal of general industrial RA—RTEEBEMHER
solid waste REEBR
Unit: tons/year
Bfy - i E
Name of Generation Comprehensive Disposal Storage Emission
Year solid waste volume utilization volume volume volume  Emission flow
F4 ERE S ELE REFRE REE BEE BHE HHED
2024 Short tube head 47.625 47.625 0 0 0  Recycled for utilization
BER el R A
Small pot head 151.88 151.88 0 0 0  Recycled for utilization
ANt Bl A
Oxide 290.15 290.15 0 0 0  Recycled for utilization
bt Bl A
Steel ring 155.08 155.08 0 0 0  Recycled for utilization
i P& Bl A
Steel cuttings 212.13 212.13 0 0 0  Recycled for utilization
)= el R A
Steel scrap bottle 5.8 5.8 0 0 0  Recycled for utilization
FEIM el R A
Total (tons) 862.665
A& ()
5. Emission control on noise pollution 5. RESZHMIZEHEL
Table 5 Emission and disposal of noise pollution ROBRBSREBMREER
n
Daytime noise Nighttime noise
emissions emissions
(6:00—22:00)/dB(A)  (22:00—6:00)/dB(A)
EREBREHER HREREHN
(6B5—2285) /dB(A)  (22B5—6E) /dB(A)
Measurement Corresponding Noise source Emission Emission
Year location noise source properties limit Result limit Result
F4 BB E HEEBR RERME B RE HERE  HHRE ERE
2024 Area around the plant Production equipment Mechanical noise 57 61 — —
=R EERE et 1 R
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l.  Environmental Information (continued)

Description on the environment protection of the
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under
key sewage emission entities announced by the
environment protection authorities (Continued)

()

2.

Construction and operation of pollution prevention &
treatment facilities
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable

Tianjin Tianhai High Pressure Container Co., Ltd. installed
facilities for prevention and control of pollution in sewage
node on each production facilities; exhaust gas ports which
produce volatile organic compounds adopted regeneration
processes such as dry filtration, activated carbon absorption,
catalytic combustion and desorption, respectively. It also
adopted secondary de-dusting in shot blasting process.
Facilities for prevention and control of pollution are operating
normally and effectively.

Environmental impact assessment of construction
project and other administrative licenses regarding
environmental protection

[J Applicable / Not applicable

Environmental emergency response plan
\/ Applicable [J Not applicable

In order to deal with unexpected environmental risk accidents,
the Company has established a sound emergency response
mechanism for unexpected environmental pollution accidents
to handle unexpected environmental pollution accident
occurred in the Company in a timely, high efficiency and
proper manner. In accordance with the relevant requirements
of the Environmental Protection Bureau of Tianjin Province
and the bonded area, the Company carried out work based
on the “Emergency Plans for Unexpected Environmental
Pollution Accidents of Tianjin Tianhai Company” in 2024.

Environmental self-monitoring scheme
\/ Applicable [J Not applicable

In 2024, Tianjin Tianhai High Pressure Container Co.,
Ltd. entrusted Tianjin Guona Product Testing Technology
Service Co., Ltd. and Tianjin Hongyuan Testing Technology
Co., Ltd. to test the discharge port in accordance with the
requirements of the monitoring plan. The test results all met
the requirement of the standard. (See Table 1-1, Table 2-2,
Table 5).
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.  Environmental Information (continued)

I Scction 6 Environmental and Social Responsibility
RIBETEET

+it

— REEEFL®

(i) Description on the environment protection of the (=) BREBRREIBPDMOERH

Company and its major subsidiaries falling under
key sewage emission entities announced by the

FEMNNATRREETEFATMN
RIREREREA @)

environment protection authorities (Continued)

5.  Environmental self-monitoring scheme (Continued) 5. BRIBETEAFR@E
1.  Implementation standard and limit of emission of 1  BAETHHEERERE
water pollutants

Standard of

Item concentration limit  Source of standard
HE BERERE RERE
PH value 6~9  “Overall Sewage Emission Standard”
PHIE (DB12/356-2018 (level 3)
CHKER B BEMIZ2) DB12/356—2018 = 4%

Suspended solids 400mg/L
Chemical oxygen demand 500mg/L
{tEFaE
Petroleum 15mg/L
Vapisek
Biochemical oxygen demand 300mg/L
FrEE=
Ammonia nitrogen 45mg/L
Total phosphorous 8mg/L
1B
Total nitrogen 70mg/L
HBR

2. Implementation standard and limit of implementation 2 ERHTHHEERERE

Source of pollution

bR

of discharge of gaseous waste

Factors of pollution

BRAETF

Standard of
concentration limit mg/m*  Source of standard

BREREREN/ m*  RERR

Kilns and furnaces

1EZ

sulfur dioxide

= 71

Nitrogen oxides
Aty
Particulates

RERY)

Blackness of flue gas
EREE

Benzene

%

Sum of toluene and xylene
RRmE_BRAG
NMHC

FEF e ha I

TRVOC

TRVOC

118 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

50  “Emission Standard of Air
Pollutants for Industrial Kilns
300 and Furnaces”
(DB12/556-2015)
20 (IEBEZRRSEPERIZE)
DB12/556—2015

1 "VOC Emission Control Standards
for Industrial Enterprises”
20 (DB12/524-2020)
CLECEFER M ERMBENUE
40 HI1Z %) DB12/524—2020

50



0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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.  Environmental Information (continued)

Description on the environment protection of the
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under
key sewage emission entities announced by the

environment protection authorities (Continued)
5. Environmental self-monitoring scheme (Continued)

3. The noise level at the boundaries of the plants
complies with class 3 and 4 standards of “Emission
standard for industrial enterprises noise at
boundary” (GB12348-2008), with 65~70dB (A)
during the day and 55dB (A) during the night.

6. Administrative penalty for environmental problems
during the Reporting Period
[0 Applicable 4/ Not Applicable

7. Other disclosable environmental information
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable

In 2024, the Company had no complaints on environmental
issues or pollution incidents.

Description on the environment protection of the
companies other than those falling under key

sewage emission entities
[ Applicable +/ Not Applicable

Information on efforts conductive to ecological
protection, pollution prevention and control and

environmental responsibility fulfillment
[ Applicable +/ Not Applicable

Measures adopted for reducing carbon emissions
during the Reporting Period and their effects

Whether carbon reduction measures were adopted

G EREURBIE b

Reduced emission of carbon dioxide equivalent (Unit: tons)
WA =S i E & (AL : HE)

Types of carbon reduction measures (e.g. Use clean energy for generating electricity, use carbon
reduction technologies in the production process and the research and development of new products
which help reduce carbon emission etc.)

KA AT (AN B RREIREE - EAEEBETEARBRR - FEEERBROAERS

Specific explanation
[J Applicable / Not Applicable

ax'a S S, r'a

5B 7NEP

RIRHEMEER

— REEFEBR®

(=)

()

BREREREDPIMFHESHE
SSEMNNARREFEFQATN
RRE A @)

5 BERTEAISRE
3 HREEHITGB12348-
2008 (T 1M RIREE
E)HRY3 - 4IFHEE B
?5~70dB(A) » BE55dB
A) °

6 BEMNEREHMEIITRE
SRR
O@A  ™Em

7- EHUEEQAHKNEREREEE
ViER O TEA

2024F € - AR RFEAIRIEM
B  BRSAE S -

BERFFEM 2N RAARRIE
w5t B

O@Em  ~Ems

BARNRELERE a5 R B
TRREENEREER

O@Em  ~Ems

EHRERRRRD H BB
ENHY B e R R

l\;g

Not ApplicabTé

i A

Not Applicable
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/
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I Scction 6 Environmental and Social Responsibility
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5B 7NEBp I%iﬁﬁﬁi 'ff

Il. Social responsibility work
(i) Whether the social responsibility report,
sustainability report or ESG report is disclosed

separately
 Applicable  [JNot Applicable

For details of the social responsibility work, please refer to the
Company's “2024 Corporate Social Responsibility Report” disclosed
on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (www.sse.com.cn)
on the same day.

The ESG Report will be disclosed on the website of the HKEXnews
website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) before 30 April
2025. Please pay attention to the announcement of the Company in
due course.

(ii) Specific situation of social responsibility work
[J Applicable v/ Not Applicable

Specific description
[ Applicable  +/ Not Applicable

[ll. Details on Performance of Consolidation
of Anti-Poverty Achievements and Rural
Rejuvenation
\/ Applicable (1 Not Applicable

Poverty alleviation and
rural revitalization project

KRERBAREEE

Number/content

¥E WA

=He

HEEEIEBR

(—) REEBHEHEEERE - 1
BFERBRRENESGRE
VER O TER
HEeEAIEBRARHEREARRBR
FEBERGFEEwww.sse.com.cn
%gﬁémﬁﬁ@ouirﬁﬁ%&@ﬁ{ﬁ&
ESG# & 2 Al 70202544 430 H AT B

LAk www. hkex.com hki 5 » 5
BT ARIAE

(2) E.E& VEE%—’T%/R

= EREERNEEREAR - BN
REETFREIER

ViEA O TaEA

Description
BERHA

Total investment (RMB’0,000) 77.55

BEAAREET)

Including: funds (RMB’0,000) 77.55
Hep - B4 (AREBET)
Material supplies (equivalent in cash) (RMB’0,000)
WERHRAREET)
Number of Beneficiaries (people)
ERAE(N)
Alleviation form (e.g. poverty alleviation by industry,
employment, education etc.)
HERA (WEEKE  BEHE  HEHKES)
Specific description
\ Applicable [J Not Applicable

RERKER

The total labor unions procurement for the year amounted to RMB575,160,
including RMB417,400 for poverty alleviation.

The total canteen procurement for the year amounted to
RMB1,225,531.92, including RMB358,067 for poverty alleviation.

120 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

The Company actively contributed to poverty
alleviation through consumption. The
Company's total procurement for poverty
alleviation amounted to RMB775,500,
including canteen procurement of
RMB358,100 and labor unions procurement
of RMB417,400.

DAEERITHEERER I - 2 FHERER
BEMARKTISET  ERREREAR
#35.8187L - TRRBEARYKA 748 -

purchase of poverty alleviation products

Eguie
ViER O T™aEm

Te2FRAREARES75,160T » HFHKE
EmARKE417,4007T ;

BESFHEREARE,225531.9270 - Hf
KEEMARK358,0677T ©
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The Board of the Company held a total of 9 meetings during the Reporting Period. ~ $R&EHIARIE TS HBMON S © @HIF N oRE
Please refer to “V. Relevant information of the Meetings of Board held during the ~ AAFRAREFE A RARPARIF[H ~ FREHA
Reporting Period” under “Corporate Governance” in section 5 of this report for ~ AFMEEEHHBIFR]

details of the meetings and resolutions.

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and audited consolidated ~EEE&RAIREAEBEZ2024F12A31HIFE

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024. HE R RSB ZE PHRSHE -

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FEXH

The Company's business scope: General freight; development, design, sales, $ Z“‘%%ﬂl BEE R KA HE
installation, debugging and repair of cryogenic storage transport vessel, . SﬂW E3d Eﬁmfuﬁkgaﬁ Tﬂﬂ%(é%‘trfﬁ
compressor (piston compressor, membrane compressor and nuclear membrane . ﬁmﬂ;ﬂ_ﬁ«ﬂ% IZ MR R A ) S B - MR

compressor) and accessories, machinery equipment and electrical equipment; 1% BRI R  RIMRY - EEB S
technical consulting; technical service; economic trade consulting; goods import & : &% 0+ FfiEH O - RIEBEHD -
and export; technical import and export; and agency for import and export.

BUSINESS REVIEW E3 e

A review of the business of the Company during the year and a discussion on ﬁ%@ﬂiﬁﬁjﬂiifg%i‘%ﬁ’ﬂ@Eﬁ\&ﬂi’&ﬁjﬂiﬂ@%ﬁ’?ﬁ‘)ﬁ
the Company’s future business development are provided in the section headed — HJ& %ﬁ%ZEA$$¥EF RIEBHE]—& c BEAR
“Business Summary of the Company” of this annual report. Description of ] 8£TE i H) B /£ [ % &Tﬁ&m.%ﬁkb’/‘faﬁ@ﬁm
possible risks and uncertainties that the Company may be facing can be found Eﬁi’ﬁﬁﬂ*ﬂﬂ o RRNFERAE EMBREBFHER
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”. An analysis of ~ FEXRBENDTHRANFERI QB EN NE B4
the Company’s performance during the year using financial key performance %] —f1 ° 41 BRAA R FIRGEHE KKIH - EH
indicators is provided in the section headed “Company Profile and Key Financial 18 * BEF Rt EE T EHENTREREHE—
Indicators” of this annual report. Please refer to Part | and Part Il of Section 6 ~ TENMEE —15 - RARIESTHEABEAFENBEAZE
for discussions on the Company's environmental policies and performance, key — SERAVIEREHAAFHR IR ENEE] —4) ©
relationships with its employees, customers, suppliers. The Company’s compliance

with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the

Company is contained in the section headed “Corporate Governance” of this

annual report.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS EENES
The Directors and Supervisors in office during the year and up to the date of this ~ RAEEANREE AR EARETEELEEN ¢
report are as follows:

Date of appointment

EZENAEH
Executive Director BITES
Zhang lJiheng fAE] 26 June 2017
20176 H26H
Non-executive Director FHITES
Li Junjie FER 16 June 2023
2023F6H16H
Wu Yanzhang (resigned on 30 December 2024) R #EE (R2024412 308 &HT) 9 September 2019
2019F9A9H
Zhou Yongjun EXE 16 June 2023
2023F6H16H
Cheng Lei (resigned on 30 December 2024) K& (7A20244F12 A30 B BHT) 16 June 2023
2023F6H16H
Man Huiyong WG B 24 February 2022
20222 A24H
Li Chunzhi FEK 26 June 2017
20176 H26H
Independent non-executive Director BYFHITES
Chen Junping pRYS 27 June 2024
20246 H27H
Xiong Jianhui (resigned on 27 June 2024) BEIENE (JA2024%F6 A27 HEHT) 9 June 2020
20206 A9H
Zhao Xuguang i) 9 June 2020
20206 A9H
Liu Jingtai 2=x 9 June 2020
20206 A9H
Luan Dalong BREE 9 June 2020
20206 A9H
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS (continued)

==t

EEREEwW

Date of appointment

BERANAH

Supervisor Ex
Tian Donggiang FH 3R 548
Li Zhe FH
Wen Jinhua X&E

122

Discussion and analysis of the Board
concerning the principal operation during the
Reporting Period

For details, please refer to Section 3.

Discussion and analysis of the Board
concerning the future development of the

Company
1. Competition and development trend within the
industry

For details, please refer to Part VI of Section 3.

2. Development strategies of the Company
For details, please refer to Part VI of Section 3.

3. Operating plans

For details, please refer to Part VI of Section 3.

4. Fund requirement for maintaining existing
business and establishing a project company in

progress
The outstanding project payment can be basically settled with
privately-owned funds.

5. Potential risks
For details, please refer to Part VI of Section 3.

Explanation of the Board on “Non-Standard

Auditors’ Report” issued by the auditors
Not Applicable

Profit distribution proposal or plan to convert

surplus reserves into share capital
For details, please refer to Part X of Section 5.

| Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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28 October 2020
20204 10A28H
26 June 2017
201756 H26H
9 June 2020
202096 A9H
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VI.

Financial information

1.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets for the year are set out in the notes to
the financial statements prepared according to the PRC Accounting
Standards.

Construction in Progress

Particulars and movements in construction-in-progress for the
year are set out in the notes to the financial statements prepared
according to the PRC Accounting Standards.

Investments in Subsidiaries
Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in the notes to the financial
statements prepared according to the PRC Accounting Standards.

Interest in Associated Company

Particulars of the associated companies are set out in the notes to
the financial statements prepared according to the PRC Accounting
Standards.

Other Assets
Particulars of other assets are set out in the notes to the financial
statements prepared according to the PRC Accounting Standards.

Reserves

Movements in reserves for the year are set out in the notes to the
financial statements prepared according to the PRC Accounting
Standards.

Bank Loan

Details of bank loans as at 31 December 2024 are set out in the
notes to the financial statements prepared according to the PRC
Accounting Standards.

Tax Relief
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holdings in the Shares.

The Company’s pension scheme

In accordance with the relevant regulations of the “State Council’s
Decisions Regarding Reform of Employee Retirement Insurance Scheme”,
the Company is required to pay the PRC government an amount equivalent
to 16% of the total amount of salary as the basic contribution to the
Employee Retirement Insurance Scheme. The Company cannot use the
contributions. Apart from the said contribution, the Company has no other
commitments or liabilities related to pensions.

Beijing Tianhai has established enterprise annuities for its employees for the
period from January 2011 to August 2014. The company bore the cleaning
fees and housing allowances for employees who retired before December
2010 at the rates of RMB50 and RMB70 to RMB90 per month respectively.
There is no corporate burden for employees retiring thereafter.
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VII.

ESERE

Connected transactions

M

Particulars of the connected transactions during the year are set out
in the notes to the financial statements prepared according to the
PRC Accounting Standards.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange,
all independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions subsisting in the year ended
31 December 2024 and confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) on normal commercial terms or better or, if there were not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they
were on normal commercial terms or better, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties; and

(i) according to the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange, WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP, the auditor of
the Company, has provided a letter to the Board, confirming that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i)~ were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the cap.

Details on related party transactions for the year ended 31 December
2024 are set out in the consolidated financial statements. Details
of any related party transaction which also constitute connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction not exempted
under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange are
disclosed in this report. The Group has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange in respect of such transactions.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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VIII.

XI.

XII.

.’ W

‘m

Staff quarters

The Company did not sell any public housing flats to staff in 2024. In
accordance with State policies, the Company contributed to the public
housing fund on the basis for 12% of the average monthly salary of the
existing employees for the previous year, which did not pose any significant
impact on the Company’s business performance. In accordance with the
spirit of the “(2000) Jing Fang Gai Ban, Zi Document No. 080", Notice in
relation to issues of the Increase in Beijing’s Public Housing Rentals and
Allowances, issued by the Housing Reform Office of Beijing Municipal
Government, the Beijing Financial Bureau, the Beijing State Land Resources
Bureau and the Housing Administration Bureau, and the Commodity
Price Bureau of Beijing, as well as integrating with the Company’s actual
situation, the Company provided a housing allowance of RMB70 to RMB90
per month to its staff since 1 April 2000.

Beijing Tianhai issued subsidies for housing rent to non-local employees of
RMB130 to RMB300 per month. The student’s apartment was canceled
and the subsidy of RMB1,000 per month was issued in May 2015.

Employees’ basic medical insurance

Since October 2001, the Company has been implementing the “Provision
regarding Basic Medical Insurance in Beijing”, and implementing
employees’ basic medical insurance system in accordance with the
provisions. The Company is required to pay the basic medical insurance
calculated as 8.8% of employees’ total wages, and the large medical
expenses mutual fund calculated as 1% of employees’ total wages. The
provision of supplementary medical insurance shall be prepared at cost
of the corporation on the basis for 4% of employees’ total wages for
medical expenses in accordance with supplementary qualifications on
reimbursement of medical insurance set out in “Provision regarding Basic
Medical Insurance in Beijing”.

Annual general meeting

The 2024 annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled to be held
on a date to be announced by the Company and the notice and circular in
relation to the convening of the annual general meeting will be published
in due course as required under the Listing Rules.

Report on performance of social responsibility

and environmental policy
For details, please refer to Section 6.

Important relationships with employees,

customers and suppliers

The Company focuses on good employee relations and looks for a long
term strategic cooperation with customers and suppliers and aims to
achieve good quality. The Company puts emphasis on quality and supply
of goods management. It has strengthened the construction of mechanism
and tightened the control over product quality and goods supply cycle.
Through holding seminars with suppliers, site assessment, training and
annual evaluation, the Company has innovated the demand and supply
model and continuously improved product quality to ensure that the
products meet the demand of the Company and market.
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XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVIL.

EFg

wE

Legal compliance with laws and regulations
During the Reporting Period, the Company operated strictly in compliance
with laws, regulations, “Articles of Association” and other relevant
regulatory requirements with lawful decision-making procedures and
disciplined operation.

Management contracts

During the Reporting Period, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed.

Permitted indemnity provision

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Equity-linked agreement

Save as disclosed above/in this annual report, no equity-linked agreement
was entered into during the year or was still effective at the end of the
year.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2024, the distributable reserves of the Company which
could be distributed to the Shareholders of the Company amounted to
RMBO.

No dividend was declared and distributed to the Shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 (Nil for the year ended 31
December 2023).

XVIIl. Donations

XIX.

XX.

XXI.

During the Reporting Period, the Group made donations for charitable
purposes and other purposes amounting to RMB30,000.

Directors’

debentures

At no time during the Reporting Period was the Company, its parent
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any body
corporate.

rights to acquire shares or

Directors’ interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts of S|gn|f|cance

The Company has not entered into any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in which any of its Directors or Supervisors had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, at any time during the year.

Save for contracts amongst companies under the Group, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time of the year.

Environmental policies and performance
For details, please refer to Section 6.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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XXIl. Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme

Disclosures made according to Chapter 17 Share
Schemes of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

The Company has formulated the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme for
the purpose of further establishing and improving the long-term incentive
mechanism, attracting and retaining outstanding talents, fully mobilising the
enthusiasm of the core personnel of the Company, and effectively integrating
the interests of the Shareholders with that of the Company and its employees.
The Restricted Share Incentive Scheme and its related resolutions were
considered and approved by the Shareholders in the extraordinary general
meeting and the class meetings convened on 13 November 2023. The
Participants selected under the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme including the
executive Director, senior management personnel, assistant general managers,
middle management personnel, core technical or key business personnel of the
Company or its subsidiaries, but shall not be municipal management personnel,
independent Directors, Supervisors and Shareholders or actual controllers (and
their respective spouse, parents or children) holding more than 5% of the
Shares of the Company. The number of Restricted Shares to be granted to the
Participants under the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme was up to 6,750,000
shares in total, representing approximately 1.24% and 1.50% of the total
share capital of the Company as at the date of the adoption of the Restrictive
Share Incentive Scheme and the date of this report, respectively. Pursuant to
the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme, the number of restricted shares granted
to each Participant under the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the total share capital of the Company as at the adoption date.
The effective period of the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme shall not exceed
72 months from the date of approval at the EGM to the date of unlocking all
Restricted Shares granted to the Participant or the date of repurchase.

The unlocking periods of the Restricted Shares under the initial grant of the
Restricted Share Incentive Scheme and the schedule of each period are set
out below:

Unlocking arrangement Unlocking schedule
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REB(ERBXMETRADETLE
BRADET 8 R

BTE—DEY - BEARARIUBEIKS) -
WSIMBEESAL  ZNABRLEBHET
RFEIRIE - BB R FIE © AN A R F =
BTEAFZEAE—  HIERFIMERSE)
Bt El o REIMERZ BB 2 L AEREEE R
2023F 11 13 BAZ BRI E A S REERIR
RASENIRE R N HE o BRHIIEI S 8E T
BIPTE A BB TR 2R A X R ok H B A F]
MAITES  SREEAS BB - F
BEBAS - ROLEMKELER  BFEE
TREBAE - BUEE - EZERBFAAQA
5%UA R RS ERIEFIA (RESAR
BofB ~ SRSk F20) o BRI RS 2B ot &
BB SR FHR IR Z 88 T HEiE675
B D RMEARR AIRABR B = RN R T &l 2
FMBHERARE AR HTRABHY
1.24% K21.50% ° MRIRPR G114 S Bt & -
ZLHENERRBHERZHE T SHBIBTE
BRI R R AR 1% o REERZAE
RN B AR RRASARB L HREEY
Bh ST 5 JE AR RO PR I 1 A 22 2 SR AR PR R 5 ok 1 B
2Bl ZREATEB72MEA -

PR i 1 AR SR BB 51 28 & R IR T BVIR Bl 1E AR R Y
BRREPR S MREREFELHFNOTRA
IR

Proportion of the
Restricted Shares
to be unlocked

of total number of
the Restricted
Shares granted

A ERIRE BRI
REBRRERS 7R R PR 5 B S BRERHELLA
First Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 24 months 34%
from the date of the initial grant to the last trading day upon the expiry
of 36 months from the date of the initial grant
E— AR E S BERE T2 A24E A RN EER S HEEERE T2 Ai36(EA 34%
A &RZ—EXZHEER L
Second Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 36 months 33%
from the date of the initial grant to the last trading day upon the expiry
of 48 months from the date of the initial grant
8 — (AR PR E AP BEART 2 AR36EARNEERZ S B REEE AKX T2 Aie4s(d A 33%
NERE—ERZHEEHIE
Third Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 48 months 33%

from the date of the initial grant to the last trading day upon the expiry

of 60 months from the date of the initial grant

BERETZHiE48E AR EER S HEEERE T2 AE60(E A 33%
ANRE—EXZHAEHRLLE

E={EmRRRES

During the Lock-up Period, the Restricted Shares granted to the Participants
under the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme are restricted from sale, and
cannot be transferred, used as security or for repaying debts. The Shares
acquired by the Participants as a result of the capitalization of capital
reserve, payment of share dividends and sub-division of shares as a result
of the grant of Restricted Shares which have not been released from
restriction are also subject to lock-up under the Restricted Share Incentive
Scheme.

EREEN - HEE SRIER SRR AR
BEROBGIMRRETURE - TEEE - T
SRARERIEEER - BEHREERN N
ABRBRENRHEREMNSHERLEE
HEREA R BEIERALF) - BRI AR AL (R
RIR MRS R B A BIETTIHE -
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After the release of the lock-up restriction, the Company will unlock the ﬁ@f‘/’%[ﬁﬁi%?ﬁ N T A T BEBR PR IR HY R ED
Restricted Shares for those Participants who satisfy the conditions for HRIHERRREST - ﬂi}%ﬂﬂﬁﬁ%@%ﬂ%ﬁ—
unlocking the Restricted Shares, and the Restricted Shares held by those BRI SRR R G AR A A B -

Participants who do not satisfy the conditions for unlocking the Restricted
Shares will be repurchased by the Company.

Performance targets for the unlocking of the Restricted Shares granted PR 1)1 S 22 B A 8 B I T O PR I M A ZE AR
under the initial grant of the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme are set out KRIBEREEZZEZEAT ¢

below:

Performance appraisal requirements at the Company’s ARIBEEEERGY

level

Unlocking Period
FRBRPR & 8

Performance targets

BRRENEATRER

First Unlocking Period

Second Unlocking Period

55— &
FRIRIR &

AN

Third Unlocking Period

(1) The EOE of the Company in 2024 shall be no less than 7.97% and the growth rate of EOE in 2024
shall be no less than the average level of the industry based on the Company’s EOE in 2021.

(1) 2024F ARIFEERSEIRETIENT O7% + BLR2021FARIFEERGBHREAEH - 2024
FEEERSRMEYREMEREITE FIGKE o

(2)  The year-on-year growth rate of operating revenue in 2024 shall be no less than 16% and no less
than the average level of the industry.

(2)  2024FLHWARIEIEREMMER16% » B MERBITHETFIGKE o

(3)  Based on the revenue of the transformation and innovation category in 2021, the growth rate of

revenue of the transformation and innovation category in 2024 shall be no less than 400%.

(3)  PAR021FHEAAIFTEKARES - 2024FHA BT E AR AL RETER400% ©

(4)  The proportion of research and development investment to operating revenue in 2024 shall not be
less than 3.05%.

(4) 2024 FHERAMEEZ WAL L EMER3.05% °

(1) The EOE of the Company in 2025 shall be no less than 9.30% and the growth rate of EOE in 2025
shall be no less than the average level of the industry based on the Company’s EOE in 2021.

(1) 2025F ARIFEERGERETENI.30% + BL2021FRRIFEER G BIHREAZLH - 2025
FFEER R OMEEREDMEREITE T IHKE -

(2)  The year-on-year growth rate of operating revenue in 2025 shall be no less than 16% and no less
than the average level of the industry.

()  2025FEEWARLIBRENMER16% - B MEREITEFHKE -

(3)  Based on the revenue of the transformation and innovation category in 2021, the growth rate of

revenue of the transformation and innovation category in 2025 shall not be less than 450%.

() PA2021FEAAIFTEM A RES - 2025F HA A E B AIG R ETMEFA50% o

(4)  The proportion of research and development investment to operating revenue in 2025 shall not be
less than 3.10%.

(4) 2025 FHEBRA(LEERAMNLENMERN3.10% °

(1) The EOE of the Company in 2026 shall be no less than 10.63% and the growth rate of EOE in
2026 shall be no less than the average level of the industry based on the Company’s EOE in 2021.

(1) 2026FRAFEERGERETEN10.63% * BLL2021GRFIFEERSBREAEY
20265 FEER 2 EIMEEREMEREITETHKE

(2)  The year-on-year growth rate of operating revenue in 2026 shall be no less than 16% and no less
than the average level of the industry.

(2)  2026FEHEWAREIERRMER16% » A MEREITHEFIHKLE o

(3)  Based on the revenue of the transformation and innovation category in 2021, the growth rate of

revenue of the transformation and innovation category in 2026 shall not be less than 500%.

(3)  LA2021FEILRIFTIRA SEED - 2026F E AR E B RAIL R ETEN500% ©

(4)  The proportion of research and development investment to operating revenue in 2026 shall not be
less than 3.15%.

4) 2026 FHERAMEEERARLEMEN315% °

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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XXIl. Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme (continued)

Performance appraisal of the Participants at individual level
The Participants are assessed on an annual basis pursuant to the
Performance Management Regulations formulated by the Company and
the various internal assessment systems of the Company, and the extent
of unlocking for the Participants for the year is determined based on the
results of the assessment.

In the event that the appraisal conditions for unlocking of the Restricted
Shares at the Company level are met, the actual amount of Restricted
Shares to be unlocked for a Participant in the year = unlocking ratio X the
amount of Restricted Shares to be unlocked by the Participant in the year.

Individual unlocking ratios are determined by the results of the individual’s
performance appraisal. Different unlocking ratios apply to different
performance appraisal results.

Individual performance

ELE FEBEHS

12 ABRBR SRR BT E @)

BEHSEABEER
RBRAIGIER G EIRARE) A FRERE
EERBIEUHBEROFEETER  RiE
%%ﬁ%%%ﬁ&ﬁ%&ﬁb%%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%@%
BE -

A EHRERREEZETERHERLT -
MBS ENE F BB HEE = FHE P <
EAEFETBEBE -

1B A SRS EE AR B A B B 2 A RFEE © N
VAR E SR E TR E R L) o

appraisal score 85 or above 75-84 70-74 Below 70
BABERZEZDE 857 RN E 755-845 705-745 709 LT~
Unlocking ratio 100% 80% 60% 0
fREE L] 100% 80% 60% 0

Note: The party building assessment is a negative indicator. If the Participant fails in
the party building assessment, his/her Restricted Shares shall not be unlocked.

As a result of failing to meet the performance target at the Company
level or the assessment at the individual level, all or part of the Restricted
Shares of the Participant that have not been unlocked for the current
period shall not be unlocked or shall be deferred to the period that follows
for unlocking, and shall be repurchased by the Company at the lower
of the Grant Price and the market price at the time of repurchase. The
“market price at the time of repurchase” represents the closing price of the
Company'’s shares on the trading day preceding the date of consideration
by the Board of the Company for the repurchase of the Restricted Shares of
that Participant.

The Company made the initial grant of Restricted Shares on 14 November
2023. The initial Grant Price of the Restricted Shares was RMB7.33 per
Share, which means that upon fulfilment of the grant conditions, each
Participant was entitled to purchase the ordinary A Shares of the Company
issued to the Participants by the Company at the price of RMB7.33 per
Share.

Basis for determining the initial Grant Price

The pricing benchmark date of the initial Grant Price of the Restricted
Shares is the date of publication of the proposal of the Restricted Share
Incentive Scheme. The Grant Price shall not be less than the nominal value
of the Shares and shall not be less than 50% of the higher of the following
prices:

(1) Average trading price (total trading amount on the preceding
trading day/total trading volume on the preceding trading day) of
the underlying Shares of the Company (i.e., RMB13.87 per Share)
on the trading day preceding the date of the announcement of the
proposal of the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme;

(2)  Closing price of the Company’s underlying Shares on the trading
day preceding the date of the announcement of the proposal of the
Restricted Share Incentive Scheme (i.e., RMB13.84 per Share);

(3)  Average closing price of the Company’s underlying Shares for the
30 trading days preceding the date of the announcement of the
proposal of the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme (i.e., RMB14.66
per Share);

o ERERADRER  WRERERTERE
BEHR TG -

AAAEEXEZRTNERREABBZSRE
BUBB SRS 2 A0k ) RAERE R IR & AR
IR - NERERRESRLE S T HRERR
& AR/RRRETEREDBEHEEE
CEERE - [MERTHEISEEAREFEE
AOBZARERRHEREN —EXZ AN
NAPRIER(E -

NAN2023F11 B 14B B RIF TR EIMERE -
?\kﬁ%@%ﬁﬂﬁAE%aﬁ - BRI

~.

.

G2 - MEE R AT A AR 337TH)
B8R RE A B A B 4 538 3% 1) IR 51145 Ik

I~

o

BHXRTERNEES &

P66 1 AR SR 0 R IR T BAS O EMEE A AR
B E M B ERAMBE - BT EHETS
ERREEE  BFERTHERESEN
50% :

(1) BRHERZEESERAEITERS
HRARRARMEZER IR ER 59 (A1 11822
SABRZERHBEE,A1ERSARER
SHE)  BERARK13.87T

) BHUERZHEEERDMINERS
BHARRRNRELRRE  BEERA
R¥13.847T

() REMEREE EE R MmAT301ER
ZANARRBABRHRZFHREE B
FRARK14667T
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XXIl. Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme (continued)

Basis for determining the initial Grant Price (Continued)
(4) One of the following prices:

Average trading price (total trading amount for the last 20
trading days/total trading volume for the last 20 trading days)
of the underlying Shares of the Company (i.e., RMB14.29
per Share) for the 20 trading days preceding the date of
the announcement of the proposal of the Restricted Share
Incentive Scheme;

ii. Average trading price (total trading amount for the last 60
trading days/total trading volume for the last 60 trading days)
of the underlying Shares of the Company (i.e., RMB14.96
per Share) for the 60 trading days preceding the date of
the announcement of the proposal of the Restricted Share
Incentive Scheme;

iil. Average trading price (total trading amount for the last
120 trading days/total trading volume for the last 120
trading days) of the underlying Shares of the Company (i.e.,

()

ATEREZ—
PR il 1 % 52 %0 Y =T 1 & 2R 0 466 B
20182 5 B AR EE’JJ&%‘T‘%I
9B (FI200A% 5 B RE %

o3
“BE 71201 .X%EHX%E\ X5 H
2) BRBRARK14.297T

i PRGBS ERA
601E% 5 H AR AIZRI AR E
%i’ﬂ*‘ (A60MER S ABRER

#EH60ER S ERER
) AERARK14.967T

i, BREIMERZRE B ERAMAT
120082 5 AN AR eEMRER
SHEBEGEINEXZARER S

RMB14.90 per Share) for the 120 trading days preceding the HBER120AX ZARER 548
date of the announcement of the proposal of the Restricted 2)  RERARK14.907T
Share Incentive Scheme.

BTRAERKBERABERARE12.447T - 1B
EREREEEEEREEZ B RPEEE
SHEASRTE  BRTEREERELFTISRA
BE BAHEBERTERNEENABARH
E AIHHEIA202343 8248 K% 2023410A25

EJ%%WEF%"i&@m c BBEXET
HEMEE SRR AR AR A2023F11
148 K20235F12 8298 A% ©

The closing price of the share on the date of grant was RMB12.44 per
Share. As prescribed by the relevant requirements of the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council
and CSRC, the grant price of the Restricted Shares shall be determined
according to principle of fair market. For details of the basis for determining
the grant price, please refer to the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 24 March 2023 and 25 October 2023, respectively. Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 14 November 2023
and 29 December 2023 for specific details regarding the Initial Grant on 14
November.

TR BT EM T %

TERE TR ZEER TR AEQRES
ERZBAABPRER - BTFESTHERRE

Efﬁ BTBERTIERRSERS0% :

Basis for determining the reserved Grant Price

Prior to the grant of the reserved Restricted Shares, a Board meeting shall
be convened to consider and approve the relevant resolution. The Grant
Price shall not be less than the nominal value of the Shares and shall not be
less than 50% of the higher of the following prices:

(1) Average trading price of the underlying Shares of the Company on (1) MBEERETEEGREAAMINERS E =)
the trading day preceding the date of the announcement of the Board N/NSEEE: ) “??&%f}ﬁ (GIRREES
resolution on the reserved grant (total trading amount on the preceding k32 545, A1ER S B Hx%’%?&%%@
trading day/total trading volume on the preceding trading day); £)

(2) TEEETESSREQMIERSHEMN
i/N jTTEI'JHXmWﬂ%LE\v

(2)  Closing price of the Company'’s underlying Shares on the trading day
preceding the date of the announcement of the Board resolution on
the reserved grant;

BERTEESRZEAMAB0ERSA
AL/ TTTE’]HXmTri’MZ%E :

(3)  Average closing price of the Company’s underlying Shares for the 30 (3)
trading days preceding the date of the announcement of the Board
resolution on the reserved grant;

130 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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XXII. Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme (continued)  —12* ABRPR &M IR E X Bzt 2 @

Basis for determining the reserved Grant Price (Continued) FERTERNEESE @
(4)  One of the following prices: 4  LATERZ—:

a.  Average trading price of the Company’s underlying Shares for a. TERERTESGAZEALMAI20E
the 20 trading days preceding the date of the announcement RHBHARRENRERHH
of the Board resolution on the reserved grant (total trading E(FR0EAX S ERES F4a5m,/
amount for the last 20 trading days/total trading volume for AR20EXZ % BRER HBE)
the last 20 trading days);

b.  Average trading price of the Company’s underlying Shares for b. FEEBETEZGRZELMATCONME
the 60 trading days preceding the date of the announcement RHBHARRENRERHH
of the Board resolution on the reserved grant (total trading B (A160fER 5 B ER FiasE,/
amount for the last 60 trading days/total trading volume for AI60ERZ % BRER HBE)
the last 60 trading days);

C. Average closing price of the Company’s underlying Shares for c. ERRTESGRELMAIN0
the 120 trading days preceding the date of the announcement ARXZENEARNBIZEHRER S
of the Board resolution on the reserved grant (total trading BB (RFT1200RXZERER FE
amount for the last 120 trading days/total trading volume for BORMI0R 5 BRER 54
the last 120 trading days). 2) o

The unlocking period of the Restricted Shares under the reserved T8 2R 1% T K IR HI M % SZARBR AR & 2 1 % B R

grant and the schedule of each period are set out below: REREZHIN TRATR ¢

Proportion of the
Restricted Shares
to be unlocked of
total number of the
Restricted Shares

Unlocking arrangement Unlocking schedule granted

ARRREHE(G
FRERPR & 2 HE iR BAR PR 5 BF BEEREELD
First Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 24 months 34%

from the date of the reserved grant to the last trading day upon the
expiry of 36 months from the date of the reserved grant

—{ERRRR IR HA BEBETZ AR24EAZNEER S BRERBR T2 BiL361E A 34%
NERE—EXZHEHIE
Second Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 36 months 33%

from the date of the reserved grant to the last trading day upon the
expiry of 48 months from the date of the reserved grant

—{ERRRR R E ER BHEBR T2 AE36EARNEERS BRETEBR T2 AiL481E A 33%
&R —EXZHEERIE
Third Unlocking Period Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry of 48 months 33%

from the date of the reserved grant to the last trading day upon the
expiry of 60 months from the date of the reserved grant

= (AR PR E AP BEBRE T2 A48 A RN EER S B RERBR T2 BiL60fd 33%
NERE—ERZHEHIE
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XXII. Restricted A Share Incentive Scheme (continued)  —12* ABRPR &M IR E X Bzt 2 @@

Basis for determining the reserved Grant Price (Continued) FERTFERNEES E @
During the year ended 31 December 2024, no Shares were granted REZE2024F12 A31HIEFER - HERERR
under the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme. Details of movements in the HI AR BT IR AR - BRFIMEAREZ
Restricted Shares are set out below: EIEE U
Number of
Restricted Number
Shares of new Number of Market
held Restricted Restricted value as
as at the Shares Grant Shares Shares Shares held at the end
beginning granted priceof  unlocked locked  as at the of the

of the duringthe Restricted duringthe during the endofthe Reporting
Reporting  Reporting Shares Reporting Reporting Reporting Period

Name Position Period Period (RMB) Period Period Period (RMB)
BERD  BEEH REMRE BERR  BEWR
FEREM BFREME NRTFER BEER  BEHAR SERGM miE
HE B REHE F¥E (ARW7n) ERERG RBHRG KIEE (AR%RD)
Zhang Jiheng Executive Director, general
manager 150,000 0 7.33 0 150,000 150,000 10.08
R WTEE  REE
Feng Yongmei Chief accountant 100,000 0 7.33 0 100,000 100,000 10.08
K aestin
Shi Fengwen Chief engineer 100,000 0 7.33 0 100,000 100,000 10.08
AEX BIRH
Li Xianzhe General counsel 100,000 0 7.33 0 100,000 100,000 10.08
FHE rEER
Luan Jie Secretary to the Board 100,000 0 733 0 100,000 100,000 10.08
£ ErelE
Other core personnel (110) 4,850,000 0 7.33 0 4,850,000 4,850,000 10.08
AL EHET(110A)
Total 5,400,000 0 / 0 5,400,000 5,400,000 /
aFf /
1,350,000 Restricted Shares were reserved for grant under the Restricted NEIERER S MR EZ B =t 28 E PR &) R E
Share Incentive Scheme. According to the relevant provisions of the B1358 A% o BiE (™A AR B & IR it
“Administrative Measures for the Equity Incentives of Listed Companies” FYRBREIMIRESETEINRERT B
and the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme, the Participants under the 2T 5D R B & B IR B IR = s 2
reserved grant will be determined within 12 months after the Restricted KNTREAREARARR - HIREBERIIREAS
Share Incentive Scheme has been considered and approved at the general sExemE (B12023F11 8138 )& 1218 8 kg
meeting, A Shares Class Meeting and H Shares Class Meeting of the T RBB12E B RPBREYE S S - TBEHER
Company (i.e. on 13 November 2023). If the Participants are not specified B o BRATEL LW BBARFER AT
for more than 12 months, the reserved entitlements will lapse. For details HEIA2024F 11 A14B 8 AE « HHE2024%5F
of the lapse of the reserved entitlements, please refer to the announcement 128318 ' R4 EYE T2 THEZE Y
of the Company dated 14 November 2024. As at 31 December 2024, all 1358 REHMERED 28 k% - 2024F12 8
of the 1,350,000 Restricted Shares reserved for grant under the Restricted 31 AERRR S M REZSE 20 % B EE)
Share Incentive Scheme had lapsed. As at 31 December 2024, the number MEBETHRGGERELERBRINERNEZITAR
of Restricted Shares issued during the year in respect of awards granted RE1D INAE T8 A51.21% o

under the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme divided by the weighted
average number of A Shares in issue during the year was 1.21%.

132 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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,‘-I- e, EN\H BEER

l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings — AGHBEETER
(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 BB AR A R E A EEE
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEREHRARIFEZREDRA
the Reporting Period NAESE
+/ Applicable [J Not applicable ViER O TEA
If not If not
performed performed
Whether in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly ~ manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DAEREET AAERER

&R RERE  ENBAZH  ERET-
RRER AHEL G5l RRAE AREE  BEAER  AEER  REES EONARRR Sid
Undertaking Settlement Bejjng Jingcheng Jingcheng Holding undertakes: As for the connected transactions for us and  Long term Vs Longterm —~ Yes
relatingtothe  of connected Machinery Electric - the companies under our control with the Listed Company and the companies
materialasset transactions Holding Co., under s control that cannot be avoided or have reasonable grounds, these
reorganisation Ltd,, asubstantial  connected transactions will be conducted in the principles of openness,

shareholder faimess and justice for market transactions at fair and reasonable prices by us
and the companies under our control, and the decision-making procedures
for and information disclosure obligations in respect of connected transactions
will be performed in accordance the requirements of laws, regulations and
requlatory documents. We warrant that we and the companies under our
control will not obtain any improper benefits or subject the Listed Company or
any of the companies under its control to any improper obligations by way of
any connected transactions with the Listed Company or any of the companies
under its control. We will indemnify the Listed Company and any of the
companies under its control against any losses incurred by them s a result of
any i ansact\on with them in violation of the undertakings above.

SEAEEEA WRAENRS  ARRLRRY RUEREE  RALRMRAATEHMERCZEIBAARASHAL RE
GRS BENRARR %26 %%%iﬁ%%ﬁAﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁém@%x%$ﬁ ARARARA

AT BHNERARPEETARANOR AT AEMRA RS é
EM%W@?%IMR&@&%%%WW%@
BRHRRER  WARESRRSN  AAARZALARAD AR
mEpAERAERE LB T&Hfﬂmmﬁm %Q%W“ fi7EE
WHERRE TR Tﬁﬁfﬂmmiﬁﬁfﬁfi*mif MER L
HETATIRARUNOLEARS Mk LPAMRAEHNAZER
B BRLTAERERA

&

Alm
Am
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of Undertaking
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking

EET e &k GERE

Y o

— REBIEETER @
(—) DRIEBEH A BRER - B

B B AR D T SAEEE
FHEREPARFERRERR
KR EIE ()

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe
Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE
RERE  EHRARE  GEHAT-

=8
EERE  ABMAR  AGER  BEEG  BANARER Sd

Solving the issues  Beijing Jingcheng Jingcheng Holding undertakes: In relation to the businesses or business
conceming Machinery Electric ~ opportunities similar to those of the Listed Company including that we
competitionin~ Holding Co., and other companies under our control anticipate or substantially in place

the same industry  Ltd, a substantial  to conduct, and assets and businesses of such businesses or business

shareholder opportunities that may consfitute potential competition. The Company will not
conduct and will make efforts to cause the other companies under the control
of the Company not to conduct businesses which are the same as or similar to
those of the Listed Company in order to avoid direct or indirect competition
with the operation of business of the Listed Company. In addition, if unfair
impact may be made to the Listed Company in the areas of market share,
business opportunities and resource allocation of the Company and the other
companies under the control of the Company, the Company will voluntarily
give up and will make efforts to cause the other companies under the control
of the Company to give up business competition with the Listed Company.
The company undertakes that starting from the date of issue of this Letter of
Undertaking, it will compensate the Listed Company for any losses suffered
or expenses incurred by the Listed Company as a result of the violation of any
provisions of this undertaking by the Company. This Letter of Undertaking
continues to be effective during the period in which the Listed Company
legally and validly subsists and the Company is the Controlling Shareholder (or
beneficial controlle) of the Listed Company.

ERARERT  ARENER IERER: HUARANRELASHNE ML E R RA ST RE S
BEMRERE RGLTAIREIRIAERE RAEERIBEROTINEEN
A7 SBEPRABRRERRRHIEN  ARRMBTZUBNER

ARBHNEMCEMISE I FADARIEANER REEL
HRINEREERIERIMENETE - 1o - ARTLFRARHNL
[bA2ETENE BERERARREERETS LRATRIAT
WPER  AARERNELSNRRALTENNERCRNEA AR
AMERRE  ADEE ERABRLARE - BE IAATRAAA
ERAFEANATIERIEENENERIFR « RERRE LTAT
%&ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ$ﬂﬂﬁ%kﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁ%%%@E%@ﬂM%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
5( 0

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Long term

&8

Yes
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Longterm ~ Yes
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — AABHEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (—) RRAIEBESA - RER - BE
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps
HAKREET AAERER
=) RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St
Sohving the issues ~ Bejing Jingcheng  The Supplemental Undertaking of Jingcheng Holding on the Shanghai Sunwise - Long term — Yes fromthe  Yes
of competitionin ~ Machinery Electric -~ Equity Investment Project completion
the same industry  Holding Co,, 1. During the eight years from the completion of this acquisition, Jingcheng date of this
Ltd., asubstantial  Holding will initate the injection of its equity interests in Shanghai Sunwise or acquistion
shareholder its assets or businesses subject to horizontal competition into the Company tothe
at fair value by means of asset restructuring, equity transfer or other legal expiry date
means in the principles of benefiting the development of the Company and of eight
safequarding the interests of the Shareholders, in particular the interests of the years
minority Shareholders, and in compliance with the prevaiing applicable laws,
regulations and regulatory rules, in accordance with the operating conditions
and sustainable profitability of Shanghai Sunwise, the strategic layout of
the hydrogen energy industry of the Beijing SASAC and the Company's
own development needs upon approval by the competent authorities. If the
relevant equity interests, assets or businesses have not been injected into the
Company by the expiry of the aforesaid period, Jingcheng Holding undertakes
to negotiate with the Company for an extension of the entrustment period,
or to transfer the relevant equity interests or s assets or businesses subject to
horizontal competition to an unrelated third party, or to eliminate horizontal
competition through integration of businesses or assets.
BARERE  ARRERN  UERER LERERERAERORRAG &8 = BERMER %
BEARERE 1 ARRMERRZANNER  REBREIZEAN LALREEN KZBREN
A7 ERBRAR AR D RENGA KA SERERNER R RIEEE EEY

EREINEY R LERENERML RERNY) HRAEAZT
HEZERBRILA LAAFASRERR  SARREHEL R0E
EEd REERAMe T BOR LERENREIARRETE
EARIIDRBELNLIAT - ENEAREREAENE AR
BIARIALTAR  ARGERAERE LT DRALREEIR 3
PUEREIARRRIRE SRR ATRRANE T AR
BURENES HRRRES
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of Undertaking
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking

EET e &k GERE

Y o

— RAHEBIEETER@®
(—) DRIEBEH A BRER - B
7~ W ALK A RS RAE R
FEREHARFERREHR

BV AR S TH ()

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely

Whether strictly — manner, manner,

thereisa performed  describe describe

Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE
=8 RERE  EHRARE  GEHAT-
EERE  ABMAR  AGER  BEEG  BANARER Sd

2. During the period when the Company is entrusted with management of
the equity interests in Shanghai Sunwise, in the event that there are changes
in the market, policies or other factors and the Company considers that
Shanghai Sunwise is no longer suitable for the business development needs of
the Company, or it is expected that Shanghai Sunwise will not be able to meet
the conditions for injection into the Company in the future, after negotiation
between Jingcheng Industrial Investment and the Company, the Company
may, after performing the necessary decision-making procedures, terminate
the entrusted management of the equity interests in Shanghai Sunwise. Upon
termination of the entrusted management, Jingcheng Holding undertakes to
transfer the equity interests in Shanghai Sunwise to an unrelated third party
or take other measures as permitted by the prevaiing laws, regulations and
requlatory rules to solve the horizontal competition. The transaction does
not contravene the relevant provisions of the original Undertaking Letter
Regarding Avoidance of Horizontal Competition of Jingcheng Holding and
does not involve any change in undertakings et out in the Guidelines for
the Regulation of Listed Companies No. 4 - Undertakings Made by Listed
Companies and Relevant Parties and are in compliance with the requirements
of the laws and regulations.

2 ELMAAZHER LERERENE NRERTS  BREREE
TRIERR  HRFRA DERERTERA IMAASHEREE
JER DEREARERENIA LHARRE  ARIERE LHAT
8508 ERTTUBNRRERG  TULILE DERERENERE
Bo QILETERE  iBREGE DERERERATERRERNZ
=5 IRBEMER R RS ERAER S HRRRARERE - KR
REMERIARER (BRESAER AL MEERS - Tk
(i RAEE RS 3 — AR ARERE AR RENER RS
B Retdiangs-

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — REBIEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) AREREZEHA - BRR - B
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
there s a performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps
DFURERS  NRRREA
=8 RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
BEAR AE e EEE BERE  EEOHE  ERER  BAEG  BONARRR i
Others Beijing Jingcheng  Jingcheng Holding undertakes: After the completion of this Material Asset Long term ~ Yes Longterm Vs
Machinery Electric -~ Reorganisation, it will warrant the independence of the personnel, assets,
Holding Co., finances, organizations, businesses of the Listed Company. Jingcheng Holding
Ltd,, asubstantial  makes concrete undertaking in the areas of personnel independence, asset
shareholder independence, financial independence, organizational independence, business

independence. That undertaking continues to be valid, cannot be altered and
is irevocable during the period in which Jingcheng Holding is the Controlling
Sharefolder (or beneficial controller) of the Listed Company. If Jingcheng
Holding is in violation of the above undertaking and causes economic osses to
the Listed Company, Jingcheng Holding will compensate the Listed Company.
Ef ARRERRE  RUEREE  AREARESATNE ARELTATEAR 2E RE

BENRARE O B8 ZBSPEMBIL - RIERISBAREL AEET

27 SREL BEAL ERBUS AL ARMEE  JERERIE
REBETAANERER GEREMA) DEARERRATIEE SR
B MER HiEG - TRME FRATEREERE  REERARLT
AFBETRE -

&
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Alm
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Important Matters
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)
(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to

Y o

— REBIEETER @
(—) DRIEBEH A BRER - B

7~ BB AR A REEHAER
FERSHARFEIBERA

the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)
If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps
HAKREET AAERER
=) RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St
Others Beijing Jingcheng  Jingcheng Holding undertakes: 1. Within 30 days from the receipt of a Longterm ~ Yes Longterm Vs As of the date
Machinery Electric  notice on this matter of Material Asset Reorganisation of Beiren Holdings by of disclosure,
Holding Co,, the creditors of Beiren Holdings, within 45 days from the date of the first Jingcheng
Ltd, asubstantial -~ announcement on this matter of Material Asset Reorganisation of Beiren Holding has
shareholder Holdings in case of no receipt of the notice, if they demand Beiren Holdings urged Beiren
to make early repayment of fiabliies or provide security, and Beiren Holdings Group to repay
has not repaid the liabilties or provided the security, the Company undertakes the liabilties and
that it will bear the responsibilities of making early repayment of liabilities has undertaken
or providing securty; 2. If Beiren Holdings cannot reach the creditors, and that if Beiren
for those creditors who have not expressed clear opinion after the receipt Group cannot
of the notice or the expiry of the notice period, if they have expressed repay liablities in
clearly disagreement opinion before the completion of this Material Asset time, Jingcheng
Reorganisation, and Beiren Holdings has not repaid the liabilties nor provided Holding wil be
security upon their demand, the Company undertakes that it will bear the responsible for
responsibilties of making early repayment of liabilites or providing security, the repayment
3. For those creditors that Beiren Holdings really cannot reach, and those and provide
creditors who have not yet expressed clear opinion after the receipt of the quarantee, The
notice or the expiry of the notice period, f after the completion of this Material Company has not
Asset Reorganisation, the recipient of the Outgoing Assets cannot repay its suffered from any
liailtes, the Company is in charge of the repayment. After the Company has loss arising from
been liable for quarantee responsibilty and repayment responsibilty, it has the claims. Jingcheng
right to seek repayment from the recipient of the Qutgoing Assets. Holding has not
performed any
act inviolation of
the undertaking.
it ABRERRL AR 1 EARBHERASRILARDEEANERARE RE ® =5 z HERRER 7
BEIRARE EZENENZZER-TRA AEIBNENALARREETNER AREERIASE
R EESESEERLEZ ARNTRAR  NRELARGRIEEES BRERUAZNR
FREER - MARDREERRARE R Mﬂ%ﬂ%iﬁ%ﬁ TAEBREREE
FERBRIFEIREERNAL 2 NLARDELBEHER B RumRAaE
A NREHBAGASEREDAERRRERNBEA HDHM@ EERRUER &
REEEERAARBRERTREER  MIARRREEENBEE] RARMIRERE

SRy FAARRLARASRRRIER ﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁ
3 HREARDREEEREINEEA | U REHRARASHRAD
FEFRERONREA IOREAREEGRNY BOAENIGE
BELBEARAY REALREERE ALTHEERAAIERER
& BENELARMARIRENEE:
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — REBIEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the B~ WEBANUR D REEEEE
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEREHRARISFEZNREDRA
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
there s a performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE
=8 RERE  EHRARE  GEHAT-
EET e &k GERE EERE  ABMAR  AGER  BEEG  BANARER Sd

Resolving defects ~ Bejing Jingcheng Jingcheng Holding undertakes: f, in the future, the production workshops of - Long term Ve
infand tifesand ~ Machinery Electric  Tianhai Industry in Mulin Town is needed to be relocated due to real estate

Longterm ~ Yes

other property  Holding Co,, problems in defects of the lease, the Company will fully compensate in cash
rights Ltd., a substantial ~the Listed Company after the completion of this transaction for al the losses
shareholder of Tianai Industry caused by the relocating process.
BAIHEERE ARRIAN  RIBRER  EARREIRAMELEERRESREREOERNE &Y ® &5 z
Fik BEMRERE  THE $ ARAAAR AN LT AT EREBERET SR
A7 EEnagnIReL-
Others Beijing Jingcheng  Jingcheng Holding undertakes: The Company is fully aware of the existence  Long term ~ Yes Longterm ~ Yes
Machinery Electric -~ of the above problems of the Outgoing Assets, and undertakes that when
Holding Co., ~ this reorganisation is implemented and the relevant shareholders of some of
Ltd,, a substantial  the above subsidiaries of Beiren Holdings exercise the pre-emptive right, then
shareholder the Company will agree to accept the equivalent cash assets converted from
the long term equity investment in the above Outgoing Assets, and will not
demand to terminate or alter the Material Asset Reorganisation Agreement
previously signed by all parties due to the changes in the form of the Qutgoing
Assets, or demand Beiren Holdings to compensate for any losses or bear any
legal habllmes
i ABRERRE R AR Taﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬂimfﬂ%*ﬁt#ﬁ“ﬁ% & 3 &4 z

BETRARE Miiﬁ“@ﬁ%it)\ﬁxf B TEATABRRARERERE AL
fERR iz xb_ﬁﬁé@m%ﬁﬁx%ﬁi%ﬁ fSEEMREER
TERENAEVANB N ERALIRTR 2 AERBNENERES
RIEREARDRBEARA AR ERAL -
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)
(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to

Y o

— REBIEETER @
(—) DRIEBEH A BRER - B

7~ BB AR A REEHAER
FERSHARFEIBERA

the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)
If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps
HAKREET AAERER
=8 RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St
Resolving defects ~ Bejing Jingcheng Jingcheng Holding undertakes: The Company is fully aware of the existing  Long term ~ Yes Longterm Vs As of the date
infand tifesand ~ Machinery Electric - defects of the Outgoing Assets, and the Company will bear any losses or of disclosure,
other property  Holding Co,, legal liabilties caused by the defects of the Outgoing Assets, and will not Jingcheng
rights Ltd., asubstantial ~ demand Beiren Holdings to bear any losses or legal liabiities due to the Holding has
shareholder defects of the Outgoing Assets, and will not unilaterally refuse to sign or urged Beiren
request cessation, termination or change of the “Framework Agreement in Group to repay
relation to the Material Asset Reorganisation of Beiren Printing Machinery the liabilties and
Holdings Limited with Bejing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co, Ltd.", has undertaken
the "Material Asset Reorganisation Agreement of Beiren Printing Machinery that if Beiren
Holdings Limited with Bejing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. Group cannot
and Beiren Group Corporation” and relevant agreements due to the defects repay liablities in
of the Outgoing Assets. If the consent for liabiltes transfer of the creditors time, Jingcheng
in respect of the relevant liabilities involved in the Outgoing Assets (including Holding wil be
the liabilties newly arose from the benchmark date to the delvery date) was responsible for
not obtained, Beiren Group Corporation shall bear al relevant obligations, the repayment
responsibilties and expenses if such creditors declare rights to Beiren Holdings; and provide
Beiren Group Corporation shall make full compensation to Beiren Holdings if quarantee, The
Beiren Holdings bear any fiabilites or incurred any losses due to such liablities Company has not
recourse. The Company undertakes: the Company will be jointly iable for the suffered from any
compensation obligations of Beiren Group Corporation. loss arising from
claims. Jingcheng
Holding has not
performed any
act inviolation of
the undertaking.
BAIHEER BRI RUAREE  ARERAARRENEERNEANER ALREAE RE = &5 z HERRER 7
B BEARARE Eﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁ& BRIGERE  FERRELARRRE EREBRIARE
27 R ARBDEEE uaﬂ&ézﬁ T eRRENERRNE SRR [BRERTAENE
BEAENAL BB EROADRERRAERATL RRIRE TAEBREREE
%’?‘H&ﬁ ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%@ (I ATRIRRRAE & FsREaE
Tiﬁitﬁ?%a“ﬁxﬁﬂﬁiﬁ ARLARER T ERAEERS EERRUER &
YRAERE - MRRE AR ROEEER(RERERRIRY AARMIRERE

%ﬁFéE’J’E B) RREBENIEREBORE FEEEARLAR
%E R s ASBLARERERN 2] RERRR: 1
%M%Ei%ﬁﬁéi@%%ﬁHEJEEBZ%E%TE{EHE%E@ HbAR

BLAREARRER2BRE - RATAG : AADAHLARELTN
&%ﬁ% RfEREESRL
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Important Matters N

ENE EESE

— REBIEETER @
(—) DRIEBEH A BRER - B

B B AR D T SAEEE
FHEREPARFERRERR
KR EIE ()

If not If not

performed performed

Whether  in a timely in a timely

Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe

Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps
HAKREET AAERER
=8 RERR  ERAZH OEEET-

BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St

Type of Undertaking

Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking

BEAR AE e EEE
Resolving defects ~ Beiren Group ~ Beiren Group undertakes: The Company is fully aware of the existence of
in land titles and the above problems of the Outgoing Assets, and undertakes that when this
other property reorganisation is implemented and the relevant shareholders of some of the
rights above subsidiaries of Beiren Holdings exercise the pre-emptive right, then

the Company will agree to accept the equivalent cash assets converted from
the long term equity investment in the above Outgoing Assets, and will not
demand to terminate or alter the Material Asset Reorganisation Agreement
previously signed by all parties due to the changes in the form of the Qutgoing
Assets, or demand Beiren Holdings to compensate for any losses or bear any

legal liabilties.
BRAIHZER 1A%R WASEEG : AAACEAARELARENFEN DERR - DGR
B FREREHBILARR LA TEATRBERRRELEER UK

DEREAR LB ARG NRERERARR DEZEENREEE
TEREHAEVANBN IR L IRT R ZHCERNENEREY
FRIEREARDRBEARA AR ERES -

Resolving defects ~ Beiren Group ~ Beiren Group undertakes: The Company is fully aware of the existing defects
in land titles and of the Qutgoing Assets, and the Company will bear any losses or legal
other property libiltes caused by the defects of the Outgoing Assets, and will not demand
rights Beiren Holdings to bear any losses or legal liabilties due to the defects of

the Qutgoing Assets. If the consent for liabiltes transfer of the creditors in
respect of the relevant liabilties involved in the Qutgoing Assets (including
the liabilties newly arose from the benchmark date to the delivery date) was
not obtained, Company shall bear all relevant obligations, responsibilties and
expenses if such creditors declare rights to Beiren Holdings; the Company
shall make full compensation to Beiren Holdings if Beiren Holdings bear any
liabilities or incurred any losses due to such liabilites recourse.

BAIHEER 1A%E KAREEE  RAIRAHARELEREAFANGE  RAAAAR

Bk REEHEERENECOAMERILREL TERRELEERE
SXEARREEEABADZRRE - MRRELERT AP ROAT
AE(RERZERIRH ERRELNER) - ARGERAYERESY
AE - ASEEAMLARDIREN - AALRARAEBN T8
% RERER ORUARARASEEEZAET ENAAIERTE
fE%s - AARTMEARNDEL 2 ERE -

Long term

&

Long term

&

Yes

Alm

Yes

Alm

Longterm ~ Yes

&

Fm

Longterm ~ Yes

2

FHm
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — AABHEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (—) RRAIEBESA - RER - BE
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not

performed performed

Whether  in a timely in a timely

Whether strictly — manner, manner,

thereisa performed  describe describe

Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in

Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps
HAKREET AAERER
=) RERR  ERAZH OEEET-

FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St

Lock-up Counterparties of  Undertaking in relation to share lock-up From the date Yes From the date Yes
Reorganisation (Li -~ The Counterparties of Reorganisation (Li Hong, Zhao Qing, Wang Xiaohui, Qian - of acquisition of acquisition
Hong, Zhao Qing,  Yuyan) undertake: of shares in the of shares in the
Wang Xiaohui, Qian 1. Ishall not transfer shares of the Listed Company acquired under the listed company listed company
Yuyan) Transactions within 12 months from the lssuance Completion Date for the  untilthe expiry until the expiry

Reorganisation. After the expiration of the aforementioned lock-up period, for  of the lock-up of the lock-up
the shares of the Listed Company acquired under the Asset Acquisition by way of period period
Share Issuance and Cash Payment, it shall be unlocked in phases according to the

following amangement:

1t phase: After 12 months from the ssuance Completion Date of the

Reorganisation and upon performance of my corresponding compensation

obligations (f any) for the year of 2021 under the Performance Compensation

Agreement and its supplemental agreement (collectively the *Performance

Compensation Agreements”), the remaining portion of 40% of the newly

acquired shares received less the number of shares (if any) compensated for the

year shall be unlocked

2nd phase: If | have fully performed the compensation obligations (f any) for the

year of 2022 under the Performance Compensation Agreements, the remaining

portion of 20% of the newly acquired shares received less the number of shares (i

any) compensated for the year shall be unlocked;

3rd phase: If  have fully performed the compensation obligations (f any) for the

year of 2023 under the Performance Compensation Agreements, the remaining

portion of 20% of the newly acquired shares received less the number of shares (i

any) compensated for the year shall be unlocked;

ol TREARSY  ERRAERMEE BAGEMR & BRELTL &
FEL EE. FREERSHE(RM #E IEE ERE)AG: kit A kiR B
IHE ERE 1 PARRRRGIGHLATRG - EAREARARRARIEN FHEEER EERHER

WAGER : MEERRERE  ARETRORXAREREARATR
ROLARRG  RRTARAADES

F-4: EANEEEARRARRNER AEAE (ZERERS RER
(AT AR (2ERERE) DA TH00 FEHRABESR (08)2
Bndt) AARRBSORERNP OO TREHEFCRERNG
EB)RNMBBATRERE

58 TAR(ZEREDA)E MINRFEUENEEER (AR
IS EARRBEAFERNTHNRNERREFCRERNSE
() RaRRBATRIEE

F28 IAR(ZEREDE)E M HNDBFEHENERER(IA)ER
RS EARRRROFERATNDNHRREFCRERNSE
(R RMRBRATRREE
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — AGEBEHETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not

performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely

Whether strictly — manner, manner,

thereisa performed  describe describe

Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in

Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE
=8 RERE  EHRARE  GEHAT-
EET e &k GERE EERE  ABMAR  AGER  BEEG  BANARER Sd

dth phase: If | have fully performed the compensation obligations (if any)
corresponding to the entire performance commitment period under the
Performance Compensation Agreements (1. the five financial years of 2020,
2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024), the remaining shares in the newly acquired
shares received that have not been unlocked shall be unlocked.

I warrant that | will not create any pledge or other encumbrance of rights in
respect of the Consideration Shares acquired by me through this Transaction
after the expiry of the 12-month lock-up period and until such shares are
unlocked in accordance with the aforementioned lock-up period agreement.
2. During the above-mentioned share lock-up periods, the additional shares
acquired due to the issue of bonus shares and conversion of capital reserve
into share capital of the Listed Company shall also be subject to the regulation
of the above-mentioned lock-up periods. In case the lock-up periods as
required by regulatory opinions or relevant provisions of the securities
requlatory authority are longer than the above-mentioned lock-up periods
or there are other requirements, corresponding adjustments should be made
according to such regulatory opinions or relevant provisions.

3. | undertake that the shares of the Listed Company acquired in the
Transactions shallstricty conform to the restriction of the lock-up periods and
be issued in priority to satisfy the performance compensation obligations. |
undertake not to avoid the compensation obligations by any means including
share pledges.

FIE: DAE(ZEREGEVET 2 IR EAER 00F 200 E
005 - NB3FMOUFREEHER - TR)FURNRESH (0E)E
2BBAREN  FARRREMMLRNT S RRRORBRATRES

i3

FARE  BREABELRRAARENHERD  £1EARTHER
%g%gﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%’ﬁk$@§ [EMEATELE
gk

2 HiRDEESR - WREPATERAR  ARARSBERAS
BRI LTARMRG - e LRk ARIAE - ARFEERAY
ERSRAEERR DR AR LIS T AR IRE
HERAE RN B AN E TR -

3 RARRRRZATREN LRAARABRRETREDRY U8
%gﬁgg%ﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬂ$A%%$ﬁ@@%§ﬁ%ﬁﬁmmﬁﬁﬁﬂ%

2024 ANNUAL REPORT | 143
2024 FERE




I Scction 8 Important Matters “Uﬂ
E/\E EREE =p ﬁ -

l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — EEETEETIER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEREHRARISFEZNREDRA
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE
=8 RERE  EHRARE  GEHAT-
EET e &k GERE EERE  ABMAR  AGER  BEEG  BANARER Sd

4. Before completion of performance compensation obligations, if | need to
pledge the shares acquired in the Transactions (including additional shares held
after completion of the issue due to conversion of capital reserve of the Listed
Company into share capital, distribution of dividend, etc), | undertake to inform
the pledgee in writing that the shares to be pledged are subject to potential
performance undertaking compensation obligations under the Performance
Compensation Agreements and express agreement will be provided i the pledge
agreement with the pledgee for the use of relevant shares for performance
compensation, etc. and shall inform the Listed Company in writing regarding the
relevant pledge later than the date of signing of the pledge agreement.
5. In the event that the Transactions are filed for investigation by the judicial
authorities or the Chinese Securities Regulatory Commission due to the false
information, misleading statement or material omission contained in the
information provided or disclosed, | shallnot transfer the shares of the Listed
Company acquired in the Transactions before the investigation resuls are
determined, and shall, within two trading days of receiving the nofice of filing,
submit the written application for suspension of the transfer and the stock
account to the Board of Directors of JINGCHENG MAC, the Board of Directors
shall apply to the stock exchanges and the depository and clearing companies
forlock-up on my behalf, If the lockup application is not submitted within
two trading days, the Board of Directors is authorized to submit my identity
information and account information to the stock exchanges and the depository
and dearing companies to apply for lock-up after verification. If the Board of
Directors fais to submit my identity information and account information to the
stock exchanges and the depasitory and clearing companies, the stock exchanges
and the depository and clearing companies are authorized to directl lock-up the
relevant shares. Ifthe investigation concludes that there are violations of laws and
requlations, | undertake to lock-up the shares and use them for the compensation
amangements for relevant investors on  voluntary basis.
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — REBIEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
there s a performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE
=8 RERE  EHRARE  GEHAT-
EET e &k GERE EERE  ABMAR  AGER  BEEG  BANARER Sd

6. If the above undertakings are violated, | shall bear al legal liabilties. | shall fully
compensate the Listed Company with my own funds for any damage caused

to the Listed Company or for any administrative penalty or regulatory measures
suffered by the Listed Company.

6 BER LR AABRE-EREE - B EFATEREEAR
LETRARSTHES - ERREN AARIRRREH DAL ER

E-
Lock-up Counterparty of  Undertaking in relation to share lock-up From the date Yes From the date Yes
Reorganisation  The Counterparty of Reorganisation (Qingdao Eternal) undertakes: of acquisition of acquisition
(Qingdao Eteral) 1. The company shall not transfer shares of the Listed Company acquired under of shares in the of shares n the
the Transactions within 12 months from the lssuance Completion Date for the ~lsted company listed company
Reorganisation. After the expiration of the aforementioned lockup period, for  until the expiry untilthe expiry
the shares of the Listed Company acquired under the Asset Acquisition by way ofof the lock-up of the lock-up
Share Issuance and Cash Payment, it shall be unlocked in phases according to theperiod period

following amangement:

1t phase: After 12 months from the ssuance Completion Date of the
Reorganisation and upon performance of the company corresponding
compensation obligations (if any) for the year of 2021 under the Performance
Compensation Agreement and its supplemental agreement (collectively the
"Performance Compensation Agreements”), the remaining portion of 40% of the
newly acquired shares received less the number of shares (f any) compensated
for the year shall be unlocked;

2nd phase: If the company has fully performed the compensation obligations (if
any) for the year of 2022 under the Performance Compensation Agreements, the
remaining portion of 20% of the newly acquired shares received less the number
of shares (if any) compensated for the year shall be unlocked;

3rd phase: If the company has fully performed the compensation obligations (if
any) for the year of 2023 under the Performance Compensation Agreements, the
remaining portion of 20% of the newly acquired shares received less the number
of shares (if any) compensated for the year shall be unlocked
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of
undertaking

Undertaking

Background party Content of undertaking

EET e &k GERE

Y o

— RAHEBIEETER@®
(—) DRIEBEH A BRER - B
7~ W ALK A RS RAE R
FEREHARFERREHR

BV AR S TH ()

If not If not

performed performed

Whether  in a timely in a timely

Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe

Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps
HAKREET AAERER
=8 RERR  ERAZH OEEET-

BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St

4th phase: If the company has fully performed the compensation obligations

(it any) corresponding to the entire performance commitrent period under the

Performance Compensation Agreements (i. the five finandial years of 2020,

2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024), the remaining shares in the newly acquired shares
received that have not been unlocked shall be unlocked. The company warrants
that it will not create any pledge or other encumbrance of rights in respect of the
Consideration Shares acquired by it through this Transaction after the expiry of

the 12-month lock-up period and until such shares are unlocked in accordance
with the aforementioned lock-up period agreement,
2. During the above-mentioned share lock-up periods, the additional shares

acquired due to the issue of bonus shares and conversion of capital reserve into

share capital of the Listed Company shall also be subject to the regulation of

the above-mentioned lock-up periods. In case the lock-up periods as required by

requlatory opinions or relevant provisions of the securities regulatory authority
are longer than the above-mentioned lock-up periods or there are other
requirements, corresponding adjustments should be made according to such
requlatory opinions or relevant provisions of the securities requlatory authorty.
3, The company undertakes that the shares of the Listed Company acquired in
the Transactions shallstictly conform to the restriction of the lock-up periods

and be used in priority to satisfy the performance compensation obligations. The

company undertakes not to avoid the compensation obligations by any means
including share pledges.
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — REBIEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) AREREZEHA - BRR - B
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
there s a performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps
HAKREET AAERER
= RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St

4. Before completion of performance compensation obligations, if the company
needs to pledge the shares acquired in the Transactions (including additional
shares held after completion of the issue due to conversion of capital reserve

of the Listed Company into share capital, distribution of dividend, etc), the
company undertakes to inform the pledgee in writing that the shares to be
pledged are subject to potential performance compensation obligations under
the Performance Compensation Agreements and express agreement will be
provided in the pledge agreement with the pledgee for the use of relevant shares
for performance compensation, etc. and shall inform the Listed Company in
writing regarding the relevant pledge later than the date of signing of the pledge
agreement,
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Undertaking
party

Type of

Background  undertaking Content of undertaking

EET e &k GERE

Y o

— RAHEBIEETER@®
(—) DRIEBEH A BRER - B
7~ W ALK A RS RAE R
FEREHARFERREHR

BV AR S TH ()

If not If not

performed performed

Whether  in a timely in a timely

Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe

Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps
HAKREET AAERER
=8 RERR  ERAZH OEEET-

BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St

5. In the event that the Transactions are filed for investigation by the judicial
authorities or the Chinese Securities Regulatory Commission due to the false
information, misleading statement or material omission contained in the
information provided or disclosed, the company shall not transfer the shares of

the Listed Company acquired in the Transactions before the investigation results

are determined, and shall, within two trading days of receiving the notice of

fiing, suomit the written application for suspension of the transfer and the stock

account to the Board of Directors of JINGCHENG MAC, the Board of Directors

shall apply to the stock exchanges and the depository and clearing companies fo

lockup on the company's behalf. If the lock-up application is not submitted within

two trading days, the Board of Directors s authorized to submit the company's
identity information and account information to the stock exchanges and the
depository and clearing companies to apply for lock-up after verification. I the

Board of Directors fails to submit the company's identity information and account

information to the stock exchanges and the depository and clearing companes,

the stock exchanges and the depository and clearing companes are authorized

to directly lockup the relevant shares. If the investigation concludes that there are
violations of laws and regulations, the company undertakes to lock-up the shares

and use them for the compensation arrangements for relevant investors on a
voluntary basis.

6. If the above undertakings are violated, | shall bear all legal liabilties. | shall fully

compensate the Listed Company with my own funds for any damage caused

to the Listed Company or for any administrative penalty or regulatory measures
suffered by the Listed Company.
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — REBIEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (—) RRAIEBESA - RER - BE
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps
RERNRG  MAEREE
=8 RERR  ERAZH OEEET-

FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St

Lock-up Counterparties of  Undertaking in relation to share lock-up From the date Yes From the date Yes
Reorganisation  The Counterparties of Reorganisation (Yang Ping, Xiao Zhonghai, Xia Tao, Wong of acquisition of acquisition
(Yang Ping, Huadong, Xiu Jun, Fu Dun and Chen Zhengyan) undertake: of shares in the of shares in the
Xiao Zhonghai, 1. The shares of the Listed Company acquired by me in the Transactions shall ot lsted company listed company
XiaTao, Wong be transferred within 12 months from the lssuance Completion date of the ~ until the expiry until the expiry
Huadong, Xiu ~ Reorganisation. of the lock-up of the lock-up
Jun, FuDunand 2. During the above-mentioned share lock-up period, the adcitional Listed ~ period period

Chen Zhengyan)  Company's shares acquired due to the issue of bonus shares and conversion of
capital reserve into share capital of the Listed Company shall also be subject to
the requlation of the above-mentioned lock-up period. In case the lockup period as
required by regulatory opinions or relevant provisions of the securites regulatory
authority is longer than the above-mentioned lock-up period or there are other
requirements, corresponding adjustments should be made according to Such
requlatory opinions or relevant provisions of the securities requlatory authorty.

3. If the above undertakings are violated, | shall bear al legal liabilities. | shall fully
compensate the Listed Company with my own funds for any damage caused

to the Listed Company or for any administrative penalty or regulatory measures
suffered by the Listed Company.
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — EEETEETIER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FHEBEHARFEIREHA
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE

=) RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St
Others Counterparties of  Undertaking in relation to the Pledge of the Consideration Shares From the date Yes From the date Yes
Reorganisation (Li -~ The Counterparties of Reorganisation (Li Hong, Zhao Qing, Wang Xiaohui, Qian - of acquisition of acquisition
Hong, Zhao Qing,  Yuyan) undertake: of shares in the of shares in the
Wang Xigohu, 1. As at the date of thisletter of undertaking, | do not have any plansand ~lsted company listed company
Qian Yuyan) amangements to pledge exterall (including setting up other third party rights) ~ until the expiry until the expiry
the shares of the Listed Company acquired in the Transaction. of the lock-up of the lock-up
2. The additional shares of the Listed Company acquired by me through period period

the Transaction will be subject to alock-up period and phased unlocking
amangements in accordance with the * Agreement on lssuance of Shares and
Payment of Cash for Assets” and its supplemental agreement.

3. For the Consideration Shares acquired by me through the Transaction, | wil
not create any pledge or other encumbrances on the Consideration Shares held
by me that are still subject to the lock-up period or yet to be unlocked during the
12-month lock-up period and after the expiry of the aforesaid lockup period until
they are unlocked in accordance with the phased unlocking agreement.
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — REBIEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the B~ WEBANUR D REEEEE
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEREHRARISFEZNREDRA
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
there s a performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE

=) RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St
Others Counterparty of  Undertaking in relation to the Pledge of the Consideration Shares From the date Yes From the date Yes
Reorganisation  The Counterparty of Reorganisation (Qingdao Eternal) undertakes: of acquisition of acquisition
(Qingdao Etemal) 1. As at the date of this letter of undertaking, the company does not have any  of shares in the of shares in the
plans and arrangements to pledge externally including setting up other third listed company listed company
Darty rights) the shares of the Listed Company acquired in the Transaction. ~ until the expiry until the expiry
2. The additional shares of the Listed Company acquired by the company of the lock-up of the lock-up
through the Transaction will be Subject to a lock-up period and phased period period

unlocking arrangements in accordance with the " Agreement on Issuance of
Shares and Payment of Cash for Assets" and its supplemental agreement,

3. For the Consideration Shares acquired by the company through the
Transaction, the company will not create any pledge or other encumbrances
on the Consideration Shares held by the company that are stil subject to the
lock-up period or yet to be unlocked during the 12-month lock-up period
and after the expiry of the aforesaid lock-up period until they are unlocked in
accordance with the phased unlocking agreement.
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — AGEBEHETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not

performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely

Whether strictly — manner, manner,

there s a performed  describe describe

Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in

Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE

=8 RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St
Others Beijing Jingcheng  Undertaking for maintaining the independence of the Listed Company longterm ~ Yes Longterm Vs

Machinery Electric  Jingcheng Holding undertakes:

Holding Co., Before the Transactions, JINGCHENG MAC is independent of the company.

Ltd,, a substantial ~ After the completion of the Transactions, the company will continue to maintain

shareholder the independence of INGCHENG MAC, follow the five-division and five-
independence (T + FBIL) principles in business, assets, personnel
finance, and organization and comply with the relevant regulations of the
Chinese Securities Regulatory Commission. The company will not cause
JINGCHENG MAC to provide unlawful quarantees, will ot use the capital of
JINGCHENG MAC, and will not form peer competition with JINGCHENG MAC.
Once the letter of undertaking is signed, it constitutes an irevocable legal
obligation of the company. ff damage is caused to the rights and interests of
JINGCHENG MAC and its small and medium shareholders as a result of the
company's breach of such undertakings, the company will bear the compensation
liabilities by law accordingly.
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — AABHEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (—) RRAIEBESA - RER - BE
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps
HAKREET AAERER
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FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St

Others Counterparties of  Undertaking for not to seek control of Listed Company longterm ~ Yes Longterm Vs
Reorganisation  The Counterparties of Reorganisation (17 natural persons including Li Hong)
(17 natural undertake:
persons including 1. Since | became a shareholder of BYTQ, I, as a shareholder of BYTQ, have
Li Hong) exercised my voting rights independently and have not acted in concert with

ofher shareholders of BYTQ in respect of their shareholdings in BYTQ, nor have
I entered into any concerted action agreement or performed any other acts
that may bind shareholders to exercise their rights as shareholders together
and effectively control or jointly control BYTQ.

2. lundertake to recognise and respect the status of the controling
shareholder of the Listed Company. | will not seek to increase my shareholding
in the Listed Company directly o indirectl, or seek control of the Listed
Company individually or ointly with my shareholding in the Listed Company,
nor will influence o seek control of the Listed Company by proxy, solicitation
of votes, agreement, cooperation, affiiation, concerted relationship or in any
other manner; nor do | have any plan to recommend or nominate directors and
senior management to the Listed Company, nor do | have any specifc plan to
adjust the composition of the board of directors and senior management of
the lsted company after the completion of the Reorganisation.

-4 FREARSY  BRTERLATREN &8 = &5 z
FEISTEE AREARSHR (FUSILERNEE 1 ERARBLERERR
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of Undertaking
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking

EET e &k GERE

Y o

— REBIEETER @
(—) DRIEBEH A BRER - B

B B AR D T SAEEE
FHEREPARFERRERR
KR EIE ()

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe
Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE
RERE  EHRARE  GEHAT-

=8
EERE  ABMAR  AGER  BEEG  BANARER Sd

Others Counterparty of  Undertaking for not to seek control of Listed Company

Reorganisation  The Counterparty of Reorganisation (Qingdao Eternal) undertakes:

(Qingdao Etemal) 1. Since the company became a shareholder of BYTQ, the company, as a
shareholder of BYTQ, have exercised my voting rights independently and
have not acted in concert with other shareholders of BYTQ in respect of their
shareholdings in BYTQ, nor have the company entered into any concerted
action agreement or performed any other acts that may bind shareholders to
exercise their rights as shareholders together and effectively control or ointly
control BYTQ.

2. The company undertakes to recognise and respect the status of the
controling shareholder of the Listed Company. The company will not seek
to increase my shareholding in the Listed Company directly or indirectly,
or seek control of the Listed Company individually or jointly with my
shareholding in the Listed Company, nor willthe company influence or seek
control of the Listed Company by proxy, solicitation of votes, agreement,
cooperation, affiation, concerted relationship or in any other manner; nor
does the company have any plan to recommend or nominate directors and
senior management to the Listed Company, nor does the company have
any specific plan to adjust the composition of the board of directors and
senior management of the Listed Company after the completion of the

Reorganisation.
-4 FREARSY  BRERITATRNEN

FESED) AREERREARELSRNS 1 AROERBLIRARAES
SOEETTRERRRREME MU A LR
EHiAEE-aABNNY  KATET-9AB0E TEREANT
EARBR AR RN IRR AR R 8 2
02REITHEE DO ANERERAL - AOERELENARY
S \BETRRBEAAERES EROARG Sl LIAARG
EEGAFAR L BRANSSE IT4NER BERRE B
Al BBER . —HHBET LAY ETER ANNEY
# A0ENEA FTATERTRARSHENEEARIHY S0
REERA TATESANERER AR AR LA R

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

Long term
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Yes
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Longterm ~ Yes
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — REBIEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
there s a performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE

=8 RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St
Others Beijing Jingcheng  Undertaking for replenishing the diluted immediate return longterm ~ Yes Longterm~ Yes
Machinery Electric Jingcheng Holding undertakes: In any event, the company will not act ultra
Holding Co., uires to intervene in the operation and management activities of JINGCHENG

Ltd,, asubstantial ~ MAC, and will not infringe on the interests of INGCHENG MAC. The company
shareholder will effectively perform the obligations as the Controlling Sharehalder, perform
its duties faithfully and diligently, and safeguard the legal ights and interests of
JINGCHENG MAC and ts shareholders as whole. From the date of issue of the
undertaking letter to the completion of the Transactions of INGCHENG MAC,
if the China Securties Regulatory Commission makes other new regulatory
requirements on replenishment retur measures and its undertakings, and the
above-mentioned undertakings cannot meet the requirements of the CSRC,
the company undertakes that it will then issue a supplementary undertaking in
accordance with the latest requlations of the CSRC. If the company violates or
fails to fulfll the above undertakings, the company wil:
1. publicly apologize to the shareholders of JINGCHENG MAC and the public
investors for not fulfllng the above-mentioned undertakings at the general
megting of INGCHENG MAC and on the newspapers designated by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission;
2. within 5 working days from the date of confirming the breach of the
abovementioned undertakings, terminate to receive dividends s a shareholder
of INGCHENG MAC, and JINGCHENG MAC shares held by the company shll
not be transferred until the company fulflls effectively ts undertaking or its
breach of undertaking is eliminated;
3.if the Company fais to perform the above undertakings for reasons
other than force majeure, and fais to provide appropriate and reasonable
explanations, the gains obtained by the company therefrom will belong
to JINGCHENG MAC, and JINGCHENG MAC has the right to require the
Company to remit the proceeds generated from the breach of undertaking to
the designated account of JINGCHENG MAC within 10 working days from the
receiving date of such gains.

Ef ARRERRE  EEREEIEDGERNAE &4
HEARARE  RIMERH: REAEVT LAY RETERIRMOEEEE
27 59 TeRERIRGNE - ARARIERAERRRNEE 3

£ OMPRTEE  AERIRAAZERRNSEER - BARANA
BERIRAARR SRR ERERAEEERR 2O HENARE
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — EEETEETIER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEREHRARISFEZNREDRA
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE

=) RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
BEAR AE e EEE BERE  EEOHE  ERER  BAEG  BONARRR i
Others Directors Undertaking for replenishing the diluted immediate retum longterm ~ Yes Longterm Vs
and senior Directors and senior management of the Listed Company undertake:

management 1. Not to transfer benefits to other entities or individuals at nil consideration or
of the Listed under unfair terms, and not to damage the interests of JNGCHENG MACin
Company other ways;
2. Torestrain the duty consumption behavior;
3. Undertake not to utilize the assets of JINGCHENG MAC to engage in
investment and consumption activities which are unrelated to the performance
of duties;
4, That the remuneration system formulated by the Board of Directors or
the remuneration committee wil be linked to the implementation of the
replenishment return measures of JINGCHENG MAC;
5. That if INGCHENG MAC implements equity incentives, the exercise conditions
for equity incentives of JINGCHENG MAC to be announced will e linked to the
implementation of the replenishment return measures of INGCHENG MAC.
i violate o fail to fulfill the above undertakings, I
1. will publicty apologize to the shareholders of INGCHENG MAC and the public
investors for not fulfllng the above-mentioned undertakings at the general
megting of INGCHENG MAC and on the newspapers designated by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission;
2. within 5 working days from the date of confirming the breach of the
abovementioned undertakings, terminate to receive remuneration, allowance
(if any) and bonus (f any) s a shareholder of JINGCHENG MAC, and shares
of JINGCHENG MAC (if any) held by me shall not be transferred unti | fuffil
effectivel my undertaking or my breach of undertaking is eliminated;
3. ifIfail o perform the above undertakings for reasons other than force
majeure, and fai to provide appropriate and reasonable explanations, the geins
obtained by me therefrom will belong to JNGCHENG MAC, and JINGCHENG
MAC has the right to require me to remit the proceeds generated from the
breach of undertaking to the designated account of INGCHENG MAC within 10
working days from the receiving date of such gains.
it LiRiES . EERERDATSERNGE &4
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — REBIEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the B~ WEBANUR D REEEEE
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEREHRARISFEZNREDRA
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
there s a performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE

=8 RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St
Solving the issues  Bejing Jingcheng  Undertaking regarding avoidance of peer compettion longterm ~ Yes Longterm Vs
conceming Machinery Electric  Jingcheng Holding undertakes:
competitionin~ Holding Co., 1. Unless the company no longer directy or indirectly holds the shares of
the same industry  Ltd., a substantial  INGCHENG MAC, the company and the enterprises effectively controlled or
shareholder influenced significantly by the company shall not engage in, particpate in, or

assist others to engage in any business activites that are directly or indirectly in
competition with the busingsses of INGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaries by any
means (including but not limited to independently operating or jointly operating
and cooperating with other parties within or outside China), nor directly or
indirectly invest in econonic entities which are in direct or indirect competition
with the businesses that INGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaries are engaged in.

2. If the company breaches the agreement initem 1 above, which causes

losses to JINGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaries, the company will be fiable for
compensation based on the actual losses to be suffered by JINGCHENG MAC and

its subsidiaries at that time.
BREERE  ARRERM %%ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%m% =] & &4 =

BERRERE  MIEEAE O BEANATBERIMEEEIRGORG  BH

a3l Zli’BET&?ﬁ’AET??aﬁ;V‘WJMEMEE’Jt% WA (B EM
ROEREANGANBOREHARE A  2EdBIEARS
FAERERN LT D AR DA SN E R A ERIRRRTEANE
TR EH R ETHE RO REFARERLAL ENE
BEERIRRIHANTERE ) B5D TWL&b_%UEZ%
fé“?'iﬂcﬁxh&ﬁ% FERERY - IRDIERERIRORATAA
BERESHELAERERE

2024 ANNUAL REPORT | 157
2024 FERE




I Scction 8 Important Matters
EN\E BESHE

Y o

— REBIEETER @

l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to

(=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
7~ BB AR A REEHAER
FERSHARFEIBERA

the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not

performed performed

Whether  in a timely in a timely

Whether strictly — manner, manner,

thereisa performed  describe describe

Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in

Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps
HAKREET AAERER
=8 RERR  ERAZH OEEET-

FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St

Solving the issues ~ Counterparties of - Undertaking regarding avoidance of peer competition
concerning Reorganisation  Counterparties of Reorganisation (Huang Xiaofeng, Li Hong, Qian Yuyan, Tao
competitionin ~ (Huang Xiaofeng, ~Feng, Wang Xiaohui, Zhao Qing) undertake: 1. 1 and the other enterprises
the same industry  LiHong, Qian~ effectively contralled or influenced significantly by me currently dofes) not own
Yuyan, Tao Feng,  and operate any business directly or Indirectly competing with the businesses
Wang Xiaohui,  engaged by the Listed Company and BYTQ in terms of business. 2. During the
Zhao Qing) period | directly o indirectly hold the shares of JINGCHENG MAC, the enterprises
effectively controlled or influenced significantly by me and I shall not engage in,
participate in, o assist others to engage in any business actiities that are directly
or indirectly in competition with the businesses of JINGCHENG MAC and its
subsidiaries by any means (including but not limited to independently operating
or jointly operating and cooperating with other parties within or outside Chinal,
nor directy or indirectly invest in economic entities which are in direct or indrect
competition with the businesses that JINGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaries are
engaged in. | and the enterprises effectively controlled or influenced significantly
by me have the same or similar business opportunities as those in BYTQ, and
those business opportunities may directly or indirectly cause business competition
between the enterprises effectively controlled or influenced significantly by me
and| and BYTQ, | shall notify BYTQ immediately after noticing those business
opportunities and strive to procure the offering of those business opportunities
to BYTQ in priority on terms no less favorable than those offered to me and
the enterprises effectively controlled or influenced significantly by me. 3. f|
breach the agreement in item 1 and item 2 above, | shall eturn the shares of
JINGCHENG MAC received from the Transactions to JINGCHENG MAC at il
consideration. JINGCHENG MAC will cancel those shares returned by me in
accordance with its internal decision-making procedures (for shares which have
been transferred, the proceeds from the transfer shall be retumed); if  breach
the agreement in item 1 and item 2 above, which causes losses to JINGCHENG
MAC and its subsidiaries, | will also be liable for compensation based on the
actual losses to be suffered by INGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaries at that
time. Upon signing of this letter of undertaking, my irevocable legal obligation
is formed. This letter of undertaking is valid for a period from the date of signing
this letter of undertaking to the date on which | am no longer a direct or indirect
B ‘ shareholder of INGCHENG MAC.
ERRERF  DMEERRY %%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
FERE-F  ZRBERZH) (RRE M G55 RBE-TRE - ER)EG -1
IGREB  RARRARHERNEATENER S BN ERREREMERS
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%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁiaéiﬂimﬁ $A“Fﬁﬁ&%ﬁ%ﬁéiﬁﬁﬂk
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Undertaking
party

Type of

Background  undertaking Content of undertaking

EET e &k GERE

Section 8

Important Matters N
ENE BEESIHE

— RAHEBIEETER@®
(=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
77 W ALK A RS AEAEER
FEREHARFERREHR
H A B I (8)

If not
performed
in a timely
manner,
describe
plans in
next steps
HAEREE
fERET-
Fitdl

If not
performed

in a timely
manner,
describe

the specific
reasons
HAKREES
EHBATH
BNAERE

Whether

strictly

performed
During of ~in a timely
undertaking manner

RARE
ERER  BRES

Whether

there s a
Dateof  deadline for
undertaking performance

=8
EERE  AEGAER

Solving the issues
concerning
competition in
the same industry

Counterparty of
Reorganisation
(Qingdao Eternal)

Undertaking re?arding avoidance of peer competition

Counterparty of Reorganisation (Qingdzo Etemal) undertakes: 1. The company
and the other enterprises effectively controlled or influenced significantly by the
company currently dofes) not own and operate any business irectly or indrecty
(ompetlng with the businesses engaged by the Listed Company and BYTQ

in terms of business. 2. During the period the company directy or indirectly
holds the shares of JINGCHENG MAC, the enterprises effectively controlled or
influenced significantly by the company and the company shal not engage in,
participate in, or assist others to engage in any business actvites that are directly
or indirectly in competition with the businesses of JINGCHENG MAC and its
subsidiaries by any means (including but not imited to independently operating
or jointly operating and cooperating with other parties within or outside China),
nor directly or indirectly invest in economic entities which are in direct or indirect
competition with the businesses that JINGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaries are
engaged in. The company and the enterprises effectively controlled or influenced
significantly by the company have the same or similar business opportunities as
those in BYTQ, and those husiness opportunities may directly or Indirecty cause
business competition between the enterprises effectively controlled or influenced
significantly by the company and the company and BYTQ, the company shall
notify BYTQ immediately after noticing those business opportunities and strive
to procure the offering of those business opportunities to BYTQ in priority on
terms no less favorable than those offered to the company and the enterprises
effectively controlled or influenced significantly by the company. 3. If the
company breaches the agreement i item 1 and item 2 above, the company
shall return the shares of INGCHENG MAC received from the Transactions

to JINGCHENG MAC at ni consideration. JINGCHENG MAC will cancel those
shares retumed by the company in accordance with its internal decision-making
procedures (for shares which have been transferred, the proceeds from the
transfer shal be retumed); if the company breaches the agreement in item 1 and
item 2 above, which causes losses to JINGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaries, the
company will aso be fiable for compensation based on the actual losses to be
suffered by INGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaris at that time. Upon signing of
this letter of undertaking, the company's irevocable legal obligation is formed.
This letter of undertaking s valid for a period from the date of signing this letter

Longterm ~ Yes Longterm ~ Yes

of underlakmg to the date on which the company is no longer a direct or indirect

shareholder of JINGCHENG MAC.
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)

0]

Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,

shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of

Background  undertaking

ERER e

Undertaking
party

&k

Content of undertaking

GERE

Y o

— REBIEETER @

(=) RAEREFA - BRR AR

Whether
thereis a
deadline for
undertaking performance

Date of

=8
EERE  AEGAER

B B AR D T SAEEE
FHEREPARFERRERR
KR EIE ()

If not
performed
in a timely
manner,
describe
plans in
next steps
HAEREE
fERET-
Fitdl

If not
performed

in a timely
manner,
describe

the specific
reasons
HAKREES
EHBATH
BNAERE

Whether

strictly

performed
During of ~in a timely
undertaking manner

RARE
ERER  BRES

Settlement
of connected
transactions

EREERS

Bejing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric
Holding Co.,
Ltd,, a Substantial
shareholder

RERLRRH
BEARARA
fEAR

Undertaking regarding reduction and requlation of related party transactions
Jingcheng Holding undertakes:

1. After the completion of the Transactions, the company and other companies
and other related parties effectively contralled or significantly influenced by the
company, excluding JINGCHENG MAC and its controlled subsidiaries (including
BYTQ which is to be tumed into a subsidiary controlled by INGCHENG MAC)
will try to avoid to have related party transactions with JINGCHENG MAC and
its controlled subsidiaries. For related party transactions that are necessary

and unavoidable, they will be conducted in accordance with the principles

of fairmess, justice, and price equality. The consideration shall be determined
at a price generally accepted as reasonable by the market, and shall perform
transaction approval procedures and information disclosure obligations in
accordance with relevant laws, requlations, rules, and regulatory documents to
effectively protect the interests of INGCHENG MAC and its small and medium
shareholders.

2 The company quarantees that it will strictly follow the relevant laws and
requlations, the rules and requlatory documents issued by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission, the relevant rules issued by the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, and the " Articles of Association of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Company Limited" to exercise ts rights as a shareholder and fuffilits
obligations as a shareholder. The company will not seek improper benefits
through its position as Controling Shareholder, and will not damage the

legal ights and interests of JINGCHENG MAC and its small and medium
shareholders. If the company breaches the above-mentioned undertakings to
enter into transaction with JINGCHENG MAC and its controlled subsidiaries,
and incurs losses to JINGCHENG MAC and its small and medium shareholders,
the company will bear the compensation liabilties in accordance with laws
accordingly.
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Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Longterm ~ Yes
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — REBIEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
there s a performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE

=8 RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St
Settlement Directors, Undertaking regarding reduction and requlation of related party transactions ~ Long term ~ Yes Longterm Vs
of connected ~~ supenisors Directors, supenvisors and senior management of the Listed Company undertake:
transactions and senior During the period when | act as a director/supenvisor/senior management staff of

management  JINGCHENG MAC, | will not llegally appropriate funds and any other assets of

of the Listed JINGCHENG MAC by any reason and way, and willtry my best to avoid having

Company related party transactions between me and enterprises directly or indirectly
controlled by me (if any) and JINGCHENG MAC. For unavoidable related party
transactions, | willstrictly abide by laws and requlations and the provisions on
related party transactions in the *Articles of Association” of JINGCHENG MAC;
and through the corporate governance and legal decision-making procedures
stich as the approval at the Board of Directors/general mesting, | will reasonably
procure the enterprises directly or indirectly controlled by me if any) to stictly
abide by the “Company Law of the People's Republic of China", the "Articles
of Association of Bejing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited" and
other relevant requirements, and follow the general market transactional rules
to conduct related party transactions with JINGCHENG MAC in accordance with
[aws.

BREERR  IDDAER  BRAORDEEBRANLE =4 = = 13
5% 2REE LMOWES EF EREEARAG: DARFARIKNES/E
AE 2/ERERARER  FARTUEMEATAAEEEARIRINE

SRAMEFER DRTLREEARSABRIERERNLE (0R)
SRABh BETERLS  SNTTRRAERRS  FARERET
FRERRIRG (AR T BRERL AT BAARERES
edhRe/REASDMERENRENARES  ARYERAR
BAREANNLE (05) BRET (PEARRAALE) - (IRRH

ERNARLASRIFAERE  LAR-HHERARE fEER
BIRDE RS
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of Undertaking
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking

EET e &k GERE

Y o

— REBIEETER @
(—) DRIEBEH A BRER - B

B B AR D T SAEEE
FHEREPARFERRERR
KR EIE ()

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe
Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE
RERE  EHRARE  GEHAT-

=8
EERE  ABMAR  AGER  BEEG  BANARER Sd

Settlement Counterparties of  Undertaking regarding reduction and regulation of related party transactions

of connected ~ Reorganisation  Counterparties of Reorganisation (Huang Xiaofeng, Li Hong) undertake: After

transactions (Huang Xiaofeng,  the completion of the Transactions, other companies and other related parties

Li Hong) effectively controlled or significantly influenced by me and I il try to avoid

to have related party transactions with JNGCHENG MAC and its controlled
subsidiaries (including BYTQ which is to be tumed into a subsidiary controlled
by JINGCHENG MAC). For related party transactions that are necessary and
unavoidable, they will be conducted in accordance with the principles of
faimess, justice, and price equality. The consideration shall be determined at
aprice generally accepted as reasonable by the market, and shall perform
transaction approval procedures and information disclosure obligations in
accordance with relevant laws, requlations, rules and regulatory documents
to effectively protect the interests of JINGCHENG MAC and its small and
medium shareholders. If  breach the above-mentioned undertakings to enter
into transaction with JNGCHENG MAC and its controlled subsidiaries, and
incurs losses to JINGCHENG MAC and its shareholders and the subsidiaries of
JINGCHENG MAC, | will bear the compensation liabilties in accordance with
[awss accordingly.

BrERYS  AREERGY B RAEERRAOAE
HERE T ARBERGH)(RRE  FUAG  AARRGTAR  FAREAR
) REREHESE TN REDER HARREARIRARE
BBFAT (BERER ARIRN AR T AAZLARE) LRRLERR
% URRELEEEERNERLS HEARAT DRASEREN

RAlER  RARREmAAINABEREE  YRARLE R A
B RRAEX BRI AR ERRERRERE  ERERA
BRI RENE - MER HOAGERYRNRARRF ATEAR
ég&?ﬁ?&1ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ% HROFARERERY  RARKERER

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Long term

&
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Longterm ~ Yes

&

Fm



<l Section 8 Important Matters N
.,"'" ] ENE BERIHE

Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — REBIEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
there s a performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE

=) RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St
Settlement Huang Xiaofeng,  Undertaking regarding reduction and requlation of related party transactions 2 years from  Yes 2yearsfrom  Yes
of connected ~~ LiHong, Xu Huang Xiaofeng, Li Hong, Xu Bingle, Yang Lunsheng, Ying Rucal undertake:  the date of the date of
transactions Binglei, Yang Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Listed Company, Huang Xiaofeng, Xu- issue of the issue of the
Lunsheng, Ying  Binglei, Yang Lunsheng and Ying Rucai shall continue to work for the Target  Undertaking Undertaking
Rucai Company or the Listed Company and perform their due diligence obligations o the date of to the date of
during the performance undertaking period (i. the five accounting years of  expiry of the expiry of the
2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024, the same below) and for a period of two~ Performance Performance
years from the expiry date of the performance undertaking period as stipulated ~ Pledge Period Pledge Period

in the "Share Issue and Cash Payment for Assets Purchase Agreement”,
"Performance Compensation Agreement” and the supplemental agreements
thereto. If leave my employment with the Target Company on my own initiative
without the written consent of the Listed Company before the expiry of the term
of office, or if 1 am dismissed by the Target Company or the Listed Company in
accordance with the law due to misconduct or malpractice or other intentional
acts prejudicial o the interests of the Target Company or the Listed Company,
the Listed Company shall be entitled to hold Party B and Party C liable for the
following:

(1 Term of employment requirements of Huang Xiaofeng and related
undertakings

1. 1f Huang Xiaofeng leaves his employment on his own initiative before the
expiry of the performance undertaking period, or if his employment s terminated
by the Target Company or the Listed Company in accordance with the law due
to misconduct or malpractice or other acts prejucicial to the interests of the
Target Company o the Listed Company, then Huang Xiaofeng and Li Hong shal
compensate the Listed Company for 100% of the consideration received through

the transaction.
BrEns  EER M WO RBEERRANAE BEELAY 7 BEELAY R
oRE B ERE Z0BRE BRE AATER BLTLAEEREN E AEEGAE AE2ERE
B AT B G7E BRERAAEEORORINGREAERS) . HERZAR BERz AR
(FERERS) RERZREORNFEREER (120206 - 20018 2% pLid

W0E  NBEMOUFREEHEE - TRIRZEAZBERL B
R BEEERARLT LAARAERIRFARRNENRREE
DEBERNAL LATERREIYNE BAREE  ARANAEN
RUSEMHSRER AR LA ANEN TR B RATH LA
ERTBERAMRARL AT LAARK LSRN LALARRRNL
TNRAEENTRERE

(- BB EBARE A

I REBERBAGERRNIINE ARREIENRIAE RS
RELRS LARAGAT AR ARL ML LRSS T BERAMR
ARLAR LA AREER  BRRERFARENABER RS
FEBM00% A LTARETRE -
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Important Matters

ENE EESE

l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of Undertaking
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking
FEEH ARRE Gy EEE

Y o

— RAHEBIEETER@®
(—) DRIEBEH A BRER - B
7~ W ALK A RS RAE R
FEREHARFERREHR

BV AR S TH ()

If not If not

performed performed

Whether  in a timely in a timely

Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe

Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps
HAKREET AAERER
=8 RERR  ERAZH OEEET-

BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St

2. If Huang Xiaofeng's employment i terminated by the Target Company or

the Listed Company in accordance with the law due to dereliction of duty or
malpractice or other acts detrimental to the interests of the Target Company or
the Listed Company, resulting in his term of office being less than one year from
the date of expiry of the performance pledge period, Huang Xiaofeng and Li
Hong shall compensate the Listed Company at 40% of the consideration received

through the transaction.

3. I Huang Xiaofeng or Li Hong has been dismissed by the Target Company or
the Listed Company in accordance with the law due to derelicion of duty or
malpractice or other acts detrimental o the interests of the Target Company or
the Listed Company, resulting in his term of office being more than 1 year but
less than 2 years after the expiry date of the performance undertaking, Huang
Xiaofeng and Li Hong shall compensate the Listed Company at 20% of the

consideration received through the transaction.

(1) Term of employment requirements of Xu Binglei, Yang Lunsheng and Ying

Rucal and related undertakings

1. 1f Xu Binglei, Yang Lunsheng or Ying Rucai leave the Company on their own
initiative before the expiy of the Performance Pledge Period, or i they are
dismissed by the Target Company or the Listed Company in accordance with the
[aw due to misconduct or malpractice or other intentional acts detrimental to the
interests of the Target Company or the Listed Company, they shall compensate

the Listed Company for 100% of the consideration received through the
Transaction.

1 ERERIHER ARARALARNIAMEZARLAA AL
AHENTARERATS LA REN T RERXARARAL AR
AREEE SREGRERAXEAGERER DRTRI 50 BRE

BEARENEREA RS EEHBAMNA LT ATERE -

3 RRERIHER ARARALAANIAMEZARLAA AL
AHENTARERARS LA EN T RERXARABLAAL AR
AREER SHAMBERARBACAER DEEMETREN
BB R MIRE N ABAR R RGBT TETHE

(DBRE BRE RATHEBEREIRARLE

1 E Bl ATERBEGEERNIINE  ARREIE
LS ANAEREE BARS LATNRNTARRRLTT LT
A T BERAMRE AT LPAAREREN - MATAREHE

BRARRFREHEM00% R LATERE
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If not If not
performed performed
Whether in a timely ina timely
Whether strictly ~ manner, manner,
thereis a performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor ~Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background undertaking ~ party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

HAKREET IAERER
=8 RERE  EEBARE fEEET-
EE HinRE Hih EEE EEBE  REMAR  AGER  BREG  BANARER SHE

2. 1f Xu Binglei, Yang Lunsheng or Ying Rucai resign on their own initiatve or are
dismissed by the Target Company or the Listed Company in accordance with the
[aw due to misconduct or malpractice or other acts detrimental to the interests
of the Target Company or the Listed Company, resuting i their term of office
being less than one year from the date of expiry of the performance undertaking
neriod, they shall personally compensate the Listed Company at 40% of the
consideration received through the Transaction.
3. If Xu Binglei, Yang Lunsheng and Ying Ruicai leave their positions on their
own initiative, or are dismissed by the Target Company or the Listed Company
in accordance with the law due to misconduct or malpractice or other acts that
are detrimental to the interests of the Target Company or the Listed Company,
and as a result, their term of office has expired for over one year but less than
two years from the date of expiry of the Performance Pledge Period, they shal
compensate the Listed Company for 20% of the consideration received through
the Transaction. If Huang Xiaofeng, Xu Binglei, Yang Lunsheng and Ying Rucai
have caused serious losses to the Target Company or the Listed Company as a
result of malpractice or other acts intentionally prejudicial o the interests of the
Target Company or the Listed Company, they shall, in addtion to fulfling the
above compensation obligations, be liable for full compensation for the losses
caused.

2 RAE BRE EVIRIDES dRXEALEIIEMAS
RELFR LTATNANTAR R RATL LTATER T RERRAR
ARLAZ AR ARERE  EREERERREAZAER LN
WEM ERABEABBARRREHENA0%A LAATETR
3 #ﬁ* BRE RATRIHER II%MY“Mﬁﬁiﬁﬁhg
BATE LATNENITARRELS

E@ AR EmARRERE ﬁ,ﬁﬁ%EB%i%%@Eﬁzaﬁa
RERRES ﬁﬁAK*MELﬂﬁmx%ﬁmﬁme%ﬂtm
ETRE - BRE S0 BRERAATRELEEIEHE EEE
BATZ LA AMNAN T ARARATL (AR TﬁﬁTméﬁ%m %
BLARESH  REUEFERMAXARLERERL
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — EEETEETIER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FHEBEHARFEIREHA
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
thereisa performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE

=) RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St
Others Counterparties of ~ Undertaking in respect of the Second Cash Consideration offset for Listed ~~ Fromthe ~~ Yes fromthe ~ Yes
Reorganisation ~ Company date of the date of the
(17 natural Counterparties of Reorganisation (17 natural persons including Li Hong), Undertaking Undertaking
persons including  Huang Xiaofeng, Tao Feng undertake: Firstly, | will perform the coresponding ~ untilthe untilthe
LiHong), Huang  obligations and liabiltes in strict accordance with the terms of the Transaction  expiry of the expiry of the
Xiaofeng, Tao  Agreement and if am required to undertake cash compensation/compensation Performance Performance
feng obligations to the Listed Company, I will perform such cash compensation/  Pledge Period Pledge Period
compensation obligations to the Listed Company in strict accordance with ~~ and the and the
the terms of the Transaction Agreement and the deadline required by the ~ fulfilment fuliment
Listed Company; Secondly, the Second Cash Consideration of RMB20 million  of the of the
of the Listed Company will be applied to offset the additional performance  compensation compensation
compensation in priority. In the event that the Guarantors of Performance (ie. Li obligations obligations

Hong, Zhao Qing, Qingdao Eternal Economic Information Consulting Co, Ltd.,
Wang Xiaohui and Qian Yuyan, the same below) are required to pay additional
performance compensation to the Listed Company during the Performance
Pledge Period, the second installment of the cash consideration of RMB20

million of the Listed Company will be appled in full to offset the additional
performance compensation. Upon expiy of the Performance Pledge Period, if the
Guarantors of Performance are not required to pay the Additional Performance
Compensation to the Listed Company, the Listed Company shall be entitled to
directly deduct the other outstanding compensation/ compensation amounts (i
any) due from the Counterparty when paying the Second Cash Consideration to
the Guarantors of Performance, and the Counterparty and Huang Xiaofeng and
Tao Feng shall continue to perform their compensation/compensation obligations

3 agreed.
-4 FREARSY  BRITATR_BROHERNZ NG BRGEHA7 % ERATEZ R
hEUETRE AREARSYA(BUSUAERA) ERE Besd:F- mA HERAEE HESEAG
A ERE. PERERRSBENEROEERLASE NERMLTLRAERGE HERERE HERaRE
£ B/GEEBN TARBRERZSARBNCRIACAENERR SHE RS SRS

IRARAAERERE/BRSH £ LTRAS_HREYE
L0ETRELRREMNIZERES - EXEAEERA MELR
iy (124 BB SEUBREEESHHARLT TRENAR
£ TRIEALTARRAHNEERELHEY  (HATZ-AREY
E2000ETHLERNANH R ARES - REAGHRER  NFEA
RPEERITARNLANNEERES B LRATEREREEAE
SN B HERERNER AU T ARRMARDEE/BR
%é’%&gﬂ@ TRPARRAUFRERES BELERNRATRE/ B
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Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued) — REBIEETER @

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  in a timely in a timely
Whether strictly — manner, manner,
there s a performed  describe describe
Type of Undertaking Dateof  deadlinefor  Duringof inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance  undertaking manner  reasons next steps

DARRRES OREREAE

=) RERR  ERAZH OEEET-
FEEH ARRE Gy HHRE BRRE  REMHE  ARER  RBET EANARRR St
Others Counterparty of  Undertaking in respect of the Second Cash Consideration offset for Listed ~~ Fromthe ~~ Yes fromthe ~ Yes
Reorganisation ~ Company date of the date of the
(Qingdao Etemal)  Counterparty of Rearganisation (Qingdao Eternal) undertakes: Firstly, we will - Undertaking Undertaking
perform the corresponding obligations and liablites in strict accordance with  untilthe untilthe
the terms of the Transaction Agreement and if the company is requiredto — expiry of the expiry of the
undertake cash compensation/compensation obligations to the Listed Company, Performance Performance
we will perform such cash compensation/compensation obligations to the Listed Pledge Period Pledge Period
Company in strict accordance with the terms of the Transaction Agreement  and the and the
and the deadline required by the Listed Company; Secondly, the Second Cash ~ fulfilment fuliment
Consideration of RMB20 million of the Listed Company will be applied to offset of the of the
the additional performance compensation in priority. In the event that e compensation compensation
Guarantors of Performances (.. Li Hong, Zhao Qing, Qingdao Eternal Economic obligations obligations

Information Consutting Co., Ltd,, Wang Xiaohui and Qian Yuyan, the same
below) are required to pay additional performance compensation to the Listed
Company during the Performance Pledge Period, the second installment of the
cash consideration of RMB20 million of the Listed Company will be applied

in fullto offset the additional performance compensation. Upon expiry of the
Performance Pledge Period, i the Guarantors of Performance are not required
to pay the Additional Performance Compensation to the Listed Company,

the Listed Company shall be entitled to directly deduct the other outstanding
compensation/compensation amounts (i any) due from the Counterparty when
paying the Second Cash Consideration to the Guarantors of Performance, and
the Counterparty and Huang Xiaofeng and Tao Feng shall continue to perform
their compensation/compensation obligations s agreed.

i KREERsY  ERLHATR-AReHEENSENAR EGHEY = BGHAY =
HEENEE)  AREERAHNBRERAR  E- MATABAERRSNSN BEXEAE REREA
ERTEEEAASE NERLAATRERSRE/BREND AL HERERE SERAME
ARERERRARANER LT A ARKNARE LDATRNASRE SHENRE SHERE

RE/BESH: 5= ARNE-SRUEL BT HELAREY
InEaREs - EXBREIRA NRLREALI (I3 BE 5
SUBAERESFAARAR | THEAENE  TR)ARLTAARN
INzERELHEY  LHATE_SREHE 0ERHEERNEN
linzaRES  XEEGARER  NEEARNEARLTLT AN
MEBEES M LRATARERFEAE RN E_SRLERER
HARAHAARERATABGNEE/ EELE(E) FRIFAR
FURRERR BEREROREHE/BEEY-
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Important Matters
EEEIH

Fulfillment of Undertakings (continued)

(ii) There have been profit forecast for the assets
or projects of the Company and the Reporting
Period is still in the period of profit forecast,
explanations as to whether the profit forecast

has been met and its reasons
v Yes [JNo [J Notapplicable

During the Reporting Period, BYTQ (as the guarantors of
performance) has undertook to make a committed net profit of
RMB27.5 million, RMB38 million, RMB41 million, RMB43 million and
RMB46 million in 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024, respectively,
which are determined according to the principle on the lower of the
net profit attributable to the owner of the parent company before
and after the deduction of non-recurring gains and losses.

As specifically audited by WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP,
the audited net profit after the deduction of non-recurring gains and
losses of BYTQ for 2024 was RMB50,066,300.

BYTQ completed its performance commitment of RMB46,000,000
in 2024, with a completion rate of 108.84%, and BYTQ was not
required to make any performance compensation.

(iii)

Completion of results undertakings and the

impact on goodwill impairment testing
 Applicable [J Not Applicable

No impact on goodwill impairment testing was involved.

=t

— REBIEETER @

(

D) RAREBEREBFERNER

BEREHNEERFFNEE
RAREERNHERBEIRR
TR R H R B H 8

VEER OFXER OTER

HMEMA - LFRSIEABEEARER -
HAGETE20204F ~ 20214F ~ 2022%F -
2023 F120245F - BB IEC B IEIE
AT RBR AR ERFFIER
ERAEENERFFED R AARE
2,75087C - ARM3,8008 T« AR
4,10087C « ARM4,3008 AR
4,6008 7T °

CARESMEB(FRLTREY) %
BERGHERERZ - LFRT2024FEE
BEERT IR IELEEHBREOF
8 A AR ES5,006.638 7T °

ILFRE 20244 F e EfGE AR
4,6008 7T » ERE108.84% LIRS
MR EITEERE -

(=) FEARNTRBEREEHEEE

BEARNTE
VER O TER

NEREEHERENRNTE -

Il. Non-operating funds occupied by Controlling =~ ¥R 8 ph 3% A% A% 3R &% HL fth 8 B
Shareholders and other related parties during FHELEMHEAERER

the Reporting Period
[ Applicable +/ Not applicable O@EA JTrEm

ll. Illlegal guarantee = ERERER
[ Applicable +/ Not applicable O@EA JTEm

IV. Explanation of the Board of the Company on - AREEEYH SBT3k
“Modified Auditors’ Report” issued by the

BRER RETHRE IR A
auditors
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable L3 A

f RRIEEEER - SEHhEE
ERERSHEHEEREM
BN DT

() DTHEHIE « BIHEHRE
REREEH 7Y

V. Analysis and explanation of the Company
on the reasons and impact of the change in
accounting policy, accounting estimates or

correction of significant accounting errors

(i) Analysis and explanation of the Company on the
reasons and impact of the change in accounting
policy and accounting estimates

(1 Applicable +/ Not applicable O @A JNEm
(i) Analysis and explanation of the Company on (D) AAHEASHERELERER
the reasons and impacts of the correction of SEN DN R
significant accounting errors
1 Applicable  +/ Not applicable O @A JNEm

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
T REREERGBERAR
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VI.

Analysis and explanation of the Company
on the reasons and impact of the change in
accounting policy, accounting estimates or

Section 8

correction of significant accounting errors

(Continued)

(iii) Communication with previous accounting firm (
[0 Applicable +/ Not applicable
(iv) Approval procedures and other descriptions (

[0 Applicable  +/ Not applicable

Appointment and dismissal of accounting

firms

Formerly appointed
BE

fAEEE
EREARE %E?EE%E%
SEN DR &

B

Important Matters N

ENE BEESH
S it

=) EpEERMERTETHNER

(0
O@m s

M) FHEFRH b

O @M JTEm

N BT BESETMEBAER

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By T B AR

Currently appointed
B

Name of domestic accounting firm (for financial
report audit)
BN ERAE (BREET)
Remuneration of domestic accounting firm
(for financial report audit)
BN ERSPT SR (RS EA)
Number of years of audit by domestic accounting
firm (for financial report audit)
BRNEHREBAESFR (I BREET)
Name of certified public accountant of domestic
accounting firm (for financial report audit)
BRGNS M et ads (RS ET)
Continuing service year of certified public
accountant of domestic accounting firm
(for financial report audit)
BN EBa M aE REH
ZEFR @ gHEES)
Name of domestic accounting firm (for internal
control audit)
BENE A ERAT A (R
Remuneration of domestic accounting firm
(for internal control audit)
TG AN E RS PTIREN (R EBIEHIZE )
Number of years of audit by domestic accounting
f|rm (for internal control audit)
SRR R ETFR (NI
Name of certified public accountant of domestic
accounting firm (for internal control audit)

BAGHRIEB AT & SRR (ARSI

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants

(§pEC|aI General Partnership)
EXRE

Continuing service year of certified public accountant 7 years

of domestic accounting firm (for internal control
audit)

BRGNS ST &SR E AT R R
ZEHFR (ARSI

Description of appointment and dismissal of accounting firms

+/ Applicable ] Not applicable

LLP
SRV EBAT (SR ERAR) NESETMEBM (EREBER)

1 million 1 million
1008 1008
17 years 1 year
174 14F
Ma Chuanjun, Guan Huan Han Xueyan, Wang Peng
HEE - R EZW - EI5
17 years 1 year
1746 15
Da Hua Certified Public Accountants ~ WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants

(Special General Partnership) LLP
REGAREBFREBEER) RIEGANEBR FREEER)
0.35 million 0.36 m|II|on
358 368
7 years 1 year
7F 14
Zhang Xinfa, Wang Jiatong Han Xueyan, Wang Peng
SRETE ~ E1EN EEY - T

1 year
7 14
BAE - MBS BT ERHSA
ViEA OfER
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VI.

Important Matters
EEEIH

Appointment and dismissal of accounting

firms (continued)

1

(2)

(3)

(4)

Former accounting firms and audit opinion of the

previous year

The Company’s former auditing agencies ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) (“ShineWing”) and Da
Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)
("Da Hua") provided audit services to the Company for more
than 10 years and for 7 years respectively. The audit opinion for
the Company’s 2023 financial report was a standard unqualified
opinion. The Company did not terminate the contract with any of
its former accounting firms after engaging it to carry out part of the
audit work.

Reasons for the change of accounting firms

The Company's former auditors exceeded the maximum term for a
company to engage an accounting firm consecutively as stipulated in
the “Administrative Measures for the Selection and Engagement of
Accounting Firms by State-Owned Enterprises and Listed Companies”
issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council and
the CSRC. In order to maintain the independence, objectiveness and
fairness of the audit work of the Company while taking into account
the business development needs of the Company, the Company
engaged WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP (“WUYIGE")
as its auditor for the year of 2024 after the completion of a public
tender process.

Communication between the Company, its former

and current accounting firms

The Company fully communicated with its former accounting firms
in respect of the change in accounting firms. Its former accounting
firms had no objection to the change and confirmed that there was
no other matter relating to the change of accounting firms that
needed to be brought to the attention of the shareholders and the
investors of the Company. The former and current accounting firms
of the Company will actively communicate and cooperate with
each other in accordance with the “China Auditing Standards for
Certified Public Accountants No. 1153 — Communication between
a Certified Public Accountant and Its Successor” and other relevant
requirements.

Performance of duties by the audit committee of

the Board

After conducting a serious audit and evaluation on the professional
competence, investor protection capability, independence and
integrity of WUYIGE, the audit committee of the eleventh session of
the Board of the Company was of the view that WUYIGE possesses
the professional qualifications to engage in audit work, has
experience in performing securities service business and is capable
of meeting the requirements of the Company’s audit work. The
Company considered and approved the “Resolution in relation to the
Selection and Appointment of Auditor for the Financial Statements
Audit and Internal Control Audit for 2024" and agreed to submit
the resolution to the Board for consideration.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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VI.

VII.

VIII.

QL Section 8

Appointment and dismissal of accounting
firms (Continued)

(5) Deliberation and voting by the Board

At the sixth extraordinary meeting of the eleventh session of the
Board of the Company, the “Resolution in relation to the Selection
and Appointment of Auditor for the Financial Statements Audit and
the Internal Control Audit for 2024" was considered and approved,
and shall be submitted to the 2023 annual general meeting of the
Company for the authorisation of the Board to enter into a letter
of appointment and determine its remuneration. Mr. Xiong Jianhui,
being a connected Director, abstained from voting on the resolution.
The number of valid votes for the resolution was 10 affirmative
votes, O dissenting vote and O abstention vote. After considering
and approving the resolution, the Board agreed to appoint WUYIGE
as the Company’s auditor for its 2024 annual financial report and
the internal control audit report in the financial report and agreed
to submit the resolution to the 2023 annual general meeting for
consideration.

(6) Effective date
The engagement came into effect from the date of the Company’s
2023 annual general meeting (i.e. 27 June 2024) when the relevant
resolution was considered and approved.

Description of change of accounting firms during the audit
period
O Applicable +/ Not applicable

Description of the decrease of audit fees by more than 20%
(including 20%) compared with the previous year
[0 Applicable  +/ Not applicable

Risk for delisting

(i) Reason for delisting risk warning
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

(ii) Countermeasures to be adopted by the Company
[J Applicable y/ Not applicable

(iii) Possible termination of listing and reason thereof
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

Matters relating to bankruptcy and

reorganization
OJ Applicable +/ Not applicable

Material litigations and arbitrations
[J The Company had material litigations and arbitrations during the year
\/ The Company had no material litigations or arbitrations during the year

Punishment and Rectification against Listed
Company and its Directors, Supervisors, Senior
management, Controlling Shareholders and

beneficial controller
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable
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XI. Description of the reputation of the Company T— SEHA QAR REERRER

and its Controlling Shareholders, beneficial B ) A SRR 1955 88
controller during the Reporting Period
[J Applicable 4/ Not applicable D@A v NEm
XIl. Material connected transactions T EREHRS
(i) Connected transactions related to daily operation (—) HEHEKLHBNRETR S
1.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements 1+ EBERBOASHEEAESRS
without progress or change in the follow-up ERSBLNEE
implementation
\/ Applicable [J Not applicable ViR OfER
Summary of matter Index for enquiry
S Bz
0n 28 June 2024, Beijing Tianhai, a wholly-owned subsiciary of the Company, intended to acquire 3 sets of precision numerical control machine tools produced by BYIC, a related party, to meetits  The website of the SSE
production needs, and the total price of the 3 sets of precision numerical control machine tools is RMB3 50 milon. (wwwnse.com.cn) and
the HKEXnews website
Jingcheng Holding holds 44.87% equity interest in the Company and is the controlling shareholder of the Company and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules of the Stock of the Stock Exchange
Exchange. As Jingcheng Machinery Electric holds allthe equity interest in BYJC and is the controlling shareholder of BYJC, BYJC is an associate of Jingcheng Machinery Electric and a connected (wwwhkexnews.hk)

person of the Company. Accordingly, this transaction constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

0n 28 June 2024, the Company convened the eighth extraordinary meeting of the eleventh session of the Board and the eleventh meeting of the eleventh session of the Supenvisory Committee.
I each megting, the “Resolution in relation to Connected Transactions related to the Acquisition of Precision Numerical Control Machin Tools of BYJC by Tianhai Industry” was considered and
approved. The resolution was considered and approved by the 2024 second meeting of the special meeting of independent Directors of the Company, where the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company expressed their prior approval opinions and independent opinions.
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XIl. Material connected transactions (continued) - BEREBRS
(i) Connected transactions related to daily operation (—) EH ﬁ%%%*ﬁl%ﬁﬂ’]l%ﬁﬂ@‘m% ()
(Continued)
1.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements 1 BEBRAGEEEREERSE
without progress or change in the follow-up ERSELWEEE

implementation (Continued)

Summary of matter Index for enquiry

B EEES]

1..0n 16 August 2024, Tianhai Industry, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, won a bid for the supply of storage tanks to a business of B&WBC through a tender, with a total contract The website of the SSE
amount of RMB1,346,530 ("BRWWBC Supply Contract”). 2. On 16 August 2024, Tianhai Hydrogen, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, proposed to purchase production line automation (www.sse.com.cn) and

equipment from Peitian Company for updating and reforming its production fine with a total amount of RMB,996,656 (*Peitian Procurement Contract”). the HKEXnews website
of the Stock Exchange
Jingcheng Machinery Electric holds 44.87% equity interest in the Company and s the controling sharefolder of the Company. Pursuant to Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, as Jingcheng (www kexnews hk)

Machinery Electrc is the controlling shareholder (as defind in the Listing Ruls of the Stock Exchange) of BWWBC and Peitian Company, both BRWBC and Peitian Company are connected persons
of the Company under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the B&WBC Supply Contract and the Peitian Procurement Contract constitute
connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange, respectively.

The products involved in the twa transactions are not of the same nature and the places where the products are delivered are not the same. Tianhai Industry s the vendor under the BRWWBC Supply
Contract and Tianhai Hydrogen is the purchaser under the Peitian Procurement Contract, and therefore the Company does not apply the same accounting treatment to the two transactions.
Although both BRWBC and Peitian Company are associates (as defined! in the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange) of Jingcheng Machinery Electric, the operations of B&WBC and Peitian Company
are not decided by the same connected person. For the aforementioned reasons, the two transactions do not involve splitting of the same project.

As all of the applicable percentage ratios calculated in accordance with the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange in respect of the transaction contemplated under the BRWBC Supply Contract are less
than 0.1%, it s fully exempt from the reporting, announcement, crcular and independent shareholders' approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(1)) of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

In-addition, as all of the applicable percentage ratios calculated in accordance with the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange in respect of the transaction contemplated under the Peitian Procurement
Contract are less than 5%, and the aggregate transaction amount isless than HK$3,000,000, it s fully exempt from the reporting, announcement, circular and independent shareholders' approval
requirements under Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

On 16 August 2024, the Company convened the fifth meeting of the eleventh session of the Board and the twelfth megting of the eleventh session of the Supervisory Committee. In each megting,
the "Resolution i relation to the Related Party Transactions between the Subsidiaries of the Company and the Subsidiaries of the Controling Shareholder of the Company” was considered and
approved. The resolution was considered and passed at the 2024 third mesting of the special meeting of independent Directors of the Company, where the independent non-executive Directors of
the Company expressed their prior approval opinions and independent opinions.
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Xll. Material connected transactions (continued) - BEREBRS
(i) Connected transactions related to daily operation (—) ERERE *E Eﬁ B 5 @

(Continued)

1.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements 1+ BEBRRAGEEEREERSE
without progress or change in the follow-up ERSELWEEE
implementation (Continued)

Summary of matter Index for enquiry

2EfE Bz

On 16 August 2024, Beijing Tianhai, a wholly-owned subsiciary of the Company, entered into the Product Sale and Purchase Framework Agreement with Shanghai Sunwise, pursuant to which the ~ The website of the SSE

Beijing Tianai Group and the Shanghai Sunwise Group will purchase or sell ydrogen energy products from or to each other from time to time with the term from the effective date of the Product (W se.com.cn) and

Sale and Purchase Framework Agreement (1. upon completion of the Shanghai Sunwise equity transaction) to 31 December 2024. the HKEXnews website

of the Stock Exchange

Jingcheng Machinery Electric holds 44.87% equity i the Company and is the Company’s controling shareholder, and a connected person of the Cormpany under the Listing Rules of the Stock (www kexnews hk)

Exchange. As Jingcheng Machinery Electric holds all the equity interest n Jingcheng Industrial Investment, and, upon the completion of the Shanghai Sunwise equity transaction, Jingcheng Industrial
Investment will hold not less than 34.58% equity interest in Shanghai Sunwise. Accordingly, Shanghai Sunwise will become an associate of Jingcheng Machinry Electric and a connected person of
the Company. Therefore, slich transactions constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

On 16 August 2024, the Company convened the fifth meeting of the eleventh session of the Board and the twelfth meeting of the eleventh session of the Supervisory Committee. In each megting,
the “Resolution in relation to the Entering into of the Product Sale and Purchase Framewark Agreement and Related Party Transactions between Bejing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. and Shanghai
Sunwise New Energy System Co, Ltd.” was considered and approved. The resolution was considered and passed at the 2024 third megting of the special mesting of independent Directors of the
Company, where the independent non-executive Directors of the Company expressed their prior approval opinions and independent opinions.

R04E8A168 - kRAB(RARAENBAR E LERSTURRENERSR Bt LRABEER HEREREANNH AT REEAHETNER  BROERENERLRN
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04587168 - ’Aﬂé’ﬁﬁ%f EESOERNEINET-EESRE T REE MEABAT (BRARNT ARSI FERATE LERERERENERL IR ERES
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As the above-mentioned Product Sale and Purchase Framework Agreement will expire on 31 December 2024, and it was expected that the Beijing Tianhai Group would continue to carry out similar
transactions with the Shanghai Sunwise Group, Bejing Tianhai and Shanghai Sunwise entered into the Renewed Product Sale and Purchase Framework Agreement on 6 December 2024, pursuant
towhich the Beijing Tianhai Group and the Shanghai Sunwise Group will purchase or sell ycrogen energy products from or to each other from time to time for a term of three years from 1 January
202510 31 December 2027.

Jingcheng Machinery Electric holds 44.87% equity i the Company and is the Company’s controling shareholder, and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange. As Jingcheng Machinry Electric holds allthe equity interest in lingcheng Industrial Investment, and, upon the completion of the Shanghai Sunwise equtty transaction, Jingcheng Industrial
Investment will old not less than 34.58% equity interest in Shanghai Sunwise. Accordingly, Shanghai Sunwise will become an associate of Jingcheng Machinry Electric and a connected person of
the Company. Therefore, such transactions constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

The previous connected transaction conducted between the Company and the same connected person was disclosed on 16 August 2024. For details, please see the *Continuing Connected
Transactions - Product Sale and Purchase Framewark Agreement" announcement. According to the * Announcement in relation to Completion of Acquisition of Controlling Interest in Shanghai
Sunwise by a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of the Controling Sharefolder" disclosed by the Cormpany on 30 September 2024, the previous connected transaction conducted between the Company
and the sgme connected person was effective from 29 September 2024 to 31 December 2024. As at the end of the Reporting Period, there was no contracts that had been entered into under the
connected transaction.

On 6 December 2024, the Company convened the ninth extraordinary meeting of the eleventh session of the Board and the fourteenth meeting of the eleventh session of the Supenvisory

Committee. In each meeting, the “Resolution in relation to the Entering into of the Product Sale and Purchase Framework Agreement and Related Party Transactions between Bejing Tianhai Industry

(0, Ltd. and Shanghai Sunwise New Energy System Co., Ltd." was considered and approved. The resolution was considered and passed at the 2024 fourth meeting of the special mesting of
independent Directors of the Company, where the independent non-executive Directors of the Company expressed their prior approval opinions and independent opinions.
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Xll. Material connected transactions (continued) T2 BERBEERZ @
(i) Connected transactions related to daily operation (—) HEEKLHEBENBRBTS @
(Continued)
1.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements 1+ EBEGBRASRERREERSE
without progress or change in the follow-up ERSELWEEE

implementation (Continued)

Summary of matter Index for enquiry
L Bz

On 19 January 2022, the Company entered! into a property leasing agreement with Beiren Equipment, a connected person, pursuant to which the Company willlease a property located in the The website of the SSE
Yichuang Park for office use for a lease term ending on 30 April 2025. On the same date, the Company also entered into a property services management agreement with Beiren Equipment, (www.sse.com.cn) and
pursuant to which Beiren Equipment will provide property management senvices for the property during the period when the Company is accupying the property as a tenant, for a service term the HKEXnews website
ending on 30 April 2025. For the detals, please refer to the “Connected Transactions - Entering into of the Property Leasing Agreement and Related Agreement” announcement disclosed by the of the Stock Exchange
Company on 19 January 2022. (www.hkexnews hk)

Recently, the Cormpany received a notification letter delivered by Beiren Equipment, according to which, due to the renovation of the exhibition hall in the Yichuang Park, Beiren Equipment would
early terminate ts property leasing agreement and property senvices management agreement with the Company on 31 December 2024 to vacate the property as required by the development
zone. Based on the actual circumstances, the Company reached an agreement with Beiren Equipment after arm's length negotiation. On 30 Decernber 2024, the Company convened the tenth
extraordinary meeting of the eleventh session of the Board and the fifteenth meeting of the eleventh session of the Supervisory Committee. In each meeting, the "Resolution in relation to Early
Termination of the Connected Transaction Agreements related to Property Leasing and Property Semvices in the Yichuang Park” was considered and approved and it was agreed that the connected
transaction agreements would be eary terminated on 31 December 2024, On 30 December 2024, the Company and Beiren Equipment entered into the "Termination Agreement in relation to
the Property Leasing Agreement”, pursuant to which the parties would terminate the Property Leasing Agreement and settle al o their fees and property security deposit payable thereunder. The
parties would not be liable to each other for any losses arising from the early termination of the Property Leasing Agreement.

0n 30 December 2024, the Company convened the tenth extraordinary mesting of the eleventh session of the Board and the fifteenth meeting of the eleventh session of the Supenvisory Committe.
Ineach meeting, the "Resolution in relation to Early Termination of the Connected Transaction Agreements related to Property Leasing and Property Services in the Yichuang Park" was consicered
and approved. The resolution was considered and passed at the 2024 fifth meeting of the special mesting of independent Directors of the Company, where the independent non-executive Directors
of the Company expressed their prior approval opinions and independent opinions.

DAR0EIA9E - BRI ARBTREREAR  AENNTAERSNEARLRE  ERORENSEIANEL < BE  AANELARBIUNSRBEERE £ LU wsse.comn)
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(www.hkexnews.hk)
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2.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements with 2. CEEBRNAGERE BEEAEER
progress or change in the follow-up implementation HEHERSBENEIER
O Applicable +/ Not applicable @A v TEA
3.  Matters which were not disclosed in extraordinary 3 BRASREENSE
announcements
[ Applicable +/ Not applicable @A v TEA
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T2 BEREBRRTS @
(Z) EESIREWE - HERENE

Xll. Material connected transactions (continued)
(i) Connected transactions in relation to the

176

acquisition or disposal of assets or equity BRX5

interests

1.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements 1+ EBEGRASRERREERSE
without progress or change in the follow-up ERSBLNEE
implementation B B
[ Applicable +/ Not applicable DR  NEm

2.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements with 2. CDEBNAGEE BEAEE
progress or change in the follow-up implementation FERERSEZ{CNEE
[ Applicable +/ Not applicable DR  NEm

3.  Matters which were not disclosed in extraordinary 3- BRASREENSE
announcements N N
[ Applicable +/ Not applicable DR  NEm

4.  Results which are relating to result agreements and 4 PBREBITEN EEFRERS

shall be disclosed for the Reporting Period
[J Applicable 4/ Not applicable

(iii) Material connected transactions relating to
common external investments

HREEERER
O@Em V TER

HEHIIMNRENERBBHR S

1.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements 1 EBEBRRASHERRAEERSE
without progress or change in the follow-up ERIBILNSE
implementation _ N
[ Applicable +/ Not applicable DA v NEA

2.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements with 2 CEHREAERE BEEREER

progress or change in the follow-up implementation
\/ Applicable [J Not applicable
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XIl. Material connected transactions (continued) T EXEBR S @
(iii) Material connected transactions relating to (Z) HEABIMNBRENEXBHERS
common external investments (Continued) (%)

2.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements with 2y CBEBRAGHEE BEH#ESR
progress or change in the follow-up implementation ERER R LWEE ()
(Continued)

(1) Summery of disclosed matters (1) EHFEFEEL

Summary of matter Index for enquiry

B Bz

In May 2024, the Company received the “Notice on the Provision of Business Oppartunities for Equity Investment in Shanghai Sunwise New Energy System Co, The website of the SSE (ww.sse.com.cn) and
Ltd." from Jingcheng Holding, pursuant to which Jingcheng Industrial Investment, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jingcheng Holding, had recently acquired a the HKEXnews website of the Stock Bxchange
business opportunity to invest in and obtain control of Shanghai Sunwise. (www hkexnews hk)

Pursuant to the preliminary cooperation intention reached between ingcheng Industrial Investment and the related parties of Shanghai Sunwise, Jingcheng
Industrial Investrent intended to become the single largest shareholder of Shanghai Sunwise by way of equity transfer and capital injection to realise the actual
control of Shanghai Sunwise, with an ultimate shareholding of not less than 34.58%, and a total planned investment amount of approximately RMB590 million.
During the transaction, certain state-owned shareholders of Shanghai Sunwise would solict transferees by way of public lsting for-sale on the Property Rights
Exchange Centre, and the transfer of that part of the equity interest in Shanghai Sunwise and the ultimate price would be determined in accordance with the
results of the public listing for-sale. In view of the overlapping of the hydrogen supply systems business between Shanghai Sunwise (the target company of this
investment) and the Company, pursuant to “the Undertaking Letter Regarding Avoidance of Horizontal Competition”, Jingcheng Holding informed the Company
of the matters in relation to this business opportunity and gave the right of firs refusal to the Company in relation to this business opportunity.

Taking into account the actual operation of the Company and its relevant assets s a whole, the Company intended to give up this business opportunity. Pursuant
to the provisions of the " Guiding Opinions in relation to Promoting the Solving of Horizontal Competition and the Regulation of Connected Transactions by the
State-owned Shareholder and the Listed Companies under fts Control” (Guo ZiFa Chan Quan [2013] No.202) (the "Guiding Opinions”), and from the perspective
of the strategic development of further expanding and strengthening the hydrogen enerqy segment and avoiding the loss of business opportunities, Shanghai
Sunwise was first acquired by Jingcheng Industrial Investment, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jingcheng Holding, as Shanghai Sunwise did not possess the
conditions for injection into the Company. Upon completion of the acquisition, Jingcheng Machinery Electric intends to use compliance measures permitted by
[aws, requlations and requlatory rules, such as the transfer of equity or assets, to propery resolve the potential horizontal competition caused by the acquisition of
Shanghai Sunwise. During the period between the completion of the investment and the resolution of potential horizontal competitions, in order to protect the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders (in particular, the minority Shareholders) as a whole, the Company is entrusted with management of the equity
interest in Shanghai Sunwise by Jingcheng Industrial Investment. The proposed signing of the Entrusted Equity Management Agreement between lingcheng
Industrial Investrment and the Company constituted a connected transaction.

On 28 May 2024, the Company convened the sixth extraordinary meeting of the eleventh session of the Board, where the “Resolution in relation to the Prior
Investment in Shanghai Sunwise by a Wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Contralling Shareholder" was considered and approved. The independent non-executive
Directors of the Company expressed their prior approval and independent opinions. The resolution was considered and passed at the 2024 first megting of the
special megting of independent Directors of the Company, where the independent non-executive Directors of the Company expressed ther prior approval opinions
and independent opinions.

On 24 June 2024, the Company convened the first extraordinary general meeting of 2024, where the “Resolution in relation to the Prior Investment in Shanghai
Sunwise by a Wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Controling Shareholder” was considered and approved.

AAARNMES AU REER (IR DERERURRARROTIREREBERQNER) USRS ATATRERDIRGRALERE LU awsse comcn) RBRA BB H B

]IHXH”%‘J ENEEHE (www Skexnews.fk)
*ETEWEE%%i@%@ﬁ%ﬁm?ﬂ%ﬁﬁ'?ﬁ@%ﬁ%@%@ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁmﬁ%ii%i% Kﬁxﬁ ERZATE BRI

HH3458%  HHRESRIBARMOOET  ANRAEET  LARENADERRRBEEZEANDRARNABERR) YR LERELS
ARENERLSLERNRELTARERER - ENONRENENLAT LERENHRN ) BREZS %i%ﬂiia EREERERF AR
NS REARGRARERRENARSRENAT TRANERREBRRILAER

BrezpLAERERENRAEAEING  AORREANAERE  BE (TN ERAERRERER L ARRAR RS REER R A
BR) ERSER03008) O\ TERGR8ER) e - e S MEERINERERAR SR RARRRESE ELEREAREY
ALTRTRRORRT - BRAERETATRIERATUE  ARUBIY - RAARRERREIREERS IALREERAANORE
1 FEARME HERERRNEEARES | AARRETAZRERZRFMERAYE « ARARRRENARLERRRAIRS RRHE - R
BERR LEREREZALTATRE - RUERRELTRE (ERHEERS) %W*ﬁﬂﬁ“

WUESABA - AAAR Q‘H BEREE NGReR  BABET (BIERBREATANEARA LARENGE)  DRBLIRAESRATA
EMEHANEAREUER - AIBUESENEINLEE-REFEARETHEIR LR ERER TRENSHDUEAREER -
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Xll. Material connected transactions (continued)
(iii) Material connected transactions relating to

common external investments (Continued)

2. Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements with
progress or change in the follow-up implementation
(Continued)

(2) Progress in the follow-up implementation of the
matter
Recently, the Company received a notice from
Jingcheng Industrial Investment that Shanghai
Sunwise had completed the industrial and commercial
registration procedures for the change of shareholders’
capital contribution and shareholding ratio and the
filing of the “Articles of Association”, and had obtained
a new business license. The acquisition of Shanghai
Sunwise’s controlling interest by Jingcheng Industrial
Investment has been completed. Jingcheng Industrial
Investment holds 39.77% shares of Shanghai Sunwise
and has become the single largest shareholder and
beneficial controller of Shanghai Sunwise. Therefore,
the product sale and purchase framework agreement
entered into between Beijing Tianhai, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Shanghai Sunwise
on 16 August 2024 has also taken effect. For the
details, please refer to the “Announcement in relation
to the Entering into of the Product Sale and Purchase
Framework Agreement and Connected Transactions
between Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., a Subsidiary
of the Company, and Shanghai Sunwise Energy
Systems Co., Ltd.”. (Announcement No.: Lin 2024-033)

3. Matters which were not disclosed in extraordinary
announcements
[J Applicable 4/ Not applicable

(iv) Related creditor’s right and debt transactions
1. Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements
without progress or change in the follow-up
implementation
[J Applicable 4/ Not applicable

2. Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements with

progress or change in the follow-up implementation
[J Applicable 4/ Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Important Matters N

ax
ENE BESIE
Xll. Material connected transactions (continued) T2 BERBEERZ @
(iv) Related creditor’s right and debt transactions (M) BRI EREE R 4
(Continued)
3.  Matters which were not disclosed in extraordinary 3- BRAERBEENSE
announcements VEAR OfEA

\/ Applicable [J Not applicable
Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By T B ARK

Provision of funds to related parties Provision of funds by related parties to the Company

nEERRMHES BEpniEREES
Opening ~ Amount of the Closing Opening  Amount of the Closing

Related party Connected relationship balance transaction balance balance transaction balance
BER S8E BEE HReE B Ex2 HRHE
Jiangsu Tianhai Special Equipment Co,, Ltd. Associate 98,940.57 -17,622.55 8131802 674034111 711259738 13.852,93849
TERRERERRARAA B2
Bejjng Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co,, Ltd. Controlling shareholder 910,449.08 10N 910571.79
KRRAEREREEAR BRER
Bejing Lantianda Vehicle Clean Fuel Technology Co, Lid. Others 298720328 77955554 376675882 1150237459 -1,00972237 1049265022
IREREERRIHATERAT At
Kuancheng Shenghua Pressure Container Manufacturing Co,, Ltd. ~ Others 64969850 -649,698.50
EHRZENRSHERRAT g
Tianjin Seamless Investment Co. Ltd. Others 30692382 153108572 1,838,009.54
REABEREERARLA i
Bejing Jingcheng Zhitong Robot Technology Co,, Lid. Subsilary of Shareholders 120300000 589,500.00  1,792,500.00
FRRAERRS \NRERAR REHTA
LiHong Others 10,860,433.38 10,860,433.38
) ity
Beijng No. 1 Machine Tool Plant Co,, Ltd Subsidiary of Shareholders 1359.09 -1,359.09
IRF-RARERLT BT
Beiing Beiren Printing Equipment Co, Lid. Subsitary of Shareholders 10751388 -107513.88 305966.22  325,966.22
SRS AR REER R RENTFAR
Beﬂnﬂlinicheng Golden Sun Energy Technology Co,, Lt Subsiary of Shareholders 49,00850 49,008.50
tRpte AR ERRERAT RENFAR
Zhejang lingcheng Renewable Resources Co,, Ltd. Subsiciary of Shareholders 182,400.00 182,400.00
AIRIBEEERERAR BRATFA
Bejing Peitian Technology Co, Lid. Subsidiary of Shareholders 59899680 59899680
I AR AR RENFAA
Sunwise Hydrogen Energy Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Subsiclary of Shareholders 15,870,400.00  15,870,400.00 464526546 464526546
FERRIROERARAA RRATFAR
Shanghai Sunwise Enerqy Systems Co, Ltd. Subsicliary of Shareholders 15,018,716.55  15,018,716.55 460250000 4,602,50000
DERERRAGERLA RN
Guangzhou Sunwise Hydrogen Energy Technology Co, Ltd. Subsidiary of Shareholders 61488000 614,880.00
BMRERRERAR RRBFAT
Babcock & Wilcox Bejing Company Ltd. Subsidiary of Shareholders 172,282.30 172,282.30
ﬁﬁEﬁﬂﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁ%ﬁ@@ﬂ BRAFA
Bejjng Jingcheng Huitong Environmental Protection Co,, Ltd. Subsidiary of Shareholders 14,707.9 14,707.96
IRAIERERERAT RENFA
Bejing Beiyi Machine Tool Co, Ltd. Subsidiary of Shareholders 1400,000.00 1,400,000.00
FR—BRERRERT RENFRT
Bejjng Jingcheng Yine Urban Renewal Co, Ltd Subsidiary of Shareholders 65847785 65847185
IR RATERERAT RENHFAT
Beijing Kerui Nike Science Trading Co, Ltd. Minarity sharefolder of 10636200 106,362.00

subsidiaries
IRAEERHERRAT FRANIBHRR
Hubei Jingyuan Xihai Automoble Industry Co, Ltd. Associate 4938227992 4938227992 960000000 493630000  14,536,300.00
MAEREEIFERAT e
Shaanxi Haichuang Shengshi Hyrogen Energy Technology Co,, Lid.  Assodiate 358022500 3580,225.00 980,000.00 980,000.00
REEAAE ERHEERAA BEnm
Total
aif 402575623 84471.222.08 8349697831 4113088107  26,706,09144  67,836972.51

Reasons for occurrence of related creditor's right and debt transactions

BREERRVIER

Under normal operation

Effects of related creditors' rights and debts on the Company
BRRERRELRNTE

None
9
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EEEIH

Material connected transactions (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Financial business between the Company and its
related financial company, and between financial
company controlled by the Company and related

parties
[J Applicable / Not applicable

Others
+ Applicable  [J Not applicable

Continuing connected transactions:

Continuing connected transaction with the property leasing of
Jingcheng Haitong

Beijing Tianhai and Jingcheng Haitong entered into the “Lease
Agreement” on 4 September 2018 with a lease term of 18 years.
While transferring the property, Beijing Tianhai, Asset Company
and Jingcheng Haitong will sign an “Agreement on the Change of
Party of the Lease” which will transfer all rights and obligations of
Beijing Tianhai under the “Lease Agreement” to Asset Company in
general. On 6 July 2022, the Company issued the “Announcement
of Completion of the Project of Acquisition of 2% Equity Interest
of Jingcheng Haitong by a Subsidiary of the Company Beijing
Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd.”. Upon completion of the acquisition, the
Company holds a 51% equity interest in Jingcheng Haitong through
Tianhai Industry, pursuant to which, Jingcheng Haitong became a
controlled subsidiary of the Company. In accordance with the Listing
Rules, as Jingcheng Machinery Electric is the controlling shareholder
of the Company, Asset Company is a connected person of the
Company. Accordingly, the transaction contemplated under the
Lease Agreement became continuing connected transaction of the
Company upon completion of the acquisition.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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QL. ' Section 8 Important Matters R
o i NG FEHE

XIll. Contracts of significance and their execution 1= EXSEKHEETER

(i) Trust, contracting and lease matters (—) /B &8 - HEEHE
1.  Trust 1+ EER
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable @A  TEm
2.  Contracting 2~ HAEER
[ Applicable +/ Not applicable DA v NEA
3. Lease 3+ HEBR
\ Applicable [ Not applicable ViR OfER

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By T BE:AEK

Basisof  Effectof  Related

Amount  Date of determination lease income  party/ Related party/
Status of of lease  commencement  Date of expiry of oflease  onthe connected ~ connected
Name of the leaser Name of lessee leased asset of asset ~ of lease lease Leaseincome income ~ Company transaction ~ relationship
BEERE BELEY
HEAZE RERER HESERR  HEAEUREE HEEWR  EERLR i fig NHFE  RAEERE BEEE
Bejjng Jingcheng Haitong ~ Shenzhen Tenglong Holdings ~ Aleased area of 6373539576 Tlanuary 204 31 December 204 6373539576 Lease contract Main No Others
Technology Culture (o, td. 45,0362 sg.m. operating
Development Co,, Ltd. ncome
FRRIERRRIER  RIREERROARLT  HEEEG M6 200411 41231 LTI VN i
ERA Fike
Qingdzo Zhengl Technology ~ Qingdzo BYTQ United Digital A leased area of 2075042 1 January 2024 31 December 2024 2,075,042 Lease contract Other No Others
(o, L. Inteligence Co, Ltd. 9881.155.m. operating
income
BELMMRARLT  ERMAREUBEMAR  AAEREIM 41 2041231 EEAR AL F E
it iR
Description of leasing HEER A
Not applicable e
(i) Guarantee (=) ERER
[ Applicable +/ Not applicable O@EA VTEm

2024 ANNUAL REPORT | 181
2024 FERE




B Ccction 8

182

EPAN-]

Xlll. Contracts of significance and their execution

(Continued)

Important Matters

EREH

(iii) Cash assets entrusted to be managed by others

1. Entrusted wealth management

(1)

)

3)

Overview of entrusted wealth management
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

Others
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

Single entrusted wealth management
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

Others
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

Impairment provision for entrusted wealth
management
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

2. Entrusted loans

(1)

)

3)

3. Other

Overview of entrusted loans
[J Applicable / Not applicable

Others
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

Single entrusted loan
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

Others
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

Impairment provision for entrusted loans
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

S

[ Applicable 4/ Not applicable

(iv) Other contracts of significance
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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R Section 8 Important Matters R
B A F\F EEER

XIV. Description of the progress of use of raised TH  ZE&ESFERERNE

funds
\/ Applicable [J Not applicable ViER OAER
(1) Overview of use of the raised funds (—) BEEESEBEFERAER
\ Applicable I Not applicable VER OTER
Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By o KEARK
Including:
Accumulated Progress of
Total Accumulated total amount  Progress of - Investment of
committed total amount of funds  Investmentof  funds over-
Net proceeds ~ investment of of fundsraised  over-raised funds raisedas  raised as of Proportion of  Total amount
raised after funds raisedin Totalamount  investedas  investedas oftheendof  theend of investment  of proceeds
the deduction the prospectus of over-raised of the end of ~ of the end of  the Reporting the Reporting Invested  during the raised for
Source of funds Time of receipt of issuance o offering funds the Reporting theReporting  period(%)  period(%) amount during year(%)  the changed
raised of proceeds  Total proceeds  expenses (1) documents (2) (3)=(1-2) Period (4) Period (5)  (6)=()(1)  ()=(5/(3) theyear(8) (9)=(8)/(1) purpose
ARES Hb:BE BERENR  AEREEK
ERHET BE HEREER  BEER HEHEGER BEELEH AEERA
L1 ERES EE BR BRgemy E0UE ZiRABE REESEM RABE(%) RAEE(%) REE  SEEK()  REREN
BEXR HRE B0ME  HORE()  REEEQ (=010  ESEEW  RABEG)  ©)=@0) (M=0NE) RALEE)  (0=0/(1) EXELEE
Others 2020-7-1 214,830,000.00 207,305,400.64 207,305,400.64 0.00 195,336,611.77 0.00 94.23% 000 1,303469.41 0.63%
Eft 20057418
Others 2020-8-4 158,966,094.76 153,305,717.40 153,305,717.40 0.00 130,584,044.43 0.00 85.18% 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Eft 20248748
Total
aif / 373,796,094.76 360,611,118.04 360,611,118.04 0.00 325,920,656.20 0.00 / /130346941 /
Other descriptions H {th 548
[J Applicable +/ Not applicable DA EA
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XIV. Description of the progress of use of raised TH  ZE&ESFERERNE
funds (continued)

() Details of fund raising and investment projects (Z) BERIEERAMA
\/ Applicable [ Not applicable VigR OTEA
1.  Details on use of raised funds 1+ BEESHACHEBER
\/ Applicable [ Not applicable VER OfEA

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
Bl T BEARE

Whetheritis Progress of
acommitted Acumulatedtodl — acumulted Whether the
investment~ Whethera amountoffunds  investment asof Whetherthe  Spefic easons feashilty of
projectinthe  change of raisedinvestedas e end of the progresf -~ fortheprogress the projethes
prospecus~ nvestment~ Total planned oftheend of the Reporting  Date of projet Whether ~ investmentis o investment not Beneftsor RED - sgnificant changes
Sourc of oroffeing  decsionis  investmentwith  Amountnvested Reporting Perid (%) reaching scheduled the pojec infine with aieved  Beneftsreased  resltsachieved  and,if o, lease
findsraised ~ Name of project Natweofproect ~ dowuments ~ invobed  risd funds () during the year Period (2 =) avalabity  hasbeen dosed planned schedule asplamed  duingtheyear  bythisproject  providedetal  Balance amount
RERARE BRERER  BEAEER BAER BER ERUAHRARE
e Wk LG | EIRABE  ENRAERL)  gRENER EAERRR e BRENAE  EABL MR
BEG B BEEE HEETEEN B RREHN)  BERAGE EE8ED) Bl TEAERR RAREE  RAHEMES HEMER  RERENME  GERRR  mhREEER fnel
Others Constrcton projct of ntelient digtl ontrol ~—~~ Productionand Y No 500000000 000 5200000000 100.00% 30 November 2021 Yes Yes NA 10960336824 13256200949 No 00
productionine forType N Cyiders consrucion
o LI SRR R 4 ] mH H £ TéR (]
Others Repayment o debs owed to controling shareholder ~ Liguiity Yes No 00406 00 e 10000% A Yes Yes A NA A No [}
and finandil institutions repleishment and
Joan repayment
{4 REEHRRREHARER i 1 H [ Fif H i TéR Teh Fif ]
thers Reseatchand development pojet of ydhogen energy RED Yes No M0 10644 15368 5.13% NA No Yes A NA NA o 023505
products
) EEEE i H i Tk ] £ TR i Tk ]
Others Payment o cash consideratin for the transaction ~~ Others Yes No 8143380440 0 oA 1% NA No Yes A 500662979 108660304 N D3R
# RnRRREER Hd H i Tk [ £ TR [
Others Replenishment o the ity of the lited company, ~ Others Yes No M0 0 3501600 9241% NiA No Yes NIA NiA NiA No
paymentoftaxesand ntemediay agency ees
# ALTATRERS RHRARGNARRR Hd H ] Teh ] H i i TR Teh [
Others ity replenishment through captal injectoninto ~ Others Yes No 300000000 00 3000000000 10000% NA Yes Yes NA NA NA No
the target company
Hd HERATARRATERS H £ g i £ H TaR TR i [
Totl
s | | | | HSMMBM LB %D | I | | | 168620 I [ YK
2.  Details on use of over-raised funds 2. HBEESHMAFEAER
[J Applicable 4/ Not applicable D@EA V NEA
() Change or termination of fund raising and () BEMAERBEHLILER
investment during the Reporting Period
[ Applicable v/ Not applicable O@EA  ~EA
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XIV. Description of the progress of use of raised
funds (continued)

(IV) Other circumstances regarding use of raised funds (M) HEPRAEEESFERANWEMIE
durmg the Reporting Period "
Prior investment and replacement of funds raised 1- BEESREBEALAHRARE
investment projects BER

\/ Applicable [J Not applicable ViER OfER
On 29 July 2020, the Company held the third extraordinary 20207 A29A A REAHAE+
meeting of the tenth session of the Board and considered B
and approved the resolution in relation to the replacement

of the self-raised funds pre-invested in investment projects EEAcBEMBEABRAERE
with raised funds from the non-public issuance of shares, and BEEEESNEER ATEFERIE
decided to use the proceeds from the non-public issuance of PNABITRNEEEEARE
shares of RMB26,821,768.00 to replace the pre-invested self- 26,821,768.007C & # PU AU JR 2
raised funds of the construction project of intelligent digital BB EESERIERELED
control production line for Type IV Cylinders. The independent BAHNBEESR - AAAIBIE
Directors, the Supervisory Committee and the sponsor of the = ERgURREREACE
Company have fulfilled the corresponding scrutiny procedures f‘ﬁ EHEHRRF I D R
and disclosed them in a timely manner. B -

Temporary replenishment of working capital with the 2y FHBESEERWERARDE
unused raised funds 2ER

[ Applicable 4/ Not applicable Q@A ~NEA

Cash management of unused raised funds and 3 HHABESESETRESEE
investment in related products REHEBEERER

[ Applicable 4/ Not applicable O @A ~EA

Others 4- Hit

\/ Applicable [J Not applicable

As at 31 December 2024, the deposit of raised funds was as
follows:

ViER O7NER

HZE2024%F12831H - 4%
FRELAT

1. Fund raising from non-public issuance of shares 1.  HFRBERITEREEEZEES
Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB
By o BEARK
Information on corresponding account
HEBRFES
Account
balance as at
Fund raising and Opening Account 31 December 2024
investment project Implementing entity Deposit bank balance (Yuan) opening date (Yuan) Account number
BE202%
12A318
ERER it BF&IT DB (T) HFBE RFHE(T) BFH
Construction project of intelligent Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., Huaxia Bank, Beijing Guanghua July 2020
digital control production line for Type a subsidiary Road Branch

IV Cylinders

W‘%ﬂﬁﬁ CEEAESEREE  FARNRKEIEERAR EERMI T ER T 52,000,000.00 202047 A 0.00 10262000000869946

Research and development project  Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., Huaxia Bank, Beijing Guanghua July 2020

of hydrogen energy products a subsidiary Road Branch

SR ERTEIER FRAIRRETEERAT FERTIRAERXIT 27,285,000.00 2020477 12,32,053.05 10262000000869924
Repayment of debts owed to Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., Huaxia Bank, Beijing Guanghua July 2020

Jingcheng Machinery Electric and a subsidiary Road Branch

financial institutions

ERRBBENSBBEER FRAFTRREIEERLA ZERTRRNERST 12802040064 2020574 0.00 10262000000869935

Total

At 207,305,400.64 12,232,053.05
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XIV. Description of the progress of use of raised
funds (continued)
(IV) Other circumstances regarding use of raised funds

Fund raising and

during the Reporting Period (Continued)
4, Others (Continued)
2. Asset Acquisition by way of Share Issuance and
Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds

Th 5&
(I

Opening Account

) |E

B ERERTH @

HASSEESHEANEME

o ()

4~  Hfts(#)

2. ROBOZNHEZEELE
WHEEREES

Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB
Bl T B ARE

Information on corresponding account

Account
balance as at
31 December 2024

investment project Implementing entity Deposit bank balance (Yuan) opening date (Yuan) Account number
BE2024512A318

ERER it BF&IT NEBE(T) HFBE RFHE(T) BFH

Payment of cash consideration, taxes  The Company Huaxia Bank, Bejjing Guanghua August 2022

and intermediary agency fees for the

Road Branch

acquisition of the target asset, liquidity

replenishment etc.

IRYBRNEENRSREUE . A0

EERTLRAERS

RERFNRER BRRDELS

XV. Des

cription of other major matters that

have a significant impact on investors’ value

Judg

ment and investment decision

N Appllcable [J Not applicable

1.

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s subsidiaries in China
were subject to applicable enterprise income tax rates of 25% and
15%, and its subsidiaries outside China were subject to applicable
enterprise income tax rates of 16.5% and 21%.

Review of financial statements for the Reporting Period by the audit
committee

The audit committee of the Board of the Company has reviewed and
confirmed the annual financial report for 2024.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company has adopted the “Corporate Governance Code” (the
"CG Code") contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its
corporate governance code. The Board considers that the Company
complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
throughout the year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and Supervisors
During the Reporting Period, the Company adopted a model
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors and
Supervisors on terms no less exacting than the required standards
set out in the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers” in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. After making
specific enquiries with all Directors and Supervisors, the Company
confirmed that, each of the Directors and Supervisors complied with
the required standards on securities transactions by Directors and
Supervisors as set out in the Model Code for the 12 months ended
31 December 2024.

Pre-emptive rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the laws of the
PRC and the articles of association of the Company.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Section Q‘n./Changes in Shares and Im‘ormahon of Shareholders I
T ENE ROBHRBRRBR

.  CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL — s BRAZEIER

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

(1) Statement of changes in Shares (—) B EBEFERE
1.  Statement of changes in Shares 1 ROSBHERE
Unit: share
Bz R
Before change Increase and decrease (+,) in change After change
LY EE] KRAEsE(+ - LYY L
Proportion Issuance of Conversion Proportion
Amount (%) newshares  Bonusissue from reserve Other Subtotal Amount (%)
BB MO ELiEi] B DEEER i it g8 )
() Shares subjectto trading - BRERERG 19,469,105 355 0 0 0 03453 70453 124345%2 2
moratorium
1. State-owned shares 1 Bk
2. State-onned egalperson shares 2 EGEA#R
3. Other domesticshares 3 EfomERR 19,469,105 355 0 0 0 T0M53 03453 1243458 by
induding: Domestc nonstate-onned £k - SRERREARR 1874784 034 0 0 0 9739 9739 9739 017
legal person shares
Domestc natura personshares — EAARAR 17594321 321 0 0 0 6097160 6097161 11497160 210
4. Foreign shares 4 NERR
Including: Overseas legl person shares 70 - S EATR
Overseas naturel person shares—— EPM A RATETR
(I Crculating shares ot subjectto =~ ERERATERED 528,196,883 9.4 0 0 0 47034553 47034553 53231436 9113
trading moratorium
1. Renminbi ordinary shares 1 \REEER 428,196,883 7819 0 0 0 47034553 47034553 43531436 1947
2. Forein shaes sted domestcally 2+ 574 £ N ER:
3. Foregn shares sted overseas 3+ 3501 L ASVAR: 100,000,000 18.26 0 0 0 0 0100000000 1826
4, Others 4 Ef
() Total shares = Rheg 547,665,988 100.00 0 0 0 0 0 547665988 100.00

RREEPN - ARTRENBA

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities AR ERE  HE - SEEE
during the Reporting Period. AIARREZHRE o
Explanation on the changes in the Shares 2. ROBEERNA

\ Applicable I Not Applicable

In the project of the asset acquisition by way of share issuance
and cash payment and raising of supporting funds by the
Company, 46,481,314 A shares with selling restrictions were
newly added to the restricted shares at the phase of the
asset acquisition by way of share issuance and cash payment,
of which 32,419,209 shares were released from lock-up,
listed and traded on 28 June 2023, with 14,069,105 of the
restricted shares remaining.

Pursuant to the relevant agreements entered into between
the Company and the targets of issuance, 7,034,553 of the
remaining restricted shares were released from lock-up, listed
and traded on 25 June 2024. For details, please refer to the
“Announcement on the Listing of and Trading in Certain
Restricted Shares for the Asset Acquisition by way of Share
Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds”
disclosed by the Company on 18 June 2024 (Announcement
No.: Lin 2024-022).

ViEA O @

FERARIBETRMEINREEE
EEVESEELSSHEEF ¥
TRHOERINREBEEERER
FIEEREKITMN46,481,314
fEARE - BHEAF32,419 209Hx
B2023%6 A28 MBRE
W W - AHERERE S
14,069, 1050% °

BEAGEBFITHREEZE NN
e FeBEERERFSH
7,034,5530% R E R E 72 2024F6
R25BfERRRE + W EMRE -
FRARE2024F6F18HHE
MCETRMESNRGHEEE
ETEEREEASZHAPRER
FHRBORE) (RERS B
2024-022) ©

)i
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CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(1) Statement of changes in Shares (Continued)

3.

Effect of the change in Shares on financial indicators
such as earnings per share and net assets per share for
the latest year and the latest period (if any)

[ Applicable v Not applicable

Other disclosure deemed necessary by the Company or
required by securities regulatory authorities
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

Pursuant to the authorisation by the First EGM of 2023, the
First A Share Class Meeting of 2023 and the First H Share Class
Meeting of 2023 of the Company, the Company convened
the fifth extraordinary meeting of the eleventh session of the
Board and the seventh meeting of the eleventh session of the
Supervisory Committee on 14 November 2023, at which the
“Resolution on the Adjustment of Matters Relating to the
2023 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme” and “Resolution on
the First Grant of Restricted Shares to Participants under the
2023 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme” were considered
and approved. The independent non-executive Directors of
the Company have expressed their independent opinions on
the relevant matters, the Supervisory Committee has reviewed
the list of Participants for the granting and expressed its
verification opinion, and the lawyers have expressed their
legal opinions. According to the “Certificate of Securities
Change Registration” issued by the Shanghai Branch of
CSDC, the Company has completed the registration of the
first grant of restricted shares under the 2023 Restricted Share
Incentive Scheme (the “Incentive Scheme”) on 28 December
2023, and 5,400,000 new restricted A shares were granted.
For details, please refer to the “Announcement in relation to
the Results of the Initial Grant of Restricted Shares under the
2023 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme” disclosed by the
Company on 29 December 2023 (Announcement No.: Lin
2023-064). Pursuant to the relevant agreements, these newly
added restricted shares were not unlocked as at the end of
the Reporting Period.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Section 9%,

3!

=
Ao

W —

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(2) Changes in Shares subject to selling restrictions

\ Applicable [ Not Applicable

EILER

— s BRAEZEE R @

(Z) RERHEEBER
V@A O TEA

C‘nanges in Shares and Im‘ormann of Shareholders IR
RODEERRREFER

Unit: share
B R
Number of Number of Number of Number of
restricted shares  restricted shares  restricted shares restricted shares
atthe beginning  released during  increase during attheend Reason for
of the year the year the year of the year  restricted sale Release date
Name of shareholders RR#E FIRERY AEERRERY AFANRERYE  FARERY RERE BRRERS
Li Hong ) 7,639,826 3,819,913 0 3,819,913 Restriction on merger and The fourth phase will be
acquisition unlocked on 24 June 2025
i £l 2005624 B FEENS
Zhao Qing BE 2,616,314 1,308,157 0 1,308,157 Restriction on merger and The fourth phase will be
acquisition unlocked on 24 June 2025
hEsERs W56/ URREENS
Qingdao Fternal Economic BB A EESH# 1,874,784 937,392 0 937,392 Restriction on merger and The fourth phase wil be
Information Consulting Co., Ltd. #ERAF acquisition unlocked on 24 June 2025
i £l 20056 A4 B FEENS
Wang Xiaohui TEE 1,615,762 807,881 0 807,881 Restriction on merger and The fourth phase wil be
acquisition unlocked on 24 June 2025
i el W56/ UAREENS
Qian Yuyan HE 322,419 161,210 0 161,209 Restriction on merger and The fourth phase will be
acquisition unlocked on 24 June 2025
il 200556 A24BFEENS
Total it 14,069,105 7,034,553 0 7,034,552 1 /
. . g w —_— J_- pyES /— = N
Il. Issuance and listing of securities = RBERIT JZFD 150
(i) Issuance of securities during the Reporting Period ( ) Eﬁziﬁ HRESFRITIRR
[0 Applicable v Not Applicable O A ‘/ Z_ i
Description of securities issued during the Reporting Period (please Eﬁzii&%ﬁﬁﬁq?ﬁi}%&ﬁjﬁ /Emf)féﬁﬂ (7%
specify the bonds with different interest rates during their duration): HARNENRNES - B RIRE) -
1 Applicable v Not Applicable O@Em N TEm
(ii) Changes in the total number of Shares of the (2) PERDBBRBRREBEHR
Company and Shareholders’ structure and AREENEBEBNEHER

changes in the asset and liability structure of the

Company . .
1 Applicable v Not Applicable O@m N TEm
RENATBIRER

iii
(i) O@ER T EA

Existing internal employee shares
[ Applicable v Not applicable
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FENE ROSERBRRER

lIl. Shareholders and beneficial controllers = RERMEBREZESAER
(i) Total numbers of Shareholders (—) BRRAH
Total number of ordinary Shareholders as at the end of the Reporting Period 41,593
HEREHRTBRRF A (P)
Total number of ordinary Shareholders as at the end of the month preceding 37,521

the date of publication of annual report

FEREREBA E—ARNEBIRBRAE(P)

Total number of Shareholders of preference shares with restored voting right
as at the end of the Reporting Period 0
HERERHRRARERIENB LR A (P)

Total number of Shareholders of preference shares with restored voting right
as at the end of the month preceding the date of publication of annual

report 0
FEMRE PR HAT E— ARFOREIRIENE SRR T AE ()

(i) Shareholding of top ten Shareholders, top ten (Z) BEREHRAT+HRE ~ A1+
Shareholders of circulating Shares (or holders of BRERR (HERERERR)
Shares not subject to trading moratorium) as at BRIERE
end of the Reporting Period .

Unit: share
BT R
Shareholding of top ten Shareholders (transferral of ownership of the shares lent under the margin refinancing transfer exclusive)
HTZRFRRER (FRRRERBLERE)
Increase/ Number Number
decrease  of Shares of Shares  Pledged, marked or frozen
during the held at held subject R BRGRERER
Name of Shareholder Reporting  theendof  Percentage to selling Share Shareholder(s)
(full name) Period the period (%) restrictions status Number  Nature
SEERE
RRER(2R) RERAEE  HAEREE ithl%) HERHEE it HE RRME
Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Flectic St R R ERERE AL 0 24573505 4487 0 N State-owned legal-person
Holding Co., Ltd. £ BEZA
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 92,000 99,611,027 18.19 0 Unkn%wn U*nknown
il A
Li Hong 3 -3,135913 5104913 093 3819913 Nil Domestic natural person
E BMaRA
Qingdao Eternal Economic Information E& AL EREHAERAA  -1050200 3,636,760 066 937,39 Nil Dormestic non-state
Consulting Co,, Ltd. & owned legal person
BNFEBEA
Zhao Qing il 179,928 3242557 0.59 1,308,157 Nil Dormestic natural person
i BFRERA
Wang Huadong TER 0 2015123 037 0 Nil Dormestic natural person
i BFRERA
He Yong Gk 491,371 1,850,704 0.34 0 Nil Dormestic natural person
B BRERA
Wang Xiaohui THE -1,629,500 1,644,904 030 807,881 Nil Domestic natural person
B BREAA
Anhui Bocheng Medical Ivestment R4 fER BEXEERLH 1497800 1,497,800 027 0 Unknown Unknown
Co, ltd pSil A
Jiang Guojian RER 139,100 139,100 025 0 Nl Domestic natural person
i BFRERA
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Sectién 8% Changes in Shares and Im‘ormahon of Shareholders I
! FENE ROBHREKREEBR

lll. Shareholders and beneficial controllers (continved) = ~ BRERFNERERIZHI AR @
(i) Shareholding of top ten Shareholders, top ten (2) E&:’éiﬁiﬂﬂﬁﬁaﬁ-%ﬂ"i A+
Shareholders of circulating Shares (or holders of ERBRE (HERERGFRFT)
Shares not subject to trading moratorium) as at BERERE @

end of the Reporting Period (Continued)

Shareholding of top ten Shareholders not subject to trading moratorium (transferral of ownership of the shares lent under the margin refinancing transfer exclusive)

ATEERERARRERIER (T RRBRBLERD)

Number of circulating Class and number of shares
shares not subject to RHEERYE
trading moratorium Number
HEERERK  Class of shares
Name of shareholder RREH HERNEE EE 8B
Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. 1 ARAEERRARETAT 245735052 RMB ordinary shares 245,735,052
AREEBR
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 99,611,027 Overseas listed foreign shares 99,611,027
S EmSNER
Qingdao Eternal Economic Information Consulting Co., Ltd. & & X5 B S AAAR AT 2,699,368 RMB ordinary shares 2,699,368
AREEBR
Wang Huadong TR 2,015,123 RMB ordinary shares 2015123
AREEBR
Zhao Qing HE 1,934,400 RMB ordinary shares 1,934,400
AREEBR
He Yong e 1,850,704 RMB ordinary shares 1,850,704
AREEBR
Anhui Bocheng Medical Investment Co,, Lid. THRRBRREARAA 1497800 RMB ordinary shares 1,497,800
AREEBR
Jiang Guojian BEz 1,396,100 RMB ordinary shares 1,396,100
AREEBR
LiHong =1 1,285000  RMB ordinary shares 1,285,000
AREEBR
Shao Hualiang L 1,175,900  RMB ordinary shares 1,175,900
AREEBR
Description of special account for repurchase among the N/A
top ten Shareholders ol
AT AR LRI, BN
Explanations on the proxy voting right, entrusted voting N/A
right and waiver of voting right of the aforesaid Blii
Shareholders
FRBREFRAE - RERME - RERMENSS
Explanation on the connected relationship of the The Company is not aware of any connected relationship among the aforesaid Shareholders, nor is
Shareholders and action in concert among the aforesaid the Company aware of any parties acting in concert as defined in “Measures for Management on
Shareholders Information Disclosure of Changes in Shareholdings of Listed Company's Shareholders”.
IS G ek ARFAM LARE FAEEEER  t kAR ERRN EAARRERED R RRER
PR REH TP -
Explanation on preferred Shareholders whose voting rights N/A
has resumed and their shareholdings ol
FRERENEERRE RS RE S A
Shares lent through refinancing business involved in by FR5% A ERR ~ BI+EBRRK
the shareholders holding 5% or above shares, the top AT RERERERRRSEE
10 shareholders and the top 10 shareholders holding BBERHEROBER
tradable shares without selling restrictions
[ Applicable v Not Applicable D@EA N TNEs
Changes in the top 10 shareholders and the top 10 AtERRRA+TBERERE
shareholders holding tradable shares without selling BREREREBELE RERE
restrictions due to the shares lent and returned through EYH LR EEL
refinancing as compared with the corresponding period
last year
O Applicable v Not Applicable O@Em N TEm
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= RERMEMBRESABT@®
(Z) BEREHRAT+EBRE AT+
BRBERR (REREGHERR)
BRIER T @

E;%ﬁl‘ﬁ%ﬁ#ﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ%
ViER O TEm

lll. Shareholders and beneficial controllers (continued)
(ii) Shareholding of top ten Shareholders, top ten
Shareholders of circulating Shares (or holders of

Shares not subject to trading moratorium) as at

end of the Reporting Period (Continued)
Shareholding of the top ten holders of Shares subject to
selling restriction and conditions of selling restrictions

\ Applicable [ Not applicable

Unit: share
B R

Conditions of listing and
trading of restricted Shares

ERERUHROTLHRZER
Number of
Number additional
of Shares Shares
held subject Date of being available for
Name of Shareholder to selling  permitted for listing and
subject to selling restrictions listing and trading trading Restricted
No.  restrictions BEMNERE WLm HIEA LS conditions
Fi  BREGRERRER HBUEBROBE XZKE RERDHUE REKHY
1 Li Hong 3,819,913 24 June 2025 3,819,913 The lock-up period is 12 months
4 20256 H24H and the shares are unlocked in 4
phases and can be listed on the
trading day following the expiry
of the lock-up period
REHRI2EA - BkihH4ERER
H - EHETFHRNA—RZ5H
Al ETRS
2 Zhao Qing 1,308,157 24 June 2025 1,308,157 The lock-up period is 12 months
HE 202546 H24H and the shares are unlocked in 4
phases and can be listed on the
trading day following the expiry
of the lock-up period
REHRI2EA - BkihH 48R
H - EHETFHRNA—RZ5H
Al ETRS
3 Qingdao Eternal 937,392 24 June 2025 937,392 The lock-up period is 12 months

Economic Information 20256 H24H and the shares are unlocked in 4

192

Consulting Co., Ltd.
BEHEBESE

ABRAT
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Sectién 8% Changes in Shares and Information of Shareholders IR
B — EHE ROBBRBREER

lIl. Shareholders and beneficial controllers (continued)y = ~ IRERFNEBFRIZH A B R @
(ii) Shareholding of top ten Shareholders, top ten (=) BEREHRAI+BRE > AI T+
Shareholders of circulating Shares (or holders of ERBRE (HEREREFRT)
Shares not subject to trading moratorium) as at BERERE @
end of the Reporting Period (Continued)
Shareholding of the top ten holders of Shares subject to A+ EEREGEREFRBERIRE
selling restriction and conditions of selling restrictions 154 (1)

(Continued)

Conditions of listing and
trading of restricted Shares

EREFRUHROTLHRZHER
Number of
Number additional
of Shares Shares
held subject Date of being available for
Name of Shareholder to selling  permitted for listing and
subject to selling restrictions listing and trading trading Restricted
No.  restrictions BEMNERE WLm FIEA LS conditions
Fi  BREGERRER BREROBE RZEE RERDHUE REKHY
4 Wang Xiaohui 807,881 24 June 2025 807,881 The lock-up period is 12 months
T RERE 202546 H24H and the shares are unlocked in 4
phases and can be listed on the
trading day following the expiry
of the lock-up period
REHRI12EA - IkihH4ERR
H - EHETFHRNRA—RZ5H
A ETRS
5 Qian Yuyan 161,209 24 June 2025 161,209 The lock-up period is 12 months
BRI 202596 A24H and the shares are unlocked in 4
phases and can be listed on the
trading day following the expiry
of the lock-up period
REHRI12EA - IkihH4ERER
#H - EHETFHRNRA—RZ5H
A ETRS
6 Zhang Jiheng 150,000 14 November 2025 51,000 The lock-up period is 24 months
b 202511 A 148 and the shares are unlocked in 3
phases and can be listed on the
trading day following the expiry
of the lock-up period
PREHR24EA - f&kth 53807
- EHETFHRNRA—RZ5H
A ETRS
7 Shi Fengwen 100,000 14 November 2025 34,000 The lock-up period is 24 months
ABEX 202511 A 148 and the shares are unlocked in 3

phases and can be listed on the
trading day following the expiry
of the lock-up period

PREHR24EA - fkth 538087
H - EHETFHRNRA—RZ5H
Al ETRS
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lll. Shareholders and beneficial controllers (continued)y = ~ RERFNEBFRIZH AFER @
(i) Shareholding of top ten Shareholders, top ten (=) BEREHRAI+BRER > AI T+
Shareholders of circulating Shares (or holders of BERBRE (HERERGFRFT)
Shares not subject to trading moratorium) as at BRERE @
end of the Reporting Period (Continued)
Shareholding of the top ten holders of Shares subject to A+ EEREFERFEFRBERIRE
selling restriction and conditions of selling restrictions Rt (48)

(Continued)

Conditions of listing and
trading of restricted Shares

BFREFRHRBALTRZER
Number of
Number additional
of Shares Shares
held subject Date of being available for
Name of Shareholder to selling  permitted for listing and
subject to selling restrictions  listing and trading trading Restricted
No.  restrictions BFENERE TLm A LW conditions
Fi ARERERRERE HRERDEE XZEH REROBE REFE
8 Feng Yongmei 100,000 14 November 2025 34,000 The lock-up period is 24 months
IEKIG 202511 A14H and the shares are unlocked in 3
phases and can be listed on the
trading day following the expiry
of the lock-up period
PREMA24{E A - Bxin 5 3HARE
# - EEEFHREOR -5 H
A ERRS
9 Li Xianzhe 100,000 14 November 2025 34,000 The lock-up period is 24 months
T 202511 A14R and the shares are unlocked in 3
phases and can be listed on the
trading day following the expiry
of the lock-up period
PREEA24{EF - Bxin 5 3EARE
# - EEEFHREOR -5 H
A ERRS
10 Luan Jie 100,000 14 November 2025 34,000 The lock-up period is 24 months
8K 202511 A14R and the shares are unlocked in 3
phases and can be listed on the
trading day following the expiry
of the lock-up period
PREMR241E A - Bxin 5 3HARE
# - EEEFHREOR -5 H
A ERRS
Explanation on connected The Company was not aware of any connected relationship among the aforesaid shareholders,
relationship or action acting in nor was the Company aware of any parties acting in concert as defined in the “Measures for
concert among the aforesaid Management on Information Disclosure of Changes in Shareholdings of Listed Company's
Shareholder Shareholders”.
PR BB R Rk — BT B RARRA HMRER 2 W6 BEBAER - tRANEREER(ETARRRHEREDEERE
Bl EBRIE)REN—BITBA -
(iii) Strategic investors or general legal persons who (Z) BERREES —REARBGER
have become one of the top ten Shareholders as R ABA10E KRR

a result of the placing of new Shares

[] Applicable v Not applicable Dmm N FE
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. - FENE ROBHREKREEBR

IV. Controlling Shareholders and beneficial - #ZEREBRERRERZESAER

controller
(i) Controlllng Shareholder (=) ZERRBREER
Legal person 1+ EA
\ Applicable [ Not applicable VER O TEA
Name Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd.
£18 TREHBEZERBREETLR
The\ person in charge of the unit or legal representative ~ Ruan Zhongkui
BUBEASIEERERA FrizE
Date of establishment 8 September 1997
Bz F A 199749 H8H
Principal businesses Within the scope of authorization, management of state-
FELEET owned assets; management of property rights (equities);

external financing and investment. The Company has six
major business sectors including numerical control machine,
engineering machine, storage and transportation of gas,
environment protection industry, new energy and thermal
power generation. It has six business units including logistics
industry, hydraulic industry, switch industry, printing machine,
electrical machine industry and electric wires and cables.
It combines engineering design, product development,
manufacture of equipment and technical service, together,
provides high quality professional integrated mechanics and
electrics equipment and services to industrial fields such as
electricity, metallurgy, shipping, transportation, engineering
construction, manufacture of machines and aerospace.
RRANBEAEESLERE  EE (BB KL BIEE -
WEETNHEBEIEHIR - TREEW - REMRE  BRE
¥ MRLR  ANBEBZRAREBRR  MIREE  REE
N T mﬂ%ﬁ~%%§%~%%%%%ﬁk%ﬁ
Bor - RITREE - Euuffﬁi‘* BB ELE AT AR 7% A —
B-REN RS MM B TIRER  EMEE M
EMASZEATI X B RNEEENTERE —RIRER

BR7 -
Shareholdings in other domestic and overseas listed Nil
companies controlled or invested by it during the i
Reporting Period
HERANIERMS N EMBARI ETHRBNBEER
Other matters Nil
A5 A i
2 Natural person 2. BAA
[ Applicable v Not applicable O @A N EA
3 Special description concerning no Controlling 3° DQEFFEEEZERBRRBERNS
Shareholder of the Company 8
[ Applicable v Not applicable O @A N EA
4 Explanation on changes of Controlling Shareholder of 4 REHAEBRBRREEBRAH
the Company during the Reporting Period 2]
[ Applicable v Not applicable O @A N EA
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IV. Controlling Shareholders and beneficial - ZEREBEREERZESAERL @
controller (continued)

(i) Controlling Shareholder (Continued) (=) ZRERRER @
5 Ownership and controlling relationship between the 5 ARHEEZERBRzZENERRIE
Company and Controlling Shareholder HIRBRN S EE
 Applicable I Not applicable ViER O TEA

State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of People’s Government of Beijing
Municipality
TETARBFAEEEEEEEEEZRS

100%
\i

Beijing State-owned Capital
Operation and Management Centre
TtREEELAREEEHL

100%

\/

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Holding Co., Ltd.
TRFEHEZEREREEDE

44.87%

\ 4

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Company Limited

ERFBBERGARD A

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Section 9" Changes in Shares and Im‘ormann of Shareholders N

VI.

IV. Controlling Shareholders and beneficial

controller (continued)
(ii) Information on beneficial controller

1

Legal person
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Natural person
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Special description concerning no beneficial controller
of the Compan\){
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Explanation on changes of beneficial controller of the
Company during the Reporting Period
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Ownership and controlling relationship between the
Company and beneficial controller
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Beneficial controller exercises control over the Company
through trust or other asset management plan
[ Applicable v Not applicable

(iii) Other information on controlling shareholder and

beneficial controller
[0 Applicable  Not applicable

The cumulative number of Pledged Shares
of the Company’s Controlling Shareholder
or the largest Shareholder and its concerted
actors accounts for more than 80% of the

Company'’s shares
[ Applicable ™ v Not applicable

Other legal person Shareholders with more

than 10% shareholding
[ Applicable v Not applicable

B REERRREE —

|
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FENE BROBHEBREER

M9~ ERBRREEREFARR
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2~ HAA
O@Em N TEm

3 RAAFFEEBREFHABROE
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O@Em N TEm

4. REBAQTEFERLEEEN
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O@Em N TEm

5 ARHEEBEREHAZENEER

EHRERNSIEER
O@Em N TEm

6 EBRIZEHABBEEIHMEE
EEHFNEFDF
O@Em N TEm

(Z) ERBRREREZESHAEMER

N8
O ER N TEs

RIRERK
H-FITHAZBRTTERRDE
ENMEMEBEATRMDEE LA
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VII. Description of restrictions in reduction of
shareholding

\ Applicable

1.

] Not applicable

Restrictions in reduction of shareholding in non-public issuance
of A shares

As approved by the China Securities Regulatory Commission in the
“Approval in relation to the Non-public Issuance of Shares by Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited” (Zheng Jian Xu Ke
[2019] No. 2551), the Company non-publicly issued 63,000,000
Shares of RMB ordinary Shares (A Shares), and registration and sales
restriction procedures for the issuance of Shares were completed at
the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation Limited on 10 July 2020. The lock-up period of Shares
subscribed by the issuance target Jingcheng Machinery Electric
was 36 months. For details, please refer to the “*ST Jingcheng:
Announcement on the results of the Non-public Issuance of
Shares and changes in the shareholding” (Announcement No.:
Lin 2020-037) disclosed on the “Shanghai Securities News” and
the SSE website (www.sse.com.cn) and the announcement on the
“Completion of the Non-public Issuance of A Shares” disclosed on
the HKEXnews website of the HKEX (www.hkexnews.hk) on 10 July
2020.

On 4 July 2023, the Company issued the “Announcement regarding
the the Listing of and Trading in Shares with Selling Restrictions from
Non-public Issuance in 2020, in which 63 million restricted A shares
were listed and traded, and on 10 July 2023, restricted shares of the
2020 non-public issuance were all released from the restriction on
reduction of shareholding and were listed and traded.

Restrictions in reduction of shareholding in asset acquisition
by way of share issuance

On 28 June 2022, the Company issued the “Announcement on the
Implementation of Asset Acquisition by Way of Share Issuance and
Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds and Listing of New
Shares”, which made the following arrangements for the partial
restrictions in the reduction of shareholding in respect of the asset
acquisition by way of share issuance:

The additional shares in the Company acquired by Li Hong, Zhao
Qing, Qingdao Eternal, Wang Xiaohui and Qian Yuyan through
the acquisition shall not be transferred in any manner, nor shall
they be pledged or otherwise encumbered with property rights for
a period of 12 months from the issuance completion date of the
Reorganisation; upon expiry of the above-mentioned 12-month
lock-up period, the additional shares in the Company acquired by Li
Hong, Zhao Qing, Qingdao Eternal, Wang Xiaohui and Qian Yuyan
through the acquisition shall be unlocked in phases in accordance
with the following arrangements:

1st phase: After 12 months from the issuance completion date of
the Reorganisation and upon performance of their corresponding
compensation obligations (if any) for the year of 2021 under the
“Performance Compensation Agreement” and the supplemental
agreement, the remaining portion of 40% of the additional shares
received by them less the number of shares (if any) compensated for
the year shall be unlocked;

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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VII. Description of restrictions in reduction of
shareholding (continued)

2.

Restrictions in reduction of shareholding in asset acquisition
by way of share issuance (Continued)

2nd phase: If they have fully performed their compensation
obligations (if any) for the year of 2022 under the “Performance
Compensation Agreement” and the supplemental agreement, the
remaining portion of 20% of the additional shares received by them
less the number of shares (if any) compensated for the year shall be
unlocked;

3rd phase: If they have fully performed their compensation
obligations (if any) for the year of 2023 under the “Performance
Compensation Agreement” and the supplemental agreement, the
remaining portion of 20% of the additional shares received by them
less the number of shares (if any) compensated for the year shall be
unlocked;

4th phase: If they have fully performed their compensation
obligations (if any) corresponding to the entire performance
commitment period under the “Performance Compensation
Agreement” and the supplemental agreement (i.e. the five financial
years of 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024), the remaining shares in
the additional shares received by them that have not been unlocked
shall be unlocked.

The shares of the Company received by Yang Ping, Xiao Zhonghai,
Xia Tao, Wang Huadong, Xiu Jun, Fu Dun and Chen Zhengyan under
the transactions shall not be transferred in any manner nor pledged
nor encumbered within 12 months from the issuance completion
date of the Reorganisation.

On 21 June 2023, the Company issued the “Announcement on
the Listing of and Trading in Certain Restricted Shares for the Asset
Acquisition by way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising
of Supporting Funds”, in which 32,412,209 restricted A shares were
listed and traded, of which, the number of restricted shares held
by the targets of issuance, namely, Li Hong, Zhao Qing, Qingdao
Eternal, Wang Xiaohui and Qian Yuyan, were released for the first
and the second phase, and the number of shares held by Yang Ping,
Xiao Zhonghai, Xia Tao, Wang Huadong, Xu Jun, Fu Dun and Chen
Zhengyin were all released, as shown in the table below. On 10 July
2023, some of the restricted shares in the asset acquisition by way of
share issuance and cash payment were released from the restriction
on the reduction of shareholding and were listed and traded.
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VII. Description of restrictions in reduction of

shareholding (continued)
2. Restrictions in reduction of shareholding in asset acquisition 2.

by way of share issuance (Continued)

Percentage
of restricted
shares
held in the Number of
Company'’s shares listed
total share and traded Remaining
Number capital (%) this time number of
of restricted FERE (unit: shares) restricted
No. Name of shareholder shares held BAEATIA KR EHREB shares
24 BRREH BEREREE BB (%) HER FARERYE
1 %Hong 19,099,566 3.52 11,459,740 7,639,826
4T
2 Zh%g Qing 6,540,785 1.21 3,924,471 2,616,314
=
3 ;ang Ping 5,405,865 1.00 5,405,865 0
4 Qingdao Eternal Economic 4,686,960 0.86 2,812,176 1,874,784
Information Consul;gin*g Co., Ltd.
E%%% B R BAERAR
5 Wang Xiaohui 4,039,404 0.74 2,423,642 1,615,762
FrEiE
6 Xia Tao 2,015,123 0.37 2,015,123 0
8%
7 Wang Huadong 2,015,123 0.37 2,015,123 0
FHER
8 Qian Yuyan 806,048 0.15 483,629 322,419
B
9 )\(lao \%honghai 589,423 0.1 589,423 0
7
10 Xiu Jun 526,269 0.10 526,269 0
EE
11 Fu Dun 378,913 0.07 378,913 0
[
12 %ﬁen Zhengyan 377,835 0.07 377,835 0
[ S
TAoE:ll_l 46,481,314 8.57 32,412,209 14,069,105
Aa

2024F6 B 18 H A A EM (TR R IR
CRELEETEERELES ZHBNRER LD
BN KRAKRRBRER EHRASES
7,034,5530% « EAREITHRPTALA - BE -
SRS THRERERIEAMERERMAE
FHEE - BRHERTE - 2024%F6AH25
B BIIROEINREEEEEZBHRE
B B BRI IR G - I TR o

On 18 June 2024, the Company issued the “Announcement on
the Listing of and Trading in Certain Restricted Shares for the Asset
Acquisition by way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising
of Supporting Funds”, in which 7,034,553 restricted A shares were
listed and traded, of which the restricted shares held by the targets
of issuance, namely Li Hong, Zhao Qing, Qingdao Eternal, Wang
Xiaohui and Qian Yuyan, was released for the third phase, with the
specific numbers of shares set out in the following table. On 25 June
2024, certain restricted shares for the asset acquisition by way of
share issuance and cash payment were released from the restriction
on the reduction of shareholding and were listed and traded.
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VII. Description of restrictions in reduction of

shareholding (continued)
2. Restrictions in reduction of shareholding in asset acquisition 2.
by way of share issuance (Continued)

Percentage
of restricted
shares
held in the Number of
Company'’s shares listed
total share and traded Remaining
Number capital (%) this time number of
of restricted FERE (unit: shares) restricted
No. Name of shareholder shares held  BR{5 2 KR AR KR EHREB shares
24 BRREH BFEREREE LE A (%) 2E(R) FRRERHE
1 Li Hong 7,639,826 1.39 3,819,913 3,819,913
4T
2 Zh%é) Qing 2,616,314 0.48 1,308,157 1,308,157
=
3 Qingdao Eternal Economic 1,874,784 0.34 937,392 937,392
Information Consulting Co., Ltd.
S %%% ST B A R
4 Wang Xiaohui 1,615,762 0.30 807,881 807,881
TS
5 Qian Yuyan 322,419 0.06 161,210 161,209
Total 14,069,105 2.57 7,034,553 7,034,552
&5t
Reduction restriction on 2023 Restricted Shares Incentive 3 2023F[RHIMER EREE IR SR

Scheme

On 29 December 2023, the Company announced the
“Announcement in relation to the Results of Initial Grant of
Restricted Shares under 2023 Restricted Share Incentive Scheme”,
the following arrangements have been made with respect to
reduction restriction under the 2023 Restricted Shares Incentive
Scheme:

The restriction period for the restricted shares granted to the
Participants under this Incentive Scheme is 24 months from the
date of grant of the restricted shares granted to the Participants.
During the restriction period, the Restricted Shares granted to the
Participants under this Incentive Scheme shall be restricted for sale
and shall not be transferable or used for guarantee or repayment of
debts. Shares acquired by the Participants as a result of capitalization
of capital surplus, distribution of stock dividends, stock splits, for
the restricted shares granted that have not yet been released from
restricted sales are simultaneously locked up in accordance with
this Incentive Scheme. Following the release of Restricted Shares,
the Company shall handle the unlock of Restricted Shares for the
Participants who fulfill the conditions for the unlock of restricted
shares, and the restricted shares held by the Participants who do
not fulfill the conditions for the unlock of restricted shares shall be
repurchased by the Company.

2023412 4298 » A R)EEAMHQ023F %
BT EIRAEREE AR TFEREA
&) - H2023F R HIE AR RENET S 89
PR SRR 155 0 A A T &

AR B AT E 6 RBD B SR AT IR BV IR )1
[ SE0R & 518 B B SRIEIR R B 1AL
ERT2ZB24EA - EREBRA - B
B SRR AR A1 B X B9 R B ME AR
ETUARE - M5EE - NMEARER
ﬁﬁ%%%°ﬁ@ﬁ%lﬁ&mﬁ%m
B PR & & PR )1 IR SE T ER 1S m&x
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VII. Description of restrictions in reduction of
shareholdlng (Continued)

Reduction restriction on 2023 Restricted Shares Incentive
Scheme (Continued)

The Unlocking Period and unlocking schedule for the Restricted
Shares under the first grant of the Incentive Scheme is shown in the

I Scction 9 Changes in Shares and Information of Sharelgse

e

€ R RFRIFE R (&

3

2023 5 [R I 4 IR SRR D = &1 BR R i

(%)
BB AT E IR T R MR R AV AR
BREMESHBRRRELIRINT

table below:

Unlocking

arrangement Unlocking time
RERRE R RERRERE

RFTR

Proportion of shares available for
unlock accounted to the number

of authorized interests

ARRRER BB RESBELLP

First Unlocking Period
55—l PR RS HA

Second Unlock Period

55— (AR IR &S

Third Unlock Period
25 = (EfRBR IR & EA

Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry 34%
of 24 months from the date of the first grant to the last

trading day upon the expiry of 36 months from the date of

the first grant
BEAKTZHR24EARNERZSBEREERARTZ
Hig36E AN &R —EAXZHER Ik

Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry 33%
of 36 months from the date of the first grant to the last

trading day upon the expiry of 48 months from the date of

the first grant
BEARTZAE36EARNEEAXIBRETERKTZ

B ie4sfE A& E — AR 2 BE A LL

Commencing from the first trading day upon the expiry 33%
of 48 months from the date of the first grant to the last

trading day upon the expiry of 60 months from the date of

the first grant
BEAKTZHRREARNERZSBELEERARTZ

Hi60EANNRE—ERXZHEHIE

After unlocking, the Company handles the release of restricted
shares for the Participants who meet the conditions for unlock of
Restricted Shares, and the restricted shares held by the Participants
who do not meet the conditions for release of restricted shares are
repurchased by the Company.

During the Restricted Period, the Restricted Shares granted to the
Participants under this Incentive Scheme shall be restricted for sale
and shall not be transferred, used for guarantee or repayment of
debts. Shares acquired by the Participants as a result of capitalization
of capital surplus, distribution of stock dividends, stock splits, in
connection with the Restricted Shares granted that have not yet
been unlocked from restricted sale shall be locked up at the same
time in accordance with this Incentive Scheme.

VIIl.Specific implementation of share repurchase

during the Reporting Period
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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% Section 10 Information about Preference Shares I
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ClApplicable v Not applicable DiEm N TEA
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B Scction 11 CORPORATE BONDS

EFT—8 EHFEHEBEER Q'

. CORPORATE BONDS, COMPANY BONDS AND  — » RRAIES (BEhXEH) MkFE
DEBT FINANCING INSTRUMENTS OF NON RIEEEEMETA
FINANCIAL ENTERPRISES
[ Applicable v Not Applicable OEA N TER

ll. CONVERTIBLE BONDS — > AEBRNTFESFER
[ Applicable v Not Applicable O@Em N TER
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DXSZ[2025]No. 1-00197

To all shareholders of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.

Audit Opinion

We have audited financial statements of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as “The Company”), including
Consolidated and Parent Company’s Balance Sheets on December
31, 2024, Consolidated and Parent Company’s Income Statements,
Consolidated and Parent Company’s Cash Flow Statements, Consolidated
and Parent Company’s Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity in
2024, and Notes to the Financial Statements.

We deem that all major sections in the financial statements attached
hereinafter are compiled in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises, and they fairly present the consolidated and parent
company'’s financial situation of the Company on December 31, 2024, as
well as consolidated and parent company’s operation revenue and cash
flow in 2024.

Basis for Audit Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards for
Certified Public Accountants of China. In the Auditor’s Report, the section
titled “"CPAs’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements”
further describes our responsibilities under these standards. We conduct
our audit in accordance with the China Code of Ethics for Certified Public
Accountants, and we are independent of the Company, and fulfill other
responsibilities in ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that are deemed most significant
to the audit of the financial statements for the current period based on
our professional judgment. These matters are addressed by auditing the
financial statements integrally and forming the audit opinion, so we do not
express the opinions for them separately.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters recognized by us in current financial statements are as

follows:

1. Provision for inventory depreciation

Key Audit Matters

See notes lll, (12) “Inventory”
and notes V, (7) “Inventory”
in financial statements. The
Company is mainly engaged in
gas storage and transportation,
intelligent manufacturing.
On December 31, 2024, the
book balance of inventory was
347,866,467.93 yuan, balance
of impairment reserves is
25,067,741.13 yuan, and the
book value is 322,798,726.80
yuan. Inventory of the Company
is measured at the lower
between cost and net realizable
value. The net realizable value =
the estimated selling price of the
inventory - the estimated cost
to be incurred when production
is completed -estimated selling
expenses and related taxes. As
the amount of the inventory
is enormous, and due to the
complexity of the impairment
testing process, determination
of the net realizable value of
inventory involves management
of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as the management)
using significant accounting
estimates and judgments.
Therefore, we designate
the provision for inventory
impairment as a key audit
matter.

Countermeasures in the audit

Main audit procedures conducted by

us:

M

To understand and evaluate
the effectiveness of design
and operation of internal
controls, which are conducted
by the management and
are related to provision for
inventory depreciation, and
to test the effectiveness of
the implementation of key
controls, including controls
related to the identification of
objective evidence of inventory
impairment and the calculation
of impairment reserves;

To carry out monitoring
procedures on inventory, and
check quantity and condition
of the inventory;

Obtain a list about inventory
age at the end of each period,
combining with the situation
about products, analyze
and review inventory with
an old age, so as to analyze
whether provision for inventory
impairment is reasonable or
not;

Compare the estimated selling
price of inventory with the
actual selling price on the day
when financial statements
are completed, so as to
determine the appropriateness
of management’s estimated
selling price;

Recalculate the impairment
reserves to assess adequacy
of provision for impairment
reserves and the accuracy of
calculation; And pay attention
to subsequent changes of
inventory;

Review variation on provision
for inventory impairment(which
is calculated in previous year)
in current year, and appraise
reasonableness of variation
on provision for inventory
depreciation.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Section 12 FINANCIAL REPORT Il

2. Recognition and measurement of goodwill impairment

reserves
Key Audit Matters

See Notes I, (21) “Long-term
asset impairment” and notes V,
(15) “Goodwill” to the financial
statements. On December 31,
2024, net value of goodwill of
the Company is 168,996,039.10
yuan, which is formed in
acquisition of Qingdao BYTQ
United Digital Intelligence Co.,
Ltd.. According to the provisions
of the accounting standards
for business enterprises, the
goodwill formed as a result of
the business combination shall
be subjected to an impairment
test at least at the end of each
year, and the impairment test is
based on the recoverable amount
of the asset group or asset
group combination containing
the goodwill. When predicting
recoverable amounts, significant
judgment of management
is involved, so we designate
recognition and measurement
of impairment assessment of
goodwill as a key audit matter.

Countermeasures in the audit

Main audit procedures conducted by

us:

)

Understand, evaluate and test
management’s key internal
controls related to goodwill
impairment testing;

evaluate management’s
recognition of the asset group
or asset portfolio in which
goodwill is located and the
allocation method of goodwill;

Assess the independence and
professional competence of
external experts employed by
the management;

Analyze the mode of cash
inflow generated by the
asset group, and judge
the appropriateness of the
management’s recognition
of the asset group in which
goodwill is located, combining
with the management’s
management mode of
production and operation
activities, business planning and
changes in relevant business
operation components;

Review and assess the
calculation models, applicable
purposes and methods of
the present value of future
cash flows adopted by the
management and the third-
party evaluation agencies
employed by them;

Appraise critical assumptions
and judgments used in future
cash flow forecast of the asset
group for goodwill compiled
by the management, as well
as the basis for identifying key
parameters such as revenue
growth rate in the forecast
period, the growth rate in the
stable period, the gross margin
and the discount rate used in
calculation of present value
of future cash flow, and make
comparison and analysis with
previous data and industry data
of asset groups in previous
years; Evaluate reasonableness
of relevant business market
trends;

E+=#

AR

= BARETEE®w

2. BEREEENEINE

%mw
SugprE

A

0 Py =
2 3y
o o
il
|
m

~
- TR o DB BRER YD EE

o B!
=
o

@
Rrees=ihigay

S
7

BHE - OME D0 TH 3 ©

i 44 T T 1) S/ 5
- M 3 8 T W

=pe

<7

N

=L

N
Yol

S

U o S S

Bo

SEm
4 120 L Y
2| b ok 3

A EL

K> bt 0> ms

¥
B o O e

3 W T 5= 2
B3t - B2F S SR EE R DD O -

b

bl o T ¥ Y P

s
D\I:‘}: ;H
2
e
)

T

ik
2

ol
fuci]
T
il
R

ErthHEY
BT ERET

2

(M

N n:HEI/HU
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
A AERE
i%i R 2

Z g
m

m@“ﬁfﬁ

a_f

AHEEHEESE
BrREREMES
ﬁ%ﬁ@Am
EMEEND
T

LB IR IS
SMNEPE R A L
%@giﬁgﬁ

PEyEEEA
R REBILL AR
W%%m 2 A PK
DR H
%ﬁﬁ@%i%
BREEEED
REM

BZYFEEE
[E R HIEFEH) 5
=TT RHA R
RHARIE LR
BREMNFHER
B ERENR
A

FHEEIEE R
MEEMEEE
AR RE
AT A E
ZRRINEAH
B o AR ORIRER
SREREME
A ATER A RO TRR
HI A R -
REHERE
EME IR K
SRR 2B
SE KR - WEE
EARTFER
JEE Se SR ANTT2E
BFETH RS

- EE IR
BHMISE8% -
AHAEEAIRE -

2024 ANNUAL REPORT |

207

2024 FERE



B Scction 12 FINANCIAL REPORT

208

=8

B ER

Key Audit Matters (continued)

2. Recognition and measurement of goodwill impairment
reserves (Continued)

Key Audit Matters Countermeasures in the audit

(7)  Review the calculation process
of present value of estimated
future cash flows;

(8)  Review the appropriateness
of the disclosures relating to
goodwill in notes to financial
statements.

IV. Other Information

The management is responsible for other information. Other information
includes information covered in the Company’s 2024 annual report, but
excludes the financial statements and our audit reports.

Our audit opinion about the financial statements does not include other
information, nor do we express any form of conclusion about other
information.

Combining with our audit of the financial statements, it is our responsibility
to read the other information and, in the process, consider whether the
other information is seriously inconsistent with financial statements, or
whether there are serious wrong report in the report.

Based on the work we have performed, if we determine that there are
serious wrong reports about other information, we should report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this facet.

Responsibilities of the Management and
Those Charged with Governance for the

Financial Statements

The Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises to achieve fair presentation; and designing, implementing
and maintaining necessary internal control to make sure that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparation of the Financial Statements, the Management is responsible
for assessing the Company’s going-concern ability, disclosing the
going-concern related items (if applicable) and applying going-concern
assumptions, unless otherwise the Management either intends to liquidate
the Company, or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those Charged with Governance is responsible for supervising the
Company's financial reporting process.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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CPAs’ Responsibility for Audit of Financial N AR AN B SRR E T
Statements 51T
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the BMHEERHMBREAEECELTMFEAR

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high-level assurance, but it does not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards
can always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
may arise from fraud or error, and if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users’
economic decisions, who draw on these financial statements, then normally
those misstatements are regarded as material.

We exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism in
carrying out our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards. At the
same time, we also:

M

Identify and assess risks of material misstatement of financial
statements due to fraud or errors, design and implement audit
procedures to handle these risks, and obtain adequate and
appropriate audit evidence as a basis for issuing audit opinions.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraudulent practices is higher than that resulting from mistakes, as
fraudulent practices may involve conspiracy, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the overriding of internal control.

Understand the internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design appropriate audit procedures.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the
going concern basis of accounting. At the same time, based on
the audit evidence obtained, we conclude on whether a material
uncertainty exists, which are related to events or conditions that may
cast a significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to remind financial statements users to pay attention to
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on information available as of the date of the Auditor’s Report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements and evaluate whether the financial statements
fairly reflect relevant transactions and events.

Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Company, so as to express audit opinions on the financial
statements. We are responsible for guiding, supervising, and
performing the group audit, and assume all responsibilities for our
opinions.
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ET=H MB®E
VI. CPAs' Responsibility for Audit of Financial

Statements (continued)

We communicate with those Charged with Governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those Charged with Governance with a statement
regarding compliance with ethical requirements related to independence,
and communicate with those Charged with Governance about all
relationships and other matters that are reasonably considered to affect our
independence, as well as related precautions (if applicable).

From the matters communicated with those Charged with Governance,
we determine which items are most important to the audit of the
financial statements for the current period and thus constitute a key
audit matter. We described these matters in our auditor’s report, unless
law or regulations ban public disclosure about those matters, or in those
rare circumstances where we determine not to communicate with those
Charged with Governance about a matter in our auditor’s report, if we
reasonably expect that the adverse consequences of communicating about
such matters in our auditor’s report would outweigh benefits of public
interest.

There is no text on this page, which is for seal and signature of “Audit’
Report of WUYIGE CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS LLP. for Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. DXSZ[2025]No. 1-00197".

Wauyige Certified Public Accountants LLP.

Certified Public Accountant of China: Han Xueyan
(Engagement Partner)

Certified Public Accountant of China: Wang Peng

Beijing, China
March 28, 2025

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.

BB LR R E R AR AR

Consolidated Balance Sheet I

SHEERER

31 December 2024
20244 12 A31 H

Unit: Yuan
B AREETT

Notes Ending balance Beginning balance
Item EH BE HIREREE HiYerE
Current assets: RENERE :
Cash at bank and on hand EEe V. (1/E () 482,988,509.97 502,766,015.92
Financial assets held for trading RHUSHEE
Derivative financial assets TEeREE
Notes receivable ERER V. QUAa(=Z) 14,048,892.34 3,590,000.00
Accounts receivable JEUBR X V. 3YR (=) 499,865,493.32 385,061,945.72
Receivables financing FEURIERIE V. (43 () 17,738,416.42 32,346,639.47
Advances to suppliers SEINE ] V. (5)A (F1) 44,784,447.17 50,416,543.28
Other receivables Hofth iR V. (6)/FR(X) 3,253,586.63 2,887,349.53
Including: interest receivable B AR
Dividends receivable FEUARF
Inventory &8 A () 322,798,726.80 290,385,240.50
Including: data resources Heh : URER
Contract assets AREBE V. 8YE () 17,727,137.20
Held-for-sale assets BEGEEE
Non-current assets due within one year —FRIBNIERBEE
Other current assets HibmEEE V. QYA (h) 66,859,038.79 9,687,325.81
Total current assets REEES 1,470,064,248.64 1,277,141,060.23
Non-current assets: ERBEE :
Debt investments BRI E
Other debt investments HiERERE
Long-term receivables REAREUK
Long-term equity investment RERIERE V. (10/A () 113,338,773.49 104,890,267.71
Other equity instruments investments HipgnTARE
Other non-current financial assets HidEnBemEE
Investment properties BB MEE
Fixed assets ETEE V. (1R () 603,611,099.03 636,006,382.70
Construction work in process IR V. (12/E (+2) 280,234,944.36 74,093,650.27
Productive biological assets HEEEWEE
Oil and gas assets MREE
Right-of-use assets EEELE V. (13VE(+2) 184,732,895.25 203,292,878.66
Intangible assets EAE V. (14)/F (4-71) 173,323,950.09 182,280,480.78
Including: data resources B URER
Development expenditures R
Including: data resources B BURER
Goodwill Sk V. (15/E (+1) 168,996,039.10 168,996,039.10
Long-term deferred expenses ROFHEER V. (16)/A (F75) 11,538,542.98 13,586,338.18
Deferred income tax assets RIEFERERE V. (17VE (++) 62,473,777.37 63,662,495.78
Other non-current assets HEiIEnsEE V. (18YA (1) 18,299,049.58 88,393,971.47
Total non-current assets FRBEES 1,616,549,071.25 1,535,202,504.65
Total assets BEE 3,086,613,319.89 2,812,343,564.88
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SHEERER

31 December 2024
2024 4F 12 A31 H

Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.

BB LR R E R AR AR

. dP°

Unit: Yuan
B AREETT

Notes Ending balance Beginning balance

Item R BisE HREAE e
Current liabilities: RBaE:
Short-term loans KERER V. QOVAR (=) 230,000,000.00 140,000,000.00
Financial liabilities held for trading RHtcRaE
Derivative financial liabilities TTEemaRE
Notes payable ARES V.QUAE(E=FT) 116,344,018.02 85,759,357.39
Accounts payable FERTERIR V.22)yAR(=Z+2) 395,135,400.60 350,116,028.25
Deposit received AW A
Contract liabilities AEARE V.23 (Z+=) 65,835,225.59 47,451,038.27
Staff salaries payable e B T30 V.(24)/A (=+m) 37,221,250.27 31,113,332.96
Taxes payable R E V. (25/R(=+H) 17,922,431.27 18,694,312.91
Other payables E AR V.6)/A(=+77) 69,177,703.97 77,468,799.94
Including: interests payable B EAFE
Dividends payable FERTARFI
Held-for-sale liabilities REHFEAE
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREBHIFRBEE V.RIAE(=+H) 15,578,997.72 15,339,940.56
Other current liabilities HibngnaE V. (28 E (=+)\) 14,537,663.61 9,200,236.26
Total current liabilities RBAEET 961,752,691.05 775,143,046.54
Non-current liabilities: FRBEAME
Long-term loans REIER V. QA (=ZF) 133,350,000.00 70,000,000.00
Bonds payable [EfES
Including: preferred stock Hep: BEK

Perpetual bonds KER
Lease liabilities HEEE V. BOyR(=1) 220,087,249.70 234,016,247.39
Long-term payables REREN V.31VE(=+—)  253,207,700.00 253,207,700.00
Long-term staff salaries payable REAFE 58 T2 V.32/E(=+2) 33,131,627.97 31,730,620.28
Expected liabilities BEtaE V.33VR(=+=) 7,986,099.32 4,989,719.00
Deferred income EIEW e V. (34)/E (=+0m) 13,453,008.53 7,998,474.74
Deferred income tax liabilities EEPTSHE S V.(17YE ) 51,487,703.77 56,850,982.85
Other non-current liabilities EtIERBarE
Total non-current liabilities FRBEFEST 712,703,389.29 658,793,744.26
Total liabilities GESE 1,674,456,080.34 1,433,936,790.80

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Consolidated Balance Sheet N
EHEEARER
371 December 2024
2024F 12 A31 H

g W

Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
BN LRI E RGO BRAA B ARMTT
Notes Ending balance Beginning balance
Item EH BisE HREAE e
Shareholders’ equity: IR :
Share capital %N V. 35/R(=Z1+Hh) 547,665,988.00 547,665,988.00
Other equity instruments Hitfgm TR
Including: preferred stock Hep: BER
Perpetual bonds AL
Capital reserves BEARRNE V.B6yR(=+7%)  1,195,306,532.75 1,186,456,814.83
Less: treasury shares A B
Other comprehensive income Hihsra Wz V.BE(=++) 4,172,992.51 3,094,393.89
Special reserves Evit uﬁf V. 38/ A (= +)\) 1,222,044.23 381,371.62
Surplus reserves BB V (BIVE(=+1) 45,665,647.68 45,665,647.68
Undistributed profits V) @Eﬁ e V. (40) /ﬁ(IT_EH') -709,876,579.95 ~717,353,627.48
Total Shareholders’ equity attributable FENEARRRERES
to parent company 1,084,156,625.22 1,065,910,588.54
Minority shareholders’ equity s Gt 328,000,614.33 312,496,185.54
Total shareholders’ equity REERS 1,412,157,239.55 1,378,406,774.08
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity SENRRERE 3,086,613,319.89 2,812,343,564.88

Legal representative: Mr. Li Junjie Person in charge of accounting: Ms. Feng Yongmei  Person in charge of the accounting firm: Mr. Yang Yue

EEMRFA - FENFELE FTEEITIEREN Btk L BITHIEREAN - BASE
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I Bolance Sheet of the Parent Company
BRAREEEER

31 December 2024
2024 4F 12 A31 H

. dP°

Unit: Yuan
B AREETT

Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.
REBLEENL - AL R BRI AR AT

214

Notes Ending balance Beginning balance
Item R BE HIREREE e
Current assets: REEE :
Cash at bank and on hand EkEs 60,762,474.36 62,961,991.24
Financial assets held for trading RHUSHEE
Derivative financial assets MTEeREE
Notes receivable W EE
Accounts receivable FENBRTR XVIL(TY/+E(—) 37,794,280.34 104,517,462.87
Receivables financing FEWRIERIE
Advances to suppliers BRI
Other receivables Hofth FEIR XVILEY++(Z) 416,581,646.88 411,267,924.92
Including: Interest receivable R ) 47,413,555.08 44,627,055.08
Dividends receivable FEYARFI
Inventory 7E
Including: data resources Heh: SURER
Contract assets EREE 12,005,026.15
Held-for-sale assets BEGERE
Non-current assets due within one year —FRIBNIERBEE
Other current assets HEthRsaE
Total current assets RBEES 527,143,427.73 578,747,379.03
Non-current assets: ERBEE :
Debt investments BERE
Other debt investments HiERERE
Long-term receivables REARUK
Long-term equity investment RORERE XVILEY++ (=) 1,600,273,940.36 1,400,273,940.36
Other equity instruments investments HipgnTARE
Other non-current financial assets HidEnBemEE
Investment properties BEMEE
Fixed assets EE&E 85,551.91 110,744.26
Construction work in process fERETiE
Productive biological assets HEEEEMEE
Oil and gas assets MREE
Right-of-use assets EREEE 302,780.98 1,211,123.74
Intangible assets EREE
Including: data resources B BRER
Development expenditures R
Including: data resources B BRER
Goodwill A=
Long-term deferred expenses RBFHEER 177,274.57 742,144.96
Deferred income tax assets RIEFERERE 633,358.37 238,183.77
Other non-current assets HiIERBEE
Total non-current assets FRBEESF 1,601,472,906.19 1,402,576,137.09
Total assets BEE 2,128,616,333.92 1,981,323,516.12

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Balance Sheet of the Parent Company il
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Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.

BB LR R E R AR AR

31 December 2024
20244 12 A31 H

Unit: Yuan
B AREETT

Notes Ending balance Beginning balance

Item R BisE HREAE e
Current liabilities: RBAE !
Short-term loans SEGEEA
Financial liabilities held for trading RHEcRaE
Derivative financial liabilities TEEmEaRE
Notes payable R ZE
Accounts payable JERERFR 52,141,318.82 108,652,024.80
Deposit received TEWRIE
Contract liabilities cRAE
Staff salaries payable i 3RE; M= 6,915,363.05 5,037,249.58
Taxes payable R E 408,739.18 312,341.09
Other payables H AR 23,603,043.73 23,350,717.43
Including: interests payable Heh: RS

Dividends payable FERTARFI
Held-for-sale liabilities BEGERE
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREBHFREEE 952,735.10
Other current liabilities HimeaE
Total current liabilities RBAEET 83,068,464.78 138,305,068.00
Non-current liabilities: FRBEAME:
Long-term loans RHIER
Bonds payable e ES
Including: preferred stock Hep: BEK

Perpetual bonds KEE
Lease liabilities HEHE
Long-term payables REERR 200,000,000.00
Long-term staff salaries payable £ HAE AT B T M
Expected liabilities i EE
Deferred income Y
Deferred income tax liabilities RIS AE 75,695.24 302,780.94
Other non-current liabilities HEtIERBarE
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEST 200,075,695.24 302,780.94
Total liabilities BEAF 283,144,160.02 138,607,848.94
Shareholders’ equity: PR
Share capital RRA 547,665,988.00 547,665,988.00
Other equity instruments HipigEm TR
Including: preferred stock Hep: BEK

Perpetual bonds KEE
Capital reserves ERRIE 1,320,831,896.72 1,319,146,235.48
Less: treasury shares A B
Other comprehensive income Hih#r e W
Special reserves ZIEGEE
Surplus reserves BARE 38,071,282.24 38,071,282.24
Undistributed profits ROBFE -61,096,993.06 -62,167,838.54
Total shareholders’ equity BRRERET 1,845,472,173.90 1,842,715,667.18
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BENRFEERA 2,128,616,333.92 1,981,323,516.12

Legal representative: Mr. Li Junjie

JEERFA - FEANFELE

Person in charge of accounting: Ms. Feng Yongmei

FEEITIFREBA Btz

Person in charge of the accounting firm: Mr. Yang Yue

B BBEREAEN - BALLE
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BOFRER

FY 2024
2024 F/F

Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.

BB LR R E R AR AR

. dP°

Unit: Yuan
B AREETT

Sum occurs Sum occurs in
Notes in current period previous period
Item EH {53 REREE FEAR AR
I.  Operating revenue — EERA V.(@41y/E@m+—) 1,648,860,246.58 1,405,495,692.08
Less: operating costs W EERA V.(@4yE(E+—) 1,340,508,218.30 1,191,424,025.09
Taxes and surcharges o] V.(42)FE (m+=) 11,288,726.80 7,911,881.71
Selling expenses HEEHA V.(43)Aa (m+=) 44,335,591.91 45,065,193.02
Administrative expenses ERER V.(44)/F (9 +0) 127,786,552.09 120,477,225.32
RRD expenses HEER V.(45)E (m+8) 69,021,375.00 66,447.976.37
Financial expenses B%ER V.(46)/F (0 +7-) 11,723,605.52 13,558,224.97
Including: interest expenses Hep: FISEA 18,115,965.90 18,182,783.46
Interest income FEWA 5,275,823.47 4,618,837.01
Add: other income m e Eleas V.47 E (++) 12,540,134.71 10,491,764.13
Investment income B
(loss to be listed with "-") (B&A[-158E5))  v.(@8yR(TH+/\) 17,014,252.86 11,998,754.61
Including: investment income from associates A SRS
and joint ventures EREMRE LR 6,006,496.51 11,855,196.49
Revenue from derecognition of financial assets AR ARGt 2 2R
measured at amortized cost BER RN
Net exposure hedging income Fl O E B
(loss to be listed with ”-") (BRUAT-J57851)
Incomes from fair value changes DABEZEKG (BX
(loss to be listed with ”-") PARE YN
Credit impairment loss ERRERX
(loss to be listed with "-") (BEUNI-15RE5))  V.(@9yR(T+h) -11,361,408.14 -5,077,178.43
Asset impairment loss BERERX
(loss to be listed with "-") (BEIAT-I5REF]) V.(50/E (E+) -22,606,278.80 -32,396,390.18
Income of assets disposal BERENH
(loss to be listed with "-") (BEUAI-I5RE5])  V.GIVR(E+) 171,297.46 123,479.33
Il. Operating profit (loss to be listed with “-*) = EEFRB (ERU-155ET) 39,954,175.05 -54,248,404.94
Add: non-operating revenue e EEIMRA V. FEYD) 1,114,470.68 1,735,053.15
Less: non-operating expenses B EEINE V.(53)A (Rt =) 1,330,884.68 858,877.75
ll. Total profit (total loss to be listed with “-) = FmasE(BRemEuU-%RE 39,737,761.05 -53,372,229.54
Less: income tax expenses B TS ER V.(54)/H (A1) 17,192,582.04 22,879,768.10
IV. Net profit (net loss to be listed with “-*) ~ FFIE (?EEMF J3RE) 22,545,179.01 -76,251,997.64
() Classified by going concern basis: () REERBIEDE -
1. Net profit from continuing operation (net 1. ii‘i&;—:r"ﬂ B OF 22,545,179.01 -76,251,997.64

losses to be listed with “-")

2. Net profit from discontinued operation (net

losses to be listed with ”-")
(Il Classification by ownership:

1. Net profit attributable to shareholders of
the parent company (net losses to be listed
with “-")

2. losses and benefits of minority shareholders
(net losses to be listed with ”-")

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

[E51BLAT-] sfﬁﬂ)
2. RIEEEFFIECE
ES1BLAT-]5R3E5)

(D BAERRBENE

1. BERGARAKR
HOJ3 AT O B RIA
[-J5R1E5)

2. DERRER (58
BT 15RE5)

7,477,047.53

15,068,131.48

-51,675,143.59

-24,576,854.05
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Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric
REBLEENL - AL R BRI AR AT

Consolidated Income Statement N
EPAER

FY 2024
2024 FF

Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan

B AR¥T

Sum occurs Sum occurs in
Notes in current period previous period
Item EH Wizt RHEREE AR
V. Net after-tax amount of other comprehensive T + Et&R&KBHH & FE 1,194,001.93 1,066,767.58
income
(I) Net after-tax amount of other comprehensive (—)BBEARBRRMEM 1,078,598.62 965,657.08
income attributable to shareholders of the parent mEiE e
company
1. Other comprehensive income that cannot be EENREEROEM
reclassified to profit or loss el
(1) Changes arising from re-measurement of (1) EFFFEREX @
the defined benefit plans ElEEIEs
(2) Other comprehensive income that cannot v) *Em/iTTﬁuir?
be reclassified to profit or loss under the HEMEFA
equity method
(3) Changes in fair value of other equity 3) EfEmTIARER
instruments investments nEER
(4) Changes in fair value of the Company’s ) %8 5(1 JENCUN
credit risk nEES
2. Other comprehensive income reclassified to 2. }Hé”*ﬁ}@@\ﬁ'}ﬁﬁﬁ T 1,078,598.62 965,657.08
profit or loss Al
(1) Other comprehensive income that can be 1) #E@E T SRR -7,990.73 8,939.39
reclassified to profit or loss under the equity Efir ez
method
(2) Changes in fair value of other debt ) Eﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁ@ﬁffg
investments B%
(3) The amount of financial assets reclassified (3) SEMEAESHEFA
into other comprehensive incomes Hir e W amm &8
(4) Provision for credit impairment of other @) EtEEREEAR
debt investments R
(5) Cash flow hedging reserve (5) RemEEHRE
(6) Currency translation difference in financial (6) INEHERRITEZE 1,086,589.35 956,717.69
statements #
(7) Others (7) EHftp
(INet after-tax amount of other comprehensive (D) EBRLYIREMEM 115,403.31 101,110.50
income attributable to minority shareholders Felmn e FE
VI. Total comprehensive income N RERRAE 23,739,180.94 -75,185,230.06
1. Total comprehensive incomes attributable to () GERY D ARE R LR
shareholders of the parent company BB 8,555,646.15 -50,709,486.51
2. Total comprehensive income attributable to (D) GER P YRESGZE
minority shareholders s 4a%E 15,183,534.79 -24,475,743.55
VII. Earnings per share: + - Sk
() Primary earnings per share (—) ARGk 0.01 -0.10
() Diluted earnings per share (D) HESRKE 0.01 -0.10

Legal representative: Mr. Li Junjie

EEREA « FRAALE

Person in charge of accounting: Ms. Feng Yongmei

FESFTIEBEA

Person in charge of the accounting firm: Mr. Yang Yue

C KR T BT HIBRAN - BAKE
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I ncome Statement of the Parent Company : TJE
FATFEE e ﬁ |

FY 2024
2024 FF
Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
BN LRI E RGO BRAA B ARMTT
Sum occurs Sum occurs
Notes in current period in previous period
Item ER BiE FERAER FHEARAETE
I.  Operating revenue —EERA XVIL@)y++ (1) 3,917,256.80 4,742,489.73
Less: operating costs B EERR XVII.(4)/4+ ()
Taxes and surcharges i RPN 161,281.63 235,588.60
Selling expenses HEBR
Administrative expenses EREH 17,003,803.05 16,782,703.70
R&D expenses MEER
Financial expenses % ER -11,993,619.84 -12,325,312.82
Including: interest expenses =t : FISER 25,163.52 69,501.03
Interest income B U A 12,025,928.84 12,402,582.37
Add: other incomes s E i 25,726.06
Investment income wEW =
(loss to be listed with “-") (BRLAT-1 5538 71)
Including: investment income Hep: S ERNS
from associates and joint ventures BHRRMEER
Revenue from derecognition of financial DB 2SR
assets measured at amortized cost BERIERNE
Net exposure hedging income FH O E B
(loss to be listed with “-*) (BEEUAT-1571E71))
Incomes from fair value changes NREEE S
(loss to be listed with “-*) (BEEUAT-1571E71)
Credit impairment loss =RREEBX
(loss to be listed with “-*) (1BKIAT-1573851) 2,984,057.55 -3,785,434.58
Asset impairment loss BEREBRX
(loss to be listed with “-*) (1BKIAT-1573851) -278,843.85
Income of assets disposal BERENR
(loss to be listed with “-*) (BEEUAT-1571E71))
Il. Operating profit (loss to be listed with “-*) = - & £RH (BRU[-15FE
51) 1,476,731.72 -3,735,924.33
Add: non-operating revenue s EEINEA
Less: non-operating expenses o N
ll. Total profit (total loss to be listed with “-*) = - R4 % (FRAEUI-15%
E50) 1,476,731.72 -3,735,924.33
Less: income tax expenses W FTETRER 405,886.24 -4,599.04
IV. Net profit (net loss to be listed with “-*) SRR CREE - I5RE
1)) 1,070,845.48 -3,731,325.29
() Net profit from continuing operation (net loss ~ (—)HE& & FFE CFE
to be listed with “-") 1BUA[-J57IE51) 1,070,845.48 -3,731,325.29
(I Net profit from discontinued operation (net (D) R IHEEFFE CFE
loss to be listed with “-") BUAT-157E51)

218 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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VA, Income Statement of the Parent Company Il
A= B RRER

FY 2024
2024 FF
Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
BN LRI E RGO BRAA B ARMTT
Sum occurs Sum occurs
Notes in current period in previous period
Item ER Bisr FERAER FHERRAE
V. Net after-tax amount of other I HfpiRE BN BiRRE
comprehensive income
() Other comprehensive income that cannot be () TEEENHHEBEME
reclassified to profit or loss fufr e
1. Changes arising from re-measurement of 1, i%ﬁuf%?&‘mxﬁﬁ
the defined benefit plans EEE
2. Other comprehensive income that cannot 2. EmETTEEE
be reclassified to profit or loss under the mAE MRS Y
equity method
3. Changes in fair value of other equity 3. HiEmIARA
instruments investments DR BEZE
4. Change in fair value of the Company’s 4. LEESERER
credit risk DREEEE
(I Other comprehensive income reclassified to (D) BESREBENEM
profit or loss iﬁ/\uﬁl/\
1. Other comprehensive income to be 1. BEmETAEER
reclassified into profit or loss under the HE AR A HE
equity method
2. Changes in fair value of other debt 2. HEmERRELR
instruments EEE
3. The amount of financial assets reclassified 3. ERMEESHER
into other comprehensive income )\? fikrE WY
ok
4. Provision for credit impairment of other 4. HtbERRERER
debt instruments WEE
5. Cash flow hedging reserve 5. RensEHEE
6. Currency translation difference in 6. INEMBIMENE
financial statements ZH
7. Others 7. Eth
VI. Total comprehensive income N RENESE 1,070,845.48 -3,731,325.29
VII. Earnings per share: + - SRz
(I) Primary earnings per share (—) EARgkiliss
(II) Diluted earnings per share (D) e

Legal representative: Mr. Li Junjie  Person in charge of accounting: Ms. Feng Yongmei  Person in charge of the accounting firm. Mr. Yang Yue

EEREA - FRASLE TEEITTIEREA Btk t EiTHBEEA - BALL
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I Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHBEERER

FY 2024
2024 F/F

220

v P

Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
BN LRI E RGO BRAA B ARMTT
Sum occurs Sum occurs
Notes in current period in previous period
Item ER BiE FERAER FERE AR
I.  Cash flows from operating activities: CRETHEENRERE
Cash received from sale of goods and HEHMSD - RESH
provision of service WEEIE & 1,190,106,206.20 1,130,522,759.16
Refund of taxes Yo B B E 15,448,799.89 49,085,273.94
Cash received relating to other operating activities Qﬁ‘lﬁf@ﬁﬁ%‘é = /E@J
ARNER S V.(56) R (B 175) 33,284,914.75 60,930,054.25
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating REEEHRS TN
activities 1,238,839,920.84 1,240,538,087.35
Cash paid for purchasing goods and receiving Eﬁ,ﬁﬁuu BX8BI
service 814,623,498.33 766,971,932.03
Cash paid to and for employees 3 Tf\AEE&IM&FJEE&ISE
HRE 243,602,495.22 227,101,063.62
Payments of various taxes YRS ERE 60,964,845.20 73,372,421.54
Cash paid for other operating activities ST M B A EE)
BRANR S V.(56)/ R (F+7X) 177,241,744.05 106,732,747.84
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating REFEBRLSTE NG
activities 1,296,432,582.80 1,174,178,165.03

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investment activities:

Cash received from withdrawal of investment

Cash received from investment income

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries and

other business units

Cash received relating to other investment
activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from investment
activities

Cash paid to purchase fixed assets, intangible
assets, and other long-term assets

Cash paid for investments

Net cash paid for the acquisition of subsidiaries
and other business entities

Cash paid relating to other investment activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from investment
activities
Net cash flows from investment activities

ERTHEERDERAF

RETHEENRESRET

.

#
REFHEENAERE

W EH B R By &

BiSRERGREEMRE

REBTAE  BVEEM
HinRHEERRNR S

R

BEFRRNEME RSN

W Bl eI &% 88

B K B AR E A RERY

Re

REFEDRERAN/

it

BRETEE BVEEM
HioRHEESNNES

BAZNMRS

S F AR MEMERER

SRR &%

?Zﬁ%i\‘rﬂéﬁi&;ﬁiﬁb*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ

REFHRER

INEF

Eﬁ%iﬁéiﬂﬁﬁﬁmuiﬁ

-57,592,661.96

17,206,572.00

17,206,572.00

91,702,424.79
11,070,000.00

102,772,424.79

-85,565,852.79

66,359,922.32

3,030,275.39

144,920.00

3,175,195.39

150,645,453.62
9,600,000.00

160,245,453.62

-157,070,258.23
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement N

BREMER

FY 2024
2024 FF
Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
BN LRI E RGO BRAA B ARMTT
Sum occurs Sum occurs
Notes in current period in previous period
Item ER Bisr FERAER FHERRAE
ll. Cash flows from financing activities: = EEERELEMNBRERE
Cash received from absorbing investments RUE AW B R &
Including: cash received by subsidiaries from HA AR HR R
minority shareholders’ investments REAWENR S
Cash received from borrowings BEERKEINRE 295,000,000.00 240,000,000.00
Cash received relating to other financing activities U BIE b R &R EN B RIRY
e V.(56)/ R (F+77) 179,582,000.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing EEFHRSH/AN
activities 295,000,000.00 419,582,000.00
Cash paid for repayment of debts BREBZNHRS 140,000,000.00 130,000,000.00
Cash paid for distribution of dividends, profits or DERF - FEREFE
interests XNHHRE 6,107,592.88 5,529,943.09
Including: dividends and profits paid by subsidiaries & © FRARZEDEHR
to minority shareholders RAARF - FE 914,920.67 705,580.00
Cash paid relating to other financing activities Siﬁﬁfﬂiﬁi%;ﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁgﬁ'ﬂ
Re V.(56) R (B 177) 28,153,771.01 27,861,688.04
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing EETHRESRE NG
activities 174,261,363.89 163,391,631.13
Net cash flows from financing activities *ﬁzﬁiﬁéiﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁmus
120,738,636.11 256,190,368.87
IV. Effects from the change of exchange rate on P4 » E$§§b¥ﬁﬁ$&ﬁ%%1‘
cash and cash equivalents 21 3,143,449.57 566,585.51
V. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents ki ﬁ%&ﬁ%%ﬁ%gi‘%‘bﬂ%ﬁ -19,276,429.07 166,046,618.47
Add: Beginning balance of cash and cash m:ETRe RREEEY
equivalents #EE 429,848,818.45 263,802,199.98
VI. Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents 7~ SiXBEERELSEYHE 410,572,389.38 429,848,818.45

Legal representative. Mr. Li Junjie

EEREA - FREAFELE

Person in charge of accounting: Ms. Feng Yongmei

FERIIEBEA

C MK IGR T

BAHERAN - BAKLL

Person in charge of the accounting firm: Mr. Yang Yue

2024 ANNUAL REPORT |

221

2024 FERE



Il Cash Flow Statement of the Parent Company

222

NEBRERER
FY 2024
2024 F/F

. dP°

Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
BN LRI E RGO BRAA B ARMTT
Sum occurs Sum occurs
Notes in current period in previous period
Item ER BiE FERAER FHEARAETE
I.  Cash flows from operating activities: — REFTHELNRERE :
Cash received from sale of goods and HEMm « RESHIER
provision of service Be 180,849,480.00 163,808,400.00
Refund of taxes LlﬁZi‘JE’de
Cash received relating to other operating ‘Jﬁfﬂiﬁi,ﬁé‘é = é@fﬁf&gﬁ"]
activities Be 12,471,016.89 1,533,650.03
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating RETEHRST/ANE
activities 193,320,496.89 165,342,050.03
Cash paid for purchasing goods and E%,ﬁﬁun BXABIM
receiving service 179,357,285.20 158,804,728.40
Cash paid to and for employees % 'Jlf\AEE&IM&FJEE&ISE
HRE 7,764,290.66 7,771,267.76
Payments of various taxes TR EERE 2,757,288.27 2,007,160.80
Cash paid for other operating activities ST E M B RN N
Re 4,930,543.32 6,676,678.67
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating REFEBRLSTE NG
activities 194,809,407.45 175,259,835.63
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHEENELSHET
B -1,488,910.56 -9,917,785.60
Il. Cash flows from investment activities: Z REFBELENELRE:
Cash received from withdrawal of investment WEEEWEIR S
Cash received from investment income SR E BRI R e
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, REETERE  BREEN
intangible assets and other long-term assets EmRBEAERENERS
bk
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries BEFARREME BN
and other business units W EH)3R & F 5
Cash received relating to other investment W B E A 145 R ENB MY
activities Re 6,300,000.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from investment REFBHRSHANG
activities 6,300,000.00
Cash paid to purchase fixed assets, intangible EREATAE  BREAEN
assets, and other long-term assets HRHEESNNRE
Cash paid for investments BEALNEHR S 140,000,000.00
Net cash paid for the acquisition of subsidiaries BEFLORREMEEERN
and other business entities TREREFE
Cash paid relating to other investment activities Sﬁﬁﬁfﬂiﬁi?ﬁ;ﬁ%@*ﬁﬁgﬁ'ﬂ
Ae 25,000,000.00
Subtotal of cash outflows from investment RETERSTE NG
activities 165,000,000.00
Net cash flows from investment activities Eﬁ?ﬁﬁéiﬁ’]ﬁﬁmuﬁﬁ
-158,700,000.00

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE



Qe Cash Flow Statement of the Parent Company il
> FRAEERNER

FY 2024
2024 FF
Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
BN LRI E RGO BRAA B ARMTT
Sum occurs Sum occurs
Notes in current period in previous period
Item ER Bisr FERAER FHERRAE
ll. Cash flows from financing activities: = EEERELEMNBRERE
Cash received from absorbing investments R s A W B R &
Cash received from borrowings BEERKEINRE
Cash received relating to other financing activities U BIE b 2 E R EN B RIRY
Be 179,582,000.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing EEFHRSHANG
activities 179,582,000.00
Cash paid for repayment of debts BEEBZNNRS
Cash paid for distribution of dividends, profits or DERF - FERERF R
interests TRERE
Cash paid relating to other financing activities FREMEESEESHBEN
Re 710,606.32 1,045,797.96
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing SETHRSMA DG
activities 710,606.32 1,045,797.96
Net cash flows from financing activities EETHELNRLSRET
] -710,606.32 178,536,202.04
IV. Effects from the change of exchange rateon [+ ERSBHUBERBEZE
cash and cash equivalents LLoEA -0.03
V. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents I BERESEEYFEME -2,199,516.88 9,918,416.41

Add: Beginning balance of cash and cash
equivalents
V1. Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents

Legal representative: Mr. Li Junjie

EEREA - FRASLE

m: BNRe kR EEY
BRER

X BRESRESSEMSE

Person in charge of accounting: Ms. Feng Yongmei

FTEEIIEREA @ BABLL

62,961,991.24
60,762,474.36

53,043,574.83
62,961,991.24

Person in charge of the accounting firm: Mr. Yang Yue

EiTHBEEAN - BALL
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ E

e

FY 2024
2024 FF
Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
BN LRI E RGO BRAA B ARMTT
Curent period
1§
Sharfoldrs equty trbutele o the arntcompany
SRR
Otherquiynsrmens
sps
1 s Ot ity Totd
e Pefered  Perpetul Gptd— treauy  comprehensive pecl Stpls~ Undstibuted sharholdrs’ arehulders
aptd stk honds Ot reseves shates ome v resenes pofts bt ity
tem # B HE A B EIE WEER MM BERE BN AW fit JRERER MM
I Ending blnce ofthe prvios e - [l 165580 11864568148 SIBK B GG TIENE SN0 ISGIES 13BAETIANR
Aot o s g ol 85
Ingc o corcionof i e HEERET
s Hd
1. Begiming blance o the curent e Wﬂ]ﬁﬁ 1655800 11864568148 J3B8 MM GG TIIETE SN0 INSGIEI 13BAETIANR
I, Movementsinthecument Ve fecesstobelisted it ™) = Mﬁiﬁ%ﬁi g8 SusTN% WBSAR  MONs OIS MR MMM RIS
() Totd competersie reomes L 1085%82 TATIS  BSSG6M1S MBI BRI
fiy € p\m\m\veymnd'ed (e by s §8911192 S89TI9 3005 f00uLes0
1 (oot ey s
1 (e \mbutedhyho\d of o quystumerts
3, At of e pyret e m s’
auly §8911192 S89TI9 83005 f00unes0
4 Ofes
U} Pmmdwatnhuwon SIS A
I, Aoroprtinof sulhssenes
1. Detibnto h h\dm BIA 2
3 Oes
(V) el e witinhaehler's g
I, Capl e e b mW
1 Sl e e o shae g nn\
3. Suls resewe me(om\osse
A Crnges ncied e g cared fonv o et
g
5. tercompeense come cared o 0 et
g
6. Ofes
) Specl s St SOTET 195200 BK0AMET
I, el newrent e 19413 THOM3% 330328 1130983064
1. Utlatinin ety ALY TGTRTS 3308820 049
1) s
. Encingbelace o the urent ear R REEREE 16659800 118530653075 A (0B BESENE TSSIESIA% 10BISGE8I BG4I
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Consﬁrdated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity KN
‘ e BRRERE B

FY 2024
2024 FF
Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
REEA LR R ERDER AR B ARMTT
Presous e
4
Shaehles u\fy il uIa \e fothe parent comany
e qutyunens
ST
i les e oy T
e M Pepend (i ey Conpehers e s Undituted Sieholles aenles’
il stk bonts (s TBENES s e TS TBENS ol ] By ly
fem i i B g B OEIE RER G HEE R AR 5 JaiRER  RRER
I Eningbelace o the prvius year - [ERal S50 115111101631 LTS TSN BESNE ESSIBABN AR KA 143 I607LA
Aot o s g ol 85
Ingc o corcionof i e HBEREE
e &
1. Begoningbelace of e urentyear T BEERE S0 1,5111101631 LTS TSN BESNE ESSIBABN AR S 1431607
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Company Profile

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the
“Company”, collectively referred to as the Group if it includes subsidiaries),
formerly called Beiren Printing Machinery Co., Ltd., is a limited company,
and is solely founded by Beiren Group Corporation. Registered on July 13,
1993, it was converted into a limited liability company that could publicly
offer the stock and be listed in mainland China and Hong Kong, according
to an approval of the document T.G.S. (1993) No. 118 File issued by the
State Commission for Restructuring the Economic System on July 16, 1993.
Upon approval by the State Council Securities Commission and other
relative departments, the Company publicly issued H-shares in Hong Kong
in 1993 and A-shares in Shanghai in 1994, and was respectively listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited Ltd. in 1993 and Shanghai Stock
Exchange in 1994.

After being approved from a resolutions by the Company’s general
meetings of shareholders held on May 16, 2001 and June 11, 2002, and
being reexamined and approved by ZJFXZ [2002] No. 133 File issued by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission, the Company successfully issued
more 22,000,000 RMB common shares (A-shares) to the public stock
shareholders from December 26, 2002 to January 7, 2003, and par value
of each share is 1 yuan. After issuing more stock, the Company’s total
share capital was 422,000,000 shares, of which, there were 250,000,000
state-owned legal person shares, 72,000,000 domestic public shares and
100,000,000 overseas public shares, and par value of each share is 1 yuan.

According to JGZQZ [2006] No. 25 “Reply to Problems on Equity
Division Reform of Beiren Printing Machinery Co., Ltd” issued by the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
People’s Government of Beijing, the Company’s sole non-tradable shares
shareholder — Beiren Group Corporation transferred original 27,360,000
state-owned legal person shares to the Company’s tradable A-share
shareholders, by a method that every 10 shares are allotted with 3.8
shares, and the A-share equity right registration date for implementing the
aforesaid equity division reform plan was March 29, 2006.

Beiren Group Corporation sold 21,000,000 shares of the Company’s non-
restricted tradable shares through the bulk commodity trading system of
the Shanghai Stock Exchange on January 6, 2010 and January 7, 2010,
and publicly sold 20,000 shares of the Company’s non-restricted tradable
shares on December 2, 2010, accounting for 4.98% of the Company's
total share capital. Up to December 31, 2011, Beiren Group Corporation
held 201,620,000 state-owned legal person shares which were all non-
restricted tradable shares and accounted for 47.78% of total share capital;
120,380,000 non-restricted domestic public shares, accounting for 28.52%
of total share capital; and 100,000,000 non-restricted overseas public
shares, accounting for 23.70% of total share capital.

The Company'’s controlling shareholder — Beiren Group Corporation and
the Company’s actual controller — Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric
Holding Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as Jingcheng Machinery Electric)
signed the Agreement on Gratuitous Transfer of State-owned Stock Equity
between Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. and Beiren
Group Corporation on June 16, 2012, according to this agreement, Beiren
Group Corporation gratuitously transferred the Company’s 201,620,000
A-shares to Jingcheng Machinery Electric. After the share transfer, the
Company’s total share capital remained unchanged, and Jingcheng
Machinery Electric held 201,620,000 shares of the Company stock,
accounting for 47.78% of total share capital, and became the Company’s
controlling shareholder. This gratuitous equity transfer has been approved
by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the State Council on September 1, 2012. The Company received the
Confirmation of Transfer Register issued by China Securities Depository
and Clearing Co., Ltd. Shanghai Branch on December 7, 2012, and the
formalities related to share transfer were completed.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Company Profile (Continued)

The Company signed the Agreement on Replacement of Material Assets
and the Supplementary Agreement under the Agreement on Replacement
of Material Assets with Jingcheng Machinery Electric and Beiren Group
Corporation in November 2012. According to these agreements, the
Company replaced all its assets and liabilities with assets of gas storage
and transport equipment business owned by Jingcheng Machinery Electric,
and the shortfall was compensated by Jingcheng Machinery Electric by
cash. The proposed traded-out property was the Company’s all assets and
liabilities, the proposed traded-in property was 88.50% equity of Beijing
Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., 100% equity of Jingcheng Holding (Hong Kong)
Co., Ltd. and 100% equity of Beijing Jingcheng Compressor Co., Ltd. with
its environmental protection business wiped off, and all the three are held
by Jingcheng Machinery Electric.

On September 26, 2013, the Company received the Reply on Approving
the Material Asset Restructuring of Beiren Printing Machinery Co., Ltd.
(ZJXK [2013] No. 1240) issued by China Securities Regulatory Commission,
approving the Company to restructure material assets at this time.

On October 31, 2013, The Company signed the Agreement on
Replacement and Settlement of Material Assets with Jingcheng Machinery
Electric and Beiren Group Corporation, Jingcheng Machinery Electric
delivered traded-in assets to the Company, and the Company delivered
traded-out assets and relevant staff to Beiren Group Corporation.

On December 23, 2013, the Company changed its name from Beiren
Printing Machinery Co., Ltd to Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co.,
Ltd.

Jingcheng Machinery Electric reduced 21,000,000 shares of the Company’s
non-restricted tradable A-share through the bulk trading system of the
Shanghai Stock Exchange on May 6, 2015, May 13, 2015, and May 14,
2015, which accounted for 4.98% of the Company’s total share capital. On
December 31, 2015, Jingcheng Machinery Electric held 180,620,000 shares
of the Company’s non-restricted tradable A-share, and held 42.80% of the
Company’s total share capital.

Jingcheng Machinery Electric bought 2,115,052 shares of the Company’s
A-share through the trading system of the Shanghai Stock Exchange on
August 3, 2016, accounting for 0.50% of the Company’s total share
capital. After the increase in share holding, Jingcheng Machinery Electric
held 182,735,052 unrestricted tradab